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Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office 

December 13,2017 

To the Honorable Joseph P. Lopinto, ill, Jefferson Parish Sheriff 
and the Citizens of Jefferson Par!sb, Louisiana: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office (the "Sheriff') for the 
year ended June 30, 2017 is hereby submitted. 

State statutes (LRS 24:513) require that the Sheriff publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year, a 
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
and audited in ac-cordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants. Pursuant to these statutes, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) of the 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 

This CAFR consists of management' s representations concerning the finances of the Sheriff. Consequently, 
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this 
report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Sheriff has established a 
comprehensive internal control f-ramework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft, 
or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Sheriff's financial statements in 
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls shoUld not outweigh their benefits, the Sherifrs 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to 
the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report 1s complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The SherifPs fmancial statements have been audited by LaPorte CPAs and Business Advisors, a firm of licensed 
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the 
fmancial statements of the Sheriff for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, are free of material misstatement. The 
independent audit Involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the auditJ 
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an "unmodified" (or "clean") opinion that the SherifFs financial 
statements, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, are fairly presented in confonnity with GAAP. The independent 
auditor's report is presented as the first component of the Financial Section of this report. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction. overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form ofManagement's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter oftranstnittal is 
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Sheriff's MD&A can be found 
immediately following the report of the independent auditors in the Financial Section of this report. 

The independent audit of the financial statements of the Sheriff was part of a broader, federally mandated "Single 
Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit 
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the fmancial statements, 
but also on the audited government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special 
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports 
are available in the Single Audit Section of this report. 
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PROFU..E OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The Sheriff's position is authorized under Article V, Section 27 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. The Sheriff 
is a separately elected official by the citizenry in a general, popular election. As the Chief Executive Officer of the 
Law Enforcement District of the Parish, the Sberiffhas the responsibility for enforcing state and local laws and 
ordinances within the territorial boundaries of the parish. The Sheriff provides protection to tbe residents of the 
parish through on-site patrols, investigations, et cetera, and serves the residents of the Parish through the 
establishment of community policing details, neighborhood watch programs, anti-drug abuse and other programs. 

The Sheriff also administers the parish jail and correctional facilities and exercise duties required by the parish court 
system, such as providing bailiffs, executing orders of the court, serving subpoenas, and other duties. 
He also serves as the Ex-officio Tax Collector of the parish. As such, the Sheriff is responsible for the collection and 
distribution of ad valorem (property) taxes, sales and use taxes, parish occupational licenses and permits, state 
revenue sharing funds, fines, costs and bond forfeitures imposed by the local district courts. 

As discussed in the notes to the fmancial statements, as the local governing authority, the Jefferson Parish Council 
(the "Parish") is considered to be the primary government of the Parish. However, for a number of reasons, the 
Sheriff is not considered to be a component unit of the Parish and, tbet'efore, issues a "stand-alone'' report Some of 
the reasons for not inclurung the Sheriff as part of the Parish reporting entity include: 1) the Sheriff is a legally 
separate entity from tl1e Parish, 2) the Sheriff is a separately elected official elected by the citizenry in a general 
popular election, 3) the Parish can neither impose its will on the Sheriff nor does the Sheriff provide significant 
benefits or burdens to the Parish, and 4) the Sheriff is not fiscally dependent on the Parish. 

The fmancial reporting entity of the Sheriff includes all of the funds, as well as component units, for which he is 
financially accountable. As such, the operations of the Law Enforcement District (LED) of Jefferson Parish. 
although a legally separate entity, is, in substance, part of the Sheriff and is included (i.e., blended) within the 
Sheriff's financial report. Additionally, the collections and rusbursements handled by the Sheriff in his capacity as 
the Ex-Officio Tax Collector of Jefferson Parish are reported within the Sheriff's financial statements as an Agency 
Fund. Finally, the operations of the 9 I 1 Emergency Communications District are accounted for in a Special 
Revenue Fund as the Sheriff. Under Parish Ordinance, the Sheriff is currently the administrator of the district. 

As a stand-alone entity, the Sheriff adopts his own budgets for the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds. 
State Statutes require the adoption of a budget prior to the start of the fiscal year. The FY 2017 budget vvas 
originally adopted in June 2016 and was finally amended in June 20 17. The budget process also calls for public 
inspection of the proposed budget and a public hearing to adopt the budget (wltich the Sheriff complied with). 

For the General Fund, the legal budgetary level of control is at the function (i.e., "bureau'') level. For the Special 
Revenue Funds, the level of control is at the fund level. 

t:NFORMA TION FOR ASSESSING THE SHERIFF'S ECONOMIC CONDITION 

The information presented in the ftnancial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the 
broader perspective of the specific environment and economic conditions within which the Sheriff operates. 

Local Economic Condition and Outlook 

Jefferson Parish is located in the southeastern part of Louisiana and is adjacent to the City of New Orleans. With a 
population of nearly 436,000 (458,000 pre-Hurricane Katrina), the Parish has historically played a major role in the 
New Orleans metropolitan economy. With several shopping malls located throughout the parish along with the 
Elmwood Industrial Park area (wholesalers and manufacturers), retail sales, wholesale sales, and manufacturing 
dominate the local economy. ln addition, oil field extraction and services, tourism, gaming, construction, 
transportation, cbetnicals, shipbuilding, and health-care make up the balance of the Parish's economy. Given our 
proximity to the City of New Orleans, the Mississippi River, the Gulf of Mexico and the Interstate I 0 (I-10) corridor, 
ruversification has been the rule since the boom-to-bust swings seen in the 1980's in the oil industry. 
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As noted above, the parish is home to several major "traditional" shopping mall developments (three on the Eastbank 
and two on the Westbank). In addition, the Manhattan Boulevard area on the Westbank is dominated by retail 
establishments. In addition, the Elmwood Industrial Park area is home to a wide variety of wholesalers, 
manufacturers, and retailers, while the River Road on the Westbank js home to several chemical and utility 
companies. Given the long recovel)' from Hurricane Katrina, the parish's malls have been "the place to shop" in the 
metropolitan area over the last few years; although, this is now under attack from online shopping. Jefferson Parish 
is also home to a number of car dealerships that generate a sizeable amount of motor vehicle sales taxes each month. 
Finally, the oil/gas and related service industries still p lay a large part in the area's economy, particularly on the 
Westbank of the Parish where the Harvey Canal industrial area is located. and access to the Gulf of Mexico and the 
Inter-coastal canal runs near Grand Isle. When gasoline prices warrant additional drilling, the oil field industries in 
the area heat up as the push to work the oil fields of the Gulf of Mexico increases. Our proximity to the Gulf and the 
Barataria estuary also rn.ake the seafood industry an important piece of the puzzle, as well. 

The results of this diversification can be seen in the economic statistics. Per capita (median household) income is 
still one of the highest in the State- approximately $47,591 as of year-end. As noted below, despite the various 
hurricanes and the BP oil spill, the assessed property values increased from the prior year (from $4.228 billion to 
$4.331 billion). Tllis 2.4 percent increase reflect<; a leveling off of the economic recovery in the region, as the 
housing market continues to strengthen, but only marginally. 20 I 6 was also a "reassessment" year, which allowed 
the Assessor to "mark-to-market'' certain properties (this occurs every 4 years). 

The local economy has fared well because of and in spite of the several hurricanes and tropical storms that have 
affected the area over the past several years. In 2005, Hurricanes Katrina and Rita caused widespread devastation 
in the New Orleans Metropolitan area; however, Jefferson was able to get back on its feet rather quickly and served 
as the source of the rebuilding effort rn 2008, Hurricanes Gustav and Ike affected the area and another m.ini­
t·ecovel)' boom was seen. These events seemed to allow our area to weather the deep national recession that was 
being felt across the country for much of2009 and 2010. The recession was finally making its way to the area when 
the BP Water Horizon oil drilling platform exploded and sank off the southeastern coast of Louisiana in April 
2010. Oil spewed into the Gulf of Mexico for three months. A good amount of this oil spill affected the Louisiana 
coastline and interior waterways and bayous, including the southern portion ofJefferson Parish. Finally in 2012, 
Hurricane Isaac affected the area and caused widespread power outages across the area for days. 

The Parish leadership continues to be fairly optimistic about the future of the local economy. We have a Parish 
Council and a Parish School Board who are vel)' business oriented, the State's film-making initiatives are still paying 
off as movies and television shows are being filmed in the area (despite cut-backs at the state level), and the HueyP. 
Long Bridge widening project was completed in July 2013 (with the hopes that it will spur development on the 
Westbank of the Parish now that it is done). Despite a lagging local economy, the unemployment rate actually 
dropped from 6.1 to 5.2 percent during 20 I 7, which reflects what is happening on the national scale. 

Property taxes, which are a major source of revenue to the Sheriff, increased from $28,739,000 to $29,514,000 or 
2. 7 percent from last year. This increase was caused by a slight increase in the overall collections of property tax.es, 
as well as an increase in the overall assessed values of the property (total assessed value of property in the parish (in 
thousands) increased from$4,228,000 to $4,331,000 or 2.4 percent). This increase was realized at the local level 
because 2016 was a "reassessment" year and 
the Sheriff was allowed to "roll-forward'' its 
millage rate to capntre the increases noted in 
the assessed values. The Sheriff rolled his 
millage rate fmward to its maximum allowed 
8.28 mills (the same as last year). 

Overview of Crime Statistics 

Crime obviously has a significant impact on 
the operations of the Sheriff's Office. As you 
are aware, the results of our efforts can be 
tracked in many ways. Some of the best 
indicators of the success of the office are the 
standard crime statistics published in the FBl 
Uniform Crime Report (UCR). 

55 

Crime Rate per 1,000 Residents 
Last 10 Years 

~~~~~====================j 
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In Jefferson Parish, crime has been held in check for most of the past few years. The most telling proof of this is seen 
in the crime rate per l ,000 residents. As can be seen in the graph, (be rate has been decreasing each year since the 
high seen in the aftermath of Hurricane Katrina. In fact, the current year per-capita rate of 36.9, which is 
slightly lower than last year, is one of the lowest in decades. 

The total number of crimes in Jefferson Parish has also decreased over tbe last few years (see graph below). For 
2017, the number decreased from 13,167 to 12,204 (a decrease of7.0 percent). Calls for service decreased from 
301,449 last year to 278,869 in 2017 (or 8.1 percent less). lt appears that the Sheriff's multi-pronged approach to 
fighting crime is working. 

Despite the decreases seen over the past few years, there is still a perception that crime is bad in some parts of the 
Parish. This perception appears to be driven by the types of crimes seen today compared to what our then 
''suburban" parish was used to seejng. These "urban" types of crimes are a bit new to Jefferson; however, we have 
deployed several tactics to combat this trend. 

18,000 

Total Number of Crimes 
2008 to Present 

2008 2009 2010 2011 201 2 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

The most visible crime fighting tactic 
has to do with increasing code 
enforceme.nt on blighted areas. Tbis is 
a joint-venture between the Sheriff, the 
Parish, and the Courts. We are now 
seeing the positive effects of the 
increased enforcement in several areas. 
For example, the Fat City area of 
Metairie bas seen a significant drop in 
crime as the spotlight was shined on that 
area and various task forces, along with 
the Sheriff, made changes for the better. 
Another major tactic has to do with the 
expansion of the use of neighborhood 
crime cameras and autoltUlted license 
plate r ecognition (ALPR) cameras in 
various hot-spots throughout the Parish. 
These cameras have provided an 
invaluable resource in tracking down 
stolen vehicles or chasing down 
suspects. 

Another project helping to fight crime is COP-Link. COP-Link is a computerized analytical tool that allows the 
entire four parish region to share and search their crime databases with much more effectiveness. Tbis $2.0 million 
project was funded with local funds from the New Orleans Police Department and the Sheriff. The system went on­
line early in 2012 and is already helping solve crimes. Taking advantage of this software is the Criminal 
Intelligence Center, a cooperative endeavor between the Sheriff, Orleans Parish, and various other federal, state, 
and local agencies. This quasi-fusion center allows the agencies work together on certain major crimes and share 
intelligence. 

A popular performance measurement for law enforcement agencies is response time. The average response time for 
emergency calls received by the Sheriff's Office has historically been held to approximately 5 minutes. For 2017, 
the response time was 5.42 minutes. By most law enforcement standards, this continues to be an excellent mark. All 
of these variables must be taken into account in the staffing and financial plaiUl.ing of the Sheriff's Office. 

Long-term Financial Planning 

As the effects of the national recession began to be felt locally back 1n 2008, it was imperative that the Sheriff's 
Office look at its finances on a long-term basis, rather than annually. We typically project our operating budgets out 
for a period of three (3) years to give management an idea of what revenues are expected to do and how this may 
affect the daily operations of the office (now and in the future). Given the easing of the national recession, the 
limited revenue streams available to us, and the increasing use of technology to fight crime, this projection is always 
an important planning tool. 



As part of this review, it was noted that the post-Katrina sales tax boom bas been waning over the past few years and 
was coming to an end. While this gradual drop in sales taxes was expected as the recovery period ended~ it was 
compounded in 2009 and 2010 by the troubles seen in the national economy, especially as it relates to auto 
dealerships (Jefferson Parish has several major car dealerships located within our boundaries). The problems in the 
national housing markets also began to creep into the area, thus, property tax assessments were not expected to 
increase at the rates that bad been seen over .the past few years. 

Taking this into account, the Sheriff decided to seek a long-tenn solution for one of its major revenue sources -the 
renewal oftbe ~ cent sales tax levied in 1994. This tax was originally levied for a period of 10 years and bad been 
renewed once already. It was set for a renewal in 20 14; however, the Sheriff brought it to the voters of the Parish a 
year early and sought to have the tax made permanent, instead of renewable every 10 years. In the spring of 2012, 
the citizens overwhelmingly renewed the \4 cent sales tax and its indefinite levy. 

Back in 2008 when most revenues were stagnating, the Sheriff decided to finance a badly needed capital program 
with bond money (i.e., long-term debt) instead of operating or current funds. In August 2008, the Law Enforcement 
District (LED) of Jefferson Parish (i.e., the Sherift) issued $30.0 million in Limited Tax Revenue Bonds to help fund 
several projects. The bonds were secured by the ad valorem taxes collected by the Office. This was the first time 
since 1990 that the Sheriff's Office has issued Jong-te.rm debt. The decision to do so was not an easy decision, 
however, it was ultimately decided that this would be the best way to ensure the long-tenn financial stability of the 
office. Since its issuance, a number of projects have been initiated and/or completed by the Sheriff's Office. Over 
the last seven years, the Sheriffhas completed all of the bond-funded projects, including a new crime lab, a 2nd 

District Station, a 41
b District Station, the Bonnabel Boat Launch and Storage Facility, and others. The last bonded 

project, completed in early 2013, was the construction and relocation of the 3rd District Station. 

For 2017, the Sheriff is internally financing a few 
more capital projects - the construction of a new 
First District Station in Fat City, the construction 
of a Detective Bureau parking lot, the 
modifications of the Crime Lab's exterior panels. 
In 2014, land for the First District Station was 
purchased for $1,177,000 and in 2017 an additional 
$978,000 was spent. The project-to-date cost is 
now $2,551,000 on this project, which is now 
nearing the construction phase (bids were released 
in late June 2017 and an award was made in late 
August 20 17). We estimate a total cost of nearly 
$7,500,000, which is fully funded at year-end (see 
proposed design photo). The Detective Bureau bas 
struggled for adequate parking almost since it was moved to 725 Maple Street in Harvey. During 2015, we were 
able to purchase some land across the street from the bureau. During 2017, $321 ,000 was spent on this project 
paving the lot, installing lights and a fence. This project was completed near the end of 2017. The Crime Lab 
building has been experiencing problems with its exterior panels leaking in some places. The Sheriff is in the 
planning phase of modifying/replacing the panels. This project should start in 2018. 

Two other m~Yor initiatives involved our role as the administrator of the Region 1 Radio Communications network 
The first involved the construction of a new radio communications tower in the Lafitte/Barataria area to provide 
additional coverage for the region. We have spent $1,027,000 to date on locating land and starting construction on a 
new tower. The project got underway in February 2017 but experienced some rain delays in the spring. We are 
looking to have it completed in the spring of2018 at a total cost of$3,500,000. We also purchased new APEX 
6000 portable radios from Motorola Solutions right before year-end to replace ow- aging radios. The purchase 
was made via a capital lease valued at $4,352,000. The new radios will be issued before the end of December 2017. 

During 2012, the Sheriff decided to lower the outstanding debt of the office by partially refunding (or 
"defeasing") a portion of the outstanding LED Limited Revenue Tax Bonds that were issued in 2008. $18,490,000 
was placed into an irrevocable trust fund with a refunding escrow agent to pay off the maturities of principal and 
interest between2020 and 2028. As such, bonded debt was reduced $(15,395,000) and, after a current year payment 
of$1 ,290,000, only $5,795,000 is teft outstanding. See Note D.8 for further details on the bonded debt and the 
capital lease noted above. 
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Relevant Financial Policies 

The Sheriff has adopted a number of financial policies and is governed by certain statutes in other financial areas. 
We have cash management policies and investment policies whereby we have two options concerning idle cash: 1} 
invest it in statutorily allowed securities or 2) allow it to stay in intere~t bearing accounts. As required by state 
statutes, the Sheriff ulllizes a fiscal agent bank to main1ain its deposits. In previous years, the Sheriff actually used 
two separate banks to accomplish this- one for the general operating funds and one for the tax collector funds. The 
Sheriff went out to bid in the spring of 2016 and awarded the contract to one bank with a fixed 1.25% interest rate. 
This fixed rate was nearly twice the existing rate and caused a significant increase in our interest income this past 
year. The Sheriff also continues "pooling" the cash from all of its funds (except Tax Collector, which maintains its 
own pool) in order to maximize its earning potential. Thus, the Sheriff earns interest on 100 percent of its daily 
pooled cash balances. 

The Sheriff invests its idle funds in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) - a state sponsored external 
investment pool, commercial paper, mwricipal bonds, or in U.S. Govemment Securities during the year. At June 30, 
2017, the investment portfolio was $37,833,000 ($7 ,869,000 in discount notes (20.8%), $4,645,000 in municipal 
bonds (12.3%), $6,238,000 (16.5%) in commercial paper and $19,081 ,000 (50.4%) in LAMP). 

The securities are held in a joint account by a third patty and are in the Sherifrs Office's name, thus they are in the 
lowest risk category as defined by government accounting standards. Because of slightly increasing cash balances 
and interest rates, interest income earned by the Governmental Funds totaled $808,000, which is an increase of 
$489,000 or 153.3% from last year. The nearly doubling of the interest rate under the new fiscal agent contract 
accounted for the increase. 

State statutes require the Sheriff to have his deposits insured or collateralized at a rate of I 00 percent at all times. 
During 2017, this requirement was complied with throughout the year. At June 30, 2017, the Sheriff had deposit 
balances in banks of $90,868, all of which are in the lowest credit risk category defined by the GovemmentaJ 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

The Sheriff also has a fund balance policy in place whereby a targeted fund balance level has been established for 
the General Fund. The policy calls for the maintenance of an unassigned fund balance level of at least 20.0 percent 
of expected General Fund expenditures. At June 30. 2017, the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund totaled 
$34,895,000, which was 27.8 percent of the current year expenditures (well above the target). 

The Sheriff also established a "salaJ-y stabilization fund" with one time surpluses generated after Hurricane Katrina 
that were caused by the temporary loss of staff. The policy calls for this stabilization fund to provide a certain 
amount of money to the General Fund each year where the staffing formula calls for a staffmg level of more than 
I ,400. For 2017, the Salary Stabilization Fund transferred $3,100,000 to the Generdl Fund under this stabilization 
formula. At year end, $8,541,000 remains in the fund for future use. 

Another critical fmancial policy area has to do with how the Sheriff accounts for and funds its risk management 
activities. Because of the nature of the activities the Sheriff is involved in, the office is primarily self-insured for 
most of its risks of loss. To account for and fund these activities, tbe Sheriff maintains two Internal Service Funds. 

The first is the Auto Loss and General Liability fund. To protect against these types of risks, the Sheriff 
participates in the Louisiana Sheriff's Risk Management Program (a public entity risk pool). Under this program, 
general/professional liability claims are covered by insurance at the rate of $100,000 per claim, with an aggregate 
stop-loss of$500,000 to $750,000 for each loss year (depending on the year). No excess coverage is available for 
losses, thus, once the aggregate is met. the Sheriff is completely self-insured on general/professional liability cases. 

For auto loss claims, the Sheriff is self-insured on the first $1,750,000 per accident. Excess liability coverage is 
provided for claims between $1,750,000 and $4,000,000. These amounts were increased in 2005 in an effort to 
lower the excess liability premiums. At June 30, 2017, claims and judgment.~ payable totaled $7,154,000, which was 
a decrease of $328,000 or 4.4 percent from the prior year. The fund had assets of $8,655,000 available to pay these 
claims. During 2017, this fund bad a positive change in net position of $1,586,000, as revenues exceeded costs, and 
ended the year with a positive net position of$1,499,000. 
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The second fund is the Group Health and Life Insurance fund. Under this program, which is administered by a 
third-party service agent (TPA), the Sheriff is self-insured for its claims reported during the year up to the "stop­
loss" amount of $250,000 per person per loss year, Excess liability for claims over the stop-loss amount is provided 
for through a commercial insurance carrier. Contributions into this fund are made by participating employees and 
are matched by the Sheriff based on the employee's classification. 

At June 30, 2017, a liability of $770,000 has been accrued, which represents the amount of claims reported to the 
service agent but not yet paid, along with a liability (i.e., ''due to'') to the General Fund. The fund had assets of 
$44,000 at June30, 2017 available to pay these claims and liabilities. During 2017, this fund' s net position 
decreased $(81 0,000), mainly because of increases in health and pharmacy claims, offset by a one-time transfer of 
$2,000,000 from the General Fund to help cover cost overruns. The employer share of the premium was increased 
by $20 per month (up to $500) per employee in January 2017 to address future needs and trends and it will be 
increased again in January 2018. 

Additional information on the Sheriff's risk management activity can be found in Note E.1 in the notes to the 
financial statements. 

As required by state law, the Sheriff provides pension benefits tor all ·of its full-time employees through the 
Louisiana Sheriff's Pension & Relief Fund, a statewide plan managed by a board of trustees. The Sheriffhas no 
immediate obligation in connection with the employee benefits offered through the plan beyond its employer 
contribution rate that is set by the board; however, under the accounting and reporting rules for pensions, the 
Sheriff reports its proportionate share of any unfunded pension liabilities that the plan may have. The net pension 
obligation reported by the Sheriff totaled $63,362,000 (an increase of$18,494,000). There are a number of deferred 
outflows and inflows associated with this new reporting standard. At year end, the Sheriff reported $32,277,000 of 
deferred outflows (made up mostly of the 2017 employer contributions which are being deferred until next year) and 
$7,180,000 of deferred inflows (made up of a variety of different items related to changes in assumptions and 
earnings of the plan). During 2017, the employee' s contribution rate was 10.25 percent and the employer's was 
13.25 percent. Employer contributions during the year totaled $10,775,000, which included $ 1,279,000 of employee 
contributions paid for by the Sheriff and $9,496,000 of required employer contributions. The employer 
contnbutions were up $74,000 or 0.7 percent from last year. The increase was caused by the drop in the contribution 
rate imposed by the plan In 2017 (from 13.75 to 13.25 percent), offset by additional employees contributing. 

The Sheriff also provides other post-employment health and life benefits for certain retirees and their dependents. 
Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, which governs how Other Post­
employment Benefits (OPEB) are calculated, accrued, and reported on, as of June 30, 2017, the Sheriff's Net OPEB 
liability was $20,701 ,000 for medical and life insurance benefits. Tltis was an increase of$1 ,264000 during 2017. 
To date, the Sheriff has chosen not to fund these liabilities at this time, thus the entire liability is carried on the books 
at year end as a noncurrent liability. 

Additional information on the Sheriff's pension arrangements and postemployment benefrts can be found in Notes 
F.l and F.2 in the notes to the financial statements. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

The Sheriff's Office continues to look for ways to become more efficient with the resou.rces available to it For 
2017, one initiative has to do with monitoring and containing costs, especially when it comes to overtime. 
Certain other costs are beyond our control, such as pension, health costs, and the price of gasoline; however, aU of 
the Bureau Commanders were put on notice to monitor their costs during 2017. The result was a positive variance in 
budget to actual costs for every bureau in the General Fund This initiative continues into 2018. 

The Sheriff continues to revise and improve the operations of the 911 Emergency Communications District We 
have already reviewed and revised several operating contracts, which will result in savings to the district We are 
also looking forward to implementing new technologies in this area and pursuing additional revenues from the 
existing service provider base by perfonning revenue audits. We continue to work closely with the 91 1 
Communications Advisory Board and the Parish. One major initiative currently in the works is implementing a 
digital solution to the backup PSAP sites and implementing a subscription service rather than purchasing a host of 
new equipment This upgrade is in progress and will set the s tage for the next generation of 91 1 (i.e., text, video, 
etc.). During 2016, the 911 center began receiving text to 911 calls. 
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The Sheriff ill also looking to complete the upgrade of its facilities. The Sheriff is working with the Parish and other 
business officials to clean up and revitalize the Fat City area on the Eastbank of the Parish. Several building codes 
have been changed to address the blight that has been creeping into the area. Other Parish ordinances have been 
passed to curtail the number of bars that cater to younger and rowdier crowds. Since these changes were made, 
crime in the area is down substantially. On top of enforcing mat1y of these legal changes, the Sheriff has committed 
to helping revitalize the area by constructing a new First District Station in the heart of Fat City. Our current 
station is on the northern edge of the area and is woefully inadequate for our needs. $7,500,000 has be-en set aside in 
the Buildings and Improvements Capital Fund for this project. We purchased land in 2014 on Hessmer Avenue near 
l81

h Street at a cost of$1 ,1 77,000 and an additional $978,000 was spent on two more blighted properties. The 
project is nearing the construction phase (bids were let in June 2017 and awarded in August 20 17). The project 
looks to be completed in December 2018. 

Finally, the Sheriff is looking to address some gaps in the communications network in the southern part of the Parish, 
particularly in the south Marrero, Lafitte, Barataria, and Crown Point areas. We have set aside $3,500t000 in the 
Communications Reserve Capital Fund to finance the construction of a new communications tower in Lafitte. 
Construction began in February 2017 and the tower should be completed in the next 18 to 24 months (although it 
was delayed slightly by spring and hurricane season rains). We also entered into a capital lease io finance the 
purchase of new APEX 6000 portable radios from Motorola Solutions, which will be deployed by the end of 
December 2017. 

With the retirement of Sheriff Newell Normand in August 2017 and your appointment as the interim Sheriff, the 
leadership of the office has changed hands for the first time in 10 years. While many of the policies that Sheriff 
Normand put in place will guide us for years to come and have resulted in the lowest crime rates we have seen in 
years, we look forward to your guidance in the future and hope for a continuation of the success that the department 
has seen over the last several years. 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

Awards 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Jefferson Parish Sheriff for its June 30, 2016 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). This was the twenty-second consecutive year that the Sheriff has 
received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must 
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR, whose contents conform to program standards. Such 
reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate 
of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the 
program requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA. 

Acknowledgments 

The preparation of this report could not have. been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the 
entire staff of the Accounting, Payroll, Tax, Internal Auditing and Administrative departments. We would like to 
express our appreciation to all members of the departments who assisted and contributed to this year's audit. Finally, 
credit should be given to our past-Sheriff Newell Normand, for Ws never ending support in planning and conducting 
the financial operations of the Sheriff's Office in a dedicated and responsible manner over the past 10 years as 
Sheriff and for the 13 years prior to that when he served as Comptroller. 

Respectfu1ly submitted, 

~~~--
Paul C. Rivera, CPA, CGFO 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

Sheriff Joseph Lopinto 
Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office 
Harvey, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office (the Sheriff), as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Sheriffs basic financial statements as listed in the table on contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility Is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence that we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Sheriff, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and 
the Major Special Revenue Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of a Matter 

As discussed in Note A to the financial statements, the Sheriff adopted new accounting guidance, GASB 
Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Plans Other than Pension Plans, and 
GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, for the year ende<f June 30, 2017. The adoption of 
GASB Statement No. 74 had no impact on the Sheriffs financial reporting, GASB Statement No. 77 
required additional disclosures about the impact of tax abatement programs. Our opinion is not modified 
with respect to these matters. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's 
discussion and analysis, and schedule of the Sheriff's proportionate share of net pension liability, and 
schedule of the Sheriffs contributions on pages 17 through 33 and pages 110 through 111 , respectively, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements In an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain lfmited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the Sheriff's basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, the 
combining and individual non-major fund financial statements ~nd schedules, and statistical section are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a requi'red part of 
the basic financial statements of the Sheriff. The accompanying Affidavit and Taxroll Status Report, and 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer are 
not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Sheriff but are additional information required by 
the louisiana Legislative Auditor. 

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and schedules, schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards, the Affidavit and Taxroll Status Report, and the Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and 
Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information 
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance With Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 13, 2017, on our consideration of the Sheriffs internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance wtth certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 
audit. 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Metairie, LA 
December 13, 2017 
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J fferson Parish Sherifr s Office 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIO N AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office (the ''Sheriffs Office"), we offer readers of the Sheriff's Office's 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Sheriffs Office for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2017. We encourage readers to consider the infonnationpresented here in conjunction with additional 
information that we have futnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1 to 8 of this report, as well as 
the financial statements, which begin on page 36. All amounts, unless otherwise noted, are expressed in thousands ($1 ,OOO's) 
of dollars. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

);;> The assets of the Sheriff's Office exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $78,404 (Net 
Position). Of this amount, $60,040 or 76.6 percent is invested in capital assets, such as building, vehicles and 
equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and related debt. An additional $7,013 or 8.9 percent is restricted for 911 
operations, debt service payments, and claims and judgments relating to the Sheriff's self-insurance programs. The 
remaining balance of $11 ,351 (Unrestricted Net Position) or 14.5 percent may be used to meet the government's 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

);;> The Sheriff's Office's total Net Position decreased by $(1,792) or 2.2 percent during the current year because total 
revenues o£$145,713 were less than expenses of$147,505. During 20 J 7, charges for services totaled $18,623, operating 
grants totaled $23,380, capital grants totaled $472, property taxes totaled $29,514, payments in lieu of taxes were $89, 
sales taxes totaled $22,874, intergovernmental totaled $2,917, commissions totaled $45,609, charges for services totaled 
$337, interest totaled $879, and miscellaneous revenues were $1,019. In total, revenues decreased $(3,824) or2.6 
percent. There were various changes in the revenue categories this year. The most significant changes were: 1) charges 
for services decreased $(264) or 1.4 percent, 2) operating grants increased $466 or 2.0 percent, 3) property taxes were up 
$775 or 2.7 percent, 4) sales taxes were up $483 or 2.2 percent, 5) commissions were down $(430) or 0.9 percent, 6) 
interest was up $526 or 149.0 percent, and 7) miscellaneous revenues were down $(5,500) or 84.4 percent. In total, 
expenses increased $7,548 or 5.4 percent Explanations of these changes are included in the narrative ofthis analysis. 

)" At the end of the current fiscal year, the Sheriff's governmental fwuls reported a combined fund balance of$77,697. Of 
this amount, $34,895 is unassigned, which is available for spending at the Sheriffs discretion. Of the remaining 
balance, $5,514 is restricted, $8,541 is committed, and $28,747 is assigned. 

~ Unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $34,895 or 27.6 percent of total general fund expenditures (above our 
internal target of 20.0 percent). Total fund balance of the General Fund also represents 72.4 percent of total 
Governmental Fund Balances. These percentages are more/less than last year's percentages (31.9 percent and 75.6 
percent, respectively). 

~ The Sheriff's Office administers the operations of the 91 1 Emergency Communications District This district provides 
emergency communications to the citizens of the Parish and is funded with service fees paid by the citizens on their 
monthly phone bills. These service fees are collected by the Parish and remitted to the Sheriff in the month after 
collection. For 2017, the 911 Emergency Communications Special Revenue Fund recognized revenues of$7,432, 
expenditures of $4,202, and other financing uses of$(3,563), creating a current year deficit of.$(333) and leaving a fund 
balance of $5,514 at year end. 

)> In August 2008, the Law Enforcement District of Jefferson Parish (the Sheriff) issued Limited Tax Revenue B onds 
totaling $30,000 to finance the construction of various facilities. The bonds bore a rating of"AAA" from Standard and 
Poor's when issued. During 2012, the Sheriff used available funds to defease $15,395 of the outstanding bonds. During 
2017, a debt service payment on the remaining bonds consisting of$1 ,290 in principal and $292 in interest and fiscal 
charges was made, leaving a balance at year-end of$5,795. In 2017, a capital lease was entered into for new Motorola 
radios. Capital leases payable at year-end total $4,352, with the first payment coming due in FY 2019. See Note 0.8 for 
further discussion. 
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» Hurricanes Katrina and Rita hit the New Orleans Metropolitan area, including the area serviced by the Sheriff in August 
and September 2005. In August and September 2008, Hurricanes Gustav and Ike also caused damages in the area. 
Hurricane Isaac also affected the area in September 2012. Dwing 2017, the Sheriffincwred costs totaling $241 
providing aid to the Livingston Parish area and FEMA reimbursed the full amount of the cost. See Note E.3 for a 
d iscussion of the continuing effects from the storms and the balances stili owed to the Sheriff. 

~ Under the pension accounting and financial reporting standards, the Sheriff records its proportionate share of the net 
unfunded pension liability of the Louisiana Sheriff's Pension & Relief Fund (the state-wide defmed benefit, cost-sharings 
multiple employer plan that the Sheriff's employees participate in). The Sheritrs proportionate share for 2016 was 
calculated to be 9.983099% of the plan. For reporting purposes, the net pension obligation at June 30,2016 (the 
beginning of the year) is recorded at June 30, 2017. This liability totaled $63,362. There are a number of deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources that are also recorded under these new standards. At year end, deferred outflows of 
$32,277 were recorded along with deferred inflows of$7,180. These items are being deferred and amortized over the 
next 4 to 5 years. 

~ Under GASB Statement No. 45- Other Post-Employment Benefits, the Sheriff accounts for the current costs ofp.J;"oviding 
certain post~employment benefits to its retirees. An actuarial evaluation of the benefits disclosed an Unfunded OPEB 
Liability of$20,701 at year end. This amount is included in long-term debt. To date, the Sheriff has chosen not to fund 
this liability. See Note F.2 for more information. 

~ On August 31, 201 7, Sheriff Newell Normand retired from office after serving as Sheriff since November 2007. As a 
rule oflaw, the Chief Deputy of the office is then named the interim Sheriff. As such, on September I , 2017, Joseph P. 
Lopinto ffi became the interim Sheriff of Jefferson Parish. A special e lection will be held on March 24, 2018 to 
complete the remainder of SberiffNormand's original term of office. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Sheriff's Office's basic financial statements. The 
Sheriff's Office's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: I) government-wide financial statements, 2) 
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information 
in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide fmanciaJ statements. The "government-wide financial statements" are designed to provide readers with 
a broad overview of the Sheriff's Office' s finances, in a manner simHar to a private-sector business. 

The "Statement of Net Position" presents information on all of the Sheriff's Office's assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows 
and outflows, with the difference between them being reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serv~ as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Sherifrs Office is improving or deteriorating. 

The "Statement of Activities" presents infom1ation showing how the government's net position changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that 
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements are designed to distinguish functions of the Sheritrs Office that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The 
Sheritrs Office only has governmental activities in the public safety function. This function includes all of the operating 
bureaus of the Sheriff's Office: executive, finance and administrative, fleet, revenue and taxation, operations, technical 
services, internal management, criminal investigations, special investigations, narcotics and corrections. 
The government-wide financial statements include only the financial activities of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office, which 
is a "stand-alone" governmental unit The govemment-\vide financial statements can be found on pages 36 and 3 7 of thjs 
report. 

Fund financial statements. A "fund'' is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Sheriff's Office, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-re lated legal requirements. The Sheriffs Office's funds 
are classified into three categories: governmental funds. proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds . 
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Governmental funds. "Governmental funds" are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
''governmental activities" in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-tenn inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well 
as on balances of spendable resol,frces available at the end of the fiscal year. Such. information may be useful in evaluating a 
government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for "governmental funds" with similar infonnation presented for "governmental 
activities" in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of 
the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenuesJ expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between "governmental fund" and "governmental activities." 

The Sheriff's Office maintains various funds that are grouped fur management purposes into various fund types. Information 
is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the 911 Emergency Communications Special Revenue Fund, the Federal 
Grants Special Revenue Fund, the Communications Reserve Capital Project Fund, and the Buildings and Improvements 
Capital Project Fund, all of which are considered to be "major" funds. It should be noted that the Salary Stabilization 
Special Revenue Fund is considered a separate fund for budgetary purposes; however, for GAAP purposes, it is consolidated 
into the General Fund. Data from the other governmental funds (i.e., "non-major funds") are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of 
''combinjng statements" elsewhere in this report. 

The Sheriff's Office adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds. A 
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund and each applicable Special Revenue Fund to 
demonstrate compliance with this budget. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 38-43 of 
this report. 

Proprietary jUitds. The Sheriff maintains one type of proprietary fund - Internal Service. Internal Service funds are an 
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Sheriff's various functions. The Sheriff uses 
internal service funds primarily to capture and allocate costs of providing insurance coverage, including health and life, and 
auto and professional liability. Because the services provided by these funds benefit the governmental-type functions of the 
Sheriff's Office, they are included within governmental activities in the government-wide statements. 

The two internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Individual ftmd data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of"combining statements1

' elsewhere 
in the report. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 44-46 of this report. 

Fiduciory funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government 
entity. The Sheriff maintains several agency funds in his capacity as the ex-officio tax collector of the Parish of Jefferson. 
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not 
available to support the Sheriff's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for 
proprietary funds. Individual fund data for each of the fiduciary funds is provided in the fonn of"combining statements'' 
elsewhere in the report. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 47 of this report. 

Notes to tbe Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on 
pages 49-107 of this report. 

Required Supplementary Information. This section contains the 10-year pension-related schedules that are mandated 
under the implementation of the new pension accounting and reporting standards. The schedules can be found on pages 110-
112. 

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, the 
internal service funds, and the agency funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. 
Combining statements for non-major governmental funds, internal service funds, and agency funds can be found on pages 
114-147 of this report. Individual fund statements and schedules, which show additional detailed financial information of 
some of the Sheriff's Major Funds, are found on pages 150-157. 
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Other information, which includes a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Award, a state-required Tax Roll Status Report, and 
a state-required Schedule of Compensation and Other Payments Made to the Agency Head, are included on pages 160-1 72. 

GOVERNMENT-WLDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position, In the case of 
the Sheriff's Office, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows (i.e., net position) by $78,404 at 
June30, 2017 

JEFFEl{SON PARJSH SHERIFF'S OFFJC£ NET POSITION 

Govemmenlal Govemmcnllll 
Activities Activities 

2017 2016 
Current aod o!l'oer assecs s 90,783 s 95,611 
Capital assets 70 187 66,758 

Tol81 assccs 160,970 162,369 

Deferred outflows · refunding escrow 880 1,239 
Deferred outflows - pension related 32277 13,700 

Total dofell'ed outflow$ 33,] 57 14.939 

Loog-1~nn l!ablliHes ouu!llndiog 32,562 28, 1'14 
Net pension obligation 63.362 44,868 
Ocher liabilities 12 619 13.,352 

Total liabilities 108,543 86.364 

Deferred joflows- pensiOn related 7,180 10,74& 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 60,040 76.6% 59,673 74.4% 
Restricted 7,013 8.9% 5,847 7.3% 
Unrestrlored 11,351 14.5% 14.676 18.3% 

Total Net Position s 78 404 s 80.196 

A large portion oftbe Sheriff's Office's net position ($60,040 or 76.6 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, buildings, furniture and fixtures, machinery, vehicles and equipment, and infrastructure) net of any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Sheriffs Office uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Sheriff's Office's investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from 
other resources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Current and other assets are made up of cash, cash equivalents, investments, receivables and other short term assets. The 
balance at year end was $90,783, which is $(4,828) less than last year. Tltis decrease is mostly due to a sli.ght decrease in 
cash and investments as the Sheriff realized a deficit in the current year. 

Deferred outflows of resources totaled $33,157 and are made up of deferred charges of $880 related to the partial defeasance 
of debt in 2012 and $32,277 related to the pension plan. The Sheriff placed funds into an escrow acco\Ul.t to pay off future 
interest and it is being amortized over the next eight years (wltich is when the defeased debt is paid off by the escrow agent). 
The pension related deferred outflows consist primarily of the current year pension contributions that are deferred until next 
year. 

The liabilities of$108,543 include $32,562 related to normal long-term debt and $63,362 of net pension obligations. The 
long-term debt is primarily reJated to outstanding revenue bonds, compensated absences, and the net liability for other post­
employment benefits. The net pension obligation is the Sheriff's proportionate share of the estimated unfunded liability of 
the Louisiana Sheriff's Pension and Relief Fund, a defined benefit cost-sharing multi-employerpensionplan that tbe 
Sheriff's employees participate in. Deferred inflows of resources totaled $7_, 180 and relate to pension activities that are being 
deferred and amortized over the next few years. 
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Restricted Net Position totaled $7,013 (or 8.9 percent of total net position). This amount represents monies b.eld by tbe911 
Emergency Communications Special Revenue Fund that are restricted to the operations of the district ($5 ,514 ), monies held 
aside to pay outstanding claims and judgments of the Sheriff's self-insurance programs (1,499), and money held in the 
sinking fund to pay principal and interest on long-term debt (< $1 ). 

The balance of Unrestricted Net Position was $1 1,351 (or 14.5 percent of total Net Position). These funds may be used to 
meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2017, the Sheriff's Office is able to report 
positive fund balances in all three categori~ ofNet Position, despite the accrual of the large net pension obligation and the 
related deferred inflows and outflows. The Sherifrs Office's Net Position decreased by $(1,792) or 2.2 percent, during the 
current fiscal year. 

Governmental Activities. 

Governmental activjties decreased the Sheriff's Office's Net Position by $(1,792) or 2.2 percent. Key elements of this 
decrease are as follows: 

JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFlCE CUANGFS IN NET J'OSffiON 

Gowr:ruuelltlli Governmental 
Activities Adi.tties 

20~7 2016 1Ch:ttlJ;t. %Ciwlge 
l<evenoes: 
Progmm revenues: 

Otlrges tbr services s 18,623 12.8% s 18,887 12.6% (26-f) · 1.4% 
Operating gmnts and contributions 23,380 16.0% 22,914 15.3% 466 2.0% 
capital grants and conln'butions 472 0.3% 460 0.3% 12 2.6% 

General =ues: 
Property laJles 29,514 20.3% 28,739 19.2% TIS 2.70,41 
Property laXe.s- payments in lieu of 89 0.1% 0.0% 89 100.0% 
S3lesla1les 22,874 15.70,{, 22,391 15.0% 483 2.2% 
lnlergovenu:nental 2,917 2.0% 2,898 1.9% 19 0.7% 
Co.mmissions 45,609 31.3% 46,039 3().8% (430) .().9"/., 
Unrestricted cbaq;es for services 337 0.2% m 0.2% 0.0% 
UnrestriL1ed interest 879 0.6% 353 0.1% 526 149.00-<. 
Miscelhmeoos 1.019 0.7% 6,519 4.4% (5,500) ·84.4% 

Total reve!llles 145,713 100.0% 149,537 100.5% (3.824) ·2.6% 

Expenses: 
Public safety 

&ewtive 1,662 1.1% 966 0.7% 696 72.0"/o 
Civil and ~\ipport Sc:Nices 13, 105 8.9% 13,617 9.70/o (512) -3.8% 
Finance and Admini.~tmtive 11,368 7.7% 11,539 8.2% (171) -1.5% 
F1eec ll,024 ?.S% ll,393 8.1% (369} -3.2% 
Revenue & Taxation 3,472 2.4% 3,564 2.5% (92) -2.6% 
Operations 24,600 16.7% 22,809 16.3% 1,791 7.9% 
Special ()pe'rntions 5.601 3.8% 4,881 3.5% 720 14.8% 
'J'echnic.BI Services 19,605 13.3% 18,701 13.4% 904 4.8% 
ln!emal Management 667 0.5% 614 0.4% 53 8.6% 
Criminal Cnvestig;ations 13,734 9.3% 12,592 9.00/o 1,142 9.1% 
Spooiallnvcstig;ations 11.412 7.7% 9,870 7.1% 1,542 15.6% 
Na100tios 5,065 3.4% 4,637 3.3% 428 92% 
Com::ctiom 25,539 17.3% 24,018 17.2% 1,521 6.3% 
tnterest on LT Debt 6S1 0.4% 756 0.5% (lOS) -J3.9% 
Tota 1 expenses 147,505 100.0% 139,957 100.0% 7,548 5.4% 

ChaJrse in Net Position (1,792) 9.5ll0 

Net Position- 13egirulir.g of year 80,196 70.616 

Net Positioo . End of y<:Sr ~ 78,404 $ 80.196 (1,791} -2.2% 
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A breakdown of the revenues received by the Sheriff's Office' s governmental activities is as follows: 

A discussion of the changes in revenue items follows: 

C Chgs for Services 

•Grants 

0 Property Taxes 

DSales Taxes 

•lntergovt'l 

0 Commissions 

• unrest Chgs 

Dlnterest 

• Miscellaneous 

)> The program revenue Charges for Services represents money received from the public, JPSO employees and other 
agencies for detail fees, civil and criminal fees, usage fees for equipment, feeding and keeping of prisoners, and 
reimbursed salaries. The total amount received during 2017 was $18,623 , which is $(264) less than the prior year. The 
largest changes are seen in the Executive Bureau (up $92), the Civil and Support Bureau (down $224), and the 
Corrections Bureau (down $85). The Executive Bureau is up due to an increase in reimbursed salaries frotn the Parish 
(the salaries of two deputies assigned to the Parish President are reimbursed here). The Civil and Support Bureau is 
down due to 1) a $(304) decrease in civil and criminal fees related to serving civil process papers and subpoenas, 2) an 
increase of $45 in the amount of administrative fees collected on public assignments, and 3) an increase of $35 in the 
details rejmbursed to the Sheriffby the New Orleans Airport and the Parish hospitals. The Corrections was down $(85) 
primarily because of 1) a decrease of$( 4 7) in housing state prisoner reimbursements, 2) a decrease of $(24) in feeding 
and keeping prisoners, 3) an increase of$7 for transporting prisoners, and4) a decrease of$(21) in commissary sales to 
inmates. 

~ Operating grants for goverrunental activities totaled $23,380 for 2017, an increase of$466. Capital grants totaled 
$472, an increase of$12. These grants are made up of federal, state and local/parish and state grants received for various 
positions and projects, state-mandated reimbursements from the Parish for operating expenses, federal asset forfeitures, 
state supplemental pay, and on-behalf payments made to the pension plan by non-employer entities. Federal and state 
grants totaled $6,873, which is $373 more than last year. This net change is primarily due to the following: 

l) A net decrease of$(264) in the Finance Bureau's federal grants due to a decrease in funding for operating grants 
under the Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program (down $264); 

2) An increase of $211 in Operations Bureau due to the prior year disallowance of some emergency costs claimed for 
Hurricane Gustav (due to a correction in labor and equipment rates); 

3) A net increase of$213 in the Special Operations Bureau due primarily to a drop of$(33) in Louisiana Highway 
Safety Commission grants for DWI task force overtime, an increase of $24 7 in FEM A funding tor emergency costs 
.related to the severe flooding in Baton Rouge and Livingston Parishes, and a drop of$(26) in TSA K-9 grants; 

4) A net decrease of$(146) in Technical Services due primarily to a decrease of$(127) in DNA equipment grants; 
5) A net increase of$381 .in the Special Investigations Bureau state grants due to an increase of$356 in High Intensity 

Drug Trafficking Area (HIDT A) grants, a decrease of $(1 0) on the Multi-jurisdictional task force grant, an increase 
of$13 on various drug task forces, and a decrease of$(13) on a grant from the JPHSA for undercover alcohol 
compliance checks; 

6) A net increase of $22 in the Narcotics Bureau due to a decrease of $(52) in Federal Equitable Sharing revenues, an 
increase of $45 in overtime task force grants, an increase of $13 in Westbank Task Force grants, and an increase of 
$110 in a Greater New Orleans Coventry House/Human Trafficking grant; 
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In addition, the operating grants include the cooperative endeavor agreement between the Sherifrs Office and the Parish 
to administer the 9 I 1 Emergency Communications District. For 20 17J the Sheriff's Office recognized $7,366 in 
revenues under this CEA, which is $30 more than last year. Finally, the new pension accounting standards require the 
Sheriff to recognize any contributions to the pension plan by non-employer entities. These 1'on-beha1f' payments totaled 
$3,878 for 2017, an increaseof$109. 

~ Property taxes totaled $29,514, an increase of 
$775 or 2. 7 percent. This increase is due to a 
rise in the assessed values of the taxable values 
of property throughout the parish. 2016 was a 
"reassessment year" . Thus, the Sheriff rolled 
the tax levy forward to take advantage of any 
increases in the tax assessments. The Sheriff's 
millage rate was 8.28 mills both on the 2016 
tax roll and the 2015 tax roll. 

~ Property taxes - payments in lieu of totaled 
$89 for 2017. This is a new revenue stream 

Property Tax and Sale Tax Revenues 
Last 5 Years (in $1,000's) 

and relates to three "payment in lieu of tax" 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
agreements entered into by JEDCO (the 
Parish's economic development arm). Under Prop~rty Tax • S!iles_Tax 

these agreements, these companies are exempt 
from the normal tax rolls for a period of time in exchange for certain investments and job creations thresholds. In 
exchange, the companies make payments in Lieu of taxes during the exempt period. 

> Sales taxes, including motor vehicle ta~es, totaled $22,874, an increase of $483 or 2.2 percent. This increase is a result 
of the improvements seen in the local economy. General sales and use taxes were up $460 or 2.3 percent, while motor 
vehicle taxes were up $23 or 1.0 percent (which mirrors the national trends seen in auto sales). 

> Intergovernmentalrevenues totaled $2,917, an increase of$19 or 0.7 percent from last year, p rimarily due to an 
increase of$51 in state revenue sharing (caused by a 4 percent mandatory cut-back at the state level in the prior year), 
offset by a decrease of $(32) in video poker allocations. 

> Commissions collected by the Sheriff on collections of sales taxes, occupational licenses, fmes and forfeitures, and 
garnishments and sejzures totaled $45,609, a decrease of$(430) or 0.9 percent from last year. This decrease is made up 
of an increase in sales tax related commissions of $932, which mirrors the decrease in sales taxes discussed above, a 
decrease in commissions on .fines and forfeitures of$(914), and a decrease of$(445) in other conunissions. This was 
caused by a decrease in general fines and forfeitures (due to the Red Light Camera settlement received in the prior year 
and not recurring), as well as increases on judicial sales and seizure.s. 

}> Unrestricted interest totaled $879, an increase of$526 or 149.0 percent. This was caused by a significant increase in 
the interest rate paid on our collected balances under our new fiscal agent contract. 

> Miscellaneous income totaled $1,019 for the year, a decrease of $(5,500) or 84.4 percent. This decrease came from 1) a 
decrease of$(4,693) in claims and judgments (due mainly to the settlement of the BP Oil Spill economic loss suit 
received in the prior year and not recurring), 2) an increase of $45 in public assignment fees, 3) a decrease of$( 488) in 
gains (losses) on sales of equipment (due to us having only one auction this year). 

For the most part, increases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth in the demand for services. Expenses totaled 
$147,505, including current year depreciation of$8,181 and interest on long-term debt of$651. The 2017 figures also 
include various adjustments related to the changes in the net pension obligation and its related deferred inflows and outflows. 

The Sheriff's operations are broken down in 13 different "bureaus' ' or functions. Of these, the Civil and Support Services 
Bureaus totaled $13,105 (8.9 percent), the Finance and Administrative Bureau totaled $11 ,368 (7. 7 percent), the Fleet Bureau 
totaled $11 ,024 (7.5 percent), the Operations Bureau totaled $24,600 (16.7 percent), the Special Operations Bureau totaled 
$5,60 I (3.8 percent), the Technical Services Bureau totaled $19,605 (13.3 percent), the Criminal Investigations Bureau 
totaled $13,734 (9.3 percent), the Special Investigations Bureau totaled $11,412 (7.7 percent), the Narcotics Bureau totaled 
$5,065 (3.4 percent), and Corrections totaled $25,539 (11.3 percent). The expenses oftbe Sheriff's Office were offset by 
program revenues (service charges and grants) totaling $42,475 (see above). 
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Overall, the Sheriff saw a net increase in costs of $7,548 or 5.4 percent. A current to prior year comparison highlighting the 
major changes is as follows: 

» Expenses related to general governmental activities totaled $ 146,198, a net increase of$7,129 over last year. Of this 
amount, the General Fund activities generated an increase in costs of $996, the 911 Emergency Communications Fund 
saw an increase of $224, Federal Grants saw an increase of $322, the Communications Reserve Capital Fund saw an 
increase of$5,173, Buildings and Improvements Capital Fund saw an increase of$387, and the Other Governmental 
Funds generated an increase of$27 in costs. See the discussion on the governmental funds below. 

}> Costs associated with the internal services funds drove current year expenses up $4,416, as the Group Health and Life 
Internal Service Fund suffered an operating loss this year. This loss is absorbed by the Sheriff's Bureaus in its 
Government-wide financials. This is an increase of $39 from last year. Net costs were slightly up in these funds due to 
higher claim premiums charges this past year as well as interfund transfers covering losses. 

}> The current year net cost of compensated absences was $92, an increase of $73 compared to last year. This is 
essentially, the net change in the liability after accruing the current year balance and subtracting the current year usage. 

~ The current year expense related to the OPEB liability was $ 1,264, a decrease of $(23). 

}> The net change in how capital outlay is expensed decreased the bureau expenses by$( 1 1 ,942), an increased deduction of 
$(3,313). This increase had to do with several consuuction projects started during the year as well as the purchase of the 
APEX 6000 radios on a capital lease (valued at $4,352). This item affects the current year expenses because the capital 
outlay expenditures are reclassified to additions to capital assets for government-wide purposes. 

}> Depreciation expense totaled $8,181, an increase of$919 over the prior year. 

)> The net effect on current year expenses related to the adjustment of the pension related liabilities and deferred inflows 
and outflows under the pension accounting standards was a net increase in current year bureau expenses of $227 or 
$2,835 more than last year's net reduction. Tills increase had mostly to do with the changes in expected earnings and 
changes in the asswnptions which the pension plan experienced in 2016 (which is recorded in the current year), offset 
by the recognition of on-behalf payments made to the pension plan by non-employer contributing entities. The deferral 
of several pension-related inflows and outflows also affected the current expenses, as some of these deferred resources 
are capitalized and then amortized over the next few years. 

}> The net change from long-tenn debt adj ustments reduced bureau costs by $(931). This is $(110) more of a reduction 
than last year. The principal payment on the bonds was $60 higher than last year and the amortization of the deferred 
charge paid to the refunding escrow agent went down $(50). · 

A graph comparing the expense of each Bureau with the program revenue generated is presented below. 

30,000 

Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office 
Expenses and Program Revenues by Function/Bureau 

(In $1,000's) 

2s,ooo.r------~r------------...---: 
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FINANCiAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the Sheriffs Office uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fmance-related legal 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the Sheriff's Office's "governmental funds" is to provide information on near-tenn 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Sheriff's Office's 
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of June 30, 2017, the Sberilfs Office's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of£77,697, a 
decrease of $(4,871) or 5.9 percent in comparison with the prior year. Approximately $34,895 or 44.9 percent of this total 
constitutes unassigned fimd balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion. Of tbe remaining fund 
balance, $5,5 14 is restricted, $8,541 is committed, and $28,747 is reported as assigned. These categories indicate tbat there 
is some form of restriction (fom18l or informal) placed on these funds and that they are not necessarily available for new 
spending because they have already been restricted, 
committed or assigned to a particular purpose. 

$160 ,000 

Governmental Fund Revenpes 
Last 5 Years (in $1 ,000's) 

As noted above, the governmental funds include the general 
operating funds of the Sheriff (i.e., the General Fund, the 
Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital 
Project Funds). Overall, as the graph shows, revenues of the 
Governmental Funds totaled $138,971 for 2017, a decrease 
of$(3,628) or 2.5 percent. 
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This decrease was the net of several jtems: 
1) An increase in property taxes of$775 or 2.7 percent due 

to 20 16 being a reassessment year and the Sheriff 
rolling his millage forward to take advantage of higher 
assessments and coUections; 

2) An increase in sales taxes of $483 or 2.2 percent, due to 
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a heating up of the local economy (general sales taxes were up 2.3 percent and motor vehicles taxes were up 1.0 
percent); 

I 

I 
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3) An increase in Intergovernmental of$485 due to an increase of$448 in federal grants in the General Fund, an increase of 
S51 in state revenue sharing in the General Fund, a decrease of $(89) in state supplemental pay (General Fund), an 
increase of$41 in state basic training (General Fund), an increase of$67 in other reimbursed salaries (General Fund), an 
increase of $30 in 9 11 operating fees, an increase of $287 in the Federal Grant fund (mostly an increase in the HIDT A 
grant), a decrease of$(150) in the Region 1 O&M fund (for the R eggio tower site relocation in the prior year), a decrease 
of$(1 2) in the Multi-Jurisdictional Grant (task forces), an increase of$75 in the State and Local Grant fund (from the 
Parish for ALPR cameras), and a decrease of $(264) in the Local Law Enforcement Block Grant; 

4) Interest income was up $489 or 153.6 percent due to an increase in the interest rates earned on collected balances; 
5) A decrease of $(5,135) or 59.2 percent in Miscellaneous Revenues caused mainly by the Sheriff receiving a settlement 

from BP related to economic losses from the 2010 oil spill of$4,800 in the prior year which did not recur in 2017. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Sheriff's Office. At June 30, 2017, unassigned fund balance of the 
General Fund was $34,895 and total fund balance was $56,274. As a measure oftbe General Fund's liquidity, it may be 
useful to compare both unassigned fUnd balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures (which totaled $126,621 for 
2011). 

2017 2016 

%of Unassigned Gcoetal Fund Fund Balance to Total Governmental Fund Balance 44.9% 48.5% 

% ofTatal General Fund Fund Balance to Total Governmental Fund Balance 72.4% 75.6% 

%of IJnassigned General Fund Fund Balance to Total General Fund Expenditures 27.6% 31.9% 

%of Total General Fund Fund Balance to Total General Fund Expenditures 44.4% 49.7% 
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As noted in the table, the total unassigned fund balance of the General Fund compared to General Fund expenditures is 27.6 
percent (above our internal target of20.0 percent). 

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance oftbe Sheriff's Office's General fund decreased by $(6,158). Key factors in 
this change are as follows: 

)> The General Fund's revenues totaled $123,805, while expenditures totaled $126,621. The General Fund's transfers in 
and out netted to $(3,342). · 

)> Revenues decreased by $(3,704) or 2.9% from the prior year, mainly because of: 
• Taxes increasing $1,347 or 2.6 percent, the result of: 

o Property taxes increasing $775 or 2.7% due to 2016 being a reassessment year and the Sheriff rolling the 
tax millage forward to take advantage of the slight increase in the assessed taxable values, 

o Property taxes- payment in lieu of increasing $89, due to new "P1LOT" agreements reached by JEDCO, 
o Sales taxes going up $483 or 2.2% due to a heating up of the local economy (general sales and use taxes 

were up 2.3 percent and motor vehicles taxes were up 1.0 percent). 
• Intergovernmental revenues were up $522 or 3.6%. This increase was caused by: 

o An increase of $448 in federal grants (due to an increase in funding - primarily FEMA), 
o An increase of $51 in state revenue sharing (due to a prior year 4% cut-back by the state not recurring), 
o A decrease of$(89) in state supplemental pay (as fewer officers met the eligibility requirements), 
o An increase of $41 in state basic training reimbursements (for the academy), 
o An increase of $67 in other reimbursed salaries (Parish President's security team). 

• Service charges, fees and commissions were down $(798) or 1.5% due to: 
o An increase of$932 in sales tax commissions (mirroring sales tax increase), 
o A drop of$(914) in fines and forfeitures, 
o A drop of$(445) in other commissions (primarily judicial sales), and 
o A drop of$(309) in civil and criminal fees. 

• Interest income was up $363 or 149.3% due to higherrates under our new fi$cal agent agreement. 
• Miscellaneous income was down $(5,136) or 59.3%, due primarily to: 

o A decrease of$(4,693) in Subrogat:ions and claims (due to the settlement of the BP economic loss lawsuit 
recognized in the prior year not recurring), 

o An increase in $45 in public assignment fees (due to more details), 
o An increase of$481 in Other Revenues (primarily caused by the Sheriff receiving less from car auctions). 

J> Expenditures increased $996 or 0.8%. The major changes were due to the following: 

• Salaries and benefits increased $4,361 or4.5%. The increase is the result of 1) an increase o!$3,423 in salaries and 
overtime, 2) an increase of $160 in life insurance costs, and 3) an increase of$648 in group health premiums. The 
increase in salaries and overtime is the combination of an increase in regular salaries of $1,585 and an increase in 
overtime of$1,864. The increase in regular salaries is seen across most law enforcement bureaus and resulted from 
a 7.5% law enforcement raise given in July 2016. The increase in overtime came in the Operations Bureau (up 
$230), the Special Operatious Bureau (up $389), the Criminal Investigations Bureau (up $312), the Special 
Investigations Bureau (up $143), the Narcotics Bureau (up $72), and the Corrections Bureau (up $705). These 
increases had to do with various tas1c forces and special grants, as well as staffing shortages in certain sections 
(mainly the Corrections Bureau). Life insurance went up $160 as the Sheriff placed a new $500,000 AD&D policy 
on all Jaw enforcement officers to provide better protection for the deputies and their famiHes. The increase in 
health insurance was due to an increase in the monthly base rate per employee from $480/month to $500/month in 
January2017. 

• General Operating Expenditures decreased $(550) or 3.5%, primarily due to 1) a decrease of $(102) in advertising 
(due to a decline in the costs of various community outreach TV commercials and programs), 2) a decrease of 
$(155) in repairs and maintenance (mainly in building repairs and maintenance due to a decrease in in-house repair 
projects), 3) an increase of $112 in janitorial services due to a new contract going into place, 4) a drop of$(74) in 
outside services due to a decrease in Leadership costs, 5) a drop of$(136) in prison related costs (feeding prisoners), 
and 6) a drop of $(240) in other costs (mainly a drop in recordation and cancellation costs in the Tax Bureau). 
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• Materials and supplies decreased $(234) ot 3.9%. This decrease is the net change of: 1) a decrease of$(323) in 
uniforms and related supplies (including a decrease of $(299) in Civil and Support due decreases in purchases of 
uniforms and ammunition), and 2) an increase of$162 in auto and marine costs (including an increase of$148 in 
Fleet related to the price of gasoline, plus another $14 in Special Operations). 

• Capital Outlays decreased by $(2,614) or 36.2% due primarily to a decrease of$(638) in equipment and a decrease 
of$( I ,977) in vehicle purchases. The vehicle line-item was down due to a decrease in the llUlllber of vehicles 
purchased during the year as compared to prior years. Ford Motor Company is tweaking the design of the Police 
Interceptor SUV and the Sheriff chose to delay the purchase of some vehicles last year waiting for the new revisions 
to the vehicle. 

~ Transfers in totaled $3,705, a decrease of$(221). Current year transfers of$3,523 came from the 911 Emergency 
Communications Special Revenue F\md to reimburse the General Fund for salaries and benefits of call-takers, police and 
EMS dispatchers, and IT staff dedicated to the 911 center and $182 from the Commissary Sales Special Revenue Fund. 
The 911 reimbursements are up due to the Sheriff taking over the EMS dispatching duties at the 9 11 Emergency Center 
and being reimbursed for them, as well a'l to pay for a small raise in this section last year. 

~ Transfers out totaled $(7,046), an increase of$2,872 from last year. This year' s transfers were for: I) $1,000 went to 
the Communications Reserve Capital fund to set aside funds for the future payment of the capital lease on the Motorola 
Radios, 2) $1,863 was transferred to the Buildings and Improvements Capital Fund to fully fund open projects (including 
the new First District Station), 3) $101 was transferred to various grant funds as "local matching funds", 4) $1,582 was 
transferred to the LED Sinking Fund in order to pay the current year debt service on the LED Limited Revenue Tax 
bonds, 5) $500 was transferred to the Computer Equipment Fund to provide a reserve for upcoming upgrades and 
replacements to the SherifFs PC's and servers, and 6) a transfer of $2,000 was made to the Group Health and Life 
Internal Service Fund as a one-time cash infusion to help pay for increased claim costs. 

The Sheriff reported four ''major, funds other thah the General Fund for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

The 911 Emergency Communications Special Reve11ue Fund provides emergency communications to the citizens of the 
Parish and is funded with service fees paid by the citizens on their monthly phone bills. These service fees are collected by 
the Parish and remitted to the Sheriff in the month or quarter after collection. For 2017, this fund recognized revenues of 
$7,432, expenditures of$4,202, and other financing uses of$(3,563), creating a current year deficit of$(333) and leaving a 
fund balance of $5,514 at year end. These revenues include $7,366 of service fees collected from the citizens by the 
telephone service providers and remitted to the Parish (and ultimately to the Sherifi). The fund balance at year end is 
restricted for use on the operations and maintenance of the 911 Emergency Communications under the terms of our 
agreement with the Parish and Pa1ish orqinance. 

The Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund had revenues and transfers in of $4,905, and expenditures and transfers out of 
$4,905. This fund tracks the revenues and costs associated with the Sheriff's major federal grants, such as the High Intensity 
Drug Trafficking Area (HIDT A) grant, Homeland Security Grants, TSA K -9 Grants, and others received directly from the 
federal government. 

The Communications Reserve Capital Project Fund accounts for the expenditures and revenues relating to the upgrade of 
our radio system into an interoperable multi-parish network. The project was being funded with various Homeland Security 
Grants passed-through the surrounding Parishes. Now, it is using locally generated funds to construct a new tower in the 
Lafitte area (using local funds previously set aside). During 2017, this fund had interest of$39, expenditures of$5,201, and 
other financing sources of $5,352, whicb resulted in a current year surplus of $190. The fund spent $849 on engineering and 
construction services related to the construction of a new tower in the Lafitte area and $4,352 on the purchase of new APEX 
6000 radios from Motorola on a capital lease. The fund balance of $4,141 is assigned for use on these and future 
communication projects. 

The Buildings and lmp.t:ovements Capital Project Fund accounts for monies being set aside to address various capital 
needs. During 2017, this fund earned interest of $54, recognized expenditures of $679 (primarily on the First District 
Station), and received a transfer in of$1,864. The fund balance of$6,453 is shown as assigned for the completion of various 
upcoming projects (primarily the new First District Station). 
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The Sheriff's Other Governmental Funds (i.e., "oon"major" funds) recorded revenue of $2,837, expenditures of$4,587, 
and other fmancing sources (uses) of$1 ,942. The result was a current year surplus of$192 and ending fund balances totaling 
$5,317. One of the largest revenue streams in these non-major fimds was recognized by the Commissary Sales Fund, which 
recognized revenues of$741, primarily related to the sale of goods and supplies to inmates. In addition, the State Asset 
Forfeiture Fund recognized $841 of asset forfeitures, the Region 1 Communications O&M Special Revenue fund recognized 
state assistance of$312, the Crime Lab Fees Fund received $392 in fees and reimbursements, the Drug Enforcement Special 
Revenue Fund recognized forfeitures of$74 during the year (these funds relate to federal drug seizures), while the Local Law 
Enforcement and JAG Grants Special Revenue fund recognized intergovernmental revenues of $1 1, and the State and Local 
Grants fund recognized $322 (primarily related to parish grants for ARMMS upgrades and ALPR cameras). 

Of the $4,587 in expenditures, $525 was spent by the Commissary Sales Fund on purchases of goods for sale, $1,410 was 
spent in the State Asset Forfeiture fund on operating supplies and vehicles, $312 was spent in the Region 1 Communications 
0 & M Fund on operating and maintenance costs associated with the regional radio tower network. $228 was spent in the 
Crime Lab Fees fund on overtime and lab equipment, $77 was expended in the Drug Enforcement Special Revenue Fund on 
operating supplies and capital outlay, $364 was spent on programming fees and ALPR cameras in the State and Local Grant 
Special Revenue Fund, $11 was spent in the Local Law Enforcement and JAG Grants Special Revenue Fund on grant 
projects, and $1,582 was spent in the LED Debt Service Sinking Fund for principal ($1 ,290) and interest and fees ($292) on 
the LED Limited Tax Revenue Bonds. 

As noted above, fund balances for these non-major funds, in the aggregate, totaled $5,317. Of this total, $4 56 remains in the 
Commissary Sales Special Revenue Fund, $981 in the State Asset forfeiture Special Revenue Fund,$ I 96 in the RUDE 
Program Special Revenue Fund, $59 in the 
Recreation and Relief Special Revenue Fund, $216 
in the Reserve Deputies Operatitig Special Revenue 
Fund, $673 in the Crime Lab Fees Special Revenue 
Fund, $74 is in the Drug Enforcement Special 
Revenue fund, and $2,632 was left in the Computer 
Equipment Capital Project Fund at year end. 

Proprietary Funds. During the year, tbe Sheriff 
maintained two internal service funds (the Auto 
Loss and General Liability fund and the Group 
Health and Life Insurance fund) to account for its 
risk management activities. At June 30, 2017, 
these funds reported a Net Position of $466, which 
is a net increase from the prior year of$776. Since 
these internal service funds are primarily funded by 
charges to the Sheriff's govertunental funds, they 
are eliminated when converting to the govemment­
wide statements. 

Auto Loss and General Liability 
Claims Expense and Claims Payable 

Last 5 years (In $1 ,OOO's) 
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At June 30, 2017, the Auto Loss and General Liability fund bad a Net Position of$1,499, which is $,1,586 higher than the 
prior year. Expenses for the year totaled $3,556 and claims payable at year-end totaled 7, 156. As can be seen in the graph, 
this fund experienced a decrease in claims expense of$( 1 ,120) during the year, resulting in operating income of$1 ,527 for 
the year. Loss reserves decreased by $(387), as the number and severity of open claims changed and payments were made on 
closed cases. 

The Group Health and Life Insurance fund accounts for both employee and employer contributions to the plan. At June 
30, 2017, this fund had a negative Net Position of$(1 ,033), which is $(8 1 I) less than the prior year. Expenses for the year 
totaled $18,501 and accounts and claims payable at year-end totaled $877. This fund also show-ed a Due to Other Funds at 
year-end of$200, as it had to borrow funds to meet short-term obligations. The General Fund transferred $2,000 into this 
fund during 2017 as a one-time cash infusion to help cover overruns. The total expenses of this fund increased $1,893 or 
I I .4 percent over the prior year. Most of this increase was seen in the cost of health and pharmaceutical claims (health 
claims were up $1,027 or 11.1 %, while pharmaceutical claims were up $679 or 15.7%). Premiums for excess coverage were 
also up $259 or 11 .2%. 

To address the recurring losses recognized in previous years and the rising costs of healtbcare, the employer premium was 
raised on January 1, 2017 from $480/month to $500/month. These rates were based on an analysis of the net costs incurred 
by the plan. It is anticipated that another rate increase will be implemented in 2018. 
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Agency Funds. As the Ex-Officio Tax Collector, the Sheriff maintains several agency funds to account for monies collected 
oo behalf of others. At year end, the Sheriff held $51,04 7 in these funds. The two primary funds are theTa.~ Collector fund 
and the Sheriff's Account fund. 

Tbe Tax Collector fund accounts for distributions to taxing agencies of monies collected for property taxes, sales taxes, 
licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, and other miscellaneous items in the Sheriff's capacity as Ex-Officio Tax 
Collector. Over the past 5 years, the collections in this fund have increased steadily, reflecting the post-Katrina, post-BP oll 
spill, and post-recession tax booms. During FY 2017, the Tax Collector fund received $847,533 and disbursed $846J340 to 
the various taxing bodies in the Parish. See the graph for a recap of the tax collections over the past 5 years. The Tax 
Collector funds had a total of $48,060 on hand at year-end. 

Collections increased $5,407 or 0.6 percent. This increase is 
the net of various changes - 1) criminal cash bonds were 
down $(307) or 33.3 percent, 2) fines and fees were down 
$(218) or 1.6 percent due to decreases in collections, 3) 
property tax collections increased $1,094 or 0.3 percent as 
assessments and levies increased (2016 was a reassessment 
year), 4) State Revenue Sharing was up $304 or 3.8% as the 
allocation from the state increased, and 5) sales tax 
collections increased $4,414 or 1.0 percent due to the 
improving economy. These increases/decreases were 
realized by all participating taxing districts in the Parish. 

The Sheriff's Account Agency Fund received $19,274 in 
garnishments and judicial sales and disbursed $19,770 to the 
applicable litigants, defendants, attorneys, and appraisers, 
These are decreases of$(2,411) and $(2,458), respectively. 
The main reason for these decreases is a slow-down in the 
seizure and forfeiture activity. This decrease in activity was 
responsible for a large decrease in other commissions to the 
Sheriff's General Fund (see revenue discussion above). 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY IDGHLIGHTS 

Amendments to the Budget 

Tax Collector Fund Collections 
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The Sheriff made several supplemental budgetary appropriations through the year, the final being made on June 23, 2017. 
The most significant of the changes made are described below: 

Revenues of the General F\lnd were decreased by $(807). The largest changes were seen in services charges, fees and 
commissions (down $1,097), ad valorem taxes (down $505), miscellaneous revenues (up $217), intergovernmental (up 
$235), and interest income (up $248). Service charges and commissions went down due to a decrease in sales tax 
commission (down $332), a decrease in other commissions {down $684- due mainly to a decrease in commission on judicial 
sales), and a decrease in civil and criminal fees (down $131 mostly in tax costs). Ad valorem taxes decreased due to tl1e 
assessed and taxable values set by the Assessor coming in slightly lower than anticipated. Mjscellaneous revenues were up 
primarily because of an increase in subrogation claims (up $167). Intergovernmental revenues were up mainly due to a drop 
in state supplemental pay (down $ t 96 - due to a lower number of eligible employees), ao increase of $52 in state basic 
training revenues (reimbursements from recent POST academies held by the Sherifl), ao increase in reimbursed details (up 
$286) and an increase in reimbursed salaries (up $54). lnterest income was up due to higher interest rates paid by our fiscal 
agent under a new contract. 
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Expenditures of the General Fund were decreased by ${1 ,345). Note C.2 provides a breakdown of the changes in 
expenditures by function/bureau. The main changes by line-item were: 

);> The increase of$491 in Executive resulted from the transfer ofthe Legal Section from the Finance and Administrative 
Bureau to the Executive Bureau. The majority of the increase is in salaries and benefits and general operating 
expenditures- outside services (legal fees). 

~ The decrease of$(444) in the Civil and Support Services Bureau was the result of a decrease.of$(437) in general 
operating expenditures (primarily due to a drop in repairs and maintenance on buildings), and a decrease of$(128) in 
materials and supplies (due to a decrease in uniforms and related supplies caused by switching departmental guns in the 
prior year), offset by an increase of $161 in salaries and benefits. 

l> The decrease of$(1,180) in the Finance and Administrative Bureau was the result of a decrease in salaries and benefits 
of$(977) due to unfilled positions in the IT department, and a decrease of$(177) in general operating expenditures (due 
to a decrease in outside services related to computer programming and decreased costs associated with the Sheriff's 
Leadership Training Program). 

)> The Fleet Bureau's budget decreased $(1,705) mainJy due to a drop of$(1,650) in capital outlay as less vehicles and 
equipment were purchased than originally planned for. 

> The Operations Bureau1s budget increased by $509, due mainly to an increase in salaries and benefits (caused by the 
effects of a '7.5 percent law enforcement raise given in April2017). 

);> The Special Operations Bureau1s budget increased by $429, due mainly to an increase in salaries and benefits (caused by 
the effects of a 7.5 percent law enforcement raise given in April20 17) and an increase of $167 in general operating 
expenditures (due to an increase in repairs and maintenance for the helicopter). 

~ The drop of $(232) in the Technical Services Bureau was the result of decrease in salaries and benefits of$( 161) and a 
decrease of$(91) in general operating expenditures. The salaries and benefits were down because of various open 
positions that did not get filled during the year in 911 and in the Crime Lab. The general operating expenditures were 
down mainly due to decreases in telephone costs and program and activities (fewer community .relations trips), 

)> The Criminal Investigation's Budget decreased $(227) due to a decrease of$(181) in salaries and benefits (due to open 
positions) and a decrease of $(36) in general operating expenditures- telephone. 

~ The Corrections Bureau's budget increased $832 primarily due to an increase in salaries and benefits of $883. Salaries 
and benefits were down due to the number of open positions during the year, causing a large increase in overtime to :fin 
the open spots. The Corrections Center has been running about l 0 percent short of personnel for most of the year. 

~ The change of$(3,937) in Other Financing Sources (Uses) was caused by an increase in Operating Transters out 
Operating Transfers Out increased mainly due to a $2,000 cash infusion into the Group Health Internal Service Fund 
(due to continuing cash flow shortages in that fund) , a $1,000 transfer to the Communications Reserve Capital Fund (to 
cover costs on the new Lafitte Tower), and an increase of$ I , 185 in the transfers to the Buildings and Improvements 
Capital Fund (to cover additional costs on building construction projects). 

Budget to Actual Varia nces 

Revenues (on a budgetary basis) totaled $123,273, which was $771 or 0.6% over the final budget. The variance is made up 
of I) ad valorem taxes coming in $89 or 0.3% over budget, 2) sales taxes coming in $65 or 0.3% over budget, 3) 
intergovernmental revenues coming in $(71) or 0.5% under budget (due to higher than anticipated federal grants (over by 
$15), lower than expected video poker allocations (under $97), and lower than expected airport details (under by $59)), and 
4) service charges, fees and commissions coming in $609 or 1.1% over budget mostly due to higher than expected tax 
notices, costs, and civil and criminal fees. 

Expenditures (on a budgetary basis) were $125,133, which was $2,164 or 1.7% under the final budget. The largest budget 
variances were seen in: 

);> Salaries and benefits were $1,391 or 1.4% under budget due to a good number of positions being open for most of the 
year and a conscious effort to cut back on overtime. This res11lted in regular salaries coming in $976 under budget. In 
addition to this, retirement was $184 under budget (open positions), and group health was $175 under budget (open 
positions). 

);> General operating expenditures were $633 or 4.0% under budget. Advertising was $166 under budget ($169 in Revenue 
and Taxation due to a delay in the tax sale), utilities were $82 under budget, repairs and maintenance was $170 under 
budget (Civil and Support was $55 under - delays in some building, HV AC and plumbing repairs), programs and 
activities were $55 under budget (primarily in TeclmicaJ Services as community programs were lower than expected), 
and prison-related costs were $(65) over budget (as inmate feeding costs came in higher than expected). 
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»- Materials and suppJies were $155 or 2.7% under budget primarily in office supplies (under by $103 due to lower 
computer license fees), uniform and related costs (under $80 due to lesser than anticipated ammunition purchases), and 
auto and marine (over by $(36) due to slightly higher gas and oil prices). 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets. The Sheriff's Office's investment in capital assets f~r its governmental activities as of June 30, 2017 
amounts to $70,187 (net of accumuJated depreciation) and $60,040 (net of accumulated depreciation and capital-related 
debt). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, furniture and fixtures, machinery, vehicles and equipment, 
and infrastructure. The Sheriffs Office's net investment in capital assets increased by $367 or 0.6 percent, this year. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
)> $6,544 was spent on furniture, fixtures and equipment, primarily computers (laptops, desktops, printers and servers)) new 

APEX 6000 Motorola portable rddios, new crime lab equipment, and ALPR cameras. The radios were the largest 
purchase ($4,352). 

> $3,936 was spent on new vehicles, trucks, and motorcycles, keeping with the Sheriff's policy of rotating the fleet every 5 
years. 

~ $1 ,461 was spent on buildings and construction in progress~ primarily related to the architectural design of the new First 
District Station in Fat City ($260), the completion of the new parking lot at the Detective Bureau ($321), and the 
beginning of the construction of the new radio tower in Lafitte ($849). 

)> $8,181 was recognized as depreciation expense, an increase of$919 from last year. 

~ The outstanding capital-related debt increased $3,062 as payments of$(1,290) on the bonds were made and a new capital 
lease on the Motorola radios of $4,352 was entered into. 

JEFFEERSON P ARISB SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
CAPITAL ASSETS (NET OF DEPRECIATION) 

Governmental Activities 
2017 2016 

Land $ 2,716 $ 2,7l6 
Construction in progress 1,556 291 
Buildings 47,641 49,271 
Equipment and furniture 7,624 4,146 
Vehicles and heavy equipment 10,080 9,725 
Infrastructure 570 609 

Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 70, 187 66,758 

Less: capital related long-term debt (10,1472 {7,085) 
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 60,040 $ 59,673 

Additional information ou the Sheriffs Office's capital assets can be found in Note 0.5 on pages 70 through 71. 

Long-term Debt. At the end of the .fiscal year, the Sheriff had bonded debt of$5,795, capital leases payable of$4,352, and 
oilier long-tenn debt of$22,414, for a total long-term debt balance of$32,562. The following is a summary of the Sheriff's 
long-tenn debt transactions for the year ended June 30, 2017 (in thousands of dollars): 
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Beginning Additions Ending Due Within 

T~eeofDebt Balance (Rcductions2 Balance One Year 
LED Limited Tax Revenue Bonds $ 7,085 $ (1,290) $ 5,795 $ L,350 
Capital Leases Payable 4,352 4,352 
Compensated Absences 1,622 92 1,714 1,714 
Net Post-Employment Obligation 19,437 1,264 20 701 

$ 28,144 $ 4;418 $ 32,562 $ 3,064 

As noted above, total debt increased by $4,418. Significant long-term transactions included: 

.> The payment of$1,290 in current year principal on the remaining LED Limited Tax Revenue Bonds issued in 2008 to 
finance t.he construction of several facilities. 

»- A capital lease was entered into with Motorola Solutions for the acquisition of new APEX 6000 portable radios. The 
capital lease payable at year end totals $4,352. 

};> Compensated absences increased by a net $92 (new accruals of $3,50 I less payments of$(3,409)). 
}> The Sheriff accrued a Net OPEB Obligation expense of $1 ,264 during the year (for health and life benefits) as per tbe 

actuarial valuation of our program as per GASB 45 on Other Post-Employment Benefits. To date, the total calculated 
liability is $20,701. To date, the Sheriff has cbosen not to fund this actuarial liability. 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental unit may issue to 10 percent of its total assessed 
valuation. The current debt limit for the Sheriff's Office is $427,347, which is significantly in excess of the Sheriff's current 
bonded debt of$5,795. Additional infonnation on the Sheriff's Office's long-term debt can be found in Note D.8 on pages 
74 to 77 of this report. 

Net Pension Liability and Related Items. On the Statement of Net Position, the Sheriff recorded a non-current liability ­
pension-related totaling $63 ,362. This represents the Sheriffs proportionate share of the Net Pension Liabilities of the 
Louisiana Sheriffs Pension & Relief Fund. Government Accounting Rules requite the Sheriff to recognize its proportionate 
share (calculated at 9.983099%) of the pension plan's unfunded pension liabilities on its government-wide financial 
statements. This liability saw a significant increase (up $1 8,494) in the current year due to lower earnings. along with 
changes in assumptions, changes in proportionate share, changes in experience, etc. 

There are a number of other items recorde-d on the Statement of Net Position related to pensions, specifically deferred 
outflows totaling $32,277 and deferred inflows totaling $7,180. The deferred outflows are made up mostly made up ofthe 
Sheriff's 2017 pension contributions ($10,775) whicb have been deferred until next year, along with $5,176 of changes in 
assumptions (which are being amortized over the next few years) and changes in the Sheriff's proportionate share ofthe 
pension liability ($456). The deferred inflows are mostly made up of differences in actual experience ($6,646) and changes 
in the Sheriff's proportionate share of the pension liability ($504), along with $(30) in differences between the Sheriffs 
contributions and its proportionate share of contributions. All of these items are being deferred in the current year and 
amortized over the next few years, in accordance with the accounting standards for pensions. See Note F .1 for further 
discussion. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

)> The unemployment rate for the Parish of Jefferson is currently 5.2 percent, which is 0.9 percent lower than it was a year 
ago. This data has fluctuated due to issues related to the closure of the Avondale Shipyard, the post-Katrina boom, and 
the shift of population that resulted. It also reflects the effects of the easing in the national recession. 

)> Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices. 
~ The ad valorem millage rate levied for the 2017 (next year's) tax roll was 8.28 mills. Thus, property tax revenues in 

FYE 2017 are expected to amount to about$29,572. It shouJd be noted that 2017 anticipates a 1.0% increase in the 
taxable assessments (a rather conservative estimate due to the continuing uncertainty in the local housing markets). 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Sheriff's Office's budget for the FYE 2018 fiscal year. 
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OTHER POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MATTERS 

• On August 29, 2005, Hurricane Katrina struck the Mississippi Gulf Coast and the New Orleans Metropolitan area, 
which included Jefferson Parish and the area serviced by the Sheriff. Before, during and after the storm, the Sheriff 
incurred various emergency expenses (primarily payroll and emergency supplies). Also, several faci)jties owned or 
operated by the Sheriff received storm damage. To date, the Sheriff has filed claims totaling $13,573 with the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for lnbor (i.e., overtime), equipment, supplies and facility damages, as well as 
$3, 106 in claims filed with our insurance carrier. The total amount of claims may ultimately be more or less than the 
amount noted due to the uncertainties involved at this time. To date, $10,467 bas been received from FEMA and $3,106 
was received from our insurance carrier. The Sheriff is working with GOHSEP to close out all remaining project 
worksheets. 

• In August and September 2008, Hurricanes Gustav and Ike affected the New Orleans Metropolitan area, including 
Jefferson Parish. The sou them parts of the Parish took a direct hit from Gustav and a glancing blow from Ike. Jefferson 
Parish was under a mandatory evacuation for approximately 7 days due to Gustav. The Sheriff's Office provided 
emergency services before, during and after the stonns and incurred millions of dollars of costs. All storm-related claims 
have been submitted to FEMA for reimbursement (totaling $5,952 for Gustav and $596 for Ike). FEMA has established 
a 90 percent reimbursement rate for Gustav and 100 percent for Ike. To date, the Sheriff has filed claims totaling $5,357 
with the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for labor (i.e., overtime), equipment, supplies and facility 
damages for Gustav and $594 for Ike. The total amount of claims may ultimately be more or less than the amount noted 
due to the uncertainties involved at this time. To date, $5,076 bas been received from FEMA for Gustav and $594 for 
Ike. It is expected that the balance of these costs will be reimbursed by FEMA under the disaster declaration. The 
Sheriff is working with GOHSEP to close out all remaining project worksheets. 

• Hurricane Isaac affected the area in September 2012. While the area was spared from major wind and water damage, 
electrical outages occurred across the area for days (and weeks in some cases). The Sheriff's Office provided emergency 
services before, during and after the storms and incurred millions of dollars of costs. All storm-related claims have been 
submitted to FEMA for reimbursement (totaling $3,466). FEMA has established a 75 percent reimhUn)ement rate for 
Isaac. To date, the Sheriff has filed claims totaling $2,595 with the Federal Emergency Management Agency (,FEMA) 
for labor (i.e., overtime), equipment, and supplies. The total amount of claims may ultimately be more or less than the 
amount noted due to the uncertainties involved at this time. To date, $2,595 has been received from FEMA lt is 
expected that the balance of these c-osts will be reimbursed by FEMA under the disaster declaration. The Sheriff is 
working with GOHSEP to close out all remaining project worksheets. 

• Subsequent to year-end. on August 31, 2017, Sheriff Newell Normand retired from office after serving as Sheriff since 
November 2007. As a rule of law, the Chief Deputy of the office is then named the interim Sheriff. As such, on 
September 1, 2017, Joseph P . Lopinto ill became the interim Sheriff of Jefferson Parish. A special election will be held 
on March 24, 2018 to complete the remainder of Sheriff Normand's original tenn of office. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Sheriff's Office's finances for all those with an interest 
in the government's finances . Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
fmancial information should be addressed to Paul Rivera, CPA, CGFO, Chief Financial Officer, 1233 Westbank Expressway. 
Harvey, LA 70058. The fmancial report is also available on the SherifPs website at www. h.1so.coru under "Admin & 
Financial" or on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website at '""'·.Ua .1tstdn os (or \'rww.lla.b..go') under "Audit 
Reports.'' 
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JEFFERSON P ARISB SIJERTFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (n6t of allowance for uncollectibles) 
Internal balances 
Other assets 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles and heavy equipment 
Infrastructure 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFFER.RED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred charges - refunding escrow 
Deferred ovtOows - pension-related 

$ 2,715,775 
1,555,583 

47,641 ,025 
7,624,568 

10,079,687 
569,9$9 

TOTJU. DEFFERED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LlABILJTIES 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 
Accrued salaries and deductions 
Claims and judgments payable 
Due to other governments 
Due to ta>:ing bodies and others 
Unearned revenue 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Net pension liabUity 

TOTAL LlABlLITlES 

DEFFERRED JNFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows - pension-related 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for. 

91 I Emergency Co!llitlllllications 
Debt service 
Construction 
Claims and judgments 
Other 

Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSffiON 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

$ 

$ 

41,385,740 
37,832,519 
10.842,876 

722,087 

70,186,627 

] 60,969,849 

880,133 
32.277,000 
33,157,133 

1,478,489 
3,021,1)5 
7,924,192 

142,175 
53,842 

3,063,662 
29,497,732 
63,361,681 

108,542,888 

7,180,261 

60,040,059 

5,513,724 
279 

1,49!!,965 

11,350,806 

78,403,833 



JEFFERSON PAJUSIJ SKERJFF'S OFFICE 
HAJtVEY, LOUTSIAI'IA 

STATEMENT OF AC'l"MTTES 
fOR 11B YEAR ENDED JUNI!l30, 1017 

~CTIONIBUR.EAU EXPE.lliSES 

PriJe&ly c:;o ........... 
Oovmu:ne21tal Aaivrties· 

Public Sllhty. 

Civil ond SllPJlOII 

~1oet 

R.evc.oue & Taxntioo 

Opcntloos 

r .. hnical semcts 

Internal Mlulaga:rneM 

Spcclllll.ovtsti&atioos 

NlltCOU<:a 

ln~eRS~ ou Jooa·tenD debt 

$ 

1,662.142 

13,)()4,553 

11,367,771 

11.023,729 

3.472,475 

24,S99,S44 

S,601.166 

19.604,658 

667,015 

13,734,348 

II ,412,317 

5,064.879 

25,538,712 

651,114 

147504.553 

s 

s 

CBAJtGES fOR 
SERVICES 

171.291 

8,488,109 

3,20S,307 

1.160,790 

32$57 

109,609 

2,019 

l. l80,122 

467,082 

689 

3,105.120 

18623 095 

PROGRAM RRVENU£5 

s 

$ 

OJ>IRATil'IG 
CRM\TSAND 

CONTRJBU110NS 

70,403 

292,828 

889,748 

SS,SII 

118,003 

2,551,915 

1,020,745 

8,637,209 

46,293 

1,312,279 

.. ,989,881 

1,767,$46 

1.618.320 

23.379 741 

C.ll.NERAL REVBNI18S: 
TUC$ 

Pn>pc:rty tues 

I 

s 

CAPITAL 
GRANTS AND 

CONTIUB0110NS 

29,S07 

97,71$ 

13,762 

4,766 

}26,125 

472 475 

Propc:rtywes- Jl")'ll<nts ill lieu or 
Saleswc<4 

lnl"'iOVmlmental· unrestnded 
State Rcveuue Sbarin& 
Vi4oo Poker Allocation 

Commissions 
Cumu,iuiou;i oo uu: co11o.1ion:w 

Chat&ct ror SCI"'iOCII 
Ooun AIIL'IIdAntc 

uw .. strloted Ulllll'llSt 
Miseelluneou• 

Obi (loss) on disposal of capitlllassets 
Subroaat.io.s and c.lllinls 
Unrestrlc:ted Gifts &Dd Oonltlnnl 
Oll:lct 

TOTAL C£.NERAL REVENUS AND TRANSRIIS 

CHANGF: IN MIT POSITION 

NET POSI1'10N 
Begi.a.oiJ!t or )'I'll' 

Emloryeor 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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NET (EX PENS&) 
REVENUE AAlJ 
C.liANGESIN 

NBTPOSffiON 
PRJ1>JARV 

GOVERNM'£1\T 

(1,420,448) 

(4,323,616) 

(7,143,209) 

(9,804.428) 

(3,354,472) 

(22,008,612) 

(4,373,097) 

(10,951,668) 

(620,782) 

(11,237,.131 ) 

(S.62S.629) 

(3,296,64.4) 

(20,11S,272) 

(651,184) 

(105,029,242) 

29,S14,2SS 
81,949 

22,&73,663 

1,293,783 
1,622,S87 

45,609,}70 

337,341 
878,547 

(124,322) 
699,115 

444,170 

103237458 

(1.791,784) 

10,195,617 

-s- 7840UJ.i 



JEFFERSON PARISH SHERJFF'S OfFTCE 

~ 
~ 

HARVEY. LOUJSlANA 

~ GOVERNMENTAL FUNOS 

8 BALANCE SHEET 

.g JUNE 30, 2017 
911 

~ EMERGENCY li'EDF,RAL 

-g. COMMUNICATIONS GRANTS COJ\fMlJNl CATIONS 8UJLDINGS OTIJER TOTAL 
SPF.CIAl, SPECIAL RESERV£ & IMPRO\Il:MENTS GOVERNMENTAL GO\Il:R."'ME~T AL 

O'Q GENERAL REVENUE REVENUE CAPITAL PRO.JECT CAPITAl, PRO.TECT FlJNDS FUNDS 
g .... ASSETS ~ 
1'1'> Cash and cash equivalents $ 283,556 s 3.670.819 s s $ $ 7S,Sl9 s 4.029,894 

~ S)ulre of pooled as~els- ge:neml pool 45,429,531 4,147,967 6,547.332 S.339,5n 61,464,402 
Invesanents 

~ Receivables focl ofollowmce for llliCO\b:<.1iblea) 13,234,397 1,943,826 959,494 136,454 16,274,171 

s· Due from other nmdt 982,183 12,869 I,OS5,052 - Inventories ~ 

~ 
Other assclS 4,587 4,587 

'"d TOTAL ASSETS $ 59,934,254 $ 5,614,645 s 959494 $ 4147 967 s 6.547,33'2 $ 5,624,414 s 82,828,106 
I» 
;:t 
0 I.IABII.ITIE.'i AND FUND BALANCES 
I-I) 

g U.bilitics 

"' AccoUPlS payable s 555.370 $ 100,921 $ 395.524 s 7,240 $ 94,411 5 89,665 $ 1,243.131 
(J.J ;?l. Accrued payroll and deductions 3,021,115 3,021,1 15 
00 a l:>ue to other !imds 14,364 563,944 218.239 796,547 

~ Due to other govcmunents 
~ Due to t~~J~ing bodie.• and others 15,98J 15,981 

a Uncamcd revenue 53,842 53,842 

TOTAL LIABIL!TJ£5 3,660,672 100,921 959,468 7,240 94,411 307,904 5,130,616 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 5,513,724 279 5,514,003 

Committed 8.541.186 8,541,186 

Assigned 12,837,360 26 4,140,727 6,452,921 5,3 16,231 28,747,265 
Unassigned 34,8-95.036 34,895,036 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 56.273,582 .5,513,724 26 4,140,727 6,452,921 .S,316,SIO 77,697,490 

TOTAL LIABU,l'fll'.S AND FUNJ> lJ!U.t\N'CES s 59.234~54 ~ 5,614,645 $ 959,494 s 4,147 967 .l 6,547,332 s 5 624414 s 82,828,106 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFtCE 
BARVE\', LOUlSIANA 

RECONCJLlATlON OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSOTON 
JUNE 30, :Z017 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (page 36) are 
different because: 

Total Fund Balances at June 30, 2017 -Governmental Funds (puge 38) 

Capital assets used i.n governmental activities ure not financial resources and, therefore, 
are not reported in the funds. The cost of the assets exceeded the accumulated depreciation by: 

Cost of capital assets 

Accumulated depreciation 

Deferred Outflows ate not available to pay for current-period expnditures \\Dd, therefure, 
are deferred and expensed as consumed. 

Defetro:J charges - refunding escrow 
Defem:d outflows - pension-related 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of insuring risk:; (i.e., self­
insurci.Dce) to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal SCJVice funds are 
included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. 

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences and net pension obligation.~. 
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. 
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of: 

Compensated absences 
Limited tax revenue bonds 
Unfunded Annual Required Contribution for OPEB 
Net Pension Liability 

Deferred :Urflows related to the pension plan are not yet available and, therefore, 
are deferred and and recognized as consWlled. 

Deferred inflows - pension-related 

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities at June 30,2017 (page 36) 

$ 

s 

s 

190,843,191 
( 120,656,564} 

880,133 
32,2n,ooo 

1,713,662 
5.795,000 

20,701,164 
63,361,681 

77,697.490 

70.186.627 

33,157,133 

465,919 

(95,923,075) 

(7,180,261} 

$ 78A03,833 



Jl!.Fl'llRSON PAR!l!ll Slllll!WS OPl'lC!l 
RARV&Y, I.OUISIAI'IA 

GOVI!RJIIMIINTAI. FUNOS 
5TA1'1!MEI"'f0flll.VCNUJ!;S, f.XI'SNDITUIU!S, AND OIANCI!S 
IN fUND BAI..ANCI!S 

~ FOR T1l1! YEAR P.HDf.ll JUNE 30,1017 9U 
!MilliGltNCV Fl!llliRAL 

~ COMMlJN'ICATIONS GIIANTS CO.\IMUNICATIONS liUlU>INCS (7fiiER TOTAL 
I» S"PICIAL SPICIAL lll:SUYt: & lllfPIIOYl:Ml!NTS COVERNT\t~AL COvtlRNMF.NTAt. 
0 CENEIIAL - ~QE __ REV&Ntlt: CAl'ITAL l'ROJECT CAPITAL PROJ'ECT rUN OS ~ 8 
~ R£VEl'IUBS 

Ta.C5 

§ Mvalon:mt1ll.CS l9.SI4.2S5 29.S14.2SS 

'< fJj valon:r:n tua . payrtD!IS in lieu of St94.9 U.949 

s- Solcsl!lllusc:tna U.31l;tl63 22.373,663 
~~ 1U7&.<m 7,3~237 ~.~QS,l41 6!7,154 27,137,)()4 (JQ 
S<n'ktcllolps, r...,.nc~_ S2.11S,911 U,42J 1,166,19.1 53,39?,529 

~ P'lllC51131 t.ft:lul'I:S 3,14! 9U,004 9111.152 0 ..... '""'"" 60S.9q8 ~9.9<1'1 l8.S64 13,7).4 60.061 81)U14 
(l) 

M'-.11•- 3,S24,M06 11,623 J .SJ6,429 CIJ 

~ TOI'A(.REVEN\JES 123.804.752 1.m,s61 4.80S.341 JS.S64 53,134 2,84(),731 138.974,695 

~ t:XPII.'IDITVll£5 
Cum:nl s· l'llbtic Safdy - F.....,. 1M: 1.~.654 i.6SMS.O (l) 

~ 
CMI>nd~n IU31.~6 1 34.479 12.~.3411 
FiMDOe- and Actrl'lini.W'Itiv<:: 9.U'l6,649 l'Z-607 9J!9JS6 
fled 11,843,2» ll.S43.2S8 

'0 RCYCIIIC il T•uboo> ),271.951 3,U1,9SI 

~ Oponfions 22.190.749 22.190.149 
Spoc:iol()poniiom 4,9!5,929 47.793 4,302 S,OU,024 

0 fCIChnialS<M"" 13,618,507 4.101.495 12.s79 22!.012 IK,060,S9J ...... 1-..JM..._,..,t 623.~ 112:1.116& g: CrimimllnVcstlptiom 11,90S,IlS 12,90S,I15 

r:n S~I""""'P'lons .1,793,140 4.8olo4.21l 1;153,648 12.091,600 

.f:> 00 N:om>tia 4,494.SSS 49,6?1 4,544,226 

0 - Co<Tedm 2J.4l8,6JQ m.oo1 23.9,3.657 
e!. UcbiS<Mc< 

~ l'rincipaJ 1,290,000 1,190,000 ,, ..... , 2!/2,100 292.100 g C.pita!Oidlay ..... )'UbKc~ 
fl..,.,. and Adminislr.rriW: S,1()0,379 5,200.579 
dvn and S\w>lt 611,816 678,826 
Spcd•llnvcrtiptiono )23,690 ll3.690 
Narcotics 21,060 17,060 

TOTAl. FXPI!l'IDm11lES 1~62!,496 4.201.495 4,904,5114 UOO..I79 67&8Ui 4.S90.S76 146,197,jS6 

V<CESS (DEVICIINCY) OF IU!VENVES 
OVER EXPt:Nnmmttq 12.816,744) 3,2300Tl !99.'!113! IS.IU,OISt ,w,09Zt !1.749.839! 7.222.1!61! 

OJl<I;Jt 111!1ANCINC SOUI!C£S fUSES) 
rno.srm m J,704,~ 99,Ul 1,000.000 1,363.450 2.L23.~ 8.79i.Ol4 
'l'r>llslmOQI (?,046.U&) {3,.!62.946) ()81.750) (10.7'11.054) 
Co!>fW ICU<S Q$1,561 A,]SI,S68 

TOTAL (mtER PlNI\NCING 
SOURCES CUSilS) CJ,341,6621 13.s62.9~! 99.7113 5JSI,S88 1.863..450 1941,913 2.351.568 

!CET CRA!Cct: IN IIIJ!CilBALANCXS (6. 15&,4116) ('l3U74) 189.533 l .m..tn 192,076 ,..,871.293) 

FUNllliALAIIC'.L~ 

~Of )'<!If 61.,01,988 S.A46,S9S 16 J ,9SI,I74 5.21oi.S63 $,124,434 82.S68.78J 

End of)'<¥ s S6.27J~82 s $,513,724 26 s ~,140.727 ~457~1 5,316,.!10 77.697490 



~ 
~ 
Ill 
(') 
(') 

0 .g 
~ 
~. 
:::: 

OQ 

1:1 
0 
0 
"' 
~ 
~ 
s· .... 
~ 

~ 
e:... 

"0 

~ 
0 ......, 
§: 
"' ~ "' ....... :1 

~ 
g -

JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIPII'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

RECONCR,IATION OF 'flU! STAT"EM.ENT OF REVENUES, FJXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES TN FUND RALANCES OF GOVERN~mN'I'AL FUNDS TO 
TQ£ STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIEs 
FOR TRF. Ylo!AK ENDKOJVNg 30,1017 

Amounts n:port«< foJ governmental activities ill the StatcmMt or Activities (page 3i) are 
diffcterlt because: 

Net cllangc iu fund bal:oru:es · tollll gova:nmeotlll fundJI (Jioge 40) 

Clpi1.1l outlays I® reponod in govemmC1Jili11\Jnds as expenditures. However, in Ulc 
Statcn~eat of Activities, til" cost of those a~ts i& aiiOClltcd over their estimated 
U>l<!fU!liv .. and n:portcd as depreciation expense, Tbia Is the l!lllount \>)lwbidl 
capital outlay excoodcd depreciation eJ~pense in tile cummt penod. 

'I be ~et eff~ct of various miscellaneous Uu5:tetions involviog capitll a.ssc:ts 
(i,e., illles. tradc.ins, and <looations) is 10 4eutase ott position. 

In the Statement of Aetivi~es. certnin opm~ting e~ses. Sllcll as coDljlalsatcd 
absences {i.e., sic\: and illlnua\ leave), oro measured by the amounts earned during 
the year. In the governmental funds, howevu, e.pendlhitos for !Moe it<ms on: 
me.uurtd by tbe IUllOunt of fin4ooialscsourec:s used (cs.omtialcy, lb.,..mounts 
actaally paid). This year, si<k and annual leave u~d exueded theamouols earned 
by lbio IUliOUOt. 

The imlaocc of tong·l011l debt {e.g, bonds and di~.,.lo:ms payable) provides c:urrent 

financial """'""""'to govemmeolal ftulds, while the "'Pa)m<:Dl of lhc principal 
Qf long-1J:ml debt c.oosumes the cum:nt financiAl ft.SOUJ<:e$ of governmental fundJI. 
Neither transaction, bowevu, bas any effect on ne\ position. Tlli.lamooDt is tho ntl 
ol!'ect oflh~ dilrcreuces ill tbe tre>tmOlll of long· !mil clcbl.ancl tel~ttd. itellls. 

P&yment ofprincip•l oo limited lax n:vcnuo bonds 
l$$\lanCC ofcapittl lease payable 
Amortization ofdefened cbasge oo defca.'!allce 

Some Cltp<!ll$0$ reported in tho flaii!Ollmt or act>'Vitios do not requite the U$C or 
1!\IITenl fioancialresourcesand, therefore, are not "'P(Irtedas axpeu.ditures in 
in gnvemmcnlal funds (net cllange in ores linbility). 

l.oleroalservicr: funds are wed by mM•gemeot tQ cb~~rse the co!l• ofri>lt 
management ll<ri•itles (Le, self-iD$unnce) to iDdividuAl funds. The net revenue 
(los.s) of lbeit!tcr<LalS"'Vico tilod& ~~rcreport«< witb govenunental ~etivities. 

Jn lh Statement of Activities, oortain (:l(:mion....,\alcd lnllows and outllows of 
'"""""""' are recognizcclln lhe current year, while olh= are dcftr:rcd. Tho oet effect 
tlflhesc pauion·re!atecl tnmll3~'1ions arc as follow~: 

Cumot yaar cmploy<:r pension cxpco•e pa-\be n:tirem""' S)'Stem 
Cun:nl year p~;~siou expense • t!mplo)U contdbulions paid by the Sheriff 
Current year aruorliutiou ofcetaln deferred ln!lows 011d outflows 
R.e<ognition of On·S.bnlf Payments made to -pc:o!.ion plan by non-employer t11litlcs 
Dofemu of cuneot }!!at ren.tnn contrihutlnn• '"""" 1;ty ""'l"tQ}"lf 

OlBil!l• in Net Position ofGovemmenlal Activities (Jlago 37) 

s 

1,190,000 
(4JSJ.S68) 

t3S9,084t 

(9,683,883) 
( 1,327,230) 

8.996 
3,871,983 

10 775.200 

s 

(4,871.193) 

3,760,915 

(331.737) 

(91,747) 

(3,420,652} 

(1.264,2\0) 

775,874 

3,651,066 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SIIERJFII'S Of'IIICE 
HARVJ;Y, LOUISIANA 

GBNERALilJND 
STATEMENT OF HVENOES, EXJ'ENDITURES. AND CRANGES 
IN fUND BAI.ANCI:S · IIODGiT AND Ac-rtiAL (BUDGET AllY BASIS) 
FOR TBI: YEAR E.'ID£D JUN&30.ll11 

VARIANCt: WITII 
BIJDCKI" AJlY nNALBUDGET 

ACTtlAL TOGW ACT\JAL PINAL POSlTrV£ ORIGINAL 
IGMPBASlSI DIJI1!I:IliNCES !BUDGETARY BASIS! ~ ~ltGAnVI."I BUDGr:r 

UVE'IUKS 

Taxes 
Ad valonm W.<S 19,$14,2$5 s s 29.)14,2~5 29~2S.OOO 89,m 19,930,000 
Ad val<lmll ...... ~ a~S... or 88.949 l8,949 89,000 (51) 
Sol<$ anclu.eW<a 22,1173,663 (163,S51) 22,710,11 2 22,64$,300 64,612 22,63$,000 

Jn~a:&av"""""'l:ll 14,978.072 7,38A 14,98.S,A$6 15,0.~7.000 (71,.5<44) 14,822,000 
SctYior ~""· re.,II>CI oonun,..,ons 52,215,911 (253,573) ,1,962,)38 $1.3'2,900 609,438 52,449.900 
Fines and fi>r!cltum 3,148 3,148 s.ooo (l,&S2) 10,000 
lnlcrcol 605,948 (121,519) 4114,419 423/oOO 60,919 m.ooo 
MisWllu> ...... 3,524,!06 ),324,806 l,5(U.OOO 19.106 3,288,000 

TOTALRm!Jlli1UI!S 123,804 7S2 1531.2691 123,273 483 m,soz.9oo 770.,83 123,309~ 

f.XP.F.NDITURtS 

CUmoll 
Public SaRty 

e. .... .r,o, 1,6$6,654 (26,246) 1,630,408 1,667,750 37,342 1, 176,750 
Civil ancl Support Savlc:eJ 12,2.31 ,861 (110,209) 12,121,652 12)S2.SOO 2.10.848 12,797.000 
F'li).V1CO 111111 Adzrumsndve 9,026,649 (233,7.l8) 8,792,891 9,037,000 244,109 10,217.000 
Fleet 11,843,258 (1.191,9n) 10.651.281 10.~000 (&9,281) 12,266,750 
Rov..We & Taxation 3,221,9SI 229,286 3,451,237 3,793,250 142.013 3,717,300 

~ 22,790,749 (4Z,S191 22,748,.230 13,020,000 211,no :U,$11,000 
Special Opmllonr 4.985.929 13,863 4,999,792 S,IYIS,750 n,9ss ~,647,000 

Techaic.al Sa"'- 13,618,507 (126.407) 1).492,100 1),$82.000 389,900 l4,114,SOO 
l'li<>ToOI MONCC!l<Olt 623,161! (9,577) 614,291 634,750 20,4$9 625,.150 

~~ 12,90S,I2S (70.142) 12,834,983 11.,990)j0 IS5,267 ll.217.:Z.SO 
Spodalllwatplians 5,793,740 (34,164) 5,7$9~76 6,126.000 366,424 6,003,750 
Nlf<>Oii<s 4,494.SSS l01l,880 4,70},43) 4,460,750 (242,685) 4,41~,250 

Coom:liora 23,421,6~ (95,821) ll,ll1,129 23,69S,OOO 362.171 22,&62,7~ 

N~ 

TOTAL El<l'&o'DfltJJU>S 126621.496 (1 ,4!1,7912 12S11B70S 127 2:!! .000 2,l64,29S 128,641,750 

EXCESS (DEEICirfoiC\') OF REVENUES 
OVER EXJ'ENDITURES (2.816,7~> 9S7,S:U Q1859~! !4,794;100) ~934,17! CS.J31.8SO) 

01'If&R FINANCING SOURCiiOS (USiiB) 
'TOOsfi'n in 3.704,696 3,100,000 6,804.696 6,MS,250 (40.S.54) 6,s97,000 
Tronsfm OUt (7,046,l.SI) (7,046)58) (7 ,045,200) li,ISS) (2,860,200) 
capitallcos<s 
Sale of cap!W asset> 

TOTALOTHJiR tlNANCINO 
SOURCES (USES) p,341,662) 3 100,000 (141 6621 ---p9919501 !41,712l 3,736,800 

EXTRAORDINARY rn'.MS 
Pnx«do rtom danct "*' 
ClaiiN and judJIMilll 

!XC !iSS (IJl:l'lCIJ:NCY) OF REVJINUBS 
OV&R £XPENDmJRJt5 AND OTUER 
SOOJtC&S (llS:tS) (6,158,406) 4,057,S22 (2,100,884) (4,994,050) 2,193,166 (1.~9S.O.lO) 

nJND IULAl'ICfJ 
B<i:innin.\! of>- 62,431,9!1 (I 5,127,831) 47,304,157 47,304,1)7 45,187,072 

Endofyar s ~13.S82 s lll.010.309l s 4S l03.273 42.:110 107 2193166 s 4!592022 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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JEFFERSON J'ARISR SREIUJ1F'S OFFJC£ 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

911 EMERGENCY COi\IMlJNICA TIONS SPt:CIAL REVENUE FUND 
STATEMENT OF IU:VENUES, EXPENDITVRES, AND CHANGES 
1.N FUND BALI\..'IICES- BliDGET AND AcnJAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED J\IN'E 30, l017 

VARIANCE WJTH 
BUDGETARY FINAL BUDGET 

ACTUAl, TOGAAP ACTUAL FINAL POSITIVE ORJGrNAl. 
CGAAP BASIS) DIFFERENCES tBUDGETARY BASIS I BlJDG£1' (NEGATIVE! BUDGET 

REVEN\JES 

Taxes 
Property tAXes s $ $ s 
Salts taxes 

.ln!~govemmenm1 7,366,237 7,366,217 7.325,000 41,237 7,325,000 
Se.-vice cbarges, feet, and commissions 15,423 l5,423 14,000 !A23 14,000 
Fl.oes aod forfeiture.• 
Interest 49,907 49,907 51,000 (1,093) 51,000 
Mhcellaoeolll 500 (500} 500 

TOTI\.LlUlVENUES 7,431,567 7.431,567 7,390,500 41 ,067 7,390,500 

EXPENDITURES 

Current 
Pubtic Safety 

Technical Services 
Salaries and benefit$ 
General opaatiog oxpe~~ditures 2,425,351 14,746 2,440,097 M65,470 25,313 1,777,820 
MatmJii and ~pplios 57,698 (419) 57,279 74,500 17,221 74,500 
Cost of goo4s ~ld 
Travel 23,256 (2,704) 20,S52 25,000 4,448 25,000 
Programs and activities 
MilceUaoeous 
Capital outlay 189,386 189,386 llO,SOO 21,114 95,500 
lntergoverrunenral 1,505,804 1,505,1!04 1,509,000 3,196 1,509,000 

TOT At EXPENDITURES <4,201,495 11,623 4;213,118 -4.284t470 71.352 3,481,820 

EXCESS (DEFlCIENCY) Of! R£VEJ'IUES 
OVER EXP£NDITURES 3,230,071. ll,623 3,218,449 3,106,030 112,419 3,9()8,680 

OTDrut F INA..VCING SOURCES (USES) 
J'r.ulsfe:s in 
Transfers out (3,562,946) 8.160 (3,571 ,106) (3,598.500} 27,394 (3,761.500) 
Capital lease<> 
Sale of capjlal assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) ~3.562,946) 8,160 (3,S71,106) (3,598,500) 27,394 (3,761,500) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDl1'URES AND O'l1U:R 
SOURCES (USES) (332,874} 19,78l (3S2,M7) (492,470) 139,813 147,180 

l?VND BALANCE 
Begiooiog of Y""' 5,846,598 (120,704) 5,967,302 5,967,302 5.&10,805 

Eod of year ~ 5,513,124 s (100,921} s 5,614,645 $ 51474.832 s 139,813 5,957,985 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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JEFFERSON PARJSH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE30,20J7 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Share of pooled assets - general pool 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowance for uncol lectibles) 
Due from other funds 
Other assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LlABlLJTIES 
Current Liabilities 

AccoWlls payable and otha current liabilities 
Du.e to other funds 
Unearned revenue 
Claims and judgments payable 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Claims andjudgmertts payable 
Other 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 
Restricted for: 

Claims and judgments 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSlTION 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 
INTERNAL 
SERVICE 

1,095,897 

6,885,.135 

117,500 

8,698,532 

108,421 
200,000 

770,041 

7,154, 151 

8,232,613 

1,498,965 
(1,033,046) 

465 919 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 



JEFFERSON PARJSB SHERJFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUJSIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN 
NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Service Charges 

Premiums 
Misct:llaneous 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Claims and judgmems 
Administrative expenses 
Premiums 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

OPERATJNC lNCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
lnteteS[ 

lNCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 

TRANSFERS IN 
TRANSFERS OUT 

CHANGE lN NET POSITION 

NET POSITJON 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

$ 

$ 

INTERNAL 
SERVICE 

20,222,938 
539,704 

20,762,642 

17,696,296 
610,673 

3,708,607 
41,525 

22,057,101 

(1,294,459) 

70,333 

( 1 ,224, 126) 

2,000,000 

775,874 

(309,955) 

465,919 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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JEFFERSON I"ARISJJ SHERIFF'S OFII'ICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
ST A T£MENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR END£1UUNE 30,2017 

CASU FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVJTlF.S 
Premiums received ffom employer 
Premiums received from employees 
Premiums noccived ffom relilccs and others 
Re<:cjptl from subrogation~ 
ClAims and judpenl$ paid 
Adminisb'lltive fees paid 
Insurance prerniwru paid 
M ise4lllancous expenses pa ld 
Amounts paid tn other fwtds 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTNITIES 

CASU FLOWS FROM NONCAPJTAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
frarl$fersm 
T'ra!l1fen out 

NliT CASH PROVIDED (USfD) BY NON CAPITAL 
FTNA.'ICING ACTJVI'I1ES 

CASH fLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITJ£5 
i'w"cl:teJes of investments 
Ma!Wities ofinvemnc:nu 
lntc:tal received 

NET CASH PROYrOED (USED) BY INVESTING 
ACTfVlTIES 

11\CMEASE (DECJtEAS£) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUfVAL£NTS 
Begiwliug of year 

End of year 

RECONCfUATJON TO STATEMENT OF N.F.T POSITION 
Cash And cas'h cquivalcms 
Sbarc of pooled asseiS • genenol ponl 

TO'I"AL 

IU\CONCI.LIA TJON Oli' OPE.RATrNG INCOME <LOSS) TO 
~I:T CASH PROVIDED {USED) BY OPERATrNG ACTMTIES 

Operating income (lou) 

Adju.sanents 10 rceoocile operating income (loss} 10 oet cash 
provided (used) by operating Krivitit:s: 

(lncrease) dccmlsc in usets: 
olheraMC!tl 

ltlczcaso (decrease) in llebilities: 
ICCOWIIS pe.ytble 
due loolha fund! 
claims payable 
other u.bilities 

Net adjwuoeou 

Ntt <lMh provided (115Cd) by opcnoting activities 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 
INTERNAL 
SiR VICE 

s 17,101.443 
I ,978,53-4 
1,142,961 

539.70. 
(18,495,643) 

(S84,S96) 
(4,367.821) 

(4 I,S2S) 
(181 ,344) 

(2,908,287~ 

2.000,000 

2,000,000 

(5,639,8 16) 
S,86S)51 

70,333 

295.868 

(612,419) 

1,708.316 

s 1
1
095

1
897 

$ 1,095,897 

s 1.095.897 

$ (1.294,459) 

(659,214) 

26,077 
(181,344) 
(799.347) 

(1 ,613,828) 

s 1~908~87J 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

FfDUCIARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSmON 
JUNE 30, 20 t 7 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Share of pooled assets - general pool 
Share of pooled assets - bureau pool 
Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to taxing bodies and others 

TOTAL UABU..ITIES 

NET POSIT JON 

AGENCY 
FUNDS 

s 3,064,094 
126,194 

47,856,615 

51,046,903 

58,505 
50,988.398 

51,046.903 

s 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SlGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office (the '1Sheriff') have beeJl prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAA.P) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles. The Sheriff's significant accounting policies are described below. 

1. Reporting Entity 

Under GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards Section 2100, the 
financial reporting entity consists of the primary government and its component units. As the governing 
authority of the parish, the Jefferson Parish Government (the Parish Council) is considered to be the primary 
government for financial reporting putposes for the Parish of Jefferson. 

Component units are def'med as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable. The criteria used in determining whether financial accountability exists 
include the appointment of a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and I) the ability ofthe 
priilla.ry government to impose its will on that organization, or 2) whether the potential exists for the organization 
to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary government. Fiscal dependency may also play a 
part in determining financial accountability. Additionally, a component unit can be an organization for which the 
nature and significance of its relationship with the primary government is such that exclusions would cause the 
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

For reporting pwposes, the Sheriff is not considered to be a component unit of the Parish Council. Instead, the 
Sheriff is considered to be a "stand-alone" special purpose government. This decision is based on the following: 

1) The Sheriff enjoys a separate legal standing from the Parish Council and other governmental entities. The 
Sheriff has the ability to sue or be sued in its own name. 

2) The Parish Council does not appoint the Sheriff. The Sheriff's position was created by ArticLe V, Section 27 
of the Louisiana Constitution ofl974. The Sheriff is a separately elected official by the citizenry in a 
general, popular election. 

3) The Parish Council does not have the ability to impose its will on the Sheriff. The Parish Council carmot 
remove the Sheriff from office. The Sheriff adopts its own budget separate and apart from the Parish 
Council and other local governmental entities. The day-to-day operations of the Sheriff's office are under 
the responsibility and control of no one other 1han the Sheriff. 

4) The Sheriff does not provide a significant financial benefit or burden to the Parish Council While the Parish 
Council does provide the Sheriff with a certain amount of its office space at no cost and pays a certain 
amount of operating expenses on behalf of the Sheriff, these transactions are not considered significant 
enough to make the Parish Council financially accountable for the Sheriff's Office. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, WUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE A~SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

5) The Sheriff is not fiscally dependent on the Parish. The primary sources of funding for the Sheriff include ad 
valorem taxes, a one-quarter cent sales tax, and commissions earned from collecting taxes, licenses and fees 
on behalf of other governmental entities. The Parish Council does not have the authority to approve or 
modify the Sheriff's budget. The Law Enforcement District, of which the Sheriff serves as Chief Executive 
Officer, can levy taxes and issue debt without approval of the Parish Council. 

Therefore, the financial report of the Sheriff is separate and apart from the Parish Council and includes all of the 
funds and component units for which the Sheriff is financially accountable. Also, because the Sheriff serves as 
the ChiefExecutive Officer of the Law Enforcement District (LED) of Jefferson Parish and because the 
management of the Sheriff administers the operations of the LED, the operations of the District, although a 
separate legal entity, are, in substance, part of the Sheriff and are included (i.e., blended) within the Sheriffs 
financial report. Additionally, the collections and disbursements handled by the Sheriff in his capacity as the Ex­
Officio Tax Collector of Jefferson Parish is reported within the Sheriff's financial report as an Agency Fund. 

2. Description of Activities 

As the ChiefExecutive Officer oftbe Law Enforcement District of the Parish, the Sheriff has the responsibility 
for enforcing state and local laws and ordinances within the territorial boundaries of the parish. The Sheriff 
provides protection to tbe residents of the parish through on-site patrols, investigations, et cetera, and serves the 
residents of the Parish through the establishment of community policing details, neighborhood watch programs, 
anti-drug abuse and other programs. The Sheriff also administers the parish jail and correctional facilities and 
exercise duties required by the parish court system, such as providing bailiffs, executing orders of the court, 
serving subpoenas, and other duties. 

The Sheriff also serves as the Ex-officio Tax Collector of the Parish. As such, the Sheriff is rel.'J'Onsible for the 
collection and distribution of ad valorem (property) taxes, sales and use taxes, parish occupational licenses, state 
revenue sharing funds, fines, costs and bond forfeitures imposed by the local district courts. 

3. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Sheriff. For the most part, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Because of the nature of the Sheriff's operations, the Sheriff 
reports only governmental activities. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expense of a given function or segment is 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase. use, or directLy benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fund Financial Statements 

Separate financial statements are provided for the governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, 
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements of the Sheriff. Funds are used 
by the Sheriff to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to 
demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain 
government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 
The fimds of the Sheriff are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each 
category, in turn, is divided into separate "fund types". 

Governmental funds are used to account tor all or most of the Sherifrs general activities, including the collection 
and disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of general capital 
assets (capital project funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The General Fund 
is used to account for all financial activities of the Sheriff not accounted for in some other fund. Major individual 
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The Sheriff reports the 
following"major" governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Sheriff. It is used to account for all financial resol.lfces 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The 911 Emergtmcy Commu11ications Special Revenue Futrd is used to account for funds remitted to the 
Sheriff under a cooperative endeavor agreement with the Parish in order to administer the daily operations and 
maintenance of the Parish's 911 Emergency Communications District. 

The Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund accounts for those grants received directly from the federal 
government and for those grants not accoWlted for in any other fund. The grants accounted for includes COPS, 
TSA Canine, and Gulf Coast High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDT A) grants. 

The Communications Reserve Capital Project Fund accounts for the proceeds of the Sheriff that have been set 
aside for communication infrastructure improvements, Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) and Urban 
Area Security Initiative (UASI) received from the U.S. Department of Justice via the City of New Orleans 
and/or the Jefferson Parish Council. The funds are being expended on the Region 1 Interoperability Project 

The Buildings & Improvements Capital Project Fund accounts for monies set aside from the General Fund for 
capital improvements to Sheriff's Office buildings and facilities. 

Proprietaty funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund 's 
principal ongoing operations. Internal Service Funds (primarily self-insurance funds) are used by the Sheriff to 
account for financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments of the Sheriff on a 
cost-reimbursement basis. Operating expenses of tbe internal service funds include the costs of claims and 
judgments, related adtninistrat:ive expenses, and premiums for commercial policies. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fiduciary funds ate used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or 
on behalf of other funds within the government. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the 
Sheriff holds on behalf of others as their agent. The Tax Collector fund holds funds, such as taxes, cash bonds, 
fees, etc., due to taxing bodies and others. The Sheriff's Account accounts for collections and distributions related 
to civil suits, sales, successions, garnishments and redemptions. The Inmate Deposit Fund is used to account for 
individual prisoner account balances while in custody of the Jefferson Parish Correctional Center. The Property 
and Evidence Fund is used as a depository for funds seized in connection with arrest for narcotics violations. The 
Narcotics Seizure Fund accounts for proceeds of certain asset forfeitures seized during narcotics arrests. 

4. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accnial basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 1iability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for 
which they arc levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated 
from the government-wide financial statements. Amounts reported as program revenues on the Statement of 
Activities include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating 
grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as 
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes and related 
commissions. 

Within the fund fmancial statements, the accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is 
determined by its measurement focus and basis of accounting. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using a cu"ent financial resources measurement focus and 
the modifted accroal basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities 
generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues 
and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net fund balances. 
Under the modified basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to· accrual (i.e., when they 
become both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount ofthe transaction can be determined 
and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities 
of the current period. The Sheriff considers property taxes and sales taxes as available if they are collected within 
60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for 
unmatured interest on generallong-tenn debt, which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences 
which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial 
resources. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are state revenue sharing, intergovernmental reimbursement, interest and 
grants. Ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, fines, C·ommissions and costs collected and held by the Tax Collector 
Agency Fund on behalf of the Sheritrs General Fund are also accrued. Substantially all other revenues are 
recorded when received. 
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The proprietary fund type is accounted for on tbe economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of this fund type 
are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund type operating statements represent increases (i.e., revenues) 
and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows . 

5. Assets .. Liabilities and Net Position/Fund Equit) 

A. Cash and Investments 

For reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits and petty cash. For the 
purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Proprietary Funds consider all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents. 

In accordance with GASB Codification Section 150, investments are generally stated at fair value. Money market 
investments that bave a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less are not stated at fair value but 
are stated at costs or amortized cost. Money market investments include shon-tenn, highly liquid debt 
instruments such as commercial paper and U.S. Treasury and agency obligations. 

Louisiana Revised Statues (LSA-RS 33:2955) authorized the Sheriffto invest in (I) direct obligations of the 
United States Treasury, the principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the federal government, (2) 
bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies or U.S. 
government instrumentalities, (3) direct security repurchase agreements of any federal book entry only securities, 
( 4) time certificates of deposits of state banks organized under the law of Louisiana and national banks having 
their principal offices in the state of Louisiana, savings accounts or shares of savings and loan associations, (5} in 
mutual or ttust fund institutions, which are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Act of 1933 and the Investment Act of 1940, which have underlying investments cons.isting solely of 
and lirruted to securities o f the U.S. government or its agencies, or (6) guaranteed investment contracts issued by a 
bank, fmancial institution, insurance company, or other entity having one of the two highest short-term rating 
categories of either Standard & Poor's Corporation or Moody's Investors Service, provided that no such 
investment may be made except in connection with a fmancing program approved by the State Bond Commission. 

B. Pooled Assets 

The Sheriff follows the practice of pooling its cash and investments in order to maximize earning potential. All 
funds participate in the pool except for the Tax Collector Agency Fund and the Sheriff's Account Agency Fund. 
Total cash, investments, and accrued interest on investments of the Pool are reported in a11 funds as "Share of 
Pooled Assets- General Pool". 

Funds with negative share report the advance as an interfund payable and the General Fund, which has been 
determined to be the receivable fund by management, reports an off-setting interfund receivable. Interest earned 
on pooled cash and investments is allocated each month to each individual fund based on the average balance of 
its share of pooled assets. 
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The Sheriff also follows the practice of pooling the cash and investments of all funds controlled by the Bureau of 
Revenue and Taxation Department. Total cash and investments of the pool are reported in the various funds as 
"Share of Pooled Assets- Bureau Pool". Funds with a negative share in this pool report the advance as an 
interfund payable, and the Property Tax Fund, which has been determined to be the receivable fund by 
management, reports an off-setting interfund receivable. Accumulated interest and fiscal charges, which have not 
yet been allocated to the various funds, are netted against the pool's cash and investment to arrive at "net pooled 
assets". 

C. Jnterfund Receivables!Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at year end are 
referred to as either "due to/from other funds'' (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from 
other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are 
reported as "due to/from other funds". Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are 
offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate tbat they are not available 
for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. As a general rule, all interfund balances 
are eliminated in the government-wide financial statements. 

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in 
the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are 
reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reponed as other financing sources/uses in governmental 
funds and after non-operating reven_ues/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds reSponsible for 
particular expenditures/expenses to the f'Qnds that initially paid for them are not presented in the financial 
statements. 

D. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

The costs of material and supplies acquired by governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of 
purchase. It .is management's opinion that the inventory of such materials and supplies at JWJe 30, 2017 would 
not be material to the financial statements. 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2017, are recorded as prepaid 
items in both the government-wide and fund fmanoial statements. These items wiJI be recognized as expenses or 
expenditures when the benefit or expense is consumed rather than when purchased. 

E. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assetst the statement of financial position reports separate sections for deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred Outflows of Resources represent a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period and so it will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred Inflows of Resources represent an acquisition of net position that is 
applicable to a future reporting period and so it will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
then. The Sheriff currently reports a deferred outflow related to a deferred charge on the refunding of bonds as 
well as deferred inflows and outflows related to its participation in a defined benefit pension plan. 
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Deferred Outflows-Deferred Charges- Refunding Escrow. The Sheriff has only one item that qualifies for 
reporting in this category -a deferred charge on a refunding. A deferred charge on refunding results from the 
difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price. Deferred charges such as the 
deferred charge -refunding escrow agent are to be amonized as an adjustment to interest expense over the shorter 
of either 1) the original life of the refunded debt or 2) the life of the refunding debt. Since there was no refunding 
debt issued to affect this defeasance (the Sheriff used available surplus cash), the deferred charge will be 
amortized over the original life of the remaining refunded debt. 

Deferred Outflow and Deferred Inflows- Pension Related. For purposes of measuring the net pension 
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Louisiana Sheriffs Pension & Relief Fund (the 
"LSPRF"), and additions to/deductions from the LSPRF's fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they $"6 reported by the LSPRF. The Sheriff reports both deferred outflows or resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to the pension liability calculation. For this purpose, benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contnoutions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. Investments of the LSPRF are reported at fair value. 

F. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable 
governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statelllents. Capital assets are defined by the 
Sheriff as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 (except for electronic equipment, which is 
capitalized 100 percent) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical costs if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimate fair 
market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset 
lives are not capitalized, Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed and are included in construction in progress. 

Property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure as depreciated using the straight-line method (with a mid-year 
convention) over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Category 

Buildings and Improvements 

Equipment (including furniture and fixtures) 

Vehicles and Heavy Equipment 

Infrastructure 

Useful Life in Years 
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G. Compensated Absences 

It is the Sheriffs policy to permH employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. 
There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since it is the Sheriff's policy to not pay any amounts when 
employees separate from service to the Sheriff. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government­
wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have 
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. In accordance with GASB 
Codification Section C60, an additional liability is recorded for salary related payments associated witb the future 
payment of compensated absences. 

H Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recognized as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net posWon. Bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. 
Bonds payable , if any, .are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs, if any 
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources which discounts on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received, are reported as debt service expenditures. Payments of principal and interest are recorded as 
expenditures only when due. 

I. Fund Equity 

In accordance with GASB Codification Section 1800.142-162, fund balances of the governmental fund types are 
categorized into one of five categories in the fund financial statements - Non-spendable, Restricted, Committed, 
Assigned, or Unassigned. 

For committed fund balances, the Sheriff is considered the highest level of decision-making authority and fonnal 
policy memorandum issued by him is needed to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment For 
assigned fimd balances, the Sheriff and/or Chief Financial Officer may assign amounts to a specific purpose via 
internal memorandum. 

The Sheriff has established a Salary Stabilization arrangement via a policy memorandum. The Stabilization Fund 
was set up with excess monies generated in the aftermath ofHurricane Katrina. Currently, there are no provisions 
for more funds to be added to the Stabilization Fund. The Stabilization Fund transfers to the General Fund a fixed 
wount per employee over and above the base-line authorized staffing level that existed prior to Hurricane Katrina 
(which currently stands at 1,400). For GAAP purposes, the Salary Stabilization Special Revenue Fund is 
consolidated into the General Fund; however. the balance of the fund is shown on the fund financial statements as 
a Committed FWld Balance in the General Fund. 

In addition, while the Sheriff bas not formally adopted a min.imum fund balance policy, it does have an internal 
targeted fund balance of20.0 percent of current year expenditures. Included in this figure is a "contingency., 
balance that has been set-aside for future emergencies (currently set at $7.0 million). 
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NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

While the Sheriff has not established a policy for its use of unrestricted fund balance, it does consider that 
committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts when 
expenditures are incurred for purposes tor wruch amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications 
could be used. 

Sometimes the Sheriff will fund outlays tor a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant 
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted- net position and 
unrestricted- net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund fmancial statements, a flow assumption 
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Sheriff's policy to 
consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied. 

J. Use of Estimates 

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires the 
Sheriff to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the. date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses/expenditures. Actual results could differ from the estimates that were used. 

K Adoption ofNew Accounting Principles 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Sheriff implemented the following accounting standards: 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 74 (GASB 74) 
The GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemp/oyment Benefit Plans Other than Pension 
Plans, in June 2015. The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about 

postemployment benefits other tban pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general 

purpose external financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing 
accountability. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning 
after June is, 2016. This statement did not affect the Sheriff due to how it funds its OPEB plan. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77 (GASB 77) 
The GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, in August 2015. This Statement requires 

governments that enter into tax abatement agreements to disclose the following information about the agreements: 

• Brief descriptive information, such as the tax being abated, the authority under which tax abatements are 
provided, eligibility criteria, the mechanism by which taxes are abated. provisions for recapturing abated taxes, 
and the types of commitments made by tax abatement recipients, 

• The gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the period, 
• Commitments made by a government, other than to abate taxes, as part of a tax abatement agreement. 

The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. See Note 0.11 

L. Subsequent Events 

The Sheriff has evaluated subsequent events through December 13, 2017, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. See Note F.S. for any discussion of items to disclose. 

-57-



.JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE .B - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT -WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

t. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement ofRevenues. Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental fonds and changes in Net Positim~ of 
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that 
reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated usefu]lives and reported as 
depreciation expense." The details ofthls $3,760,915 difference a.re as follows: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Net adjustment to increase net ciJnnges in fund balances -toral governmental 
funds to arrive at changes in net position - governmental activities 

$ 

$ 

11 ,942,347 
(8, 181 ,432) 

3,760,915 

Another element of that reconci ljation states that "The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving 
capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase Net Position." The details oftbis $(33 1 ,737) 
difference are as follows: 

ln the statement of activities, only the gain (loss) on the sale of capit1.1l ONsets 
is reported. Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fund 

balance by the following: 

Cost of assets disposed of during the year 
Accumulated depreciation on assets disposed of 

Net adjustment to increase (decerase) net changes in fund balances -total 
governmentalfimds to arrive at changes in net position- govemmental activities 

$ 

$ 

(8,734,318) 
8,402,581 

(331,737) 

Finally, pension-related expenses are recognized in the fund financials in the year that they occur, but for the 
Government-wide financial statements, certain inflows and outflows of resources and pension expenses are 
recognizedin the current year, while others are deferred and amortized in the future. The $3,651,066 difference 
related to pension fund recognition is broken down as follows: 

Current year employer pension expense per the Sheriffs Pension Fund 
Current year pension expense for employee contributions paid by the Sheriff 

Current year amortization of ~;ertain pension-related deferred inflows and outflows 
Recognition of On-Behalf Payments made to pension plan by non-employer entities 
Deferral of current year pension contributions made by the Sheriff 

Net adjQs!ment to increase net changes in fund balances- total governmental 
fonds to arrive at changes in net position - governmental activities 
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8,996 
3,877,983 
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NOTE C- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

I. Budgetary Information 

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control device during the year fur the General and 
Special Revenue Funds (except for the following grant funds: Federal Grants, Drug Enforcement, Multi­
Jurisdictional Task Force, Project Income and Local Law Enforcement Block Grant (LLEBG) grant funds). 
Because grants can span over sevetal years and because financial reporting to granting agencies is required on a 
"grant-to-date'' basis, budgetary data for the Federal Grants. Special Revenue Funds is presented on a "grant-to­
date" basis, not an annual basis. Capital Project Funds are not presented since the funds are budgeted over the life 
of the respective project and not on an annual basis. The annual budgets and the grant-to-date budgets are legally 
adopted each year by a resolution authorized by the Sheriff. 

Expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. Management of the Sheriff may make 
line-item adjustments within a fund without the Sheriff's approval as long as the total revenues and expenditures 
do not change. Appropriations which are neither expended nor encwnbered lapse at year end. 

Budgets are adopted fur the General and Special Revenue funds (except those noted above) on a basis consistent 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that (1) expenditures represented by unpaid 
invoices received after the year-end budgetary cut-off and which had not been encumbered are recognized when 
paid, (2) encumbrances are recorded as expenditures. (3) amounts paid und~r capital leases are budgeted as rent 
expenses rather than debt service, and (4) sales taxes and the related commissions are recorded when received. 

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services. Encumbrance 
accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the. ex'Penditures of monies are 
recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is etnployed as an extension of formal 
budgetary integration in the General and Special Revenue Funds. 

In accordance with the Louisiana Local Government Budget Act (LSA-RS 39:130 1), the procedures used by the 
Sheriff in establishing the budgetary data in the financial statements include public notices of the proposed 
budget, public inspections and hearings. The budget is then legally adopted by the Sheriff through a formal 
implementation letter. All amendments to the budget must also be approved by the Sheriff. Budgeted amounts 
included in the statements are as originally adopted or as finally amended by the Sheriff as of June 23, 2017. 

2. Amendments to the Budget 

The Sheriff made several supplemental budgetary appropriations through the year, the final being made on June 
23, 2017. The most significant of the changes made are descnoed below: 

Revenues of the General Fund were decreased by $(807 ,000). The largest changes were seen in services charges, 
fees and commissions (down $ 1 ,097,000), ad valorem taxes (down $505,000), miscellaneous revenues (up 
$217,000). intergoveromental {up $235,000), and uiterest incotne (up $248,500). Service charges and 
commissions went down due to a decrease in sales tax commission (down $332,000), a decrease in other 
commissions (down $684,000 - due mainly to a decrease in commission on judicial sales), and a decrease in civil 
and criminal fees (down $131,500 mostly in tax. costs). Ad valorem taxes decreased due to the assessed and 
taxable values set by the Assessor coming in sHghtly lower than anticipated. MisceUaneous revenues were up 
primarily because of an increase in subrogation claims (up $167 ,500). Intergovernmental revenues were up 
mainly due to a drop in state supplemental pay (down $196,000- due to a lower number of eligible employees), 
an increase of$52,000 in state basic training revenues (reimbursements from recent POST academies held by the 
Sheriff), an increase in reimbursed details {up $286,000) and an increase in reimbursed salaries (up $54,000). 
Interest income was up due to higher interest rates paid by our fiscal agent under a new contract. 
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Expenditures of the General Fund were decreased by $(1,344,150). A breakdown by bureau follows: 

Fund/Bureau Original Budget Amendments Final Budget 

General Fund 
Executive $ 1,176,750 $ 491,000 $ 1,667,750 
Civil and Support Services 12,797,000 (444,500) 12,352,500 
Finance and Administrative 10,217,000 ( 1, I RO,OOO) 9,037,000 
Fleet 12,266,750 (1,704,750) 10,562,000 
Revenue and Taxation 3,787,500 5,750 3,793,250 
Operations 22,511,000 509,000 23,020,000 
Special Operations 4,647,000 428,750 5,075,750 
Technical Services 14,114,500 (232,500) 13,882,000 
Internal Management 625,250 9,500 634,750 
Criminal lnvestigations 13,217,250 (227,000) 12,990,250 
Speciallnvestigatjons 6,003,750 122,250 6,!26,000 
Narcotics 4,415,250 45,500 4,460,750 
Corrections 22,862,750 832,250 23,695,000 

Total $ 128,641,750 $ (1,344,750) $ 127,297,000 

The increase of $491,000 in Executive resulted from the transfer of the Legal Section from the Finance and 
Administrative Bureau to the Executive Bureau. The tnajority of the increase is in salaries and benefits and 
general operating expenditures - outside services {legal fees). 

The decrease of$(444,500) in the Civil and Support Services Bureau was the result of a decrease of${437,000) in 
general operating expenditures (primarily due to a d[op in repairs and maintenance on buildings), and a decrease 
of $(128,000) in materials and supplies (due to a decrease in uniforms and related supplies caused by switching 
departmental guns in the prior year), offset by an increase of $161,500 in salaries and benefits. 

The decrease of $(1 ,180,000) in the Finance and Administrative Bureau was the result of a decrease in salaries 
and benefits of $(977 ,500) due to unfilled positions in the IT department, and a decrease of $(177 .250) in general 
operating expenditures (due to a decrease in outside services related to computer programming and decreased 
costs associated with the Sheriff's Leadership Training Program). 

The Fleet Bureau's budget decreased $(1,704,750) mainly due to a drop of$(1,650,000) in capital outlay as less 
vehicles and equipment were purchased than originally planned for. 

The Operations Bureau's budget increased by $509,000, due mainly to an increase in salaries and benefits (caused 
by the effects of a 7.5 percent law enforcement raise given in April2017). 

The Special Operations Bureau's budget increased by $428,750, due mainly to an increase in salaries and benefit.<> 
(caused by the effects of a 7.5 percent law enforcement raise given in April 20 17) and an increase of$167 ,000 in 
general operating expenditures {due to an increase in repairs and maintenance for the helicopter). 
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The drop of $(232,500) in the Technical Services Bureau was the result of decrease in salaries and benefits of 
$( 160,7 50) and a decrease of $(90,950) in general operating expenditures. The salaries and benefits were down 
because of various open positions that did not get fiiJed during the year in 911 and in the Crime Lab. The general 
operating expenditures were down mainly due to decreases in telephone costs and program and activities (fewer 
community relations trips). 

The Criminal Investigation's Budget decreased $(227,000) due to a decrease of$(181 ,500) in salaries and benefits 
(due to open positions) and a decrease of$(36,000) in general operating expenditures- telephone. 

The Corrections Bureau's budget increased $832,250 primarily due to an increase in salaries and benefit., of 
$883,000. Salaries and benefits were up due to the number of open positions during the year which caused a large 
increase in overtime to fill the open spots. The Corrections Center bas been running about 10 percent short of 
personnel for most of the year. 

The change of$(3,936,750) in Other Financing Sources (Uses) was caused by an increase in Operating Transfers 
out. Operating Transfers Out increased mainly due to a $2,000,000 cash infusion into the Group Health Internal 
Service Fund (due to continuing cash flow shortages in that fund), a $1,000,000 transter to the Communications 
Reserve Capital Fund (to cover costs on the new Lafitte Tower), and an increase of$1,185,000 in the transfers to 
the Buildings and Improvements Capital Fund (to cover additional costs on building construction projects). 

The end result of the above noted changes was to change the originally budgeted deficit of$(1 ,595,050) to a 
projected deficit of$(4,994,050). The estimated ending fund balance of the general fund is budgeted at 
$42,310,107, which, when combined with the $8,534,657 ofbudgetary fund balance of the Salary Stabilization 
Fund, results in a budgeted fund balance of$50,844,764 or 39.94 percent of currently budgeted expellditures 
(much higher than the target of20.0 percent of operating expenditures). 

The Salary Stabilization Special Revenue Fund (a major fimd) had revenues increased by $65,000 to reflect an 
increase in interest earnings (due to higher interest rates). The operating transfer to the General Fund increased 
from the origina1 amount of$2,800,000 to $3, 100,000 (which is based on staffing levels). which resulted in an 
ending budgeted fund balance of$8,534,657. 

The 911 Emergency Communications Special Revenue Fund (a major fund) had its revenues remain the same 
during the year (i.e., no adjustments were made). The budgeted expenditures of this fund were increased by 
$802,650. This increase is made up of an increase in general operating e-xpenditures of $687,650 and an increase 
of$1 15,000 in capital outlay. The increase in general operating expenditures resulted from an increase in 
telephone and communications costs of $62,400, an increase of $592,000 in repairs and maintenance of 
communications equipment, and a $ 17,000 increase in computer programming. The increase in capital outlay had 
to do with an increase in special purpose equipment. The intergovernmental costs remained at $1 ,509,000 (which 
is made up of reimbursements to the Parish Eastbank Fire Department for fire dispatchers and payments to the 
Cities of Kenner and Gretna for alternate PSAPs). Operating transfers out were decreased $(163,000) to 
reimburse the Sheriff's General Fund for call-takers, police and EMS dispatchers, and IT personnel. 

The Sheriff's Non-major Special Revenue Funds with Budgets also had a few changes during the year. Overall, 
revenues went up $218,025, expenditures went up $864.400, and other financing sources (uses) went down 
$(16,250). The net change in revenues was primarily seen in 1) the Region 1 O&M Special Revenue Fund, which 
saw a decrease in intergovernmental reimbursements of$(65,100), 2) the Commissary Sales Special Revenue 
fund, which saw a decrease of $(30,000) in sales of goods to inmates, and 3) the State Asset Forfeiture Special 
Revenue Fund, which saw an increase of$300,000 in forfeitures. 
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The increase in expenditures is the net of 1) an increase of $25,000 in Commissary Sales (primarily in costs of 
goods sold (up $45,000), offset by a drop of$(15,000) in miscellaneous costs), 2) an increase of$734,500 in the 
State Asset Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund (due to an increase in general operating costs, materials and supplies 
and capital outlay), 3) a decrease of $(65, 1 00) in the Region 1 O&M Special Revenue Fund due to a decrease in 
reimbursable costs at the regional communication towers, and4) an increase of$184,000 in the Crime Lab Fees 
Special Revenue fund (to cover overtime, computer licenses and lab equipment). 

3. Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations 

The Sheriff's General Fund and all of its Special Revenue funds that adopt annual budgets were within budgeted 
expenditures for the fiscal year. 

4. Reconciliation ofBudg,e tan Basis to GAAP Basis of Accounting. in Fund Financial Statements- General Fund 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Actual and Budget (Budgetary Basis) 
- General Fund presents a comparison of the legally adopted budget with actual data on the budgetary basis. 
Since accounting principles on the budgetary basis differ from those used to present financial statements in 
conformity with generaOy accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a reconciliation ofthe resulting basis, ti.t.ning, 
and entity differences in excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditure and other uses for the 
year ended June 30, 2017, is presented below: 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses (budgetary basis) 

Basis Difference 
To adjust for accrual of sales taxes 

To adjust for expenditures for unpaid invoices 

To adjust for expenditures for payroll accrual 

Timing Differences 
To adjust for encumbrances 

Perspective Difference 
To merge the Salary Stabilizatin Special Revenue Fund into 
the General Fund, as per GASB 54. Under new accounting 
standard, this fund can no longer be presented as a special 

revenue fund for GAAP purposes. 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses (GAAP basis) 
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General Fund 

$ (2,100,884) 

417,124 

(263,884) 

(1,489,371) 

(2,978,4 71) 

$ (6,158,406) 
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5. Reconciliation ofBuduetarv Basis to GAAP Basis of Accounting for Non-Major Special Revenue Funds 

On the Non-major Special Revenue Funds that adopt annual budgets, the same differences noted above exist 
between the actual data on a GAAP basis and actual data on the budgetary basis. A reconciliation of the resulting 
basis, timing, and entity differences in excess (deficiency) of revenues and other resources over expenditures and 
other uses for the year ended June 30, 2017, is presented below. 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses (budgetary basis) - Non-Major Special Revenue funds w/Budgets 

Basis. Difference 
To adjust for accrual of grant revenue 
To adjust for expenditures- for unpaid invoices 

Entity Differences 
To record excess (deficiet1cy) of revenues and other sources over ex-penditUl'eS 
and other uses for non-budg.eted funds 

Excess {deficieocy) of Tevenues and other sources over 
ex-penditures and other uses (GAAP basis) - AU Non-Major Special Revenue Funds 

6. Negative Net Position/Deficit Fund Balances 

Non-major 
Special Revenue 

$ (459,036) 

129,078 

(100) 

s (330,058) 

At June 30, 2017, none of the Sheriff's funds had negative Net Position or deficit fund balances other than tne 
Group Health and Life Internal Service Fund, which had a negative net position of$(1 ,033,046) at year end. Tbis 
negative position resulted from current year losses in this internal service fund. Since this is an internal service 
fund, the negative net positions are absorbed (or covered) by the charges to other funds in the following fiscal 
year. For reporting p\Ul)oses, this net position is consolidated into the current year activity at the Government­
wide level. 
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1. Deposits with Financial Institutions and Investments 

Deposits with Financiallnstitutioos 

The deposits at June 30, 2017, consisted of the following; 

Deposits in Bank Accounts per-Balance Sheet 

Bank Balances of Deposits Exposed to Custodial 
Cnl(iit Risk: 

A. Uninsured and uncollateralizro 

B. Uninsured and collateralized with 
securities held by the pladging institution 

C. Uninsured and collateralized with 
securities held by the pledging institution's 
trust department or agent but not in the 
Sheritl's name 

Total Bank Balances tlxposed to Custodial Credit Risk 

Total Bank Balances · All Deposits 

Casb 

s 86,497,804 $ 

s $ 

s 90,867,529 $ 

Certificates 
ofDcpuslt Otbtt Total 

$ 15,150 $ 86,512,954 

s $ 

$ s 90,867,529 

Petty cash is not required to be reported in. the note disclosure; however, to aid .in reconciling amounts reported on 
the Statement of Net Position to the amounts reported in this note, the Sheriff held $15,150 in petty casb at June 
30, 2017 ($15,050 in the General Fund and $100 .in the 911 Emergency Communications Special Revenue Fund). 
This makes up the Other Cash shown above. 

Investments 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Investments can be exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities underlying the investment are uninsured, not 
registered in the name of the entity, and are either held by the cotmterparty or the counterparty's trust department 
or agent but not in the entity's name. The following table lists each type of investment exposed to custodial credit 
risk and the reported amount and fair value of all investments regardless of custodial credit risk exposure. 
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Investments Exposed 
to Custodial Credit Risk 

All Investments Regardless of 
Custodial Credit Risk Exposure 

T)'pe of lnvestment 

U.S. Instrumentalities Discount Notes 
Municipal Bonds 
Commercial Paper 

Total Categorized Investments 

Louisiana Asset Management Pool 

Total Investments 

$ 

$ 

Uninsured, 
Unregistered, 
and Held by 

Couuterparty 

7,868,879 s 
4,644,274 
6,238,090 

18,751,243 $ 

Uninsured, 
Un•·egjstered, and Jfeld 

by Counterparty's 
Trust Departmmt or 
Agent but Not in the 

Entity's Name 

s 

$ 

Reported Amount Fair Value 

7,868,879 $ 7,835,342 
4,644,274 4,560,435 
6,238,090 6,239,508 

18,751,243 18,635,285 

19,081,276 19,081,276 

37,832,519 $ 37,716,561 

As shown above, the Sheriff has investments in shares of the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a state 
sponsored external investment pooL Because these investments are not evidenced by securities that exist in 
physical or book entry form, they are not categorized for the purposes oftbis note. LAMP is administered by 
LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the Jaws of the State of Louisiana. Only local governments 
may participate in LAMP. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the p)acement of 
public funds in short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other 
obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest. The dollar weighted average 
portfolio maturity of LAMP is restricted to not more than 60 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in 
excess of 397 days. The fair value of a share in LAMP is the same as the book value (i.e., a share in the pool is 
always worth $1.00 per share). 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Sheriff's investment policy does not allow for an investment in any one issuer that is in excess of fifty percent 
of the Sheriff's total invesonents, with the exception of investments in LAMP or U.S. Treasury Securities, in 
which there are no limits. The following is a list of all investments of greater than 5 percent in a sin,gle issuer: 

%of Total 

Issuer Amount I nvestntents 

LAMP (State Pool) s !9,08!,276 50.6% 
FNMA 3,647,060 9.7% 
PHLB 2,192,996 5.8% 
Issuers with Amounts Less TI1un 5 Percent 12,795,229 33.9% 

s 37,716,561 100.0% 
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Credit Risk Investments 

State law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top two ratings i'ISued by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organiZations (NRSRO's). lt is the Sheriffs policy to llm.it its investments in these 
investment types to the top rating groups. State statutes also allow the Sheriff to invest in the Louisiana Asset 
Management Pool (LAMP). The following table lists the Sheriff's investments by credit quality rating, whether 
held directly or indirectly (i.e., LAMP): 

S&P or Moody's Rating 

A+ 
AI 
AA­
AA 
AA+ 
Aal 
AAA 
AAAm 

Interest Rate Risk 

$ 

$ 

Fair Value 

151,818 
3,068,747 
2,845,013 
2,499,777 
7,174,795 

100,496 
2,794,639 

19,081 ,276 
37,716,561 

In accordance with the Sheriff's investment pol icy, exposure to declines in fair values is managed by limiting the 
maturity of it investments to less than 3 years. At June 30, 2017, the average number of days to maturity of 
investments held was 421 days. 

Fair Value Disclosures 

The Sheriff holds investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and categorizes its fair value 
measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The 
hierarchy is based on the valuation input used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 
inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 

The Sheriff had the following recurring fair value measurements: 

• Level l - Securities are valued using quoted market prices 
• Level 2 - Investments are valued using a matrix pricing model 

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Sheriffs fair value measurements at 
June 30, 2017: 
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Type of Security Level 1 Leve12 

Corporate Securitie$ $ 3,338,510 $ 300,732 $ 
Municipal Bonds 502,835 3,831,966 
U.S. Government and Agencies 6,187,566 745,035 
Commercial Paper, Money Markets and CDs 902,161 2,825,901 

Total $ 10,931,072 $ 7,703,634 $ 

2. Pooled Assets 

Lcvcl3 

A reconciliation of pooled assets held in the General Pool at June 30, 20J 7 is presented below: 

Pooled Assets 

Cash 
Investments 
Accrued Interest receivable 
Less: unallocated interest and fiscal charges 
Less: accounts payable 

Net Pooled Assets 

Fund 

Major Funds 
General Fund 
Communications Reserve Capital Project Fund 
Buildings and Improvements Capital Project Fund 

Non-Major Funds 
Special Revenue Funds 
Debt Service 
Capital Project Funds 

Internal Service Funds 

Fiduciary -Agency Funds 

Total Equity in Pool 
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General Pool 

$ 30,770,149 
30,947,384 

(126,937) 

$ 61,590,596 

Equity in Pool 

$ 45,429,531 
4,147,967 
6,547,332 

2,707,820 

2,631 ,752 

126,194 

$ 61,590,596 

Total 

$ 3,639,242 
4,334,801 
6,932,601 
3,728,062 

$ 18,634,706 
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A reconciliation of pooled assets held in the Bureau Pool at June 30, 2017 is presented below: 

Pooled Assets 

Cash 
NSF recievables 
Less: unallocated interest and fiscal charges 

Net Pooled Assets 

Fund 

Tax Collector Agency Funds 
Miscellaneous Fees 
Criminal Cash Bonds 
$15 Criminal Cash Pees 
Fines 
School Bus Safety Program 
Property Tax 
Sales Tax 
LA Offset 

Total Equity in Pool 

Bureau Pool 

$ 47,552,920 
445,631 

(141,936) 

$ 47,856,615 

Equity in Pool 

$ 264,805 
2,572,406 

86,306 
2,130,014 

4~913,832 
37,889.252 

$ 47,856,615 

3. Reconciliation of Deposits and Investments to Fund Financial Statements 

The carrying amount of the deposits and investments noted above are displayed on the fund financial statements 
as follows: 

Cash and 
Fund/Pool Cash Equivalents Investments 

General Pool (See Footnote D.2) $ 30,770,149 $ 30,947,384 
Buerau Pool (See Footnote D.2)- Agency Funds 47,552,920 
General Fund 283,556 
Major Governmental Funds 3,670,819 
Non-major Governmental Funds 75,519 
Internal Service Funds 1,095,897 6,885,135 
Fiduciary - Agency Funds 3,064,094 

Total (See Footnote D. I) $ 86,512,.954 $ 37,832..519 
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Since Agency Funds are not included in the government-wide statements, the deposit balances of$86,512,954 
shown above are reduced by $50,617,014 (the amount of cash held in the Bureau Pool and in the Agency funds) 
and then increased by $5,489,800 (the amount of cash held in the Agency Funds that are due to the Sheriff's 
office) to arrive at a cash balance of$41~385_.740. This is the amount of cash shown on the government-wide 
Statement of Net Position. 

4 Receivables 

Receivables at June 30, 2017 consist of the following: 

Major Other Total 
Governmental Governmental Governmental Internal 

General Funds Funds F~tnds Service Total 

Receivables: 
Ad Valorem taxes 
Sales taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Service charges, fees 

and commissions 
Interest 
AllCounts and other 

Subtotal 

Less: Allowanoefor 
unaollectibles 

Net Receivables - Governmental Funds 

Less: Reccivables from Sheriff's Office 
Agency Funds 
Ad Valorem taxes and costs 
Sales taxes 
CoUlD.l.issions on sales taxes 
Fines and costs 

s 125,756 s $ 
3,828,977 
1,465,925 2,903,320 

7,653,426 
6,586 

153,727 

13,234,397 

13,234,397 

(202,108) 
(1,887,549) 
(3 ,286,698) 

(54,9401 
(5,431,295) 

2,903,320 

2,903,320 

$ 125,756 s 
3,828,977 

105,585 4,474,830 

7,653,426 
6,586 

30,869 184,596 

136,454 

13M 54 

16,274.171 

16.274,171 

(202,108) 
( 1,887,549) 
(3,286,698) 

l54,9401 
(5,43 1,295) 

s 125,756 
3 ,8Z8.977 
4,474,830 

7,653,426 
6,586 

184,596 

16.274,171 

16,274,171 

(202,108) 
( 1,887,549) 
{3,286,698) 

154,940) 
(5,431 ,295) 

Net Receivables - Govemment, wide $ 7,803,102 $ 2,903,320 $ 136,454 $ 10,842,876 $ $ 10,842,876 

Included in the intergovernmental receivable above is $155,025 relating to FEMA claims for Hurricanes 
Katrina, Gustav, Ike, and Isaac (See Note E.3). The Sheriff is in the process of closing out several projects 
related to Hurricanes Katrina, Gustav, and Ike. The Sheriff considers all of the amounts outstanding with 
FEMA to be collectible, although the close out process sometimes identifies ineligible costs. The Sheriff 
believes that future examinations will not result in any material disallowances of costs or adjustments to these 
receivables. 

Intergovernmen1al receivables also includes $1,943,826 of 911 fees collected by the Parish of Jefferson from 
service providers tbat is owed to the Sheriff's 911 Emergency Communications Special Revenue Fund (see 
NoteD.?). 
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s. Caoital Assets 

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets during the fiscal year: 

Balance Reclasses & 
July l, 2016 Additions Deletions Transfers 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 

Land $ 2,715,775 s $ $ 
Construction fu progress 291,318 1,461.472 (197,207) 

Total Capital Assets Not Being 
Depreciated $ 3,007,093 s 1,461,472 s (197.207) $ 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements s 65,214-,626 s s $ 
Furniture and fixtures 73,550,064 6,544,828 ( I ,022,476) 
Vehicles and heavy equipment 44,706,114 3,936.047 (7.514,635) 
Infrastructure 1,157,265 

Total Capital Assets Beipg 
Depreciafed 184,628,069 10,480,875 (8,537,111) 

Less Accumulated DeprllCiation: 
Buildings and .improvements ( J 5,943,352) (I ,630,249) 
Furniture and futures (69,404,714) (3.060,949) 1,017,815 
Vehicles and heavy equipment (34,980,880) (3,45 1,725) 7,384,766 
Infrastructure (548,767) (38,.509) 

Total Accumulated Deproolation (120,877 ,713) (8,181,432) 8,402,58L 

Net capital Assets Being Depreciatoo 
Buildings and improvement<; 49,271,274 (1.630,249) 
Fumiture and1ixturcs 4,14.5,350 3,483,879 (4,661) 
Vehicles and heavy equipmettt 9,725,234 484,322 (129,869) 
Infrastructure 608,498 (38,509) 

Total Net Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated $ 63,750,356 s 2,299,443 $ {134,5301 $ 

Total Net Capital Assets -
Governmental Activities $ 66,757,449 s 3,760,915 $ (33 1 ,737~ $ 
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Balance 
June30,2017 

$ 2,715,775 
1,555,583 

s 4,271. 358 

s 65,214,626 
79,072,416 
41,127.526 

1,157,265 

186, 571,833 

(17, 573,601) 
(71,447.848) 
(31,047,839) 

(S87,;H6) 

(120,6'56,564) 

47,641,025 
7,624,568 

10,079,687 
569,989 

$ 65,915,269 

$ 70,186,627 
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Depreciation expense was charged to the functions! segments of the Sheriff as follows: 

Governmental Act1V1t1es 
Executive 
Civil and Support Services 
Finance and Administrative 
Fleet 
Revenue & Taxation 
Operations 
Special Operations 
Technical Services 
totcma1 Management 
Criminal Invcstig;~tions 
Special TnvestigatiOil$ 
Narcotics 
Corrections 

Total Depreciation flxpcnscs- Governmental Activities 

$ 

s 

Depredation 
Expense 

5,219 
393,860 

2.163.400 
3.451,397 

17,495 
332,603 
439,542 
771 ,827 

3,516 
24,044 

256,218 
292,008 
30,303 

8,181,432 

A breakdown of the projects that had activity during the year is presented in the table below. The balance to 
complete represents the budgeted amount needed to complete each individual project, not necessarily how much 
additional funding is needed. The final actual number may vary depending on cost variances. The four projects 
are being funded with local (i.e. general) funds that have been set-aside in a capital projects fund. 

The Construction in Progress of $1 ,55 5,583 relates to five ongoing projects (Detective Bureau Parking Lot, the 
new First District Station, the Maple Street HV AC Modifications, the Lafitte Radio Tower Construction. and the 
WestbankEmergency Operations Center). The proje-cts are being accounted for in the Buildings and 
Improvements Capital Projects Fund and the Communications Reserve Capital Projects Funds, which are 
presented as "major funds" in the accompanying financial statements. At June 30, 2017, the Buildings and 
Improvements Capital Projects Fund had $6,452,921 available to fund the remaining portions of these projects 
and the Communications Reserve Capital Projects Fund had $4, 140,727. The General Fund will transfer money 
in the future to fully fund these projects if the funds in the capital projects funds prove to be insufficient. 

The $ 1,461,472 expended during the year was spent on architecturaVengineering services and construction costs 
for the projects. 

Less: 
Expended Capitalized Construction BaJance to Expended 

Project To Date Land In Progress Complete During Year 

Detective Bureau - Parldng Lot $ 7!!4,447 $ (456,797) $ 327,650 $ 20,553 $ 321 , 1SO 
New I st District Station -Fat City 2,550,671 (2,203,427) 347,244 4,977,779 259,633 
Maple Street HV AC Modifications 31 ,678 31 ,678 888,322 31,678 
WB Emergency Ops Ctr- Buildout 400,000 
Lafitte Radio Tower Construction 849,011 849,011 2,878,476 849,011 

Total Construction in Progress $ 4,215,807 $ (2,660,224) $ J ,555,583 $ 9,165,130 $ 1,461 ,472 
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6. Taxes Paid Under Protest 

The unsettled balance due to taxing bodies and others at June 30,2017 includes $1,508,659 paid under protest. 
Th.is amount represents protested sales taxes of $734,652 and protested ad valorem taxes of $774,007. lfthese 
taxes are refunded to the taxpayer, Louisiana Revised Statutes (LSA-RS 47:2110) require the Tax Collector to pay 
interest at 2 percent per annum on the amounts held. These funds are held in the Tax Collector Agency Fund 
pending resolution of the protest. 

7. Operating, Maintenance Agreements and Leases 

Operating and Maintenance Agreements 

Under Parish Resolution No. 118115, dated December 15, 2011 , the Sheriff is the administrator of the 911 
Emergency CommWlications District, formerly run by the Parish. Effective January 1, 2012, the Sheriff took 
over the daily operations of the district. Under this agreement, the Parish continues to receive the 911 fees paid 
by citizens to their respective telephone companies. These fees are then remitted to the Sheriff in the month or 
quarter after collection. During 2017, the Parish collected and remitted $7,366,237 in current fees to the Sheriff. 
Tllis amount is recognized as intergoverntnental revenues in the 91 1 Emergency Communications Special 
Revenue Fund (see Note D.13}, 

The 91 I Emergency Coflllllunications District has a maintenance and support agreement with Tiburon, Inc. for the 
various components of the 911 Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) System. When the system was installed, the 
Parish deferred a portion of the cost to this maintenance program. For 2017, the 911 Emergency Communications 
District paid $371,426 under tbis contract. The contract was renewed during 2017 for an additional five year 
period. The following amounts are scheduled to be paid over the next five years under the new contract out of tbe 
911 Emergency Communications District Special Revenue Fund. Should the district opt out of certain modules. 
the amount of maintenance and support may change. 

Schcwtcd 
Fiscal Year Maintenance Fees 
6130/2018 $ 389,998 
6/30/2019 409,498 
6.'30/2020 429,973 
613012021 451,471 
6/30/2022 474045 

s ~154,985 

Another major operating agreement is for maintenance and support of the telephone equipment itself. The 911 
District CUI1'ently contracts with AT&T to provide maintenance on the main site, the old 911 site, and the two 
PSAPs located in Gretna and Kenner. This contract was renegotiated with the implementation of the new VolP­
as~a...Service (VaaS) system noted below. The old agreement called for base monthly payments of$66,425. This 
has been reduced to $26, 145 per month. During the year, payments made under these contracts totaled $289,335. 
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The 911 District implemented a new VoiP-as-a-Service (VaaS) telecommunications system in 2016. Under this 
agreement, the 91 1 District no longer owns the telephone switches and equipment. Instead, it is subscnbing for 
these services from the vendor (West Safety Solutions) and is only required to pay a monthly service fee. 
Currently, the fee is $23,450 per month. During 2017, the 911 District expensed $281,400 on this contract. 

The Sheriff's 911 Fund atso has a maintenance and support agreement with Motorola related to the 
communication consoles and other radio and communications equipment and NICE recorders. For 2017, the 
Sheriff's 91 1 Flmd expended $173,277 on this maintenance contract. In addition, the Sheriff's 911 Fund paid 
Motorola $488,289 during 2017 to upgrade its NICE recording system. 

As part of operating the 911 Emergency Communications District, the Sheriff is obligated to distribute a portion 
of the 9 11 funds to the Parish and other agencies as a reimbursement of 911-related operating costs. The 
Jefferson Parish Eastbank Fire Department is paid $103,935 monthly to reimburse it for Fire Dispatcher costs. 
The City of Kenner and the City of Gretna are paid a monthly amount of $17,583 and $3,965, respectively, as 
reimbursement for maintaining back-up PSAP-stations. The Parish is also reinlhursed for the costs associated 
with an IT Technician assigned to 911. Effective January 1, 2014, an agreement was .signed which calls for the 
911 Emergency Communications District to reimburse the Sheriff's General Fund for the costs of providing call­
takers and law enforcement dispatchers. This agreement provides for a reimbursement of actual costs not to 
exceed certain maximums set forth on a pay scale agreed to within the contract 

On that same day, January I , 2014, the Sheriff took over the responsibility of dispatching Emergency Medical 
Service (EMS) calls. A separate agreement also allows the Sheriff's General Fund to be reimbursed for EMS 
Dispatchers based on actual costs not to exceed certain maximums set forth on a pay scale agreed to within the 
contract. Finally, the 911 Emergency Communications District reimburses both the Parish and the Sheriff for the 
salaries and benefits of the computer technicians assigned to 911 . 

For 2017, the total amounts distributed under these agreements are as follows. 

Amount 

Ac,enc: Purpose mstriboted 

Sheriff's General Fund 91 I CaU-talrer/ Police Dispatch s 2,832,699 
Sheriffs Genezal Fund 911 EMS Dispatcb 516, 109 
Sheriff's General f11nd 911 IT Technicians 174,138 

3,522,946 (see Note 0.10) 

Jefferson Parish Gcneml Fund 911 ITTechnicinn 160,428 

Jefferson Parish Eastbank Fire Dispatch 1,247,223 
City ofKennerPD PSAP 211,000 
City of Gretna PD l'SAP 47,581 

Total Intergovemmmtal 1.505,804 

Total $ 5,189i l78 

- 73 ~ 



.JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 
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Operating Leases 

The Sheriff bas various operating leas~ for land, buildings, equipment and vehicles. A summary of the major 
leases is as follows: 

The Sheriff leases office space for the Intemal Affairs Division in an office building separate and apart from the 
Sheriff's other admjnistrative offices. The lease was renewed on October l, 2015 for 24 months (expires on 
September 30, 20 17). The le~e calls for monthly payments of $5,664 (adjusted for inilalion). Payments made 
under this lease totaled $68,242 (which includes an annual allocation of overhead costs). 

In connection with the 800 MHz radio system, the Sheriff is leasing an electronics room and rooftop antennae 
space in an Eastbank office high-rise. The current lease is for four years and expires on June 30, 2020. The lease 
calls for monthly payments of $1 ,572 (adjusted for inflation) for the electronic room and $3,250 for 13 antennae 
positions. Payments made under these leases totaled $58,680 for the current fiscal year. 

On November 12, 2013, the Sheriff renewed a lease agreement with Konica Copiers for copying/faxing/scanning 
machines for various departments. The lease term was for 36 months; expiring on October 31 , 2016. The base 
amount on the lease is $23,479 per month. There are several other individual machine leases separate and apart 
from this lease. The master lease for the copiers was renewed once again with Konica Copiers on February I , 
2017 and now continues for three years until February 1, 2020. The base rate under the new master lease is 
$21,338 per month. The total amount paid during the fiscal year for all of these machines was $385,443. 

Finally, the Sheriff bas entered into a variety of other operating leases for land., buildings, vehicles and equipment. 
Payments made under these leases totaled $11,074 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 

The combined minimum payments due under 1he various lease agreements are as follows: 

Flscal Year Ending June 30, 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Thereafter 

Total Minimum Lease Payments 

8. Long:term Debt 

Limited Tax Revenue Bonds 

Land 

$ 

Bui.ldlngs 

74,858 s 
57,866 
57,866 

s 190,590 s 

Equipment 

287, 159 s 
263,189 
155,551 

705,899 s 

Tottll 

362,0i7 
32J,055 
213,417 

896,489 

On August 1, 2008, the Law Enforcement District (LED) of Jefferson Parish sold $30,000,000 in limited tax 
revenue bonds to fund various capital projects, including the construction of a new crime lab, three new district 
stations, and the replacement of the Bonnabel Boat Launch. The bond sale generated bond proceeds of 
$30,004,604 with bond issuance costs totaling $232,470. These funds were deposited into the Buildings and 
Improvements Capital Projecl Fund. The bonds are secured and payable from the revenues derived from the ad 
valorem tax levy of8.28 mills and were originally to be paid back over 20 years, with an original final maturity 
date of September 1, 2028. The bonds were originally rated AAA by Standard and Poor's when sold. 

-74-



JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTE D- DETAJLED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

On September 14,2011 , the Sheriffused available cash of$18,516,181 in the General Fund to advance refund a 
portion of the outstanding LED Limited Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2008. Specifically, the maturities from 
September 2021 through September 2028 were advance refunded. The cash was placed into an irrevocable trust 
with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased portion of the bonds. The 
money was used to purchase U.S. Government securities (SLGS), which will be used to pay the defeased bonds 
plus accrued interest when they mature. As a result, a portion of1he LED Limited Tax Revenue Bonds is 
considered "defeased" and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Sheriff's outstanding debt in 
2017. 

The $18,516,181 placed into escrow was made up of $26,500 in bond issue costs, $15,395,000 in future principal 
payments, and $3,094,681 of money placed with the escrow agent to pay off future interest. In fiscal year 2012, 
on the Government-wide financial statements. the $26,500 was expensed, the $15,395,000 was shown as a 
reduction of outstanding revenue bonds payable on the Statement of Net Position, and the $3,094,681 was shown 
as a "deferred charge" on the Statement of Net Position. For 2017, the amount of amortization on this deferred 
charge totaled $359,084. This amount is shown on the Statement of Activities as interest expense in 2017. 

The balance of unamortized deferred charges on this refunding totaled $880,133 at June 30, 2017 and is reflected 
as a Deferred Outflow of Resources on tbe Statement of Net Position. This amount will be expensed, as follows, 
Qver the next several years as the defeased debt is paid off by the escrow agent, 

Amortization of 
flscaJ Year Deferred Char~c 

613012018 $ 314,1\14 

6130/2019 261,360 
613012020 197,317 

6/3012021 106,642 

s 880,133 

The remaining bonds mature on September 1 of each year, with interest payable on March 1 and September l, of 
each year. The outstanding bonds bear an interest rate that ranges from 4.00 to 5.00 percent. During the fiscal 
year, $1,290,000 ofprincipal and $291,700 of interest and bank fees was paid. At June 30, 2017, $5,795,000 is 
outstanding on these bonds and $279 is available in the Debt Service Sinking Fund to service this debt. A recap 
of the outstanding bonds follows. 

TypeofDebt 

LED Limited Tax Revenue 
Bonds1 Series 2008 

New 
Final 

Remaining Maturity 
Rates Date 

Range of Annual 
Principal Payments 

From To 

Original 
Amount 
Issued 

Remaining 
Amount 

Outstanding 

4.00- 5.00% 911/2020 $ I ,350,000 $ 1,550,000 $ 30,000,000 $ 5,795,000 
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Capital Leases 

In June 2017, the Sheriff entered into a capital lease with Motorola Solutions for the acquisition of 1,100 new 
APX6000 700/800 Mhz portable radios. The lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes 
(bargain purchase options and/or present value of lease payments is greater than 90 percent of the asset cost) and, 
therefore, it has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of its 
inception. The lease term is for 5 years at zero percent interest. The annual installment due under the lease is 
$870, 314 and the first installment is due on August l, 2018. The purchase of the radio equipment has been 
capitalized into capital assets on the Government-wide financials, while the purchase was recorded as an 
expenditure in the Communications Reserve Capital Fund. The proceeds from the issuance of the capital lease are 
shown as an Other Financing Source in the Communications Reserve Capital Fund. Future minimum lease 
payments due under this capital lease are as follows: 

APX Rallo Lease 

Flscal Year Prlocie!l lnter~t 

61»'2018 $ s 
6'3012019 870,314 
6.'3012020 870,314 
6.'3012021 870,314 
6.'30/'JUJ:l 870,313 
6.'30120Z3 870,313 

s 4,351,568 s 
TotaJ Minim.Jm Leat>c Payments s 4,351.568 

Compensated Absences 

Effective July l , 2000, the Sheriff's annual and sick leave policy was revised to allow full-time employees earn 
(i.e., "vacation") leave at the rate of 12 to 20 days per year, according to the years of service. A maximum of 30 
days can be carried forward from one fiscal year to the oext. Upon separation, employees will be paid for no more 
than 10 days of accumulated leave. 

Sick leave is accrued at the rate of 10 to 15 days per year, according to tlle years of service. Sick leave is granted 
in total at the beginning of the fiscal year or on a prorated basis upon beginning employment if hired during the 
year. Earned but utmsed sick leave can be carried from one fiscal year to the next; however, the maximum 
carryover is 45 days. Upon separation, an employee will not be paid for any accumulated sick leave. 

Effective July 1, 2000, the sick leave policy was supplemented by a short-term disability policy. Under this 
policy, if an employee is sick for 30 consecutive days, he can apply for short-term disability, which will pay 66 
2/3 percent of his current salary. The policy will pay the employee for 6 months. The cost of the disability policy 
is paid 100 percent by the Sheriff's General Fund. 

The related pension costs associated with the future payment of compensated absences are computed at the rate of 
23.00 percent. The accumulated liability as of June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Annual and Sick Leave 
Related pen~; on costs 

Total 

s 

s 

AmoWJt 

1,397,063 
316,599 

1,713,662 
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The General Fund is where most, if not all, of the salaries of the Sheriff are recorded. Thus, the General Fund is 
where most of the liability for compensated absences is liquidated or paid from. 

Debt Service to MattLrity 

Annual deot service to maturity on outstanding long-term debt, including interest, is as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June30, 

Subtotal 

20 18 
2019 
2020 
2021 

Add Amounts Rqm:scnting 
Interest 

Totlll Debt 

$ 

s 

Limited Tax Revenue Bonds 
PrlnciJ}al Interest 

1.350,000 $ 225,700 
1,41 5,000 156,575 
1,480,000 91,600 
1,550,000 31 ,000 
5,795,000 s 504,875 

504,875 

6)99,815' 

Cbanges in Long-Term Liabilities 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1,575,700 
1,571,575 
1,571,600 
1,581 000 
6,299,875 

The following is a summary of the changes in generallong-tenn obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017: 

Bal1t0ce Balance Due Within 
Type of Debt Julyl, 2016 Additions Dclellons Junc30, 2017 One Year 

Limitild Tax Revenue Bunds $ 7,085,000 $ $ ( 1,290,000) $ 5,795,000 $ 1,350,000 

Capital l..eases 4,351,568 4,151,568 

Compensatt!d Absences 1,621,915 3,501,381 (3,409,634) 1,7 13,662 1,7 13,662 

Nel OPE.B Obligation 
(Soc Note F.2) 19,436.954 3,016,589 (I ,752,379) 20,701.164 

Total umg-Tmn Debt $ 26, 1 0_'1~1>9 $ 10.81W.53t> s (b,4S~.III 'I s 3.!.56 .3114 s J 11() •• 1(>1 

Because most of the leave issued each year is used in the current fiscal year, the Sheriff considers the entire 
balance of compensated absences as due in less than one year. In addition, the Net OPEB Obligation is related to 
future benefits and there are no plans to fund this liability in the near future. Thus, the government-wide 
Statement of Net Position includes the $3,063,662 shown above as payable within one year and the remaining 
balance of$29,497,732 is shown as due in more than one year. 

9. Restrictions of Net Position and Fund Balance Components 

The government-wide Statement of Net Position includes several restrictions on Net Position. The following 
describes these restrictions. 
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Net Position- Restr.icted for 911 Emergency Communications 
This reserve of $5,513,724 represents the funds restricted for the purpose of operating and maintaining the 911 
Emergency Communications District. These funds are remitted to the Sheriff under a cooperative endeavor 
agreement with the Parish and can only be spent on 911 District activities. 

Net Posmoo -Restricted for Debf Service 
This reserve of $279 reflects the balance in the LED Debt Service Sinking Fund that is restricted to making 
principal and interest payments on the LED Limited Tax Revenue Bonds (See Note D.8). 

Net Position- Restricted for Claims and Judgments 
As discussed in Note E.l , the Sheriff is primarily self-insured for losses related to health, auto and professional 
liability claims. This reserve of $1 ,498,965 reflects the balances held in the self-insurance internal service funds 
that are available to fund current and future claims. It should be noted that this balance is reported in the Auto 
Loss and General Liability Internal Service Fund at year-end. The balance in the Group Health and Life Fund is 
not reported in this category as it shows a deficit net position at year-end. 

In accordance with GASB Codification Section 1800-142-162, fund balances of the governmental fund types are 
categorized into one of five categories - Non-spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, or Unassigned. Tbe 
Sheriff commits, restricts or assigns its fund balances to various specific purposes within each category. 
Descriptions of the details of these specific purposes are as follows: 

Fund Balance- Restricted for 911 Emergency Communications Operations and Maintenance 
This amount represents tbe funds restricted for the purpose of operating and maintaining the 911 Emergency 
Communications District. These funds are remitted to the Sheriff under a cooperative endeavor agreement with 
the Parish and can only be spent on 911 District expenditures. These funds are accounted for in a special revenue 
fund. 

Fund Balance- Restricted for Debt Service 
This amount represents the balance in the LED Debt Service Sinking Fund that is restricted to making principal 
and interest payments on the LED Limited Tax Revenue Bonds (See Note 0.8). 

Fund Balance- Committed to Salary Stabilization 
This amount represents the balance in the Salary Stabilization Fund (See Note A.5(1)), 

Fund Balance- Assigned to Communications Projects and Equipment 
This amount represents the funds assigned to the purpose of upgrading the Region I 700 MHz 
radio/communications system and constructing a new Lafit1e Communications Tower. These funds are accounted 
for in a capital projects fund. 

Fund Balance- Assigned to Computer Equipment 
This amount represents the funds assigned to the purpose of upgrading and replacing the Sheriffs inventory of 
computer equipment (laptops and PCs). These funds are accounted for in a capital projects fund. 

Fund Balance -Assigned to Other Capital Projects 
This amount represents the funds assigned to the purpose of constructing, upgrading or improving the Sheriff's 
facilities (other than those funded by the LED Limited Tax Revenue Bonds - see above restriction). There are a 
number of projects approved each year. These funds are accounted for in a capital projects fund. 
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Fund Balance- Assigned to Corrections 
This amount represents the balance in the Coil11ll.issary Sales Special Revenue Fund, which can be used for any 
pmpose within the Jefferson Parish Correctional Center (typically operating costs, maintenance, and small capital 
outlay projects). 

Fund Balance - Assigned to Contingencies 
While the Sheriff does not maintain a minimum fund balance, it does maintain a "contingency" balance that has 
been set-aside for future emergencies (currently set at $7,000,000). 

Fund Balance- Assigned for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 
This amount represents the am.ount of currently available fund balance budgeted in the subsequent year as a 
funding source. Since the fiscal2017-18 budget reflects an estimated deficit in the General Fund of$2,547,750, 
this amount is included as assigned fund balance at June 30,2017. 

Fund Balance-Assigned for Other Law Enforcement Purposes 
These amounts represent the remaining fund balances in the specific Special Revenue, Debt Service or Capital 
Projects that have not been explained above. These fund balances are assigned for use in the purpose set forth in 
each governmental fund. 

Fund Balance - Unassigned 
This amount represents funds that have not been assigned to other funds and have not been restricted, committed, 
or assigned to a &-pecific purpose within the General Fund. This is the residual classification for the General Fund. 

The specific pmpose details of fund balance categories are recapped as follows: 

Major Other 
Governmental Governmental 

General Funds Funds Total 

Non-spendable s s $ $ 

Restricted to: 
911 Emergency Coll11)1unicatiQnS 5,513,724 5,513,724 
Debt Service 279 279 

5,513,724 279 5,514,003 

Cununitted to: 
Salary Stabilization 8,541 ,186 8,541,186 

Assigned to: 
Communications projects and equipment 4,140,727 4,140,727 
Computer eqllipment Z.63l,752 2,631,752 
Other Capita 1 Projects 6,452,921 6,452,,921 
Corrections 456,560 456,560 
Contingencies (emergencies) 7,000,000 7,000,000 
Subsequent year's ellpendJtures 2,547,750 2,547.750 
Other law enforcement purposes 3,289,610 26 2.227,919 5,511,555 

12,837,360 10,593,674 5,316,231 28,747.265 

Unassigned 34,895,036 34,895,036 

Total Fund Balance s 56,273,582 s 16,107,398 $ 5,316,510 $ 77,697,490 
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Included in the various categories of fund balances are encumbrances that remained open at year end. In the 
General Fund, the assigned fund balance for Other law enforcement purposes is made up of open encumbrances 
totaling $2,231,231. 

10. Interfund Transactions 

Interfund Reccivables/Payables 
Interfuod lnterfund 

Fund Receivable Payable 

General Fund $ 982,183 $ 14,364 

Major Funds 
Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund 563,944 

563,944 

Other Governmental Funds 
Commissary Sales Special Revenue Fund 58,505 
Region l Communications 0 & M Special Revenue Fund 95,009 
Crime Lab Fees Special Revenue Fund 14,364 
Multijurisdictional Task Force 2,433 
LLEBG and JAG Grants Special Revenue Fund 120,797 

72,869 218,239 

Total Governmental Funds 1,055,052 796,547 

Internal Service Funds 
Group Health and Life Insurance 200 000 

200,000 

Agency Funds 
Inmate Deposits 58,505 

58,505 

Total All Funds $ 1,055,052 $ 1,055,052 
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Amounts due to the General Fund from the various Agency Funds are included in accounts receivable of the 
General Fund and in amounts due to taxing bodies and others in the Agency Funds in the Fund Financial 
Statements. The amounts included sales tax receivables, ad valorem taxes receivable, fines, commissions, 
interest, eta. These amounts (including the $58,505 shown above an interfund payable in the Agency Funds) 
netted to $5,489,800 and are eliminated in tbe conversion to the government-wide financial statements - See Note 
D.4. 

Interfund Transfers 

A Summary ofinterfund transfers by fund type for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Fund 

General Fund 

Major Funds 

91 I Emergency Comnuuricatlons 

91 l Emergency Communications 

Federal Gr.mts Spl'Cial Revenue 

Communications Reserve Fund 

Buildings and improvement Fund 

Other Govemmental Funds 

Commissary Sales Special Revenue 

State & Local Grants 

State & Local Grants 

LED Sinking Debt Service 

Camputer Equipment Capital Project 

Total Governmental Funds 

Internal Service Funds 

Group lleal!h and Life Insurance 

Total All Funds 

T"ransfers !11 

911 Emergency Communications $ 3,522,946 

Commurucations Reserve Fund 

Buildings and Jmpi'Ovement Capital Fund 

Commissary Sales fund 181,750 

Federal Grants 

State and Local ~ts 

LED .Sinking Fund 

Computer Equipment Capital Project 

Auto Loss and General Liability Internal Svc 

Group Health and Life Internal Svc 
3,704,696 

State and Local Grants 

General FI.Uld 

Geoetal Fund 99,243 

General fi.Uld 1,000,000 

General fund 1.863,450 
2 ,962,693 

Generalliwui 

General Fund 1.965 

9 I 1 Emergency Communications 40.000 

General Fund 1, 581,700 

General Fund 500,000 
2,123,665 

8,791.054 

2,000,000 
2,000,000 

s 10,791,054 

-8~ -

Transfer Out 
$ 

1,000,000 

1,863,450 

99,243 

1,965 

1,581 ,700 

500,000 

2,000,000 
7,046,358 

40,000 

3,522,946 

3,562,946 

181,750 

181,750 

10,791,054 

s 10,79!,054 



JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTED-DETAD...ED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

The principal purpose of each transfer is as follows: 

l) The General Fund transferred $1,000,000 to the Communications Reserve Capital Fund to set aside funds to 
help pay for the acquisition of the new APEX 6000 radios, 

2) The General Fund transferred $1 ,863,450 to the Buildings and Improvements Capital Fund to provide 
additional funds for the new First District Station Project, 

3) The General Fund transferred funds to the various grant funds in the amounts of$99,243 and $1,965, as 
"cash-matches" required under the grant agreements, 

4) $1,581,700 was transferred from the General Fund to the LED Sinking Fund to provide funds to pay the 
principal and interest due on long-term debt, 

5) $500,000 was transferred from the General Fund to the Computer Equipment Fund to cover future purchases, 
6) $2,000,000 was transferred from the General Fund to the Group Health and Life Insurance Internal Service 

Fund as a one-time cash infusion into this fund to cover unanticipated losses, 
7) The 911 Emergency Communications Special Revenue Fund transferred $40,000 to the State and Local 

Grants fund to pay for some crime stat database upgrades (as called for by an agreement with the District), 
8) The 911 Communications Special Revenue Fund transferred $3,522,946 to the Sheriff's General Fund to 

reimbarse it for 911 Call-Taker and Dispatchers salaries (as called for by an agreement with the District), and 
to reimburse the Sheriff for costs incurred on providing a computer support staff to tbe District, and 

9) The Commissary Sales Special Revenue Fund transferred $181 ,750 to the General Fund (which was its 
budgetary surplus for the year). 

On a budgetary basis, 1he General Fund received a transfer in from the Salary Stabilization Special Revenue Fund 
of $3,1 00,000; however, this transfer is not shmvn for GAAP pUJposes due to the consolidation of the Salary 
Stabilization Fund into the General Fund. 

Interfund Elimination 

On the Government-wide Financial Statements, all of the above noted interfund activity is eliminated including 
those balances due from the Fiduciary (Agency) funds. This is because the Fiduciary funds are not presented as 
part of the Government-wide Financial Statements. The amount due from the Agency funds is netted against 
receivables (See Note D.4). 

I 1. Taxes and Commissions 

Ad Valorem Tax 

In lieu of a commission on ad valorem taxes collected by the Sheriff as Ex-Officio Tax Collector, the Sheriff 
levies an ad valorem ta.x on real property within the Parish. The levy is generally made as of November 15 of 
each year. The tax is then due and becomes an enforceable lien on the property, on the first day of the month 
following the filing of the tax roll by the Parish Assessor with the Louisiana Tax Co1ll1D.i.ssion (usually December 
1). The tax is delinquent 30 days after its due date. 

Ad valorem taxes are levied based on property values detennined by the Jefferson Parish Assessor' s Office (a 
separate entity). All land and residential improvements are assessed at 10 percent of its fair market value, and 
other property at 15 percent of its fair market value. A homestead exemption is in effect which essentially makes 
the ftrst $7,500 of assessed value exempt from taxes. 

-82 -



JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOillSIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTED -DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNl)S (CONTINUED) 

The number of mills levied on the 2016 and 2015 tax rolls was 8.28. This is the maximum amount allowed under 
prevailing statutes. Each year, the Parish Assessor assesses the value of property throughout the Parish. Once the 
property is reassessed, the taxing agencies issue their tax levy up to the amount authorized. For 2017, ad valorem 
tax collections totaled $29,514,25 5, which included current tax collections of $29,246,328 and back taxes (taxes 
from prior years) of $267,927. These amounts are recognized as revenue in the Sherifrs General Fund. 

Payments in Lieu of Taxes and Tax Abatements 

As of June 30, 2017, the Sheriff provided tax abatements primarily through one program- the Payment in Lieu of 
Tax (PILOT) program. ln addition, the State of Louisiana offers a number of programs that provide tax 
abatements within the Parish that the Sheriff operates in, including the Restoration Tax Abatement (RTA) 
Program, the Industrial Tax Exemption Program (ITEP), and the Enterprise Zone (EZ) Program. Details of each 
program follow. 

• The Sheriff enters into ad valorem (property) tax abatement agreements with local businesses through the 
Parish's economic development arm - the Jefferson Parish Economic Development and Port District 
(JEDCO). JEDCO is authorized under LRS 34:2021 et seq, as weU as LRS 39:991 to 1001, inclusive, and 
other constitutional and statutory authority to acquire, own. lease, rent, repair, renovate, iinprove, finance, sell 
and dispose of facilities that are determined by JEDCO to be instrumental to the removal of blight, the 
redevelopment of distressed areas, or to promote economic development through the creation of jobs, or to 
enhance the tax base ofJefferson Parish through the construction, renovation, or rehabilitation of 
improvements, other than for public utility facilities. JEDCO utilizes a Payment in Lieu of Ta.x (PILOT) 
progr am, which includes a sale-leaseback agreement on targeted facilities whereby JEDCO, a political 
subdivision exempt from property taxes, takes title to the property and leases the property back to the 
business. Rent or lease payments are then made to the local governments in lieu of ad valorem (property) 
ta."<es on the property. The amounts of the payments under the agreements are negotiated between JEDCO 
and the business and can result in partial or total tax abatements. The payments are then made over an 
agreed-upon number of years (typically anywhere from 3 to 20 years). JEDCO typically sets dollar 
investment thresholds, as well as job creation or tetention goals within the agreement. Failure to comply with 
these thresholds can affect the amount of tax abatement on a go forward basis. 

There are currently three (3) active PILOT programs in the Parish. Payments received or due at June 30, 
2017 under these PTLOT agreements amounted to $1,226,096 and were allocated to the following agencies: 

Taxing Agency 
Jefferson Parish 
Jefferson Parish School Board 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office 
Jefferson Parish Coroner 
East Jefferson Levee District 
West Jefferson Levee District 

2016 
PILOT 

Pnymenu 
s 822,591 

246,115 

R8,949 
16,222 
7,139 

45,080 
S I ,226,096 
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• The Restoration Tax Abatement (RTA} program is an economic development incentive created for use by 

municipalities and local governments to encourage the expansion, restoration, improvement, and development 
of existing commercial and residential properties in Downtown Development Districts, Economic 

Development Districts, or Historic Districts. 
The Parish has several eligible districts on both the east and west banks of the river. The program is 

authorized under LRS 47;4311-4319 and is administered by the Louisiana Department of Economic 
Development (LED). Abatements are obtained through application by the property owner, subject to 

approval by the Governor, the Louisiana Board of Commerce and Industry, and the local governing authority 
(i.e., the Sheriff), which includes proof that the property is in a targeted district and that the improvements 

have been made. The program allows the owner the right for five (5) years, to pay ad valorem taxes based on 
the assessed valuation of the property for the year prior to the commencement of the project. Thus, the RT A 

abatement is equal to I 00 percent of the additional ad valorem (property) tax resulting from the increase in 

assessed value as a result of the improvements. The contract may be eligible for renewal, subject to the same 
conditions, for an additional five (S) years, if approved. 

Under this program, the amount of the improvements (i.e., the ''contract value") is not included in the tax 

assessment until the abatement period has ended and the property is assessed with the improvements taken 
into account Because the Parish Assessor does not reassess the value of the property until the abatement 
period has expired, it is not possible to calculate the true amount of taxes abated in any one year. The 

amounts shown are the estimated maximum amount of taxes that would be abated if the full contract value as 

adjusted for depreciation were added to the assessed value (which would hardly ever be the case). The actual 
amount of taxes abated can be substantially less than what is noted. There was 1 new abatement contract 
awarded in 2016 and at yearend, there are 14 active RTA abatement contracts in the Parish. 

• The Industrial Tax Exemption Program (ITEP) is a full, 100 percent exemption from local ad valorem 
(property) taxes as authorized in the Louisiana Co.nstitution of 1974, Article VTI, Part 2, Section 2 l (F), as 

amended by the Governor's Executive Order No. JBE 2016-26. Participating companies are eligible to 
receive an initial five (5) year exemption, plus the opportunity for a five (5) year renewal, for a total often 

(1 0) years of full exemption from local property taxes. The program is available only to manufacturers. 
Manufacturing businesses are defined as those with a North American Industry Classification System 

(NAICS) code of31 , 32, or 33. General categories include food manufacturers and manufacturers of durable 
and non-durable goods. The types of specific businesses eligible to receive ITEP exemptions are varied, 

including fertilizer and pesticide manufacturers, petrochemical manufacturers, industrial equipment and 
machinery manufacturers, and even breweries. Up until now, Louisiana has bad no job creation or capital 

investment thresholds required for eligibility. The exemption applies to all improvements to land, buildings, 
machinery, equipment, and any other property tbat is part of the manufacturing process. Maintenance capital 
(i.e., property replacements and refurbishments) is also eligible for the exemption. The land on which the 

manufacturing establishment is located is not eligible for the exemption. An advance notification of intent to 

apply for the tax exemption is filed with the Louisiana Office of Economic Development (LED) Offic·e of 
Business Development. The LED then presents the application to the Louisiana Board of Commerce and 
Industry for review and approval. The applicant files an annual report with the Parish Assessor listing the 

exempted property so that it may be separately listed on the tax rolls. 
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While the lTEP program is still available and being used, the recent Governor's Executive Order bas placed 
several limitations and new criteria on the ITEP program until the statute could be revisited. There were 6 
new ITEP contracts awarded in 2016 and at year end, there are 189 active ITEP abatements in the Parish. 

• The Enterprise Zone (EZ) program is a jobs program that gives tax. incentives to a business hiring from 

certain specified targeted groups of individuals. The program is authorized under LRS 51:1787. Fifty (SO) 
percent of the net new jobs created must be filled with individuals meeting one of the program's four 

certification requirements. The business does not need to be located in an Enterprise Zone, but merely 
creating additional jobs. Minimum qualifications require the business to create at least five (S) jobs within 2 
years or to increase its nationwide workforce by 10 percent within one year, whichever is less. EZ incentives 
include income tax and corporate franchise tax credits at tbe state level, as well as partial sales/use tax rebates 

or refundable investment income tax credits on state and local sales taxes charged for construction materials, 
machinery and equipment during the state4 project period. EZ incentives are in addition to other state­

sponsored incentives, such as the ITEP or RT A program incentives. During 2016 and through year end, there 
were -0- companies claiming EZ refunds on local sales taxes from the Parish. 

The amount of tax abatements granted during 2017 (which includes the 2016 property tax rolJ) under each 
program is as follows: 

Total Sberitrs 
Type Amount of Share of 

So~trce(fax Abatement Program of Tax. Taxes Abated Abated Taxes 

Parish/Local Abatements 

Payment in Lieu of Tax (PILOT) program AJ Valorc;:rn $ 216,495 $ 17,541 
State Level Abatements 

Restoration Tax Abatement(RTA) porgram Ad Valorem 1,513,121 $ 116,184 

Industrial Tax Exemption Program (ITEP) Ad Valorem 12,515,784 $ 914,305 
Enterprise Zone {EZ) program Sales Tax $ 

Sales Tax 

The total sales tax levied and collected in Jefferson Parish during the fiscal year ended June 30,2017 was 8 * 
percent. Of this 8 r.; percent, 4 percent is levied by the State, 1 Yz percent is levied by tbe Jefferson Parish Public 
School System (a separate entity), 3 percent is levied by the Parish of Jefferson (a separate entity), and Y. percent 
is levied by the Sheriff(via the Law Enforcement District). Of the 3 percent levied by the Parish, 1/z of one 
percent is dedicated to the Jefferson Parish Public School System and l/8 of one percent is dedicated to the Sheriff 
to finance the operations of the Law Enforcement District. In January 2001, based on a parish-wide election, the 
expiration date of the 1/8-cent tax was extended from 20ll to 2022. In April 2012, based on a parish-wide 
election, the !4 cent Law Enforcement District sales tax was extended indefinitely (i.e., converted to a permanent 
tax). 
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As the Ex-Officio Tax Collector, the Sheriff collected and distributed sales taxes, licenses, and penn its as follows: 
Sa les 

Tas / Dl.s Crlbuted To T a x Rate Co lleetlo ns C o missions Amount Paid 

Jeff erson Paris b P ublic Scbo o I System Ta 2 .qoo "lo 
J <>fferson Parish P ublie Seho ol System s !89.195,664 s (16,430.793) s 172,764,871 

189, 195,664 (16,430,793) 172,764,871 

Jeffersoo Parish Drainage M&O Tax 11 • .167% 
Jefferson Parisb Finance o ... partment 15,154,414 (1,523,393) 13 ,63 .1,021 
City of Kcnnor 
CityofOre!na 578,282 (S8,899) 519,38"3 

Cilyof Haraban 
Cily o fWestwego 
Town o(Oraod Isle 33,607 (3,135) 30j172 

Town o flean Lafitte 
15,766,303 (1,585,427) 14,180,876 

Jefferson 1'a ru h Drainage/Sewerage T a• (1.~ 33% 
J effersoo Parish Finance Department 24,513,744 (2,470,560) 22,043,(84 
CityofKenner 5,091,755 (514,996) 4,576,759 

CityofOretna 1,156,563 (U7,801) 1,(}38,762 

CityofHaru.han 231,086 (17,047) 2JA,039 

CityofHaru.han · Bond 80,329 (8,835) 71,494 

CityofWest\vego 340.577 (3 1,593) 308,984 

Town o f Orand Isle 67,214 (6,271) 60,943 

Town of I ean LafiHe 51,33A (3.746) 41,588 
31,$32,602 (3,170,849) 28,.361,753 

J e ((~ rs on P a ris b G e u era I T a x 0.500% 
Jeffeno n 1' aris b Finance Department 35,885,560 (3 ,608,487) J2,277,073 
CityofKenner 7,367,434 (742,776) 6 ,624,658 
C ityofGretna 1.705,664 ~173.49 1) ~532,173 

Cilyofthrahan 467,128 (38,825) 428,303 
City o PWe~ \we go 509,841 (47,277) 462,564 

Town o f Graod 1-; le 92,278 (8,466) 83.812 
Town o fJ e an U.fitte 77,002 (5,619) 71,.383 

46,104,907 (4,624 ,941) 41.479,966 

Jefferson Pa<i•b LswEuforc~meot Tal< O. lZ.S % 
J efferson Parish Finance Dep·ortment 14,776 (913) 13 ,863 
City ofKenner 1.652,986 (164,917) 1,488,069 

Cityo{Orctna 369,691 (37 ,133) 332,558 
City o f Rara.han w,396 (9,113) 102,283 
City o f Westwego 96,298 (8,39l) 87,907 
Town of Orand L~ lc 20,539 (\,840) 18,699 

TownofJean Lafitte 
1 efferson P arish Sheriffs Office 7.557,852 7,557.852 

9,1123,538 (222,307) 9,601.23 1 

Jefferson Pa r l5bP IIbll c:. 'Works T•u 0.5(10% 
J cffenon P aris h Fil)<tnoe Depanment 35,8"85,560 (3,608,487) 32,2 77 ,073 

CityofKe nnet 7.367,433 (742,776} 6,624,657 

CityofGretna 1.705,662 (173,489} 1.5l2,173 
City oHiarahan 467.128 (38,825} 428,30.3 

CityofWestwego 509.841 (47 .2 77} 462.564 
T<i wn o £Grand 1s lc 92,278 (8,466) 83.812 
Towo ofJean.Lafitte 77,002 (5,619) 71.383 

46,104,904 (4 ,624,939) 41,479,965 
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Sa les 
Tax/DIHributed T o To x~ate Co !lee tlo u Co miss i() n s 

J .. ffen oo Parisb Sewerage Capital Tax 0.875% 
J etters on P atisb Finance Department 53,008,382 (5,232,815) 
CityofKenner 11,570,923 (~154,426) 

CityofGretna 2,587,832 (259,929) 
CityofHarahan 779,778 (63,799) 
CityofWestwego 674,092 (5"8,739) 
To,~nofGrnndlsle 143,776 (12,869) 
Town ofJ ean Lafitte 

68,764,783 (6,782,577) 

Law Enforceme n t D istrict Tax 0.250% 
Gil)' o fKenner 3.305,980 
City o fGretna 739,381 
City o fHa raban 222.794 
City o fWes twego 192,597 
Town of Grand l'sle 41,080 
Town ofJean lafitte: 29,556 
Jefferson Parish S herifl'~< Office 15,JIS,698 

19,647,086 

New O r leans Airport Tax 
CilyofKenner 1,148,658 (109,!22) 
CityofNewOrleans 1,148,659 (109,122) 
NcwOrlc11m. Aviation Board 1,148,659 (109, 122) 

3,445,976 (327,366) 

Oc.: u pa n~y!To urbm 

Jefferson P nrisb Finance Oepartm em 4,16 ~814 (457,80!) 
Cltyofl<enocr 414 ,443 (45,589) 
Cityo f Gretna 115,307 (12,685) 
CityofHarahon 
City of Westwego ~649 (181) 

TownofGrsnd Isle 26,278 (2,891) 
4,719,491 (519,143) 

O ccu p a tio oat Lkenses and P e rm its 
Jefferson Parish Finance Oepanment 12,657,904 (1.898,690) 
Cityoff(enoer 54,272 (8 ,141) 
CicyofWestwego 3,649 (548) 
Town of Jean utilte 32.,828 {4,924) 
Jefferson P arisb She rill's Office 4,668 

!2,753,32 1 (.1,9 12;303) 

Au t o R e n ta l T a>< 
Jefferson Paril<h Finance Department 268,789 
City o f}(en net 268,788 
C ityofWosrwego 268,788 

806,365 

Costa an d Fees 
Jcffi: rsoo P arish Sheriffs Office 7,664 

7,664 
448,672,6Q4 (40;200,650) 

Com m ls5ioos 
Jefferson Parish Sherifl's Office 40;200,650 

To t a l 'faxes aod Lic e nses Dis tribu t ed 4 .750% s 448,672,604 s 
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Amou n t Paid 

47,775~67 

10,416,497 
2,.327 ,903 

715.979 
615,353 
130,907 

61.982,206 

3,305.980 
739,381 

222,794 
192,597 
4.1,080 
29,556 

15,115,698 
19,647,086 

1,039,536 
1,039,537 
l,039.S3? 
3,ll8,6l0 

3,704,013 
368,854 
102,622 

1,468 
23,386 

4,200,343 

10,759;214 
46,131 

3 ,101 
27,904 

4,668 
lO 841.018 

268,789 
268,788 
268,788 
806,.365 

7,664 
7 ,664 

408 ,47.1,954 

40,200,650 

s 448,672,604 
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NOTE D- DET All. ED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Sales 
TaJ</Di$tributed To Tax Rate Collections Co miss lo ns 

In tore s t 
J efTerson Parish l' ublic School System 105,750 
Jeffer&on Parish Pinunce Department 97,811 
City o fl<cnner 21,286 

Cityofi<Dnncr- Bond 
CityofGrema 4,988 
Cityof Harnhan 1,335 
CityofWestwego ~442 

TownofGrand ISle 288 
Town ofJ eanlafltte 148 
City o fNew 0IIeans 6S4 
New Orleans Aviation Board 654 
Jefferson Parish Sheritl's Office 38,126 

272,482 

To to I Dis tribtulo n. s 448,945,086 s 

RHap by Ta1iog Entity (Witb Interest} Co lleetlo ns Co mil 5 iu ns 
I effcrsoo Paris b Public Scltoo I System 189,l0~414 .$ (16,430,793) 
Jefterson Parish Finance Department 181,648.754 ( 18,80 1,146) 
City o fK.enocr 23,529,091 l~997,191) 

C ityofK.enncr- Bond 14 ,734,867 (1,485,552) 
Cityof Greme 8.963,370 (833,427) 
City o .rtlaraban 2,360,974 (176,444) 
City o f"Wes twego 2-,598,774 (194,006) 
Town ofGrand Iile 517,338 (43,939) 
Town ofJ ean tafute 267.870 (19,908) 
City o fNew Orleans 1,149,313 (109,122) 
NewOrleaas Aviation Board 1,149,313 (109,122) 
J effers Oll P11ris h S heriR's Office 22,724,008 40,200,650 

s 448,945,086 s 

Amount Paid 

105,750 
97,811 
21,286 

4 ,9a8 
1,335 
1,442 
288 
148 

654 
654 

38,126 
272,482 

$ 448,945,086 

Amount Paid 
172,1t70,621 

162,84 7.608 
21,531,900 
13,249,315 
8,129,943 
2,184,530 
2,404,768 

473.399 
247,961 
1,040, 191 
1,040,191 

62.924,658 
s 448,945,086 

Per the schedule above, the Sheriff received a total of$22,724,008 in taxes, licenses, permits and costs during 
2017. After adju.c;ting for aocruals, the amount recognized in the General Fund as sales tax revenue in 2017 was 
$22,873,663 . 

Commissions 

As Ex-Officio Tax Collector of the Parish of Jefferson, the Sheriff is responsible for the collection and distribution 
of ad valorem taxes, sales and use taxes, parish occupational licenses, state revenue sharing funds, sportsmen 
licenses, flnes, costs and forfeitures imposed by the district courts. On all collections (other than ad valorem 
taxes), the Sheriff receives a "commission" ranging from 9 Y2 to 15 percent of the ammmt collected. This funding 
mechanism was designed to provide a steady funding stream to the Sheriff so that the major taxing agencies in the 
Parish (the Parish, the School System, and the Sherifi) would not be competing against each other for tax dollars. 
Per th8 schedule above, the Sheriff received $40,200,650 in commissions during 2017. After adjusting for 
accruals, the amount recognized in the General Fund as commission revenue in 2017 was $40,562,981. 
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12. State Revenue Sharinll 

As the Ex-Officio Tax Collector, State Revenue Sharing funds provided by Article 7, § 26 of the State 
Constitution totaling S8,289,422 were received during tl1e year and distnbuted by the Tax Collector Agency w1d 
as follows: 

Agency Amount 

State: 
Treasurer (East Jefferson Levee District) $ 451,963 

Jefferson Parish: 
Coroner 103,327 

Council 3,886,168 
Public School System 1,896,084 

Sheriff 1,293,783 

Other: 
West Jefferson Levee District 381,972 

Various State Pension Plans 276,125 

$ 8,289,422 

It should be noted that 4 percent across-the-board reduction that was mandated to all state revenue sharing 
recipients during 2016 did not recur in 2017 (thus, this year was fully funded). 

13 , Service Charges and Fees 

911 Fees 

In accordance withLRS 33:9126, the Parish levies an emergency telephone service charge on the citizens of the 
Parish. These service charges are collected by the respective telephone service provider and remitted to the Parish 
either monthly or quarterly. The rates currently in effect are as follows: 

Type of Service 

Wireline Business (Commercial Rate) 
Wireline Residential 
Wireless Customers 
VOIP Cus1omers 

Rate 

$ 2.07 
0.66 
1.26 
1.00 

Current year revenues for these 911 fees totaled $7,366,237. This is the net of$7,253,870 in remittances from the 
Parish, a reversal of prior year receivables of$(1,831,459), and an accrual of current year receivables of 
$1,943,826 (see Note D.4). The receivables result from some of the 911 service providers remitting on a quarterly 
or annual basis, rather than monthly. 
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NOTED - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

14. Expenditures of the Sheriff's Office Paid b \ the Parish Council 

The Jefferson Parish Council (a separate entity) provides the Sheriff with a certain amount of office space at no 
cost. Also, the operations of the 911 Emergency Communications District are co-located in the 911/Emergency 
Operations Center (911/EOC) with the Parish' s Departments of Homeland Security and Telecommunications. 
The building is held in the name of the Parish. When the District was under the control of the Parish, the District 
paid for a substantial portion of the cost of the new 911/EOC Center, as well as an annex to the Parish's Parking 
Garage. In addition. the Parish holds title to the old facility. 

The Sheriff is negotiating with the Parish administration on the amount of operating and maintenance costs the 
911 District should be held accountable for. It is the Sheriff's opinion, that in lieu of the amounts paid by the 91 1 
District for the new 911/EOC Building and the related Parish Government Parking Garage Annex, the 9 I 1 District 
should not pay any operating or maintenance costs on the new facilities. To date, the Sheriff's 9 I 1 Fond bas paid 
$-0· on these types of costs. 

ln addition, the Parish is required by State statutes to pay a certain amount of the Sheriff's operating expenses 
(primarily office utility costs). During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the Parish paid $207,492 of operating 
expenditures on behalf of the Sheriff. These expenditures ate recorded on the books of the Sheriff and the 
reimbursement is shown as revenue in the General Fund. 

NOTE E -CONTINGENCIES 

1. Risk Management 

The Statement of Net Position includes a liability for claims and judgments payable of$7,924, 192. This amount 
relates to the self-insurance activities ofthe Sheriff's Auto Loss and General Liability Program and its Group 
Health and Life program. A breakdown of this liability and a description of each program follows. 

Claims and judgments payable 

Less: amount jncluded in accounts 
payable 

Total Claims and Judgements Payable 

Auto Loss 
and General 

Liability 
Group Health 

and Life Total 

$ 7,154,151 $ 770,041 $ 7,924,192 

$ 7,154,151 $ 770,041 $ 7,924,192 
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NOTE E- CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

Auto Loss and General Liability 

The Sheriff is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; thefl of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees and to the public; and natural disasters. To protect against these risks, the 
Sheriff participates in the Louisiana Sheriff's Risk Management 'Program (a public entity risk pool). Under this 
program. general/professional liability claims are covered by insurance at the rate of$100,000 per claim; with an 
aggregate stop-loss of $500,000 to $750,000 (depending on the loss year). Excess liability coverage is in effect 
for losses reported up until August 31, 1990. No excess coverage is available for losses reported after that date, 
thus, once the aggregate is met, the Sheriff is completely self-insured on general and professional liability cases. 

For auto cla.ims, the Sheriff is self-insured for its claims reported during the year up to the "stop-loss" amount. 
Prior to January 1, 2004, the stop-loss amouo1 was $1,000,000 per accident. After January 1, 2004, the stop-loss 
was raised to $1,750,000 per accident. Excess liability coverage for claims over the stop-loss amount up to 
$4,000,000 ($3,000,000 prior to January l, 2004) is provided for through a commercial insurance carrier. No 
claims have exceeded either the $1 ,000,000 or $1,750,000 stop-loss amount for the past three years. 

The costs of servicing the auto loss claims and makin~ claim payments are accounted for in the Auto Loss and 
General Liability Internal Service Fund. The General Fund provides an "operating subsidy'' to the fund to finance 
the claims expense. This subsidy is treated as an "inter-fund service" and, accordingly, is shown as an 
expenditure of the General Fund and revenue of the internal service fund. The amount of the subsidy is calculated 
with consideration given to recent trends in actual claims experience of the Sheriff and, beginning in 1996, a 
provision for catastrophic losses. 

At June 30,2017, the Auto Loss and General Liability Internal Service Fund bad a net position of$1,498,965, 
aft.er accruing an estimated $7,154,151 in claims and judgments payable ($6,289,225 for auto loss and $864,926 
for professional liability). This includes liabilities for claims incurred but not reported of$2,429,454 for auto 
claims and $799,239 for professional liability claims. These liabilities are based on the requirements of GASB 
Codification Section C50-Claims and Judgments, which requires a liability for claims be recorded in information 
prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicated that it is probable and the loss can be reasonably 
estimated. 

Loss development factors are used by management to estimate the ultimate liabilities, however, because actual 
claims liabilities depend o.n such complex factors as inflation, changes .in legal doctrines, and damage awards, the 
process used in computing claims liability does not necessarily result in exact amounts. Claims liabilities are re­
evaluated periodically to take into consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims and other 
economic and social factors. 

Claims against the Sherifftotaled approximately $2,349,021 during the current fiscal year. Of the current and 
prior year claims, the Sbeliff estimates it bas $7,154, I 51 left to pay. The fund has assets of $8,654,821 at June 30, 
2017 available to pay these claims. Changes in the balances of claims and judgments payable during the past 
three fiscal years is as follows: 
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Fiscal Year July 1, Estimates Claim Payments June 30, 

2014-15 $ 8,045,329 $ 4,503,776 $ (4,315,384) $ 8,233,721 

2015-16 8,233,721 3,389,301 {4,140,617) 7,482,405 

2016-17 7,482,405 2,349,021 (2,677,275) 7,154,151 

Group Health and Life Insurance 

The Sheriff provides health, accident and life insurance to its employees. Under this program, which is 
administered by a service agent. the Sheriff is self-insured for its claims reported during the year up to the "stop­
Joss'' amount of $250,000 per person. Contributions into the fund are made by the participating employees and 
are matched by the Sheriff based on the employee's classification. These ioterfund "premiums" are treated as an 
" inter-fund service" and are shown on the fund financial statements as an expenditure to the General Fund and 
revenue to the Internal Service Fund. Excess liability for claims over the stop-loss is provided for through a 
commercial insurance carrier. 

For the 2016 claim loss year, three claims exceeded the $250,000 stop-loss amount; however, one claimant was 
"lasered" by the excess carrier at $450,000. Payments on the two claims that topped the $2501000 threshold 
totaled $712,864, which was $212,864 in excess of coverage. The claims paid to date on the lasered employee 
totaled $400,245; therefore, the stop-loss has not yet been breached. Any amounts over the stop-loss amount will 
be reimbursed through our excess coverage. For the first six months of the 2017 claim loss year, only two claims 
are on the large claim notification list and neither have topped the $250,000 threshold as of June 30, 2017. At 
June 30, 2017, a liability of$770,041 has been accrued, which represents the amount of claims reported to the 
service agent but not yet paid and the amount of the claims incurred but not reported. The fund has assets of 
$43,711 at June 30, 2017 available to pay these claims. 

Changes in the balances of claims and judgments payable during the paid three fiscal years is as follows: 

Current Year 
Claims and 

Claims Payable Changes in Claims Payable 
Fiscal Year July 1, Estimates Claim Payments June30, 

2014-15 $ l ,036,790 $ 14,477,423 $ (14,034,413) $ 1,479,800 

2015-16 1,479,800 13,526,218 (13,764,884} 1,241,134 

2016-17 1,241 ) 134 15.231,977 ( 15,703,070) 770,041 
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2. Litigation 

The Sheriff is named as a defendant in a number oflawsuits arising principally from claims related to automobile 
accidents, negligence, and discrimination. As discussed in Note E. I above, the Sheriff is priman1y self-insured 
with respect to claims of these types. The Sheriff's insurance department and it attorneys have reviewed these 
claims and lawsuits in order to evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the Sheriff and to arrive at an 
estimate, if possible, of the amount or range of potential loss to the Sheriff 

As a result of such review, loss contingencies, which could be reasonably estimated, have been categorized as 
t•probable'', "reasonably possible", and "remote", as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Codification Section C50- Claims and Judgments. Loss contingencies amounting to $7,154,151 categorized as 
''probable" have been accrued in the Auto Loss and General Liability Internal Service Fund (see Note E.l above). 

3. Federal Assistance 

The Sheriff participates in certain federal financial assistance programs. The programs have been audited in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act and OMB's Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Part 200). Audits of prior years have not resulted in any 
disallowance of costs; however, the grantor agency may provide for further examinations. Based on past 
experience, the Sheriff believes that further examinations would not result in any material disallowed costs. 

Hurricane Katrina (1603-DR-LA) 

The Sheriff incurred various emergency expenses (primarily on overtime and emergency supplies) related to 
Hurricane Katrina. [n addition, several buildings and facilities owned by the Sheriff received storm damage. 
Most of these costs are e]jgible for reimbursement through the Federal Emergency Management Agency's 
(FEMA) Public Disaster Assistance program. To date, claims totaling $10,255,089 have been filed with FEMA 
and "obligated". For the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 17, $-0- was received, bringing the total receipts to date to 
$10,466,948, which includes administrative fees of$86,276, leaving approved obligations of$10,380,672. At 
year end, there are several projects where money is due to the Sheriff and others that might indicate a refund to 
FEMA is due for previous over-payments. The net result is a negative receivable balance of ($125,958). This 
figure is netted against the other FEMA receivables recorded on the Statement ofNet Position at June 30, 2017. 
Current year revenues recognized on this disaster totaled $(493) as these potential refunds (d~obligations) are 
recognized. All of the work on these projects has been completed and the Sheriff is now working with the 
Governor's Office of Homeland Secwity (GOHSEP) and PEMA to close these project worksheets out. Upon 
closeout, the total amount of claims may ultimately be more or less than the amount noted due to various 
uncertainties (scope ofloss, construction costs, etc.). 

Hurricanes Gustav (1792-DR~LA) and Ike (1796-DR-LA) 

On August 29,2008, Hurricane Gustav struck just west of the New Orleans Metropolitan Area. Due to the 
severity of the storm, the New Orleans Metropolitan Area, including Jefferson Parish. was evacuated. While the 
widespread wind and flood damage that was experienced during Hurricane Katrina did not occur, there was minor 
to moderate damage in parts of the northern part of the Parish. The southern-most part of the Parish, including the 
community of Grand Isle, experienced severe damage. The Sheriff's facilities were spared any significant 
damage. 
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The Sheriff's Office provided emergency services before, during and after the Hurricane. Most of these costs are 
eligible for reimbursement through the Federal Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA) Public Disaster 
Assistance program. To date, claims totaling $5,952,120 have been ftled with FEMA. Because costs related to 
this disaster are being reimbursed at a 90% rate, on1y $5,356,908 was recorded as a receivable. The difference of 
$595,212 is considered a local match and was funded by the Sheriff. For the fiscal year ended June 30,2017,$-0-
was received, bringing the total receipts on this event to $5,075,925. The balance of$280~83 is recorded as a 
receivable in the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2017. All work on these the projects have been completed 
as of the date of this report; however, the Sheriff is still working with the Governor's Office of Homeland Security 
(GOHSEP) and FEMA to close these project worksheets out and to collect the outstanding balance. Upon 
closeout, the total amount of claims may ultimately be more or less than the amount noted due to various 
uncertainties (scope ofloss, construction costs, etc.). 

On September 11, 2008, Hurricane Ike passed just south of the coast of Louisiana and struck the State ofTexas. 
While the area was spared a direct hit, the southern parts of the Parish, including the communities of Grand Isle, 
Lafitte, Batataria, and Crown Point suffered significant damage from storm and tidal surges. 
Again, the Sheriff's facilities were spared any significant damage. 

The Sheriff's office again provided emergency services before, during and after the Hurricane. Special task forces 
were deployed in the worst affected areas. Most of these costs are eligible for reimbursement through the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA) Public Disaster Assistance program. To date, claims totaling 
$598,913 have been filed with FEMA. Because some of the costs related to this disaster are being reimbursed at 
less than a 100% rate, $596,342 was authorized and $593,667 was recorded as a receivable. The difference of 
$2,675 is considered a local match and must be funded by the Sheriff. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, 
$-0- was received, bringing the total receipts on this event to $593,667. The work on these projects has been 
completed and all of the eligible amounts due under this event have been paid; however, the Sheriff is still 
working with the Governor's Office of Homeland Security (GOHSEP) and FEMA to close these project 
worksheets out. Upon closeout, the total amount of claims may ultimately be more or less than the amount noted 
due to various uncertainties (scope ofloss, construction costs, etc.). 

Tropical Storm Lee (4041-DR-LA) 

On September 1, 2011, Tropical Storm Lee passed just south of the coast of Louisiana. While the area was spared 
a direct hlt, the southern parts of the Parish, including the communi, ties of Grand Isle, Lafitte, Barataria, and 
Crown Point suffered significant damage from storm and tidal surges. Again, tbe Sheriffs facilities were spared 
any significant damage. 

The Sheriff's office again provided emergency services before, during and after the storm. Most of these costs are 
considered eligible for reimbursement through the Federal Emergency Management Agency' s {FEMA) Public 
Disaster Assistance program. To date, claims totaling $134,016 have been filed withFEMA. Because the costs 
related to this disaster are being reimbursed at a 75 percent rate, only $100,512 was recorded as a receivable. The 
difference of$31,504 is considered a local match and must be funded by the Sheriff: For the fiScal year ended 
June 30, 2017, $-0- was received, bringing the total receipts on th.is event to $100,512. The work on these 
projects has been completed .and all of the eligible amounts due under this event have been paid; however, the 
Sheriff is still working with the Governor's Office of Homeland Security (GOHSEP) and FEMA to close these 
project worksheets oul Upon closeout, the total amount of claims may ultimately be more or less than the amount 
noted due to various uncertainties (scope ofloss, construction costs, etc.). 
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Hurricane Isaac (4080-DR-LA) 

On September 1, 2012, Hurricane Isaac struck just west of the New Orleans Metropolitan Area. While the area 
was spared a direct hit, the southern parts of the Parish, including the communities of Grand Isle, Lafitte, 
Barataria, and Crown Point suffered significant water damage from stonn and tidal surges. The entire 
metropolitan area also lost electricity for nearly 10 days due to falling trees and downed lines. The Sheriff's 
facilities were spared any significant damage and no claims were made. 

The Sheriff's office provided emergency services before, during and aftet: the storm. Most of these costs are 
considered eligible for reimbursement through the Federal Emergency Management Agency' s (FEMA) Public 
Disaster Assistance program. To date, claims totaling $3,465,480 have been filed with FEMA and "obligated". 
$5,655 is scheduled to be de-obligated, leaving a claim total of$3,459,825. Because the costs related to this 
disaster are being reimbursed at a 75 percent rate, only $2,594,869 was recorded as a receivable. The difference 
of$864,956 is considered a local match and was funded by the Sheriff. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, 
$-0- was received, bringing the total receipts on this event to $2,594,869. All work on these the projects have 
been completed as of the date of this report; however, the Sheriff is still working with the Governor's Office of 
Homeland Security (GOHSEP) and FEMA to close these project worksheets out and to collect the outstanding 
balance. Upon closeout, the total amount of claims may ultimately be more or less than the amount noted due to 
various uncertainties (scope ofloss, construction costs, etc.). 

LA Severe Flooding- 2016- Baton Rouge/Livingston (4277-DR-LA) 

On August 11, 2016, the Baton Rouge and surrounding Parishes were inundated with torrential rainfall which 
caused severe flooding through the area. The Livingston Parish Sheriff put out a mutual aid request for law 
enforcement personnel to help patrol his parish in the wake of the disaster. The Louisiana State Police 
coordinated the mutual aid responses and assigned the Livingston area to the Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office. 
The JPSO provided manpower and high-water trucks to the area for approximately 14 days and incurred costs of 
$247,197 on this effort. The State Police reimbursed IPSO $247,197 utilizing FEMA funds received after the 
disaster was declared. All work on this project has been completed as of the date of this report and all amounts 
billed have been received. 

NOTE F- OTHER INFORMATION 

1. Pension Plan 

Employees of ihe Sheriff are provided with pensions through a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit 
plan administered by the Louisiana Sheriff's Pension and Relief Fund (LSPRF). LSPRF is a state-wide public 
retirement system for the benefit of sheriffs and their staffs, employees of the Louisiana Sheriff's Association, and 
employees of the fund, which is administered and controlled by a separate board of trustees. The System was 
established and provided for within.LSA-RS 11:2171 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes. 

The System issues a publicly avaiJable fmancial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the System_ That report may be obtained by writing to Sheriff's Pension & Relief 
Fund, 1225 Nicholson Drive, Baton Rouge, LA 70802, by calling (225) 319-0500, or emailing "info@Jsprf.com". 

- 95 -



JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
~VEY,LOliTS~A 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2017 

NOTE F- OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

General Inform~ttion about the Pension Plan 

Plan Description/Benefits Provided 

LSPRF administers a plan to provide retirement, disability, and survivor's benefits to eligible employees and their 
beneficiaries as defined in the plan. The age and years of creditable service (service) required in order for a 
member to receive retirement benefits are established by the plan and vary depending on the member's hire date, 
employer and job classification. 

For members who became eligible for membership on or before December 31 , 2011: Members with 12 years of 
creditable service may retire at age 55; members with 30 years of creditable service may retire regardless of age. 
The retirement allowance is equal to 3 l /3rd percent of the member's average final compensation multiplied by his 
years of creditable service, not to exceed (after reduction for optional payment form) 100% of average final 
compensation. Active, contributing members with at least 10 years of creditable service may retire at age 60. The 
accrued normal retirement benefit is reduced actuarially for each month or fraction thereof that retirement begins 
prior to the member' s earliest normal retirement date, assuming continuous service. 

For members who became eligible for membership on or after January 1, 2012: Members with 12 years of 
creditable service may rot ire at age 62; members with 20 years of service may tetite at age 60; members with 30 
years of creditable service may retire at age 55. The benefit accrual rate for such members with less than 30 years 
of service is 3 percent; for members with 30 or more years of service, the accrual rate is 3 l/3rd percent. The 
retirement allowance is equal to the benefit accrual rate times the member's average final compensation multiplied 
by his years of creditable service, not to exceed (after reduction for optional payment form) l 00% of his average 
fmal compensation. Members with 20 or more years of service may retire with a reduced retirement at age 50. 

For members whose first employment made 1hem eligible for membership in the system began on or before June 
30, 2006, final average compensation is based on the average monthly earnings during the highest 36 consecutive 
months or j oined months, if service was interrupted. The earnings to be considered for each 12 month period 
within the 36 month period shall not exceed 125% of tbe preceding 12 month period. 

For members whose frrst employment made them eligible for membership began after June 30, 2006 and before 
July 1, 2013, final average compensation is based on the average monthly earnings during the highest 60 
consecutive months or joined months, if service was interrupted. The earnings to be considered for each 12 month 
period within the 60 month period shall not exceed 125% of the preceding 12 month period. 

For members who became eligible on or after July 1, 2013, final average compensation is based on the average 
monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months, if service was interrupted. The 
earnings to be considered for each 12 month period within the 60 month period shall not exceed I 15% of the 
preceding 12 month period. 

Disability Benefits 

Eligibility requirements and benefit computatio.ns for disability benefits are provided for in the plan. A member is 
eligible to receive disability benefits if he has at least 10 years of creditable service when a non-service related 
disability occurs. There are no service requirements for a "service-related" disability. Disability benefits shall be 
the lesser of 1) a sum equal to the greatest of 45% of final average compensation or the member's accrued 
retirement benefit at the time of termination of employment due to disability, or 2) the retirement benefit which 
would be payable assuming continued service to the earliest normal retirement age. Members who become 
partially disabled received 75% of the amount payable for total disability. 
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Survivor benefits for death solely as a result of injuries received in the line of duty are provided by the Plan and 
are based on the following: For a spouse alone, a sum equal to 50% of the member's final average compensation 
with a minimum of $150 per month. If a spouse is entitled to benefits and bas a child or children 18 years of age 
(or over said age if physically or mentally incapacitated and dependent upon the member at the time of his death), 
an additional sum of 15% of the member's final compensation is paid to each child with total benefits paid to 
spouse and children not to exceed 100%. 

lf a member dies with no surviving spouse, surviving children under the age of 1 8 will receive monthly benefits of 
15% ofthe member's final average compensation up to a maximum of60% of final average compensation, if 
there are more than 4 children. If a member is eligible for normal retirement at the time of death, the surviving 
spouse receives an automatic option 2 benefit. The additional benefit payable to children shall be the same as 
those available for members who die in the line of duty. In lieu of receiving option 2 benefit..'!, the surviving 
spouse may receive a refund of the member's accumulated contributions. All benefits payable to surviving 
children shall be extended through age 22 if the child is a full-time student in good standing enrolled at a board 
approved or accredited school, college, or university. 

Back-Deferred Retirement Option Plan (Back-DROP) 

LSPRF does provide for deferred benefits for vested members who terminate before being eligible for retirement. 
Benefits become payable once the memb~ reaches the appropriate age for retirement. LSPRF provides a "Back­
Deferred Retirement Option Plan (Back-DROP). In lieu of receiving a service retirement allowance, any member 
of the fund who has more than sufficient fune for a regular service retirement may elect to receive a "Back­
DROP" benefit. Tbe Back-DROP benefit is based upon the period selected and the final average compensation 
prior to the selected period. The Back-DROP period is the lesser of 3 years or the service accrued between the 
time a member first becomes eligible for retirement and his actual date of retirement For those individuals with 
30 or more years, the Back-DROP period is the lesser of 4 years of service accrued between the time a member 
first becomes eligible for retirement and his actual date of retirement. 

At retirement, the member's maximum monthly retirement benefit is based upon his serviced, final average 
compensation, and plan provisions in effect on the last day of creditable service immediately prior to the 
commencement of the Back-DROP period. In addition to the monthly benefit at retirement, the member receives 
a lump-sum payment equal to the maximum monthly benefit as calculated above, multiplied by the number of 
months in fhe Back-DROP period. In addition, a member's Back-DROP account will be credited with employee 
contributions received by the fund during the Back-DROP period. Participants have the option to opt out of this 
program and take a distribution, if eligible, or to rollover the assets to another qualified plan. 

Cost of Uving Adjustments 

Cost of living provisions for the LSPRF allow the board of trustees to provide an annua.l cost of living increase of 
2.5% of the eligible retiree's original benefit if certain funding criteria are met. Members are eligible to receive a 
cost of living adjustment once they have attained the age of 60 and have been retired at least one year. Funding 
criteria for granting cost of living adjustments is dependent on the funded ratio. 

Contributions 

In accordance with State Statute LRS ll:103, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially 
determined each year. The actuarially detem1ined employer contribution rate for June 30, 2016 was 11.75%. For 
the year ended June 30,2016, the actual employer contribution rate was 13.75% with the additional2.00% be.ing 
used to replenish reserves in the Plan's Funding Deposit Account. 
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The actual rate differs from the actuarially required rate due to state statutes that require the contribution rate be 
calculated and set two years prior to the year effective and the Board's decision to use surplus employer 
contributions to reduce furure nonnal cost accrual rates. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the contractually required composite contribution rate was 13.25% of annual 
payrolL The employee' s rate is 10.25 per cent (effective July 1, 2013). For those employees hired before July 1, 
1999, the Sheriff contributes 7.00 percent of the employee' s 1 0.25 percent share and the employee contributes 
3.25 percent For those employees hired after July 1, 1999, the employee is responsible for the entire 10.25 
percent. 

Also in accordance with State Statutes~ the LSPRF received ad valorem taxes, insurance premium taxes, and state 
revenue sharing funds from various agencies. These additional sources of income are used as employer 
contributions and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities, but are not consider special 
funding situations. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue by the fund and are excluded from 
pension expense for the year. The Sheriff's proportionate share of these non-employer contributions totaled 
$3,877,983 during the measurement period. This amount is recognized in the government-wide financial 
Statements as On-Behalf Payments from Contributing Entities and is included in operating grants and 
contributions on the Statement of Activities. 

Employer and employee contributions to LSPRF for fiscal year 2017 were as follows: 

Per~cnt of 
Covered Covered 

Source Amouut Payroll Payroll 

Employee $ 7,345,976 $ 71 ,668,047 10.25% 
Employer 9,496,022 71,668,047 13.25% 

In addition to the required employer contributions shown above, the Sheriff paid $1,279, 178 of the employee's 
required contributions for those employees hired prior to July 1, )999, which equates to 7.0% of their 10.25% 
contribution rate. Thjs brings tbe Sheriff's total payment to the LSPRF during2017 to $10,775,200. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resonrces Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2017, the Sheriff reported a liability of$63,361,681 for its proportionate share of the LSPRF Net 
Pension Liability (NPL). The NPL for LSPRF was measured as of June 30,2016, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the NPL was determined based on an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Sheriff's proportion 
ofthe NPL was based on a projection of the Sheriff's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative 
to the projected contribution of all participating employers, actuarialty determined. As of June 30, 2016, the most 
recent measurement date, the Sheriffs proportion was 9.983099%, a decrease of (0.082622) from the June 30, 
2015 proportion. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Sheriff recognized a total pension expense of$11,002,117. This amount 
was made up of the following: 

Compoaeots ofPension Expense 

Sheriff's pension expenses per the LSPRF 
Sheriff's amortization of its change in proportionate share 
Sheriff's amortization of actual contributions over its 

proportionate share ofcontnbutions 
Employee conttibutions paid for by the Sheriff 
Total Pens ion Expense Recognized by Sheriff 

$ 

$ 

Amowat 

9,675,638 
8,245 

(8,996) 
1,327,230 

11,002,117 

At year end, the Sheriff reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Descrifl(ion 

a) Differences between expected and actual experience 
b) Changes in assumptions 
c) Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 
d) Changes in proportion to NPL 
e) Differences between the Sheriffs contnbutions and 

its proportionate share of contnbutions 
f) Sheriffs contnbutions subsequent to the June 30, 2016 

measurement date 

Deferrred 
Outflows 

of Resources 

$ 
5,176,453 

15,868,949 
456,398 

10,775,200 
$ 32,277,000 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources 

$ 6,645,939 

503,947 

30,375 

$ 7,180,261 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Sheriff's contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date {$10,775,200) will be recognized as a reduction of the LSPRF NPL in the year ended June 30, 
2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions, which net to $14,32 I ,539 will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Amount of 
Amortization 

(1 , 708,368) 
(1,708,368) 
(6,330,675) 
(4,439,363) 

(66,605) 
(68,160) 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability for LSPRF in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuariaJ assumptions, applied to aJI periods included in the measurements: 

Description 

Valuation Date 

Act uarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assump tions: 
Investment Rate of Return 
Discount Rate 
Projected Salary Increases 
Mortality Rates- Non-disabled 
Mortality Rates - Disabled 
Mortality Rates- Other 
Expected Remaining Sevice Lives 
Cost of Living Adjustments 

Assumptions/Methods 

June30, 2016 

Entry A@: Nonnal 

7.6%, net of investment expense 
1.5% 
5.5% (2.875% inflation and 2.625% merit) 
RP-2000 Employee Mortality Table (set back I year) 
RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table 
RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table (set back. 1 year) 
2017- 7yrs, 20J6- 6y rs, 2015- 6yrs 
The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the LSPRP and includes previously 
granted costs of living increases. The present values do not 
include provisions for potential future increases not yet authorized 
by the Board of Trustees, as they were deemed not to be 

substantively automatic. 

The long-term expected real rate of return was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate 
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected 
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic/geometric real rates of return for 
each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset C lass 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Equity Securities 
Bonds 
Alternative Investments 

Totals 

lnflation 
Expected Arithmetic Rate of Return 

Target Real Return 
Asset Arithmetic 

Allocation Basis 

0.00/0 0.00/0 
60.00,4. 6.4% 
25.0% 1.9% 
15.0% 4.3% 

100.00/o 
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Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 .5%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that employer contributions from participating employers will be made at actuarially 
determined rates approved by PRSAC, taking into consideration the recommendation of the LSPRF's actuary. 
Based on those assumptions, the LSPRF's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 

Sen&itivity of the Proportionate Sit are the NPL to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following presents the 
Sheriff's proportionate share of the NPL using the current discount rate of7.5%, as well as what the Sheriff's 
proportionate share of the NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point 
lower or one percentage higher than the current rate. 

Sheti.ff's Proportionate Share of the 

1.0% Decrease 
6.50% 

Net Pension Liability $ 107,499,550 

Current 
Discount Rate 

7.50% 

$ 63,361,681 

1.0% Increase 
8.50% 

$ 26,.931,105 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about LSPRF' s fiduciary net position is available in 
the separately issued 2016 financial report. This report can be found on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's 
website l www.Ua.l&.t.:,()V) in the database of reports under Control No. 72140763 - Louisiana Retirement Systems 
-Sheriffs. 

Payables to the Pension Plan. At June 30, 2017, the Sheriff had $-0- in payables to LSPRF for the June 201.7 
employee and employer legally required contributions. 

2 . Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (OPEB) 

Plan Description 

The Sheriff's medical and life benefits are provided through a self-insured single~employer plan and are made 
available to employees upon actual retirement. 

Although retirement eligibility occurs after 12 years of service, in practice employees historically have retired 
much later. After analysis of historical retirement age and service patters, the retirement assumption selected is as 
follows: the earliest age of 50 and 30 years of service; age 60 and 25 years of service; or, age 70 and I 0 years of 
service. Complete plan provisions are included in the official plan documents on file with the Sheriff's Insurance 
Division. There is no separate, audited GAAP-basis report issued for this OPEB plan. 
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The life insurance amounts in force while employees are active are reduced by 50 percent upon rerirement. The 
retiree pays 100 percent of the "cost" (i.e., the blended rate) for post-retirement life insurance, but it is only a 
partially unblended rate. Therefore, there is an implied subsidy by the employer. The blended rate, currently 
$.27/$1,000 per month, has been completely "unblended" using the mortality table assumption in the current 
valuation as a benchmark (described below under "Mortality Rate") to determine the actual costs borne by the 
employer. The employer actually pays an implicit subsidy for the post-retirement life insurance, which is more 
than the rate paid by the retiree. Based on historical experience, we have also asswned that 7,2 percent of retirees 
decline life insurance coverage. 

Contribution Rates 

Employees do not contribute to their post-employment benefits costs until they become retirees and begin 
receiving those benefits. The Plan provisions and contribution rates are contained in the official plan documents. 

Funding Policy 

Unti12008J the Sheriff recognized the cost of providing post-employment medical and life benefits (the Sheriff's 
portion of the retiree medical and life benefit premiums) as an expense when the benefit premiwns were due and 
thus financed the cost of the post-employment benefits on a ''pay-as-you-go'' bask Effective with the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2008, the Sheriff implemented Goverrunent Accounting Standards Board Codification Section 
P50, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other than Pensions 
(GASB Codification Section PSO). 

In 2017 and 2016, the Sheriff's portion of health care and life insurailce funding cost for retired employees totaled 
$1,752,379 and $1,622,573, respectively. The current funding policy is not to fund the ARC except to the extent 
of the current year's retiree funding costs. These amounts were applied toward the Net OPEB Benefit Obligation 
as shown in the table on the following page. 

Annual Required Contribution 

The Sheriff's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is an amount actuarially determined in accordance with 
GASB Codification Section PSO. The ARC is the sum of the Normal Cost plus the contribution to amortize the 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). A level dollar, open amortization period of 30 years (the 
maximum amortization period allowed by GASB Codification Section PSO) has been used for the post­
employment benefits. The actuariallycomputed ARC for 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

2017 2016 

Nonnal Cost $ 784,406 $ 754,237 

30 year UAL Amortization Amount 2,578,746 2,479,563 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 3,363,152 $ 3,233,800 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2017 

.NOTE F- OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation (Asset) 

The table below shows the Sheriff's Net Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation (AsseO for fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. This amount is included in Noncurrent Liabilities on the Statement of Net 
Position (See Note 0 .7). 

2017 2016 

Beginning Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) $ 19,436,954 $ 18,149,331 

Annual Required Contribution 3,363,152 3,233,800 

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) 717,478 725.!)74 

ARC Adjustment (1 ,124,041) (l ,049,578) 

OPEB Cost 3,016,589 2,910,196 

Conrributions 

Current Year Retiree Premiums (1 ,752,379) (1 ,622,573) 

Change in Net OPES Obligation (Asset) 1,264,210 I ,287,623 

Ending Net OPES Obligation (Asset) $ 20,701 ,164 $ 19,436,954 

The following table shows the Sheriff's annual post-employment benefits (PEB) cost, percentage of the cost 
contributed, and the net unfunded post-employment benefits (PEB) liability (asset) for 2017 and 2016: 

Percentage 
Fiscal of Annual NetOPEB 
Year Annual Cost Liability 

Ended OPEBCost Contributions Contributions (Asset) 

June 30, 2017 $ 3,016,589 1,752,379 58.09% s 20,701 ,164 

June 30, 2016 s 2,910,196 1,622,573 55.15% $ 19,436,954 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

In the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Sheriff made no contributions to its post-employment 
benefits plan. The plan is not funded, has no assets, and hence has a funded rntio of zero. Based on the July 1, 
2015 actuarial valuation, the most recent valuation, the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) at June 30, 2017 was 
$46,375,779, which is defined as that portion, as determined by a particular actuarial cost method (the Sheriff uses 
the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method), of the actuarial present value of post-employment plan benefits and 
expenses which is not provided by normal cost. 

-103 -



.JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO F1NANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTE F- OTHER INFORL"\IATION (CONTINUED) 

2017 2016 

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 46,375,779 $ 44,592,096 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 46,375,779 $ 44,592,096 

Funded Ratio 
(Acruarial Value of Plan Assets/A.AL) 0.0% 0.0% 

Covered Payroll $ 73,346,675 $ 69,467,285 

UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 63.23% 64.19% 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
events far into the future. The actuarial valuation for post-employment benefits includes estimates and 
assumptions regarding (I) turnover rate; (2) retirement rate; (3) health care costs trend rate; ( 4) mortality rate; (5) 
discount rate (investment return assumption); and (6) the period to which the costs apply (past, current, or future 
years of service by employees). Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results 
are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the tenns of the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the Sheriff and its employee plan members) at the time of the valuation and on the pattern 
of sharing costs between the Sheriff and its plan members to that point. The projection of benefits for financial 
reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations 
on the pattern of cost sharing between the Sheriff and plan members in the future. Consistent with the long-term 
perspective of actuarial calculations, the actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 

Actuarial Cost Method 

The ARC is detennined using the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method. The employer portion of the cost for retiree 
medical care in each future year is determined by projecting the current cost levels using the healtbcare cost trend 
tate and discounting th.i.s projected amount to the valuation using the other described pertinent actuarial 
assumptions, including the ,investment return assumption (discount rate), mortality, and turnover. 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 

Since the Sheriff has chosen not to fund the plan as of this date, there are no assets in the plan. It is anticipated 
that in future valuations, should funding take place, a smoothed market value consistent with Actuarial Standards 
Board ASOP 6, as provided in paragraph number 125 of GASB Codifications Section P50, will be used. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTE F - OTHER INFORMATION (C ONTINUED) 

Turnover Rate 

An age-related turnover scale based on actual experience as described by administrative staff has been used The 
rates, when applied to the active employee census, p roduce an annual turnover of approximately 12%. The rates 
for each age are below: 

Age Turnover 

18-25 20.0% 
26-40 14.0% 
4 1 -54 10.0% 

55+ 8.0% 

Post-employment Benefit Plan Elig~oility Requirements 

Based on past experience, it has been assumed that entitlement to benefits will commence upon the eligt'bility 
provisions described above under "Plan Description". Medical benefits are provided to employees upon 
retirement. Entitlement to benefits continues through Medicare to death. 

Invest Return Assumption (Discount Rate) 

GASB Codification Section P50 states that the investment return assumption should be the estimated long-term 
investment yield on the investments that are expended to be used to fmance the payment of benefits (that is, for a 
plan which is funded). Based on the assumption that the ARC will not be funded, a 4 percent annual investment 
return has been used in this valuation. 

Health Care Cost Trend Rate 

The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on a graded schedule beginning with 8 percent annually, 
down to an ultimate annual rate of 5 percent for teo years out and later. Zero trend has been assumed for valuing 
life insuranc-e. 

Mortality Rate 

The 1994 Group Armuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on a fixed blend of 50 percent of the 
unloaded male mortality rate and 50 pen:ent of the unloaded female mortality rates, was used. This is a ree<mUy 
published mortality table which bas been used in detenni.ni.ng the value of accrued benefits in defined benefit 
pension plans. Projected future mortality improvement has not been used since it is our opinion that this table 
contains sufficiently conservative margin for the population involved in this valuation. 

Method of Determining Value ofBenefits 

The "value of benefits" for the medical plan has been assumed to be the portion of the premium after retirement 
date expected to be paid by the Sheriff for each retiree and has been used as the basis for calculating the actuarial 
present value of OPEB benefits to be paid. The medical rates provided are "unblended" rates for active and 
retired employees as required by GASB Codification Section P50. Based on plan experience, it has been assumed 
that 46.5 percent of retiring employees would decline post-retirement medical benefits. It bas been further 
assumed that 90 percent of retirees would decline coverage upon Medicare eligibility (typically at age 65). 
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NOTE F- OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Inflation Rate 

Included in both the Investment Return Assumption and the Healtbcare Cost Trend a rate noted above is an 
implicit inflation rate of2.50 percent annually. 

Projected Salary Increases 

Thls assumption is not applicable since neither the benefit structure nor the valuation methodology involves 
salary. 

Post-retirement Benefit lncreases 

The plan benefit provisions in effect for retirees as of the valuation date have been used and it has been assumed 
for valuation purposes that there will not be any changes in the future. 

OPEB Cost and Contributions - Last Three Fiscal Years 

OPEB Costs and Contributions 

OPEB Cost 

Contnbutions 
Retiree Premiwns 

Total Contributions and Premiums 

Change in OPEB Obligation 

% ofContnbution to Cost 
%of Contribution Plus Pre.mium Lo Cost 

3. Deferred Compensation Plan 

$ 

$ 

2017 

3,016,589 

1,752,379 
1,752,379 

1,264,210 

0.00% 
58.09% 

2016 2015 

$ 2,910,196 $ 4,251,718 

1,622.573 1,609,775 
1,622,573 1,609,775 

s 1,287,623 $ 2,641,943 

0.00% 0.00% 
55.75% 37.86% 

The Sheriff offers his employees a deferred compensation plan (the "plan") created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code (lRC) Section 457. The plan, available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of their 
salary untt1 further years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, 
death, or an unforeseeable emergency. 

In 1996, the U.S. Congress passed the Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996, which requires that employer 
governments place all amounts deferred until IRC Section 457 into a trust for the exclusive benefit for participants 
and their beneficiaries. This change was allowed as early as January 1, 1997, but must have been done by January 
1, 1999. In prior years, these assets were solely the property of the Sheriff and subject to claims of the Sheriffs 
general creditors, and were reported in the Sheriff's financial statements. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 
1998, the Sheriff amended its plan to comply with the requirements of the Act. Thus, the Sheriff no longer has 
ownership of the plan assets and they are no longer reported in the Sheriffs fmancia1 statements. Investments are 
managed by the Plan's trustee (Nationwide Retirement). The choice of the investment option(s) are made by the 
Plan participants. 
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NOTE F- OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

4. New Accounting and Reporting Pronouncements 

As ofJune 30, 2017, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several statements not yet 
implemented by JPSO. The Statements, which might impact JPSO, are as follows: 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 (GASB 75) 
The GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
than Pensions, in JWle 2015. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial 
reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment 
benefits or OPEB). The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83 (GASB 83) 
The GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, in November 2016. The provisions of 
1his Statement are effective tor fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2018. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84 (GASB 84) 
The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, in January 2017. The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,2018. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 85 (GASB 85) 
The GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, in March 2017. The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2017. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 86 (GASB 86) 
The GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt E:xtinguishment Issues, in May 2017. The provisions of this 
Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87 {GASB 87) 
The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, in June 2017. The provisions of this Statement are effective for 
fiscal yeats beginning after December 15,2019. 

5. Subs~uent Events 

On August 31, 2017, Sheriff Newell Normand retired from office after serving as Sheriff since November 2007. 
As a rule oflaw, the Chief Deputy oftbe office is then named the interim Sheriff. As such, on September 1, 2017, 
Joseph P. Lopinto ill became the interim Sheriff of Jefferson Parish. A special election will be held on March 24, 
2018 to complete the remainder of Sheriff Normand's original term of office. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SBERJl"F'S OFFICE 

REQUlRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION-
SCHEDULE OF l'RE SHERIFF'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABU.lTY 
LOUI.SlANA SHERIFF'S PENSlON & RELIEF FOND 
L~ST 10 FISCAl. YEARS (S Amooa.b La tbousandt of dnllart) 

(1) (l) 

2017 2016 

Sheriff'S proponioo oftbe net pension liability (~t) 9.983099% 10.065721% 

Sheriff's proportionate sh.are of the net pension liability (asset) s 63,361,681 s 44,868,126 

Sheriffs covered-employee payroll (CEP) $ 68,179,704 s 66,737,336 

Sheriff'~ proportionate sbare of the net pension liability (asset) 
as n percentage of its covered-employee payrolt (CEP) 92.93% 67.23% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a perceotn_ge of the total 
peosion liability 82.10% 86.61% 

(1) (1) 

2015 2014 

9.950224% 9.989370% 

s 39,402,939 $ 66,948,202 

s 63,696,949 s 64,129,338 

61.86% 104.40% 

87.34% 17.22% 

{1) The lllliOUnts presented for each fiscal ~were determined as of the measurement date (i.e, the beginning of the fiscal year and/or the prior fiscal )e31'). 

(2) In formation not available due to recent implementation of tbis reporting slllndard. 

Sclledule I 

(2) (~l (2) (2.) (2) 
:ZOI:Z 2011 2010 2009 2008 



JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

REQt'lR l.:O SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION· 
SC1JEDULF. OF TirE SHERIFF'S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
LOUISlANA SHERIFF'S PENSION & RELIEF FUND 
LASI' 10 F ISCAL YEARS($ Amounts In thoasucb of dollan) 

Sheriff's oontrnctually required cootributioo (3) 

Contributions by Sberi!J'in n:larion to rbe contractually 
required contribution 

Contribution deficiency (cxa:ss) (4) s 

Sberifl's covcrcd·employee payroll (CBP) 

Contractually n:quired contributions u a perceotllge of 
covered-employee payroll (CEP) 

(1) 
1017 

9,496,024 

9,496.022 

2 

71,668,047 

13.25% 

(1} The amounts presented arc K!r the fiscal year coded June 30, XX for eacb year. 
(2) IDfonnation not available due 10 recent implemenlation of this reporting slandard. 

s 

( I) ( I) ( I) 
2016 2015 1.ti4 

9,314,721 9,509,966 s 8,847,635 

9,374,428 9,509,966 8,8411,519 

293 s 0 s (884! 

68,179,704 66,737,3.36 s 63,696,949 

13.75% 14.25% 13.89% 

(3) Information obtained from monthly pension reports tiled with the l.ouisiu.oa Sheriffs Pensicn and ReliefFund (tbe plan fiduciary). 
(4) Differences related to miscellaneous refunds or timing issues that occurred doriog tbc ycar, 

Schedule'% 

(1) (2) (2) (.l) (Z) 
2013 2011 2010 2009 2008 

s 8,497,140 

8,495,673 

s J,467 s s s s 

$ 64,129,338 

13.25% 



(THJS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY) 

-112-



COMBINING AND INDMDUAL FUND 
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 

- 113 -



COMBINING STATEMENTS 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS 

Special Revenue F'Qllds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
particular purposes. 

COMM1SSARY SALES FUND 
The Commissary Sales Fund provides a concession service for the inmates of the Parish prison. All profits are used 
for the benefit of the inmates and prison needs not available from other sources. 

USPS ASSET FORFEITURE FUND 
Under the U.S. Postal Service, the Sheriff participates in the "Equitable Sharing of Federally Forfeited property" 
program. Under this program, the Sheriff receives 90 percent of proceeds collected from contraband property seized 
during law enforcement activities. The proceeds are used exclusively for law enforcement activities. 

STATE ASSET FORFEITURE FUND 
Under State statute LSA RS 32:1550, fhe Sheriff receives 60 percent of the proceeds of contraband seized in 
cooperation with state/local law enforcement officials. The proceeds are used exclusively for law-enforcement 
activities. 

RUDE PROGRAM 
The RUDE Program (Round !,lp for Qrug J;nforcement) allows Jefl"erson Parish citizens to round up with water bills 
to the nearest whole dollar. The money collected by the Parish Water Department and remitted to the Sheriff to be 
spent on drug enforcement. 

WIDOWS AND ORPHANS 
The Widows and Orphans Fund receives contributions from the public. The proceeds are used to benefit widows 
and orphans of deputies killed in the Line of duty. 

RECREATION AND RELIEF FUND 
The Recreation and Relief Fund provides a vending machine service for the Sheriff's Office. Profits from this fund 
are used for the benefits of employees, such as equipment for athletic teams and awards for meritorious service. 

DEPUTY SCHOLARSHIP FUND 
The Deputy Scholarship Fund receives contributions from various civic groups and other non-profit organizations. 
Educational expenses of deputies are paid from this fund. 

REGION 1 COMMUNICATIONS 0 & M 
This fund wa..o;; set up to account for the operating and maintenance costs of the Region 1 Communications Network. 
This network includes the Parish of Jefferson. Orleans, Plaquemines, and St Bernard and provides inter-operable 
communications to the four parish region. The costs are reimbursed by the State of Louisiana and through various 
grants and appropriations. 

RESERVE DEPUTIES OPERATING FUND 
This fund was set up to account for funds generated by our reserve division from working details and other evems. 
The funds are restricted for their use in their operations. 

CRIME LAB FEES FUND 
This fund was set up to account for funds generated by our crime lab division from working cases outside of the 
Sheriff's Office. The funds are restricted for their use in the operations and maintenance of the crime lab. 
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COMBINING STATEMENTS 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

(CONTINUED) 

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 
Under the U.S. Departments of Justice and Treasury, the Sheriff participates in the "Equitable Sharing of Federally 
Forfeited property" program. Under this program, the Sheriff receives 90 percent of proceeds collected from 
contraband property seized during law enforcement activities. The proceeds are used exclusively for law 
enforcement activities. 

MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL TASK FORCE 
To account for the proceeds of various federal grants received through the Louisiana Commission on Law 
Enforcement to assist in .narcotics investigations. 

PROJECT INCOME 
To account for the project income generated by the Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force Grant. These funds can only be 
expended on costs similar to those allowable under the grant. 

STATE AND LOCAL GRANTS 
This fund accounts for various State and Local grants received by the Sheriff. Currently, there are grants for an 
upgrade to the Parish's 911 CAD System and our ARMMS System and two grants ftom the Parish Council for 
neighborhood watch cameras. 

LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
This fund accounts for the proceeds of the Local Law Enforcement Block Grant program received directly from the 
U .S. Department of Justice. The successor to the block grant program is the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistant Grant program (JAG). These grants are also accounted for in this fund. The funds are 
expended/distributed in accordance with the projects agreed to by the local law enforcement agencies. 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Debt Service Funds are used to account for all resources and expenditures in connection with the servicing of the 
Sheriff's general long-term debt 

LED SINKING FUND 
To account for the payment of principal and interest on the 2008 LED Limited Tax Revenue Bonds. 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

Capital Project Funds are used tt> account for all resources and expenditures in connection with the construction or 
acquisition of tnajor capital facilities, structures and equipment 

COMPUTEREQ~MffiNT 

To account for the accumulation of funds to purchase andlo:r upgrade lhe various PCs, laptops, and servers used by 
the Sheriff. 
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(3 
JEFFERSON l'AlUSH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, WUISIANA 

0 a NON-MAJOR GOVERmfENTAL FUNDS 
s· COMBIN~l'/C BALANCE SHEET 

5 AS Ol' JUNE 30,1017 

.e ASSETS 

SHARE OF R.ECEIV ABLES 
CASH AND POOLED ASSETS DUE FROM DUE FROM 

CASH GENERAL ACCOUNTS ACCRUED OTHER OTHER TOTAL 
FlJN1) l.QUIVALENTS POOL INVESTMENTS RECEIVABLE INTEREST OOVERNME!Wi FUNDS INVENTORY ASSETS 

SPilC'IAL REVENUE 
Commiss&~y Sales s 406,5(14 s s 58,505 s 465.009 
USPS Assot fo~tme 1,102 1,101 
StAle Asset Forfeiture 1,030,088 1,030,Q88 

RUDEP"'"""" 196.002 196,002 

Wido"" aM OrpbilllS 6.587 6.S87 
Rtcreatioa .. d Relief 59.472 $9.472 
Dcpuiy Scbulorsbip 15,711 15.771 
Region l Communic:otiom 0 & M 9~,009 9S,OQ.9 
RO!tfVt Dcpurieo Openuing Fll!ld 216,545 216,545 
Crime Lab fees 6H,009 30.869 1.4.364 699.242 
Drug Eo!On:cment FU!Id 74,138 74.1J8 
Mulli-1umdiotiootl Tulc fa= 9,%4 9.964 
l'rojec:tlncamo 39 .)9 

Stele ond l.ocal Grants 404 404 
I lc<:al Law Eoforcctnenl Bloclt Gnnll &.IAG Gnmts lnJ99 612 123,011 ... ... 
0) 'JOTAL SPECIAL REV~1JE 75,240 1,707,810 30,869 10S,S8S 7l,869 1,991,383 

DEBT SERVICE 
LED Sinlring llund 279 279 

TilT AL "DEBT SERVICE ~79 Z79 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
Computer Equipmc:ot 2.631.751 2.631.751 

TOTAL CA.l'lTAL PRO.TECTS 1,631,752 1,631,751 

C()MlUM'Jl TilTAL.S • 
NON-MAJOR OOVERNMENJ' AL FUNDS s 751519 s S!!!9.S7l s 301!69 ~ s 10~5 s 11,369 ' s 5~2.4~14 



JEII'fiERSON PAJUSU SIIERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISL~A 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBIJIIING BALANCE SREET 
ASOF JUNE30, l017 

UABILm E.'i AND l1UND BAI.A."'CES 

LIAJIJLI11ES FUND 1\ALANCES jDEFicrr§l TO'tAL 
DUI!TO l'Ol'AL LIABILJTIES 

ACCOUNtS OTIIER UNEARN!D TOO"AL NON- li'UlliD AND !lUND 
FUND PAYABLE FUNDS REVENUE LL\BILOlES SPENDABLE .R:ESIRICTED COMMI'ITIID ASSIGNED BALANCE BAl-ANCE 

SPECIAL REVENUE 
Con!miss1UY Sales $ 8,449 ~ s 1 ft.449 456.560 s 456,.560 46S,009 
~l'S Asset Farfdlure 1,1()2 1.101 1.102 
State Asset Forft:iwre 48$&6 ~8.886 981,202 981,2()2 1.030.088 
RUDEJ'n>gnm 196.002 196,002 19M02 
WidOI' .. aod 0rph11DS 6.587 6,587 6.587 
Recreatioo and Relief 59.472 S9.'l12 59.472 
Dcpu(y Scbolmblp 15,771 lS,771 15.771 
R<l!ion I CommYoicatioos 0 & M 95.009 9~,009 95.009 
ResOlVe Dcpyties Opot'lltiog fyod ~16.545 216.S4S 216,545 
Crime l.ob fee~ '2$,60() 2S,6110 673,642 673,642 699,242 
Ot\lg Eni'Dn:tmco\ Fuod 74,138 74,138 74.138 
Multi-Jurisdictional T8$K F<m:e 6.730 2.4:n 9.J6J 801 ·sot 9,964 
Project Income 39 39 39 
St&lt md Local GnlntJ 404 404 404 

1-" Local Law Enftnemeut Block Gnlnu & JAG Gnlnl• 120.797 1:20.797 2.21 4 2.214 123.0 11 
1-" 

"' TOT AI, SPI:CIAL REV&NUY. 89,665 7.18,239 l07,904 2,634,479 1,684,479 2.992.383 

D'EBT SERVICE 
U:'D Sioldog Fuod 279 279 :279 

TO'tAL DEBT SERVICE 279 Z79 279 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
Computer llqulpmeot 2.631 ,152 2.6Jt.752 2,631 ,752 

TO'tAL CAPITAl. PROJECTS 2.631 ,7Sl %,631,15:2 ~ 

COMB!Nl:» TOTALS · 
NON-l\t4JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 89.665 s ll8,239 .s s 307,904 s .s 1.79 s ~16.231 s 5:;116,5.10 s 51624.414 



I!TFEIUlON PAAISD S100UFII'S OI'FICE 
llARVEY.l.OinSIA.~A 

NON-MAJOR GOVER.-AL FllNDS 

() 
COMJIINII<G STATI'JIIZNT OP~J!XFEIII)ITli'I<P.S, 
AMI CRANGES IN FOND RAl.A." CfS 
FOR TlJl; YP.AR 'I<NDP.1111Jltt :!1,1117 0 ___ s_ngAJ. RF:\f!I!'IYL-

1::1 g. S~RKVESll&fllliDS~ALHUJ.!!'1!TS __ 

t: nm STATE WIDOWS RP.CRP.ATION UC10Sl RZSUV£ CRIME TOTAL 0 
0.. COMllllSSASlV AS51':T ASSET ROOF. AND ANP 1181\ITY CO~CATlONS 11£PUTI!S LAB 0'11:\'DSWTTR ._. S,\.l.tUi FQ!!!III1!:§, f'11\t111'11JRJ! PRO!ll!.lll!! __!UP'IIANS ll.l;U£1' 1<01~mr O.O.M OP£1tATlNG FP.J'.S A.'<NIJAL OUJ!!;£]5 _ 

IU!Vllli\JilS 

y,.... 
l"fopeftyW..ts 
s.tcot.UCI 

iDCct&~UI Jll,S2.6 311,82.6 
~Mces.lit:a..u.d.c:o~ m.t~ 21.950 1),)1) )91.7% 

· ··~·~ Fmc:r arw1 brutw"':f t40.n7 ~~.m 
lblcra& 10.159 u.su 1.006 69 6U 16S 1.110 6,20'1 JS.Ill 
Mlfttlac*" l.o32 I~ I I.QCXI .,~, 

TOTAL RI!VI!I!III!S m:m IS.CJ6S •o.m 69 ll${6 l'ii 826 15 .• 93- .!98,06] ---.. 16isu 

IOO'l>NDmJR&<; 

C\ltmll 
Pulllic:Sllf<l)' 

e:..c.u ... 
I:."MIJIII!S- l•.~ ...... 79 
FiAincc auct Adlsl5ailtna:i"" 11 1,1lti l)I.Jl6 
l'l«t 
RC\IeQ\I.C &-1\.~;~tbi 

()pcntialll 
Spcdal ()omdoo> 4.102 4.lOZ 
Tcc!mDJ S<n~ ... W.Oil lll.Oil 
bttmal. Mmic~ b-....... S..,.UI.._,..._ 1,41Q.1l6 1.410.126 -.. 

..... ~ ru.ocn ru.oo' 

..... N(>o ................ 

00 lru-:tto~WI 
l>ctoS<n;.. 
~ 
~lb'C:Ilt&lldtet~~!IIUU.f:COSIJ 

C>o>llloutf<y 
P•blic Sa&;u· 

Firlloott.liMAdr:llaisntivc 
Spodil ta\Utipeiou 
NMlOda-

10TALI!XI'!lNDI111RfS -<u.OO? IAin,ll!l llU l& cim -niiii2 ~:!•!.ill 

l!l«.'ESS Ull!FL1BNCV)OF IUlVI!NIJES 
OVI!RI!Xl'ENDITURES ! 16.310 1~5Sl61 • IQJ49 69 j l0l 4J • 16S lt 191 11UD!l l t4!1:01l 

Cffiii!R >1NA~'t;,;() OOURCES (USES) 

-'*"'" .............. (tli ,1l0) (lll,150) 

CapibJ leo"" 
Sole ot...,;w .-. 
hy.ncr.t ao rt"fa:lct•r Qa\.l'w ·~' 

TOtAL OmeR PINANCING 
SOUJ\CES CUSESl JUI:~?50~ IIIJJOt 

EXCESS Ul~Of IIE\IEMill!3 
OV1!R llXl'IOO>m:ntES AND OJlU!R 
SOURCIJS!Ul>'llS) J.C,61Q ($SS.161) IO.S<9 69 (IO,MJ) 16) l1,191 17MSI (Jl1.ll~) 

FUND BALAKCE 
flet1M.lolo!ye;tr 4.11,9(0 1,101 '-'16.96! IIS..<SJ U t' 70.313 IM06 19$JJ.I 503.>91 loli>U•I 

End of.- ~---.j-6~ IIOl f 9sl.oo1 196.!!2i s 6ft? ..L-}?z!li:. 15171 ~J,642 ~ 



lliln1!1tSOM PAIUSK SRIIStiJT'S omcr 
RAJtVl!Y. LOUI5~A 

NONo/IWOR GOVI!M'MP..NTAL ~'DS 
C0!\11\INTXG STATI'iMIIHT OFIIEVDMIS.IlXI'I:NDITIJIIES. 
A~'O OL\!<Gt>S IN f\llo'O IIALAJ'ICES 
FOil 'flll! VI!AR Ji.NDEDllll\'E Jt.l017 DEBT Ct\PITAL 

SnQAL~'DF. ~g l'R~ 
COMDINF.D 

6P«1AL a&\111HUJt >'t!NUS WI11101!!AHI<UAL 8UU<;&T8 ~orALS 
WCALt.\W TOTAL 

Mlll.t1- S'rATEANU BI<J'OR~ .-o>o'OS WITUOVT TOTAL HOHMAJOR 
DROG JfTRJSUICTI'ClNA&. PROJ!.CT UlCAL &LOCK llRAHTS ANNUAL srtcw. LIID COMl'UTIR GOVER."'MENT AL 

r.m'OI\Q!M!!l'IT T~.QI_ ll'tOOMK GRAll IS - _ A IAf< (lRANTS Blll>GJ<T$ J!!!VENUE SINl<ING~- ESI.umtEIO' TUNilS 

R.EVm.'UI!S 

Tut> ,._ ..... 
Sates~ .,_Cal 4l,fll l21.Tll 10,781 116.011 687,8)' 11117.354 

ScnimUarccs.. roa.-Md COICIDli~ 1.166,193 1,166.l9S 
tr~ lmd &,r1Cmn:<~ H,lll i<4.ll7 9\S.OCH 91S.OO• 

"'-' m 39 m 1.167 2,404 :11.!21 22j19 60.061 
M'f$C.tti~&IOIJI II ,23 11.621 

T()TAI. IliM!II1II!S 7-t9!0- J9 Jn,099 il-041 •SHl9 1-tttt~J ----~2~29 ~IAO-ll1 

EXI'I!!IDmmES 

c ....... 
t>.hlioS.fey 

e..on~ .. 
CMI,..ss._, l4A7? l"y41$' 
ftrwlac end Adt:Wristm1\'C ~0.01)1) 10.711 ~·~~ l6l.M7 362,607 
Fl ... 
~e\IC:I'Wc & Tualfeo 
a.-Jcm 

4,3~1 Spod>l~> •.JOl 
TocholooiS<nic.cs m,ou m.o~: 
....... IM>Do---s,...., .. __ 

.o,su o.m 1.4>),e4l l.<sJ.~S 

"""""" 49.1571 <9.611 -4~.6lt <9.611 

1-" C'.ant~t~~ jfj1DOJ ns.ooT 

1-" Noo~C'IIW 

1.0 lo~¢~~W 

"""-rt~oclpol 1.1'l11Jll11> 1.290,000 
~~Dptftnuc<:O$U 292.100 ~91,100 

c..pit:III')IIUay 
PvbiJcS•~ 

f"m111ce-.d A.dawWL"Iliw-
Spoci>lhn~ n.J,690 llJh~ Jll.6'l0 323.6?0 
N.,...b 1'1.060 liMO 271)40 17.11(o0 

'IOTAL 100'2Nllii'URilS 767)i Olll )53690 10761 49ol.724 J,ocii:iJ6 - 'TI'iffOO J:!!:J£!5 

l!l«.'ESS (DEPX;JENCY)OI' IUMJHUCS 
OVER EJa>llNDilU\UiS 1 I 781J, 39 ! 411 !91 ! I .ill t42.06lt 1190 2?J, 11,~,09~1 2Ul9 <t.I<9,!!9t 

OHII!It FD<A.'~CING SOURCES (USES) 
Tn<W'tnla ••• 96$ li,96S 41,96.1 1.~1 .700 500.000 1.11J,66S 
Ttam!Ert:O\lt Ct•1.7SO) (181.To!<ll 
CojiUJicues 
S:lleofupi!N tHCV 

\OTAL0111ER ~'INA.'iCINO 
SOURCES (USE5l <12!!l 41,965 pl97iS! 1381,700 SilO.!!!!! l'ji'i.915 

Urns5 (DF.FICJENCY) OP RfVI!HUES 
OVER l!lO'Elmii'URE.'! AND OTliER 
SOURCES (USES) fl,7,1) 39 37< 1.76'7 (100) (3JO.OSJ) (l9Sl m.n9 l!ll.016 

PID1D OALANCC 
:Bqlnhl-aorl'C'W 1$.919 1!00 :10 .. , 1?.696 J.-01~.531 .,. Z.t09.2l3- $.124.434 

~of)'Clc" I 74131 lUi !9 OIH ~~· 
s----

22~~ 2~,419 

_s ___ 
\ lt~\10 



.!EFFERSON PAK18lt SlfERlPF'S OFFICE 
HAJlVRY, LOIJISIANA 

NON-MA.JOll SPECIAL R£VENUE ft!NDS Wl:fRANNUAL BUDGETS 
COMillNINC S<.:ll&DUU: m· REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND 11ALANC'J!:S • BIJJ)G)!T AND ACTUAL (llliDGIT ARY BASIS) 
FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JlJN£ 30,2017 

TOTAL ·Al.LI<'UNCTIONS 
V AJUANCE WJTB 

BllDGE'fAli.Y FINAL BIJDCET 
ACTUAL TOGMP ACTOAt J'INAL POSITIVE ORIGINAL 

{GAAI'~l DIFFFB.ENCI!S CBIJDGETAli.Y BASIS) BIJDG£f ~GATIV£) BUDGET 

RJ<VEJWES 

Taxes 
Prupcnym•co s $ 
Salestlll(cs 

lnl<tgovcmmrolal 311,!26 J 11 ,S26 325,150 (13,324) 190,250 
Servioe c,h~es. fcts.11Dd romwissioD! 1,166,195 1,166,195 1,152_.500 13,69S 1,18.9,000 
Fioc:o ODd forfal.l\lrto 840,777 s4C!,m $00,000 40,777 SOI..SOO 
IJ>te=! 35.123 35,123 32.4.25 2.6?8 12,575 
M'"""'llaneous 11,623 II ,623 12,025 {402) 10,150 

TOTAL R.F.VENUES 2.365,544 2.365$<14 2222,100 ~1.444 2,1~,1}75 

JolXPENDITIJRES 

Current 
Public S4k1)o 

Sallllics 1DCl booofiu 2MOO 25,000 25,000 25,000 
Genotalopermiag<Xp<Dd.irun:s 505,762 505.762 526.150 20,388 432,500 
l>f•.tcriotls r.nd supplies 236,257 (4,428) 231,819 234.500 2.671 153,250 
Cost of goO<ls sold 441.287 43.029 4~4.316 4n,ooo (9.316) 430,000 
fuvcl 1.904 1,904 (1 ,904) 
Progf8lll., end activities z.m 2,158 5,000 2;1142 11.500 
MiscelliDI:<>us 4.030 4,030 s.ooo 970 20.000 
C.pital outlAy 1;297,354 90,417' 1,38?,831 1,302,000 (115,831) 630,000 

TOTAL EXPENDrruRES 2,513,752 129,078 2,642,830 2,572,650 QO,ISO) J,70S,250 

EXCESS (DI!I'ICIENCV) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (148,208) (129,078! ~277,286! 1250,S5Q! (l6,736) 395,825 

OTIIER Jl'INANCING SOURCES (USI!S) 
Tran.<fO!SiD 
Tnnllfmo"r (181.7501 (1 81,750) ( lil,750) (198.000) 
Caplull<ases 
Sole or copital-ls 

TO'J'AL OTHER f'INANCJNG 
SOURCES (USES) ~181 ,750) (181,750) (l$1.750) (198,000) 

f.X.C.ti~'S (Dl!.fJCIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND O'l'H'f:R 
SOliRCES (llSts) (329,958) (129,07$) f4S9,036) (432.300) (26,736) 197,825 

FUND BALANCE. 
B<Kiru>i•& or yea~ 2,936.841 212,013 3,148,854 3,148,854 3,142,419 

Eaaofyor s ~606,88l T 82935 s 2,689&18 2,716,554 -$--
e 6.7361 s 3~40~44 

(Continued) 
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JEJTERSON PARISI! SW!Rf'l'f"S OFPICE 
HARVEY, WUISIANA 

NON·.M4JOA SP£CIAL REVENUE F't>;IIDS WITH ANNUAL BIJJ)(lETS 
CO.-,fBll'ilNG SCIIEDULE OF RBVDI\IES, £XP£.,'DJ'Tt1Rl!S, AND CltA1'1C£S 
1N I'IJND BAl.AI'ICI!S • 8UDGB1 AND AL l i)AL(BlJDGl!TARY BASIS) 
FOR ntE YEAR 100>£1> JUNE 31,2017 

COMMlSSARY SAU!SSP£CJAI..It£V},.IJILft1ND 
V ARIANC1t WITH 

Bl:JDCETA.RY FINAL BI1DCET 
ACTUAL TOCMP ACfliAt. Fll'IAL POSITIVE ORJGJNAL 

tCAAPBASlS) DIFJERE.'iCES (BUI>CETARY II.A.SIS) BUDGET (NIXlATIVEt - B~_!!_ 

REVEN\JI:S 

r ..... 
i'ropertylo.>et s s s s s s 
Sllll::s tu:es 

lola'govmiOK'Uial 

Service duuga, fca, atKI co01miuioM 729,1}6 729.136 720,000 9,136 750,000 
Fmcs and forfeitura 
bltc:resl 10,1S9 10,JS9 9,000 1,159 3,750 
Misullanc:ous 1,082 2,087 2,750 (66R) 2,250 

TOTAL IUNliNVES 7~l.l77 741.377 731 750 9.627 156.000 

EXPENDITUlU\S 

Clareul 
Public Safa;y 

Comc.ttoas 
Saleria cd bcodiu 
Oaxnl opcn.tia& opcodilu ... 5,000 

Mol trials oad ·~ 65,193 (4,,28) 60.86S 65,000 4,135 65,000 
Ccol of sood& aold 441.287 43,029 "84,316 475,000 (9,316) 00,000 
r ... ., 
~ llld aaiWies 
Mi9cclloDoo\ll ~.030 4,030 5,000 970 zo,ooo 
Copilal oWly 14,397 14,)97 s,oou (q,)97) s.ooo 

TO'fAI. EXPEI\'DinJRJ!S S25007 31,601 563.608 sso:ooo !13,6082 m-;iiiO 

EXCESS (DJ! .. JOKNCV) OJ' REVENUES 
OVKR EXPENDITURES 216,370 (38,601~ 177,769 181,750 (3,911 231,000 

OTHI!It ~·JNANCING SOURCES (USES) 
1'rm<C"" In 
TI"'DS{(n OUI (181.7SO) (181.7SO) (181 ,750) (198.000) 
~lalle:ual 
Sale or capttal llltN 

TOTALOTIII!II MNANCINO 
SOURCES (USES) pX1 1750l {1811"0l !1K1,7S0l (198.000l 

£X CESS CDEFICJEJ'iCY) Of R.RVI!NI!l'..S 
OVER EXPBNUJTUJU:S AND OTifllR 
SOURCES (USES) 34,620 (38,601) (3.981) t3.911) 33,000 

FUND BALANCE 
~or)C81 421,940 47,05() 468,990 ~6&,990 A67.916 

Eudor~ s 456,5GO s 1449 s 465,009 4~990 s 13,911 ..!,._ 5001916 

(Continued) 
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JEFFERSON l'AJUSU StiJ!JU}'f'S OmCE 
HARVEY, WUISIANA 

NON-MAJOR Sl'I!CIAL REVF.NU& flJNDS WITH ANNUAL BL'DCE'TS 
COMBJNING SCHEDULE OF RSVENVES, EXP£NDITIJRES, AND Cllk'ICES 
IN FmD BA.LANCES • BUDCET AND ACTUAl , (BlJDCI!TARY BASIS) 
FOil TH£ VIIAR £.'11£0 JUNE 30. 101? 

Taxes 
Propc:rtyt«XU 
Salcstw:s 

tmagoV<I'IllllCidol 

So:Mc:e charles, toea, ood coWllllSIIons 
Fines and furfeilmcs 
w ...... 
Mis<>elllncous 

TOTAl.. REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 

Cutrenl 

Public Safety 
Spcclaii:Westi&Mions 

Salaries zxl benerJU 
Ga>enl opentiaa upenditwa 
Malo:nals and lllppllc:o 

Casl of aood> sold 
Tr.tvd 
~ IDd ll:tMtios 
~\lS 

Qpitololltlay 

TOTAL EXPl!NDIT\JRES 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 01' IUWI!NUES 
OVER IOO'.ENDITURES 

OTHER FVIANCINC SOURCES (USES) 
Tnmli:nia 
T1'lllllfcnout 
Capitallt&scs 
Saleofcapital~W~e~s 

TOTAI..OTHBk FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

JiXCESS (OEFICIENCV) 01' REVENUES 
OVER EXJ't:NDl'I'URES Ml> OnrER 
SOURCES (USES) 

FUND BAl.AJIIC.E 
BcgJonioa of~ 

Eod of year 

(Continued) 

ACTUAL 
lfAAP BASIS) 

1,101 

$ 

BIJDCETARY 
TOGMP 

DlJ'Ff:RBIIiCES 

USPS ASSET EOR1£JTUR£ SPECiAL REVENUE.=FUND~, 7':;;~=-;;;;=-:---------­
V AIUA.'iCE WITH 
FtNAL BUDGET 

ACTUAL FtNA.L POSillVE 
(BUDGETARY BASIS) BL11CET (NECAllVE)_ 

$ s s 

1,101 1,101 

_s_ llot s 1101 s 

- 122-

ORlcmAL 
BUDGET 

l,SOO 

l,SOO 

I S00 

1.000 
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JEl'YERSON l'AJUSB SBIRIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, WillSIAJ'iA 

NON-1\tAJOll SPECIAL RltVEI'<VE FUNDS WJrD ANNUAL BUDG£'l'S 
COMBINlNG SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANCES 
IN J1UND BALANCES· BliDG£'1' AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

srATE ASSET FORFEITURE SPECIAL IIEV£N\IE FUNIJ 
VARIANCE WITH. 

BUOGnARY FINAL BUDGET 
ACfOAL TOGAAJ' ACTUAL FINAL POSITIVE ORIGINAL 

(GAAP BAS£St DIFFERENCES (BtJ"l>GET ARY BASIS) BUDGET _ (NF-CATIVEI BUDGET 

REVENUES 

Taxes 
J'rop<:l1y Wt<$ $ 1 
Sales wes 

lnu:rgovommeotal 
Semee eb:q<~<, fees, aod commission• 
Piues Mud tcrfoirures 84.0,77? 8A0,777 .aoo.ooo 40,777 500,000 
lnr=t 13.588 13.588 13.000 58& 3..000 
Mis<dlanrous 

TOTAL REVENUES 854,36> 8~4,365 813,00Q 41,365 505,000 

EXPENDITURES 

Cllrrcot 
Public Safci)l 

Spcei'al JnvcstigatiOII$ 
Salaries and beoefils 
Gencnl opcntin& cxp<Dditures> 161,641 162.641 169,000 6,359 ~1.500 

Materia~ and supplies 54,057 54,057 ss.ooo 94J 
Cost of gooduold 
Tn!vel 
ProJlfllll$and t~~;riviliC$! 
Misctllanooo• 
Capital outlay 1,193, 428 (46,944) 1,146,484 1,(167.000 (79,484) 525,000 

'roT AL JiXJ>ENOfiUIU'S 1,410,126 (46,944) JJ63,182 1.291 ,000 (72,182) 556;500 

EXCESS ())£FlCIENCYl OF REVENUES 
OV£R EXP£NDn1.JRES (555,761) 46,944 (508.8171 (47S.OOO) Q0.817l (51;500) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Tnul&fmin 
Tmnsfmout 
Cllpitalleas<s 
Sale ofcapital.,.•et• 

JOTALOTIIERFINANCING 
SOURCES (USI!S) 

EXCESS (P.EFICIENC'V) O.F REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND 0'111ER 
SOURCES (OSt,S) {555.761) 46.944 (508,XJ7) (478,000) 00,817) (51,500) 

JroND BALo\NCE 
ll<:giotriog o?yt:4r 1,536,963 1,942 I.Sl8.905 1,.538.905 I ,5J9,68S 

Eadofycu s 981,202 s 48,886 $ 1,030,018 1,001.905 s IJO.BI7l 1,488,185 

(Continued) 
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JEFFEJtSON'PAJUSH SREJUPf'S OFYIO: 
HARV"El', WUISJANA 

NON..MAJOR SPECIAL R£VEJ\1J£ FUNDS Wm.J AA11.1JAL BUDCETS 
COMBtmNG SCBED\IU OF R.EV!N\1£$, t!.XP£."1DI'J\/RES,AA"D CBANG:E.S 
IN 1!1/ND BALANCES· BUDCET ANI> ACTUAL (JIUDGt:r ARY MSIS) 
FOR TilE YEAR END£DJ()ll.1tJO,ll17 

R!J"D£ PR_Q9R.4Jit SPEQ.U. JU:\I.ENUE FUND 
VAJUAJ•IC.E wrrB 

BUDGETARY FINAL BIJDGJ:r 
ACTUAL TO GAM ACTUAL FINAL POSmvE ORJGlNAL 

IGMfBASJSr DIJTKRENC£S CBUDGilTARY BASIS) BUDGET (N'ECATIVEJ ~ 

f<g\I£Nti'ES 

TIIJICS 

Prupctl)'..x'" s s s 1 
Slllestaxcs 

lntcrgovcmlucocal 
Service ebaracst fees, &Dd tOtntnlSston.s 

Fiott 1111d f'orlciturcs 
lnler<SI 2,ooa l,OOS 1,750 ~8 SllO 
MiJCCIIIWCOUS R,W 8,541 8,2.~0 291 R,SUO 

TO'I'AI. REVnNUE.'I ~ ,Q,S49 10,000 54.9 9:000 

EXI'ENDTriJR.ES 

C~~~m~r 

Public Sokly 
Specilll .la~gatioas 

Sllllries ond boneJiiS 
Ocoaalopcnliou CJI)>ejldiwres 
M•tcrial• ood rvpplies 
Coli o! goods sold 
Trawl 
p,_. aod ldlvili<Z 
~{)tcdiiii<OUS 

Qrpilll Olltlay 

TOTAL EXPJ!NI>ITIJRES 

&XCKSS (l)EFICr&.~CY) OF REVItN\JES 
OVVI KXFit~rmRES 10,549 10,.549 10.000 549 9.000 

OTIIE1t FINANCING SOURCES (IISES) 
Tr~n~leno ro 
Tnmfenroul 
lJopriAIInsct 
Sol< o(~tal....,.. 

TOTAL OTHER fl.'lANCINO 
SOURCES (USPS) 

EXCESS (DEFICLI:NCY) OF 'REV ENIIES 
OVER ElO'ENDJTURES AND OTllER 
SOURCES (US£S) 1 0~49 10,540 10.000 S49 9,000 

fUND BAL.ViCE 
8eploiA& o! ydll 185,453 185,453 185,453 185,711 

Ead ofya~r s 196,002 s _,_ ~ 19S14S3 s 549 s 194,712 

(Continued) 

. 124-



JEFFERSON PARJSR SBEJUFJ"S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOOI.S1ANA 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAJ. REV&'I'UE FliNDS WITH ANNU.U.BIIOGET~ 
COMJIINlNC SCRKDUU: OF REVENUES, EXPEPI'DITIJR.ES, AND CBANG£S 
11Y JIUIIID 11.\l.ANCES· BUDGET AND ACfUAL(BIIDCETARY BASIS) 
mR TilE YI!AR tiNDF.D JIJliiE 30, 2017 

Taxa 
PJOpcny lal<tS 
S4lcscues 

IDieraovemmCll141 
Sc:Mce tb...gc::a, ted, aod comml .. loa.> 
Fiot< and fc>rf'oitum 
Interest 
Miscellantou~ 

'I'OTAL R.llVEN\JES 

£XPENDITURES 

CUITCllt 
Public Safey 

CiviiiiOd Suppon 
Sol.uiuii>CI bcoe6ts 
GcDcrol opcratioa CApcadltuta 
Mat<rials IDd ~~~pplies 
Cotl of aooc1s told 
'!Dvcl 

~- lltiMtfc:s 
Miscclt..Doous 
Coptllloud.,-

£X CESS (DEFlC.IE.''iCY) OF 'A£Vl!NUES 
OVER F.lCPEl>'DIT1JR.ES 

orBER f'INAI\CINC SOIIRCES (t]S'ESI 
Tru~trmin 

Tnwfmout 
Copllllll.,..es 
S'lle of .:opl!Biasset• 

TOTAl. OTHER FINANCING 
SOl.IRCES (US Ell) 

EXCESS (DltFIC'.ttNCV) OF REV ENW:S 
OVER £XPEN1Jri'UJU!Sk'ID OTUER 
SOURCES (USJ;S) 

FUNI> IIAJJANCE 
Oejlinniox ofy-

&d of year 

(Continued) 

s 

ACTUAL 
lGAAI' llASIS) 

69 

69 

69 

69 

6,518 

6,587 

BIIDCET ARY 
TO GAM 

DIFFERENCES 
ACTUAL I'INAt. 

(Bt.'DGETA.RY 8AS1S) _!_IIDCJ;!__ 

$ 

69 

--- 69 

s 

69 

69 

6,518 

~87 
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2.5 
lS 

so 

so 

so 

6,518 

-$-- 6,s68 

POSITIVE 
jNEGA!Ml 

44 
(25) 

19 

19 

19 

----,9-

ORIGINAl. 
BUDGET 

2.5 

2$ 

6,5'23 

-s-- ---u:i8 



JEYFER.SON PAJUSH SH£RIFJI'S OfflCE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

NON-MAJOR SP£0AL R£Vtl'IUJt fUI\o1lS WI'Tll ANMJAt. BUDCETS 
COMBINJ.NG SCIUJlliU: Ol' REVE.."'UES. £:Uva>nvRES, AND CHANG£S 
J1'l nJND IIALANCES • BUI>G£T AND ACrtiAL (BUDCJ:TARY BASIS) 
FOR lli¥ V£AII SND£1> JIJNI< 341. 2017 

RECREATION Al\1> R£UEF SPECIAL R£YSNU£ I1VND 
V AJUANCJ: WITH 

BUDGETAJIY FINAL BUDGET 
ACTUAl. TOGAAI' Acn!AL "FINA L POSITIVI! ORIGINAL 

IGAAI' BASIS) DIH"ERENCES (BUDCETARY BA_SlSJ BUDGET (NECATJVEt .atJDC.Irr 

REVENUE.S 

Taxeo~ 
PropmyW<a s s i 
Sales....,. 

IDteraovemmc-ntiJ 
Sc:-rvi.., cbllJctl, foc:s, ow6 eowmiuio!l' 21.950 21,950 22.500 (SSO) 22.SOO 
Fioes •.od for!oi tut"" 
I'Dletc.st 680 68G soo 186 250 
MisccltanO<Ju~ 1,noo 1,000 1,000 

TOTAL REVENUES 23.636 23,636 24.000 t364! 22':7sO 

EXl'ENDITliR.ES 

Cllm:llt 
Publie Safety 

Civil aod Suppon 
s.Jorics ..,d ba>efics 
Gcocnl opcnu.ac c.<peJ>dlons 
~hltriaJIItld supphCI )4,419 )4~79 32.250 (1,229) 32,2~ 

Colt or aoocts oold 
Tnve1 
p.,.._. IAXI lldrvllies 2.500 2.$00 IS,OOO 
~tU-
Cop;lllloou_,. 

TOTAL EXPENOrnJRES 34,419 34,479 34.750 271 47.2.SO 

EXCESS (D£FJC!EI"CY) Of K.EY E'IItl'F.S 
OYJ\R EXl'ENDITURES (10.843) !10.84ll ~10,750) (93) !24,$00) 

OTDER FINANCING SOUIICF.S (USES) 
·rnmsfen in 
lnD•fersout 
Coptlal ltastfl 
Saleofe.piJaJ 051el5 

TOTAL011-U:;RF1NANCINO 
SOURCES (USES) 

t'.XCESS (I)HI'IClENCYJ OF REY.ENlJES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
SOURCES (USES) (10,843) (IO.MJ) (10,750) (93) (24,$00) 

FUND IIAL.V'CE 
llcjiuoioa or~.., 70,315 70JIS 70J IS 69,98l 

End ofyar 59.412 s s S9412 59,.565 s----193 
45.4.£. 

(Continued) 
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IEFJi'ER&ON PARISH SR£1UF'F'SOn1CE 
HARVEY. LOUJSIANA 

l'lOS.MAJOR SPECJAL R£Vt:Jio1/E fWIDS WrTH "-"~NUAL BIJDGKTS 
COMBINING SCW:llUU o•·AAv RMIES. F.XPt:NDrrtJJttS. Al\'D CHANGES 
IN FUND llAI..4NC&S • 81/llC£1' AND AcnJAL ()UDGET ARY BASIS) 
FOR THE YL\R END EO JUNE 30,1017 

REV£1"<1/ES 

Ta><cs 
l'roportytua 
Solcsl.uct 

buetaovcmmcntol 
SCTV!c:c ebargco, feu. ood OOUiwi,.;.,... 
l'locs and forleiruru 
In «:res! 
Miscellaooous 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXJ'£NDITIJR£S 

CUTJ'Oal 
PublicSalel)l 

Civillllil Soppo<~ 
Salona .t~~d beocfics 
Gtucral Ol)(tllbaJcxpe11dorura 
Mll<riala Cid IUI't'lics 
Ccotof~oola 
T~tw:l 

f'Tost'lms ll!d activities 
MisctUooCOUJ 
Copoul outlay 

Tor AI. EXPENI>mJllES 

EXCt:SS (DtFlC'IE..';CY) OF REV £NU£S 
OVER EXJ'EN'Dil'UJU!:S 

Ol'liER J'INANCINC SOI!RC£S (US.KSI 
Traasfmon 
TOIIISft:nuul 
Copir.lt-
SJ.IoofccpiloiiiiSC!$ 

TOTAL OTHhK FINANCIN\r 
SOURCES (USES) 

EXCESS (DEFJCI&NCY) OJI REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITI.IIU:S ANll orliJI.R 
SOURCES (USES) 

fUND BALANCE 
BtgiDDtag Of )'Oil 

bodoCyur 

(Continued) 

165 

16S 

165 

165 

IS,666 

-~-- JS,171 

BUDGET'ARV 
TOCMP 
D~ 

s 

DEPUTY SCS.OLARS811' SP.ECIALil£VFJrult ru~ND~~===:--------­
V ARIANCR wrJlJ 

AClllAI. 
(BUllGETARY BASIS) 
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165 

HiS 

16S 

16S 

15,666 

IS 171 

FINAL 
BUDC£1' 

ISO 

ISO 

ISO 

ISO 

IS,606 

FINAL BUDGET 
POSTTJVE 

(N'EGATTV!.) 

IS 

15 

IS 

IS 

..!,_ 15,756 -':.....---~15:.. s 

ORIGlNAL 
BUDGET 

50 

so 

so 

so 

IS,S96 

15,646-



IEI'FE.RS0:-1 PARISH SII£JUFf'SOmC£ 
BARV¥Y, LOUISlA.NA 

1'10.'1-MAJON SP£CIAJ. R.EV.ENUE t"IJI(DS WrTU A.>mUAL BUDCIITS 
CO~tBJl'oliXC SCID!DUU: Of' REVEMI!S, IJO'£ND1TURES, A.Pioll CRANGES 
IN Jlr.\1> BAJ.ANCES· BUDGET ANDACTUAL(BIJDG£TARYBASIS) 
mR TilE YEAR Ehll£0 JUNE3G.l011 

RllCION I COIIIllfliNlCA TIOSS 0 & M SPECIAL IU!VV11.1E FUND 

Tiles 
Prop<'llytaxCI 

Sales cues 
lutcrgovC11lllleolll 
Service ~batics, feu, and commi!.slons 
Flo .. and f'ormturcs 
Interest 
Mlsulllllleous 

TOT AI.. REV llNUES 

EXfRNDITIJR£5 

Oin'cot 
l'oblicS~IY 

Finlllce and Ado:unl~rive 
SaJ.ncs &Dd be:>cfil$ 
GeocRJ opc<'l~Uaa exp<oditum 
~fatmals aod wpplics 
Co<t of eaod5sold 
Tnvd 
l'lopams aod IC1ivillcs 
MiKeliiD<lOUJ 
c.pilll Ollllay 

TOTAL EXPENDrnlRES 

EXCESS (DUICIKJ'\CY) 011 REV£:\-u£5 
OVER EXPENDrr'URES 

OTHER li'INANCING SOURCES (IJSES) 

l'nmlfcn'" 
1'Bns,.,. out 
CI!Pillllcasa 
SaleofcapitAio.um 

TOTAL OTJmR fiNANCING 
SOURCES (t!SE.~) 

EXC£SS (ll&FlCillNCY) OF REVENUES 
OVUt I!:Xl'KNDrrtJR£8 A'NDOTm:R 
SOURCES (USES) 

1iUND BALANCE 
8ccinnioe of year 

(Continued) 

s 

ACTUAL 
(GAAP BASIS) 

311,826 

311,826 

111.826 

311,826 

81JDC£TARY 
TOGAAP 

Dll'FJ':RENCES 
ACTUAL 

CBUDCEfARVBASIS) 

)11,826 

311,826 

111.826 

31l,826 
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FINAL 
BUDGET 

315,150 

325 I SO 

325.150 

)25,150 

V AJUANCE WITH 
FINAL BtJDCET 

l'OSJTIVE 
(NEGATIVE! 

(13.}24) 

(13,324) 

1),324 

13,324 

OIUGINAL 
BUDGET 

390,2)0 

390,250 

390,250 

390,250 



.JI.f'J'ERSON l'ARISU SliEIUff'S OfflCf 
HARVEY, LOVISlAJ'IA 

NON-MAJOR SPECJAJ..IU:VllNUE FUNDS WJm A.Nli"'UAL IIUDCETS 
COMBII'IJNC SCBEDVU: Of R£VEI'/UES, OC1'£NDIIUR.E.S,A:."D CBA.'lGI!S 
IN l"'D<'D IIALAI'OCES • BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY JIASIS) 
fOR TW! YEAR fNDIJ) JUlio I: JO,l017 

R.ESER.VEDil'UTU:S OP.AA.AllNC SPECIAL REV~ .fUND 
V ARIANa WITH 

BUDGETARY FINAL BUDGET 
ACTUA.L TOGAAJ' ACTUAL FINAL POsrriVE ORIGINAL 

(CMl' BASIS• Dlf'FERBNCES (BUDGETARY BASlSl BOllCET ll'"ECA1'IVE) BUDGET 

REVV."'UES 

Ta.""' 
Prao<nY W<<A s 
Salrswes 

lntefJnvemmental 
Savioc: chatwcs, rces, and toEDmis.io"" 23.313 23JI3 25,000 (1,6871 31.SOO 
Finco aDd R>rl.eitur"' 
lbtm:>t 2,180 2,1KO 2,000 180 500 
MisceiiMeous 

TOT AI. R.EVEN\J'ES 25493 25,49J 21000 (1,507! 32,000 

EXPENDn~ 

CuJTtrll 
Public Saktv 

Special ()penh""" 
Saaria lllld b<l>efits 
~ opmtiaa ~pea.lifUl<l 7SO 
M.veruh IOild "'!'Ptiet 240 240 2,7SU ~10 3..SOO 
CAitl or eooduol4 
Tn1vel 1,904 1,904 (1.904) 

l'lo-aod och.;t,"' 2,1SS 2,153 2.500 3~2 2.SOO 
MistciL1u<O<It 
Capilaloollty 

TOTAL EXPENDnt.1tES 4.302 4,302 5.2SO 941 6,150 

EXCESS (DEnCI£Jio'CY) OF R£VEJ\11ES 
OVER EXPEI'\DT1'1J'RES 21 ~91 21,191 21,7SO (559) 25.250 

OTHER FJNANCrNC SOURCES (USES) 
Ttao!fers !o 
Transfers OUl 

CapitAl I<...., 

Sal.c or OllPilal "'""'' 

TOTAl. OTHEll FINANCINO 
SOURCES (US !lSI 

EXCESS (l)l:fJCD:NCV) o•· RlWEl'<'IJl!:S 
OVEllEXI'Itl\'DrrtlRES AND OTHER 
SOtrRC".ES (USES) 21,191 21,191 21,750 (559) 2S.lSO 

FUND BALANCE 
~io,t~orycar 195,354 195,354 195,354 195,034 

Endofyur s 216.545 s J 116S5 217.104 s i5S9! 220,#" 

(Continued) 

- 129-



JEFFERSON PARISH SII£IUF'f"S OFFICE 
IJARVt\', LOUISlAJ'IA 

!'ION-MAJOR SPI:CIAI.IU!VENlJ£ F11Nl>S WITO. M'NUAL Bl/DGJ:rS 
CO~iBINING SCJlEDUU: 01' Rl!VEJ\11£5, KXl'VWJTtJRES, ANI> CHANGIS 
IN f\1ND 11A.LANCRS- BUD<:£T ANI> ACTUAL (IIUDG!T ARY 81\SIS) 
FOR TBE YEAR £!\11£» JUNE 30,1011 

CRJME LAB f'E.£S SPfClAL REVI!Nt."E FUND 
V AIUANCE WITB 

JIIJDGJrr AAV FINAL BUDCIIT 
ACTUAL TOOMI' ACTUAL nNAL POSITJV£ ORIGINAL 

,GMP JlASISI DIF'fKIU\NCES (JI_!)11GETARY BASIS) BUDCJ:r (NEGATIVBI BliDCXT 

RBVENVES 

l'ua 
l'ropC<\)'I&l<CI ~ s 
Sales w.a 

IDtCJ~;<>vcnu.o.cutol 
~oMCC cboracs. (OC$, ODd COIJ)mi5510U 391,796 J91,796 385,000 6,796 l8S,OOO 
J'i~eo ood fotfdwrcs 
lolemt 6,267 6.267 6.000 167 2.SOO 
MiJc:cllllleous 

1'0'l'AL REV ENIJES 398,063 39S.OGJ 391.000 7,063 387.500 

!OO'&NI>ITORI!S 

Ourtttt 
Pul>IJcSofc:o;)• 

T..:bnic:al Servtu, 
Solariu and be>lo~ts 2S,OOO 2S,OOO 2S.000 2$.000 
Gcoml opcmiDJ cq>a~dllwn 31,29S 31.29.S 32,000 705 s.ooo 
MIJ<rioi•IIHI supphu 82,185 82.118 19.500 (2,688) 32.500 
Cast of toocls IOid 
'ln>d 
l'rosnm> ecd octi"'tia 
Mt..ollan..,.. 
c:.pil&loutll)' 89,529 137,421 226.950 230.000 l,OSO 100,000 

TOTAL IOO'El'DJ'I'\JR.ES 228.012 137.421 36S~33 "366300 1,067 182,500 

t:XCKSS (DEFIClENCV) OF REVEMJ1!S 
OVER I!Xl'~DTTURF.S 170.051 (ll7,411! 32630 z•.soo 8,!30 205.000 

OTHER FtNA. ... CING SOURCES (USES) 
TmlslCB\D 

Trusl'mOIII 
c.piwlcau 
Sole or e~piul oneu 

TOTAL OTH'I!R FINANCINO 
SOURCES (USES) 

EXCESS (DEii'ICIBNCY) Of/ REVI!NUF,.S 
OVER L"<PENI>mJRl!:SAND OTHER 
SOURCES (USES) P0.051 (137,421) 32,630 14,,00 8.130 205.000 

nJND JIALMCJt 
D<glMIDg of )'CIT 503.S91 163.021 666,612 666.611 660,971 

£ild of)'Qr 613.641 -,-- 23,600 s 699,242 $ 691,112 T 8,130 865~71 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUlSIANA 

NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND 
LED SINKJNG FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

REVENUES 

Tues 
Intergovernmental 
Service charges, fees aod conunissioos 
Fines and focfejrures 
loterc:st 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPEl\ DITURES 
Cum:nt 

Finance anti Admonislnllivc 

Salaries a.od benefits 
Gcoeral operatmg eqx:di!UI'Cs 
Materials aod suppli~ 
Cost of goods sold 
Travel 
Programs aod activities 
Miscellaneous 
Capital outlay 

lntergovcmrocotal 
Debe Servi~ 

Principal 
lntcre,c;t and agenl/issue cost~ 

TOT A1. EXPENDITURJ:iS 

EXCESS (Dl:FICJENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXFENDITlJRES 

OTHER FINANCJNG SOURCES (US£S) 
Operating transfers in 
Oporattng transfers out 
Payment to refunding escrow agent 

TOT AJ. OTHER f'INANClNG 
SOURCES (USES) 

EXC£SS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER £XPEND11'URES AND OrnER 
SOURCES (USI':S) 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning of year 

Bnd of year 

ACTUAL 

.s 

1,290,000 
292,!00 

1,582, 100 

(1,582,095, 

1,581,700 

1,581,700 

(395) 

s ____ ..... 2;;;,;7.;;.,.9 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUJSlANA 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
COMl>UJ'ER EQUIPMENT FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CllANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES- Cl!RRENT AND PROJECT TO DATE 
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR £NDED JUNE 30, 1017 

PRIOR 
YEARS 

REVENUES 

Texes 
Intergovernmental 
Service: charges, fees, aod commissions 
Fines and forfeitures 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 

Capital outlay 
Public Safety 

Finance and Administration 
Computer supplies and licenses 
Professional services 
Coostruc1ioo 
Equipment 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL EXPENDJTURES 

EXCESS (DEFJCJENCV) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Trunsfers in 
Tra.tlsfers out 

TOTAL OTflER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

l\'ET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

254,065 

254,065 

60,980 

6,583,862 

6,644,842 

(6,390, 777) 

8,500,000 

8,500 000 

$ 2,109.223 
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s 

$ 

CURRENT 
YEAR 

ACTUAL 

22,529 

22,529 

22,529 

500,000 

500,000 

522,529 

2,109,223 

2,631 752 

$ 

$ 

PROJECf 
TO DATE 

276,594 

276,594 

60,980 

6,583,862 

6,644 842 

(6,368,248) 

9,000,000 

9,000,000 

2,631,752 



COMBINING STATEMENTS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the Sheriff's self-insurance funds which provide insurance coverage 
for all of the Sheriff's risks of loss. 

AUTO LOSS MTD GENERAL LIABILITY FUNDS 
This fund provides coverage for property damage and personal injury cases caused by employees of the Sheriff. 
Limited coverage is provided through participation in the Louisiana Sheriff's Risk Management Program (a public 
entity risk pool). This program provides coverage on professional liability cases at the rate of $1 00,000/claim 
$500,000/aggregate. For amounts in excess of this coverage, the Sheriff is self-insured. For auto loss claims, the 
Sheriff is self-insured up to $1,750,000 per accident. Excess liability coverage is in effect for all claims over 
$1,750,000, but not exceeding $4,000,000. All claims are accounted for in this fund. 

GROUP HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE FUND 
This fund pays medical and dental claims of the Sheriff's employees and their covered dependents .. The Sheriff does 
have a re-insurance poticy with a private carrier which provides "stop-loss" coverage. Funding comes from the 
Sheriff's General Fund and from charges for premiums coJlected from employees. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OF~l'JCE 
HARVEY, LOffiSIANA 

I.NTERNAJ, SERVICE FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT O F NET POSITJON 
JlJNE 30, 20J7 

AUTO LOSS GROUP COMlllNED 
AND HEALTH TOTALS 

GENERAL ANDLJJIE 
LlABILllY JNSlJBANCE JUNE30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Cash aod cash equivalents s 1,052,186 s 43,711 $ 1,095,897 

Sbare of pooled assets - general pool 
Share of pooled assets - bureau pool 
Investments 6,885,135 6,885,135 

AceouniS receivablt 
Inttrest receivable 
Due from other funds 
Prepalds 717,500 717,500 

Other assets 

TOT At ASSE'fS 8,654,821 43,711 8,698,532 

LJABILlTIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 1,705 106,716 108,421 

Due to other funds 200,000 200,000 

Unearned revenue 
Claims and judgments payable 770,()41 770,041 

Noo·CuiTcnt Liabilities 
Claims and judgmtnts payable 7, 154,151 7,154,151 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,155,856 1,076,757 8,Z32,613 

NET POSITION 
Restricted - claims 1,498,965 1,498,965 

UIIJ1!stricted ( 1,033,046) (1,033,046) 

TOTAl. NET POSITION $. 1.498,965 s 11.033,0461 s 465.919 
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JEFFERSON PARISB SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
COMB~lNG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CRANGF.S JN NET POSJTION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

AUTO LOSS GROUP COMBINED 
AND HEALTH TOTALS 

GENERAL AND LIFE 
LIABILITY INSURANCE JUNE 30, 2017 

REVENUES 

Service charges, fees and commissions 
Premiums $ 41722.020 s 15,500,918 s 20.222.938 

Miscellaneous 
Subrogatioos 360,658 179,046 539,704 
aaims refunds 
Other 

360 658 179.046· 539.704 

TOTAL REVENUES 5,082,678 15.679,964 20.762.642 

EXPENSES 

Claims and judgments 2,464,319 )5,231,977 )7,696,196 
Adminislrati\'0 CX.petlSe.<i 17,575 593,098 610,673 
Premiums 1,074,005 2,634,602 3,708,607 
Miscellaneous 41,525 41,525 

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,555.899 18,501,202 22,0.57.101 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1,526,779 (2,82 I ,238) (l.Z94,4S9) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Interest income 59,605 10,728 70.333 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING 
TRANSFERS 1,586,384 (2,810,510) (1,224,126) 

TRANSFERS IN 2,000,000 2,000,0110 
TRANSFERS OUT 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,586,384 (810,.510) 77.5,874 

NET POSITION 
Beginning of year (87,419) (222,536) (309,955) 

End of year s 1498.965 s I 1.033 0461 $ 465.919 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, WUlSIANA 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
COMBlNING STATEMENT O.F CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

AUTO LOSS GROUP COMBINED 
AND HEALTH TOTALS 

GENERAL AND LIFE 
LIABILITY INSURANCE JUNE 30, 2017 

CASH FWWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

Premiums received from employer s 4,722,020 s 12,379,423 s 17,101,443 
Premiums receival from employees 1,978,534 1,978,534 
Yremiums nx;eived from retirees and others 1,142,961 1,142,96} 

Receipts from subrogations 360,658 179,046 539,704 
Claims and judgments paid (2,792,573) (15,703,070) (18,495,643) 

Administrative fees paid (15,870) (568,726) (584,596) 
Insurance premiums paid (1 ,791,505) (2,:576,316) (4,367,821) 
Miscellaneous expenses pai<l (41,525) (41,525} 
Amounts paid to other funds (60,351) (120,993) (181,344) 
Amounts received from other fund~ 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 422,379 (3,330,666) (2,908,287) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Operating transfers in 2,000,000 2,000,000 

OperatiDg transfers out 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTNITIES 2,000,000 2,000,000 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases ofinvestments {5,638,131) (1,685) (5,639,816) 

Maturities ofinvestmC'Iits 5,594,925 270,426 5,865,351 
Interest received 59,605 10,728 70,333 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 16,399 279,469 295,868 

INCREASE (DECREASE) lN CASH AND 
CASH EQUJV ALENTS 438,778 (1 ,051,197) (612,419) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Beginning of year 613,408 1,094,908 1,708,316 

End of year $ 1,052, 186 $ 43,711 s 1,0951897 

(Continued) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

INTERNAL S~VlCE FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE JO. 2017 

RECONCILIATION TO BALANCE SHEET 

Cash Blld Cash Equivalents 
Share of Pooled Assets • General Pool 

TOTAL 

RECONCJLIATJON OF OPERATING INCOME 
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDEl> (()SED) BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
(loss) to net cash provided by (used for) 
operating activities 

Add back write-eftS to bad debt 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in: 
accounts receivable 
due from other funds 
other &'Sets 

fncrease (dex:reasc) in: 
accounts payable 
due to other funds 
claims payable 
other liabilities 

Net adjustments 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

s 

$ 

$ 

$ 

AUTO LOSS 
AND 

GENERAL 
LIABILITY 

1,052,186 

1,052,186 

1.526,779 

(717,500) 

1,705 
(60,351) 

(328,254) 

(1 ,104,400) 

422,379 
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s 

$ 

$ 

$ 

GROUP 
HEALm 
AND LIFE 

INSURANCE 

43,711 

43,711 

(2,821 ,238) 

58,286 

24,372 
(120,993) 
(471,093) 

(509,428) 

p,330,666) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

COMBlNED 
TOTALS 

JUNE 30, 2017 

1,095,897 

1,095.897 

(1,294,459) 

(659,214) 

26,077 
(181,344) 
(799,347) 

(1,613,828) 

(2290812872 
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COMBINING STATEMENTS 
AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the Sheriff as an agent for individual, private, organizations, 

other governments and/or other funds . 

TAX COLLECTOR FUND 
Article V, Section21 of the Louisiana Constitution ofl974 provides that the Sheriff will serve as the Ex-Officio 

Tax Collector of the state and parish taxes and fees levied within the parish boundaries. This fund is used to collect 
and distribute tbese taxe~ and fees to the appropriate taxing bodies. The sub-funds within the Tax Collector include: 

}> Miscellaneous Fees - used to collect any miscellaneous fees or charges not collected in another Tax 
Collector Fund 

}> Cr.iminal Cash Bonds - used to collect fees and costs associated with criminal cash bonds poste'd through 
the Jefferson Parish Correctional Center. 

}> $I 5 Criminal Justice Fees - used to account for the $15 Criminal Justice Fee that is collected and disbursed 
to certain entities as per state statute. 

> Fines - used to collect any and aU fmes, fees, or court costs associated with traffic tickets or other fines 
imposed by the Parish. 

}> Traffic Camera Fines - used to collect fmes related to the Redflex traffic light photo-enforcement program. 
}> Scbcol Bus Safety Program- used to account for fines related to the School Bus Safety program (on board 

traffic cameras). 
}> Property Tax- used to account for any and aU collections related to property taxes levied witrun the Parish. 
}> Sales Tax - used to account for any and all collections related to sales and use taxes levied within the 

Parish. 
}> LA Offset- used to account for gamis1unents levied by the Parish Courts against tax returns to pay for 

past-due fines and fees. 

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 
This fund is used as a depository for collections of"Payments in Lieu of Taxes" or Pll..OTS. The Parish of Jefferson 
and/or its economic development arm (the Jefferson Economic Development Corporation- JEDCO) has entered into 
agreements \Vith private companies to forgo portions of their taxes in exchange for locating in the Parish or creating 
jobs in the Parish. Distributions from the fund are made to various parish agencies in the manner prescribed by the 
PILOT agreements. 

SHERIFF'S ACCOUNT 
This fund is used as a depository for collections of civil suits, Sheriffs sales, successions, garnishments, and 
redemptions. Distributions from the fund are made to various parish agencies and litigants in suits in the manner 
prescribed by law. 

INMATE DEPOSIT FUND 
This fund is used to account for individual prisoner account balances while in custody of the Jefferson Parish 
Correctional Center. Funds are deposited in the name of the prisoner and payable upon written request. Balances in 
the individual prisoner ac{;ounts are returned upon tennination of jail sentence. 

PROPERTY AND EVIDENCE 
This fund is used to account for monies found by individuals and subsequently turned over to the Sheri iPs Office 
untiJ claimed. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30,2017. 

COMBINED 
PAYMENT 'PROPERTY TOTALS 

TAX IN LIEU SHERIFF'S INMATE AND 
COLLECTOR OF TAXES ACCOUNT DEPOSIT EVIDENCE JUNE 30,2017 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents s 202.908 s 2,417,774 s 443,412 s s 3,064,094 
Share of pooled asseli -General Pool 126,194 126,194 

Share of pooled assets -Bureau Pool 47,856,615 47,856,615 
Due from other funds 

T01 AL ASSETS 48,059,523 2,417,774 443,412 126,194 51,046,903 

LIABILITIES 

.... Liabilities 
J:. 

Due to other funds 58,505 58,505 0 
Due to taxing bodies and olhcn; 48,059,523 2,417,774 384,907 126,194 50,988;398 

Total Liabilities 48,059,523 2,417,774 443,412 126,194 51,046,903 

NET POSITION s $ s 



JEFFERSON PARJSI;I SHERWF'S OFFJCE 
IIAR\'EY1 LOUISIANA 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COM'B1NING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN 
DEPOSIT BALANCES DUE TO TA.'ClNC BODIES AND 01HERS 
J!'OR THE YEAR E!'<"l>ED JUNE 30, 1017 

COMBINED 
PAYMENT PROPERTY TOTALS 

TAX 1NLI£U SREIUFF'S INMATE AND 
COLLECTOR OF TAXES ACCOUNT D£l'OSTT EVIDENCE JUNI: 30, 2017 

ADDITIONS 

Tllll, fines, commission• and other fCle$ s 844,666.339 s 1,2;!6,096 s s s s 845,8!11,435 
Deposits: 

Sheriffs sales 15,018,420 15,018,4%0 
Garnishments 3,788,191 3,738,191 
Jrunate deposits 1,158,234 1,153;134 
Otber 429,505 419,SOS 

Amoullls received Vc!m olt!ar funds 979,910 979,910 
lllleR!St 1,886,631 37,685 4,946 1,318 1,930.580 

Total Additions 847,532,880 1.226,096 19,273,80l 1, 163,180 1,318 869,197.275 

REDUCTIONS 

Depostu Set1led To: 
........ Sberiffs Gmtr11l Fund 96,380.665 88,949 4.212,986 JOM8~60n .j::o ..... Taxing bodies and olber.. 74&.934. 758 1,\37,147 890,514 8,175 750,970,594 

Liligants/dc(a.dants H/,166,.386 10,166,386 
Attorneys, u~. and !>theri 4,464.612 4,464,611 

Olhcr Reduct ions: 
Co1'!1111issary Sales FUnd 
Inmate withdrawals 394.463 394,463 
An:.ounts paid to other funds 1.024,162 35,864 750,4()1 1,810,417 

Total Reduction~ 846,339.585 1,226,096 19,770.362 1,153,039 868.489,082 

NET CHANG£ IN Dl:POSlT BALANCES 1,193.295 (496,561) LO,J41 1,318 708.193 

Otf'OSITBALANCES DUE TO TAXJNG BODT&S AND OTIIERS 
BEGINNJNG OF YEAR 46,866,228 2,914,335 433,271 124,876 50,338,710 

ENDOII'VEAR s 48.059,523 $ '$ Mt7,n4 s 443,412 s 126,194 s 51,046,903 



JEFFERSON PARISJI SRERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY,LOlJlSIANA 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COMBINJNG STATEMENT OF CHANGE:S IN ASSETS, LJAHILITIES AND NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017 

ALL AGENCY FUNDS- COMBINED 
Balance BalaDce 

JuDe30. 2016 Addidom Reductions .JUDe 30. 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equiValents "$. 3,643,028 s 21,375,117 s (21,954,05 I) $ 3,064,094 
Share of pooled assets· General Pool 124,876 1,227,414 (I ,226,096) 126,194 
Share of pooled assets • Bureau Pool 46,570,806 846,594,744 (845,308,935) 47,856,615 
Due nom other funds 44,252 (44,252) 

TOTAL ASSETS 50,382,962 869,197,275 ~868,533,334} 5l,046,903 

LIABILITIES 
liabilities 

Due to other funds 113,611 58,505 ( 113,6 1 I) 58,505 
Due to taxing bodies and others 50,269,351 869, 138,710 (868,419,723) 50,988,398 

Total L.tabilities 50,382,962 869,197,275 (868,533,334) 51,046,903 

NET POSITIO~ ~ l .! s 

TAX COLLECTOR AGENCY FUND 
Balauce Balance 

June30. 2016 Additions Rfllueeioos Jund0. 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 295,422 s 938,136 s ( 1,030,650) s 202,908 
Share of pooled assets- General Pool 
Share of pooled assets - Bureau Pool 46,570,806 846,594,744 (845,308,935) 47,856,615 
Due &om other fimds 44.252 (44,252) 

TOTAL ASSETS 46,910,480 847,532,880 (846,383,83'7~ 48,059,523 

LIABILITIES 
Lll.billii=s 

Due to o1her funds 44,252 (44,252) 
Due to !lilting bodies and others 46,1!66,228 847,532,880 (846,339,585) 48,059.523 

Totnl Uabilities- 46,910,480 847,532,880 (846,383,8371 48,059,523 

Nll;'l' POSITION s s s $ 

PAYMENT 11'\ LIEU OFT AXES 
Bal&Dce Balanu 

Juu 30, 2016 Additions ReducCiom JWie 30. 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents s s $ s 
Share of pooled assets - General Pool 1,226,096 ( 1,226,096) 

Share of pooled IISsets • Bureau Pool 
Due from o~ funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,226,096 (1,226,096) 

lJAIIIt.O'U:S 
Liabilitie~ 

Due to other funds 
Due to taxing bodies and others 1,226,096 (J ,226,096) 

Total Liabilities 1,226,096 (I ,226,096) 

NET POSITION $ s s s 
(continued) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OIIFJCE 
HARY£Y, LOUISIANA 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES lN ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET .POSITION 
FOR TR£ YEAR ENDED JtiNE 30, 2017 

SHERII•F'S ACCOUNT 
BAI&Det Bal&Dce 

JuDC 30. 2016 Additions Jtedudloos June 30, 1017 

ASStTS 
Casb aod cash equivalents s 2,914,335 s 19,273,801 $ (19,770,362) $ 2,417,774 
Sban: of pooled assets - (3eoeral Pool 
SbaTC of pooled assels - Bureau Pool 
Due from other fimds 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,914,335 19,273,801 (19,770,362) 2,417,774 

LlABILJTJES 
Uabillties 

Due to other 1\mds 
Due 10 taxing bodies and others 2,914,335 19,273,801 (19,770,362) 2,417,774 

Total Liabilities 2,914,335 19,273,801 (19,770,362) 2,417,774 

NET POSITION s s s s 

JNMATE DEPOSIT 
Balaoce Balaoce 

June 30, 2016 Addllloos Reductiol15 June 30, 2017 

ASSETS 
Ca!b end cash equivalents s 433,271 $ 1,163,180 s (1,153,039) $ 443,412 
Share ofpoo1ed assets- General Pool 
Sbare of pooled assets- Bureau Pool 
Duo from other flmds 

TOTAL ASSRT'S 433..271 1,163,180 (1,153~039) 443,412 

LIABILITIES 
l.inbilitics 

Due to other funds 69,359 58,505 (69,359) 58.505 
Due to taxing bodies and othc·rs 363,9!2 1,104,675 (1 ,083,680) 384,907 

Tolal Liabilities 433,271 1 ,163, 1~0 (1,153,039) 443.412 

NET J'OSITION s s s $ 

PROPERTY AND EVIDENCE 
Balute Balance 

June30.2016 AddllioDS Reductions Junt 30, 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash ~nd cnsh cqUivalt:J.tts s s s s 
Share ofpoo1ed usets- Gentral Pool 124.876 1,318 126.194 
Share of pooled asscls - l3ureau Pool 
Due from other f\lllds 

TOTAL ASSETS 124,876 1.318 126,194 

Llo\BlLITIES 
Liabilities 

Due 10 oilier fund_~ 
Due co taxing bodies and olhcls 124,876 1,318 126,194 

Tolal Liabilities 124,876 1,318 126,194 

NET POSlTION s s s s 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SB!l:RIFP'S OFFICE 

HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE Of FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
T A..X COLLECTOR AGENCY FUNDS 
JuJte 30,2017 and 2016 

SIS 
CRIMINAL CRIMINAL TRAFFIC 

MISCELLANEOUS CASH JUSTICE CAME.RA 
FEES BONDS FEES FINES FINES 

ASSETS 

Cash s s $ $ s 
Share of General Pool 
Share of Bureau Pool 264,805 2.572,406 86)306 2, 130,014 
In vestments 
Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 264,805 2,572,406 86,306 2,130,014 

LJABILITJES 

Due to otllcr funds 
Due to laxing bodies and othm 264,805 2,572.406 86,306 2,130,014 

TOTAL LIABfLITIES 264,805 2,572,406 86,.306 2,130,014 

NET POSITION s s s s s 
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SCHOOL 
BUS SAFETY 
PROGRAM 

s 37,628 s 

37,628 

37,628 

37,628 

s s 

PROPERTY 
TAX 

4,913,832 

4,913,832 

4,913,832 

4,913,832 

$ 

s 

STATE 
REVENUE 
SHARING 

s 

s 

SALES 
TAX 

37,889,252 

37,889,252 

37,889,252 

37,889,252 
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TOTALS LA 
OFFSET JUNE 30,1017 JUNE30, 2016 

s 165,280 s 202,9011 

47,856,615 

165,280 48,059,523 

165.280 48,059,523 

165,280 48,059,523 

s s 

s 

s 

295,422 

46,570,806 

44,251 

46,910,480 

44,252 
46,866,218 

46,910,480 



JEFFERSON PARISH SKEJUJ'FS OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOVlSJANA 

COMBINING SCHEDVLE OF CBAJ'lGES IN DEPOSIT BALANCES 
DUE TO TAXING BODIES AND O'TllERS 
'l'AX COLLECTOR AGENCY 11l!NDS 
for the Years .Eoded Juoe 30,l017 a11d 1016 

CRJMJNAL $15 CRIMINAL TRAFFIC 
MISCELLANEOUS CASH JUSTICE CAMERA 

FEES BONDS RES FlJIIE.S li'INES 
DUE TO T AXJNC BODIES AND onn:.RS, 

BEGINNING OF I'EIUOD s 155,534 s 2,522,028 86,36& s 2.130,432 s 

COLLECTIONS 
Ad valorem tutS - cuncnt 
Ad valorem W<es - prior years 
Ad valorem tocs - protested 
State rewnuc sbarin~ 
Sales wccs 
Lic:eoses- oooupetional, fie. 
Fines, forfeiJures and criminal costs 12,166,.59 
&lnds 1111ll bon~ r- 596,752 12},508 
Notices, cos!.<;. ~ etc. 1,556,037 
lntm:st aod oth~ 2,362 18,572 5,915 18.332 
Rc:fuods 
AmouniS received on Due &om other timds 979.910 

TOTAL COLLECTIONS 11558,399 615,324 129,423 13,164,701 

D1Snu::BU'I10NS 
STATE 

LA Dept of Wildlife and Fisheries 179 
LAD~ of Public Sakq 30,487 
LA J}qlt. of the Treaswy (CMIS) 197,005 
LA Dept, of the Treaswy (East Jeff U.vu DiitriGt) 
LA Dept. ofTrdllSpo!Utiou (Crescent City Connection) 
LA Ta:< Commission 

JEFFERSON PARJSH 
.As-
Clerk of Coun 17,061 1,006,254 
Camncr 33,76<1 

Council 18,572 7.002.905 
District AUom~y 282,102 59,712 1,308,904 
Hospi1al Di11rict No. l 
Hospital District No. 2 
Public Scbool System 189,678 
Sberill' 420.054 34.S29 1.270,421 

LOCALM\INICIPALITIES 
City of Gretna 837 59 
City of Harahan 883 
City oflote.DIItr 3,75~ 

City ofNcw Orleans 
City of westwego 72 547 
Town of Grand Isle 9 

TOWD of Jean Latino 

OTIIER 
New Orlearu Aviatl011 Board 
GNO Pad<way Colllll!ission 2.132 
LCLE (Criminal V/«ilm RciJcO 164,941 

Louisiana Supreme Court 13,640 
Indigent Dcfen&:r B.Oil'd 282,102 17.265 1,457.642 
24th JudicW Court 564,204 
West Jefferson levee District 
Grand l&lc Independent Levee Disttict 
Laljlte Aiea lndependenl Levee District 
Grand Isle Port Commissioo 
Stale Pension Plan.• 
Crime Stopptn, Inc. 61 ,142 
Refimds to tq~payen: 666 546,371 20,782 
Rctimcls to taxfrec !hopper; 
Notices, cosl51 fOC&, e1c. 
Amounts paid oo Due to olber fund.• 

TOTAL DISTlUSUT!ONS I,S49,l28 564,946 129,485 IJ,l6S.ll9 
DUE 1'0 TAXING BODIES AND OTIIERS, 

END OF PERIOD 264,805 s 2.572,406 $ 86,306 s 2,130,014 s 
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SCIJOOL STAT£ 
BtJSSAFETV P.ROP£.R1Y REVENUE SALES LA TOTALS 
PR()(;.RAM TAX SliA.JUNG TAX OFFSET .ruNE 30, 1017 Jtll\"1: 30,2816 

s 109,144 s 4,478,293 s s 37,142,403 s 186.278 f ~.910,480 66,870,610 

3S4,878,062 H4.878,062 354.394,772 
7,003,395 7,003,395 5,125,375 

36,169 36,169 
8,28.9,.412 8,289,422 7,984,979 

438,635,675 438.635.675 "134.29.5,016 
12,822,663 12,822,663 12,863,305 

499,881 435.908 13,102,248 13,561,778 
720,260 1,036,174 

1.740,155 7,60"1 3,303,796 3,922.803 
717 1,566,621 272,41!2 1,630 1,886,631 1,626,075 

$.210,173 664,476 5,874,649 6.790,128 

S001598 370,434,575 8,!89,422 452,40b900 
979,210 525~61 

437,538 847,532,880 842,125,666 
1.093,170 

179 32(> 
30,487 37,815 

197,005 226.357 
9.309,558 451,963 9,761,521 9,535,727 

88,614 88,61.4 34,128 

4,315.$49 4.315,8.49 4,315,741 
71,151 1,096,01"2 1,175,830 

5,153.510 103,327 5.290,601 5,320.846 
219,837,6&1 3.886.168 162,847,608 393.592.934 397,499,844 

1,650,718 2,4"16,334 

78,12!1,081 1,8.96,084 172,870,62 I 253,485.464 249,S98, 781 
30,437..220 1,293,783 62.924,658 96,380,665 96,336,172 

8,129,943 8,130,839 7,724,185 
2,184,530 2,185,413 2.137,837 

J4,7$1,21S 34,784,969 33,"191,914 
1,0"10,191 1,040,191 1,022,553 
2,404,768 2.405,387 2.0SI,S49 

473,399 473,40K 489.375 
247,962 247,962 2~.198 

1,040,191 1,040,191 1,022,553 
2,132 2,296 

164,941 175,439 
13,640 13.439 

1,757,009 1,870,264 
S64.204 590,16& 

... 977.277 381.972 5,359,249 5,162.190 
206.848 206,848 229,898 
266.580 266,580 242,810 
241,874 241,874 245,66& 

10.172,<492 276.125 10, .. 8.617 lo.409,lOS 
61,142 66,739 

6,735.689 ~.476 8,017,987 25,746,725 
734,4S2 734,4S.2 854.223 

6,488 4.006 1,312,037 1,322,531 981.530 
565.626 458,536 1,024,162 431.009 
572,114 3691999,036 8d89,422 451,656,051 458,536 8~83,837 862,085,196 

3Ul8 4,913,832 s 37,889,252 s 165,280 48,0591523 s 46.210,480 
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JEI'JiERSOI'I PARIS8 SRERJFI''S OF'FfCJ.: 
BABVEV, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUI'iD 
SCRI:DUL.E OP UVENU£S 
BUDGET AND ActUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR 'l"Hf. Vf.AB iND£:0 JUNE 30,1011 

VAIUANC£ WITII 
BVDCRTAJIY FINAL BUDGET 

ACTUAL TOCAAP ACTUAL FINAL POSITIVE ORJGl)<IAl. 
tGAAP BASIS! DIPJi£REI'Ic.es tBUDG~TARV BA.SlSt BUDGET (N.BCA TlVE I BUDGET 

TA.Xl:S 
Ad va!Olt:llllucs ' 29,514,255 s s 29.SI4.2SS 29,425,000 $ 89,2SS 29,930.000 
Ad •alon:m laACI. p~ymcnls ill lia~ or 88,949 811.949 89,000 (SI) 

Sal« and wte Wh 22,873,663 (16.!,551) 22,710.112 22,645,500 64,612 22,6)5,000 

52.476,867 063.5511 52 313JI6 52,159500 153.816 52S6S1000 

IN"fi!:JIGOVllRNMENTAL 
f'cdcnd 

Fed<1111 aronlt 1,265,068 1,265,06& 1,150,000 I 15,068 I, ISO,OOO 
Housing federal priaancrs 

Stale 
SllltCOj!1DIIlS 

Stille revenue tbariDft 1,293,783 1.29.!,783 1,294,000 (217) 1,243,000 
Stale 5Upplcmcnlal pa.)l 4,683,289 4,683,289 •,675,000 8,289 4,871,000 
Buie lr.linillg md otbet 40,800 40,800 52.000 (l l,lOO) 
Video poker alluc:llion> 1,622,587 1,622,587 1,720,000 (97,413) 1,732,000 

Local 
llcimbuned Almes 

Airport and Olher cldaili 3,183,667 7J84 J,891,0SI 3,950,000 (S8,949) 3,664,000 
Other 1,981,.!86 1,981..186 1,998,000 (16,614) 1,9+1,000 

Rc:imbluaad eape~~dituret 207,492 207,492 218,000 (10,508) 218.000 

14978.072 7J84 1• 985 4S6 15057,000 t71,24<11 14~22..000 

SERVICE CJIARCES, FEES, 
AND COMMJSSIOI\S 

Comm...;o,.. 
T&Aes, lieeeiiCS, 111:. 40,562,981 (254,457) 40J08,S2.4 ~0,069,000 239,524 40,401,000 
fmcs, fOtfe;cutes, eu 887,542 187,542 8)1,000 56,542 784,500 
Olha 4,098,161 4,098,161 4,001,000 91,161 4,685,000 

Civil and criml1111 fees 3,193,699 884 3,194,583 3,086,500 108,083 3,218,000 
Court atlaldance roe. 337,341 3)7J41 312,000 25,341 317,000 
Holl.!ing Stale pri>OA"" 1,$04,357 1,504,357 1,4SS,OOO 49J57 1,471,000 
T111.0spo<11tion ofprisoom 344,)90 )44,190 330,500 13,690 318,500 
l'eeding aod k•epiug or pri~nen 1,213,926 1,213,926 1,193,900 20,026 1,178,900 

Reo tal• 46.611 46.611 46,500 Ill 41,500 
lnruraDcc l'n:u>.lums 27,103 27,103 27,500 (397) 26,500 

S2,21S,911 j253~7lj 51 ,962,338 SIJSl 900 609,438 52,449.900 

FINES AND FORJ'EITURES 
Fillcs aod forfciJureJ 3,148 3,148 5,000 (1,85~) 10.000 

3148 3148 s.ooo rl 8521 10,000 

lNTEUST 605.94& 112U29o 484419 423 soo 60 919 l7S 000 

MISCill.l.ANEOUS 
Public U»~PUD'"'Ii 1,02S,Ol7 1,015,037 9XI,SOO 43,537 970,ll00 
Subfo81ll011s md cl•iuls 699,115 699,115 711,500 (18,385) sso,ooo 
EquipDleJU usare 1,160.~2 1,16o.692 1,160,000 692 1,165,000 
OUter 639,962 639.962 M6,000 (6,038) 603.000 

3.524.806 ]J24,806 3 sos,ooo --- 19:iii6 3,21&.000 

TO'TAL RJ!VENU£5 s 123.8041752 s 1531.269• 12l.273,483 s 122.502~ s 770~ s 123J09,900 
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JEFFERSON PARISU S8ERlFJI'S OFnCE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPt::NDinJR£5 . BY BURI.At; 
BUDGET AND ~CTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR mli: YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

VARIANCE Wll'B 
BUDGETARY FINAL BUDGET 

ACTUAL TOGAAP ACTUAL FINAL POSITJVE OJUGlNAL 
(GAAP BASIS) DIFFERENCES (BUDGETARY BASIS) BUDGET !NEGATIVE I BUDGET 

Spedtl lnverilll&liOGJ 
Cum:nl 

Salaries 1111d benefits 5,.467.761 (7,231 ) 5.460.530 5,568,000 107,470 S,713,2SO 
Geoan~l oper;u.ing expeod(rures. 249,074 (6,773) 242,301 246,500 4,199 258,000 
M•terials and $Upplits 35,478 2,710 38,188 37,000 (1.188) 12,000 
Travel 23,785 (SS?) 23,228 17,500 (5,728) 9.500 
Prosr.uns ud activities 
Capital outlay 17,642 (22,313) (4,671) 257,000 261,671 11,000 

lo!a!;ovemmcntal 
Debt Servfce 

5,793,740 ~.164) 5,759,576 6,126,000 366,424 6,003,750 

NarcflllO. 
Curre;~t 

Salaries 11nd benefiL' 4,133,437 (20,650) 4,112,787 4,074,250 08,537) 4,)04,500 
Gtolentl operating expeodilllles 2Z5,762 225,762 250,000 24,238 270,250 
Materials and supplies 45,320 (9,522) 35,798 42,000 6.202 28.500 
Travel 4.475 .;,475 8,000 3,525 10,000 
Prograut' mtd actlvitles 
C.pital OlJttay 85,561 139,0S2 324,613 M6,SOO (238,113) 2,000 

lnlt:riOV<liDID:Illll) 

Debt Service 
4,494,S5S 208,880 4,703.43-5 4,460,750 (242,685) 4,415,250 

Corrections 
Current 

Salarir! ond beue/its 21,334,462 {96,399) 21,238,063 21,638,000 399,937 20,15S.OOD 
Gt:~~eral opmttlng exponditlll'C5 2,0]8,590 (2,297) 2,036,193 1,989,000 (47,293) 2,038,75'0 
Materim and supplles 41,286 3,000 44,286 47,SOQ 3,214 46,500 
Tiavel 6.'2.43 6,243 11,500 .5.251 11,500 
Prognuns and activities 
C.pital oaday K,069 (125) 7,944 9,000 l,056 11 ,000 

lotergovemmental 
Debt Service 

23,428,650 (95,821) 23,332,829 23,695,000 362,171 22,862,750 

Gl'lllJd To11tl• 
Cum:nt 

S•laries and belltlfits s 100,731,440 s (262,139) s 100.,469,301 s 101,860..SOO s 1,391,199 s 101,234,000 
Gc:ueral operalillg C"Jl"'ldil= IS,2S4.SOS (58,625) 15, 195,880 15,829,000 633,120 16,365,750 
MateriaiJ and supplies 5,775.783 (71,551) 5,704,232 5,859.750 155,518 5,944,500 
Travel 244,422 (10,146) 234,276 263,000 28,724 283,250 
Program.1 and activities 
Capilal O\ld&y 4,591!~994 (1,086,330) 3,512,664 3,468,2SO (44,414) 4,797,750 

lntergpvernmental 16,352 16,352 16,500 148 16,500 
Debt Servl~ 
TOTAL JlXJ'ENDJTURES s 126,621,496 s 11.488.7911 t 125,132,705 s 127,297,000 s 2.164,295 s 128,641,750 
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JIJFERSOI\ PAJUSB SutiUPl"S OFl'ICE 
UARVEY, LOUISIANA 

SALARY STABILJZAnON SPECIAL REVESUJ: FUI\D 
SCDEDUL£ Of R.EV£NUI!S, f:XPI!NDmJR£5, Al'ID CIJ.o\NGt'S 
IN 1/IIND R.U..4NCR;( • AOnt:ltT ANn ACTtiAt fBUDGI:l'AJIY IIASISl 

FOR THE Y£Ail KNDilD JUNE 30. 2011 

V AIUANCI!: WITII 
BUDGETARY fiNAL BUDGET 

AcnJAL TOGAAP AcnJAL FINAL POSnTVE OIUGINAL 
{OAAP liASIS) DIFFEIU!NCES (BUDGETARY IIASIS) BUDGITI ~EGA11VEt BVDGET 

RKVENUES 

no. .. 
PlllpO'lyiiXal s ' Said lUes 

lniaJO''"""'enlal 
Scr;j.., ctqc:o, f<U, lnd _,nil&ions 
l'tn .. lllclfwfclt\tTeJ 
llll.oreJt ·~ · ~~~ tl 1,)29 11),000 6,519 50,000 
MilccU.ncoUJ 

TOTALRJ!VENUES 121~29 121.529 liSOOO 6.529 ~.000 

ltXJ'£NDri1JRES 

o.rc..t 
PublkSaf~ 

finance lllcl AdmllliomtDY• 
Sol>ti<s ..t bcncli11 
Gcnenl ~ e><]>Oildilllns 
M-'alt aocl l1>pplicl 

Coot or ~OO<U""" 
lnvcl 

"""'""" ""'..u-.s 
~"""'"'"""''" eq,;w ouilly 

1'0T AL EX'PeiDIT\JRES 

E.XCE:l.'S (DEF1C IKNCV) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPJtN'Drnnucs 121.a9 121~ IU.OOO 6,529 ~000 

O'I'UIR FINANCING SOURCES (USfS) 
non.&nio 
Trtnora. .... (~.100.000) (1,100.000) (3.100.000) (2.800,000) 
Clpitol-
S&le ol UpJW ossecs 

TOTAl OTHJ!Rl'INANC:INO 
SOURCES (USES) p1100,000! !3,100,000\ (1,100,0011) !2,800,0001 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 011 REVKNUl:S 
OVIIII £XI'I>NDITUR&S AND OTDI!R 
SOliRCI!S (USES) (2.97S,471) (2,978,471) (l,98S,000) 6,529 (2,lSO,OOO) 

fiUND BALANCE 
BcainfliftJOf')'fllr II..Sl9,6S7 11,519.657 11,519,657 11,519~0 

Endo(~ s s 8~1116 8..341 186 8..S34 657 -s-- 6Si9 8769~ 
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JEPF£RSON PARJSH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, I.OUJSIANA 

FEDERA.L GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
SCREDUL£ OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CllANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET ~"D ACTUAL- GRANT TO DAT E 
FOR THE YEAR EJ'Ii"DED JUNE 30, 1017 

I'IUOR CUR.IU:NT GRANT 
YEARS YEAR TO DATE GRANT OVER 

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET IVNDER) 

REVBIIIU~ 

T- s s, s $ 
1DJ:<r'sovemm<lliAI 4,743,712 4,80S,341 9;493,2.51 14,401,558 (~,905,.}07) 

s~ cllarga, r-and commisoic>!l5 
Fines""' f'orl'citurts 
lnt<res1 
~us 

TOTAL REVENUES 4,743 712 4.805341 9.493.251 14,!101 SS8 !4.908,3071 

.KXl'ENDITl!RES 
~blic. Sokly 

C= 
Salarirs aod beodiu 1,713..21'2 2,173,826 3.887,098 6,264,667 (2,377 ,569) 
Gtntta! operlling e>r:pendiour.,. 2,337,252 U57,0S3 4,614,305 6,511,828 (1,897,513) 
Ml!erials and SllJlPfies 29.S,940 &8,651 384,591 669,441 (284,85{)) 
Coli ofsooduold 
Trnvt.f 51,018 10.285 121,303 205,016 (83,713) 
l'rog>"'l1)!< an.<! utivities 163,819 121.678 2&5,497 382,471 (96,974) 
Ml$c~CO\lS 

Copit>l ollllay 162,411 193,091 355,502 556;514 fl01,012) 
lnlergovemmeutal 

TOTAL BXPENI>l'IVRP.S 4 743.712 4.904..584 9.648296 14.589.937 !4.941 641! 

EXCESS (DI!:FJCIENCY) OF REVENUES 
0~ BXPENDI'TURFS 199,243! 1155.045) [1883791 33,3~ 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (l!SES) 
Openstiug triUlllf.,. in SS,802 99,243 1SS,04S 188,37'1 (33,334) 
()pcno.iuj: tnaufCI$ out 

TOTAL OTHER FINAJIICINCl 
SOURCES (USES) ss 802 99.243 ISS.04S J8SJ79 [~3.3341 

Nl>l' OJANG.E CN NET ASSETS 5S 802. $ 

I'IJND IIAL~Cil 
Beginnlilg Of)'C8T 26 16 

End ofytar s 26 s 26 
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JEFFERSON PARJSH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

COMMUNICATIONS RESERVE CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
SCHEDULE OF JU:VENUES, EXPF.NDJTURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCEs- CURRENT AND PROJECT TO DATE 
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAJl.ENDED ~"J: 30, 1017 

CURRENT 
PRJ OR YEAR PROJECT 
YEARS ACfUAL TO DATE 

REVENUES 

Taxes s $ $ 
Intergovernmental .36,658,454 36,658,454 
Service charges. fees, and commissions 
Fines und Forfeitures 
In teres! 2,153,133 38.564 2,191,697 
MiscellauoollS 

TOTAL REVENUES 38,811,587 38,564 38,850,151 

EXPENI>JTURES 

Public Safety 
Capito.! Outlay 

finance and Adm inistra tioll 
Computer supplies and licenses 1,514,404 1,514,404 
Professional services 3,348,755 90,757 3,439,512 
Miscellaneous 11 ,100 11,100 
Construction 2,398,024 758,254 3,156,278 
Equipment 46,428,677 4,351,568 50,780,245 

TOTAL BXPENDITURES 53,700,960 5,200,579 58,901,539 

EXCESS (DEFICmNCV} OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (14,889,373) {5,162,015) {20,051 ,388~ 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USFS) 
Transrenin 19,503,899 1,.()00,000 20,503,899 
Transfers out (663, 352) (663,352) 
Proceeds ftom loan 4,351,568 4,351,568 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 18,840,547 5,351,568 24,192,115 

NET CHANGE TO FUND BALANCES $ 3,951 174 189,553 $ 4,140727 

FUND BALANCE 
Begjnning ofyur 3,951,174 

End of year s 4,140,72? 
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JEFFERSON PARISH' S.JJERfFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, J.OUJSlANA 

BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF RI!.'VENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHAKGES 
IN FUND BALANCES- CURRENT AND PROJECT TO DATE 
li'ROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

CURREJ.\'T 
PRJ OR YEAR PROJECt' 
YEARS ACTUAL TO DATE 

REVENUES 

Taxes $ s $ 

Intergovernmental 648,57J 648,571 
Servrce charges, fees, 11nd commissions 
Fines and foneitures 
Interest 3,489,401 53,734 3,543,136 
Miscellaneous 356,877 356,877 

TOTAL REVENUES 4,494,850 53,734 4,548,584 

EXPENDITURES 

Capill!l outlay 
Public Safety 

Civil and Support 
Computer supplies and licenses 
Professional services 4,211,933 294,364 4,506,297 
Land and improvements 2,602,4:22 2,602,422 
C=struction 42,542,936 384,462 42,927,3.98 
:F.q\lipmeot 1,698,829 1,698,829 
Miscellaneous 
Bond Issue Cost 1.184 1,184 

TO'l'AL EXPENDITURES 51,057 304 678,826 51,736,130 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDJTURES (46,562,454) ~625,092) (47,187,546) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfefs in 40,004,883 1,863,450 41,868,333 
Transfers out (l8,000,QOO) (18,000,000) 
Proceeds ftow sale of boods 30,004,604 30,004,604 
Bond issu.ance costs (232,470) (232,470} 

TOTAL OlliER FlNANC1NG 
SOURCES (USES) 51,777,017 1,863 450 53,640,467 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 5..214.563 1,238,358 s 6,452,921 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning of year 5,214,563 

End of year s 6,4521921 
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JEFFERSON PAJUSif SOEJUJIFS OJIFIC1 
llAJlVEV, LOUISIA.NA 

SCIRDULEOF £XPENDrrt1RES Of ff.lll!RAL. STA'I'E.AND LOCAL AWARDS 
Far Tlw Yn.r Endo4 J.-30.2011 

I'I/I'>"DO<C AC'£tOCY/ CFDA CRANTID CRANT r £RJOD CltAJ\7 

CIIAI'l1' NtJMaEA NtiMJIER F'a<M\1 TO AWAIID 

R DLIIAl. AWAJUIS 

DIU(.,- PJIOCRAM5: 
US. DEPARTMENT OF JU5TJa a ..... ot, __ 

~8-~-.!-~0W..201J 16.7]1 l013·DI·BJC.O.U 1~-12 10-S<J>-16 IS7,65l 

-..1Fiynt,_..,JIIII! .. -OW..:xll4 16.7]8 l014·Dl·BX·II41 1~-13 3~17 ISJ, IU 

FAwn a_,...,w.- J..U..IWin.-a..&· 2015 16.731 :xiiS.Ol·BX-"0? J-Oel- I• ]I).~ I lll,lll 

fbwd B)'MM-..olllllli«A&tl..-<lhll·l016 16.7» l016-DI.DX~IOt 1-0d.JS l"'-5'!"19 D7,091 

~.cknl 6•-ofi......,..Uoo 
JoiD1Tlm>it10Took f- "116 J&.u..- PUIIl/16 1-0c\-1) 30-8q>-16 17~1 

Jni'nt Tcnni•m ~k f'otu 1"11 16.Unia>own FBI Wl7 J.()Q ... l6 JO-Scp-17 17,7!] 

Ctold &""lcNwioo TukFM< ll/16 J,.lJNt.nnwn f'UI CET 15/16 1-0d-15 )0-Sq>J6 17,S4H 

Child ~"Pio~orioo Tori<,...., 16111 16.U- ~LIICET 1611 7 1-«<-16 3~11 11,753 

CS"1 lliJilll T11l ~ 1~11 , .. ..,...,.,... fill r.TVIL 16/17 1-0d.-16 J~l7 11,a1 

N.,. 011..,. o.-cr Vool<111 O...O!pnhcod Tuk f...,.Cl'/OOVTF) ll/16 IU~D NOGVCTf 15116 1.0..-15 30-Scp-16 J5,0'l6 

/<(WOri<OUGM.I<rVooii!IIIOi.,.Oop~~lzcd T.t Foou(l'OOVTF) 16/17 16.\.-11 NOCVCTf 16117 1-0cl-16 )~17 35~06 

IR..'I-SI.Il-T-(SARRT)l016 IC.,lllraboMt IllS l016 1-0d.-15 JII-Scp-16 

IRS-SAil a... ... r- (SAJUlT) 2011 I & lllohaonl IR.5 2017 1-0d.-16 JO.Scp-11 

s.-Ort ... V-OiMT11ikF.-Illl' \6.u.a-. IIOVCTF 15116 1~15 :JO.Scp-16 11~& 

-.. .... o.~..wVIolaocn ... r.\r-•11117 l6.u.a-. IIOVCTr 111117 1-«1-16 JO.Scp-17 &11Ul 

o..->«tcn.ti>Nc~T•t-1011 ... ~ 11£-VIJ!-41)3$ 111-J•" J,O.Scp-17 .!,000 

USSR·IIan«<SIMa S.:...-1$1" \6.1/r.bowo USSil15116 1.00·1.! 30-Scp-1, '.soo 
USSit.U- suo .. :~too Sen;.. IM l 16.U-. USSlll6117 1-Ju-16 »Sep-t? 6,00~ 

!Jikoo(J_,_ 

'FY 168-oll\l....,, r.-.;,-~&p~oa>eot!ITI'l 16.DI) 16-NO'-.J.I)..AJT 1.0..-l$ JO<S'!"IE 7,000 

'FY 11o-oti\ICOIIOI.--. r·- .t e:.~- (Al'f) 16.0tl I?·NOK -23)-.ATF 1-0d-16 lO..<;q>.ll U7 

•Y 1• PN .. B"'*"'J"""" 16.7• 1 201• -DN.BJC.OOll 1.0..·1· JIJ.,Scp-16 Jl,(\)"9 

'FY I' DNA .Bdloc Groot 1&.7 .. 201S·DI'I-IIJW)()4! r.,J • ..,.tfi 31-Mot-ll 110,063 

f'V lb DNA 9addo& 0FMt 16.7<1 1.016-DN•.BX.OO!I 1-IJII!-11 l l-t!or-19 103,182 

I'YI.! BJA H..,...TroJIJ"""' ttl.no 201.!.YT·BX..KOSl loOn" I$ J..s.., • .- 600,000 

0tu1~ MuitUttn~~ion 

DEA·SIC<-Locol Tultf.,..OWnilll<~ IS/16 16,00.1 DEIIIS/16 1-0d-15 JO.Sq>-16 ,2,6-f,.j 

DtA- SUteudt.-1 rw.r ..... o.-01iaJoA&ti- 111111 16.110< DI!A 16117 I -Oct· I· l(>-Scp-17 SJ,5l9 

U.li. Moalllll'a otfi« 
64-I<SboNial'fod<nllyf-~ IUD L/10160000 I.Jol·l6 »J••I7 u-... 

US M~ ... lsOY<nimel016 16.~ IL.E0-16-0191 1-QQ·I~ JCI.Sq>l6 21JOO 

us Mulllalll <mnllDc 1017 "~· 11.£0.17.0191 I.Qa-16 »&p-11 14.000 

us••...un.unwm :1016 16.U-. II.E0-1~192 1-0d·l.! l"'-5'!"16 MOO 

I..A-t!Ol'tAATI<Jiol ZEPHYRS fl"lll lll.llolalcoM \t.II..D34-0-GOO Ill """"" u-s-.,..ts 9MI 

TOTAL· U.S..DUAJITM£1(1' o•· JUSTICE 
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AC'Citl!T.DI 

(DEFERRED) 

JU:VflNIT£ 
Ju.ac30, 1UJ6 

1S,511 

,,194 

19.305 

4,10 

2,24ll 

•.8.10 

2,891 

)76 

I HI& 

791 

11!,326 

40,107 

59224 

5,417 

H77 

M7l 

7073 

105567 

FEDERAL AND STATIO 
ASSI~l'ANCE IU!Ct:IVED 

DVJUNCYJWI 

OTHDI 

15,511 

10~1 

3,)7l 

29474 

7,1SS 

9,221 

6,153 

8.0S9 

11,035 

16,931 

6,&01 

9,926 

3,015 

714 

79 Sl9 

l ,OAI 

727 

32,$41 ll.S 

111,47$ 71,951 

206,830 ,. 016 

ll,690 

27,410 

40110 

58,741 

18,817 

9,600 

S,DOO 

7,716 

99,p4 

4SS 808· 74 07& 

ACCRUtiD/ 

(,D&f'E.RREJ>) 
Rl;Vl'J'W£ 

Juael01 1011 

168 

24~ 

612 

:Z.91~ 

2.959 

1,206 

S,liS 

2,9211 

S46 

l39 

1610J 

39,161 

39167 

10.~ 

19648 

10,422 

10 422 

76.952 

7,16.5 

144 

3,31Z 

107l1 

3,112 

12,139 

J,90) 

11 ,418 

1,206 

6,205 

2l,14~ 

3,910 

11,846 

S46 

2,639 

1,0,3 

81,12$ 

1,290 

1n 

14,346 

l4 .. ,.C86 

U08•9 

7,11:3 

38,018 

45291 

5e,741 

11,744 

20,022 

s,ooo 

1,116 

1032 23 

S01.269 
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.&Xr £ND1TIIIlES 

SI'EI'fi'DlRECTLY 

BY J'l'SO 

J,)7l 

3312 

l,Jll 

12,139 

3,905 

11,418 

1,206 

6,10S 

12.146 

:1,91 0 

12,1146 

S46 

2,639 

1,0SJ 

¥1.12$ 

1,290 

721 

14,121 

170.535 

186..773 

7,213 

,IK,Oli 

4$,291 

S8,7H 

11,744 

20,022 

s.ooo 
7,71€ 

10l.22J 

419 78-4 

PASSED 

THJlO\JGH 

7J65 

244 

1409 

74119 

llS 

73,951 

7.076 

74 076 

TOTAL 
£Xf EHDITIJRE$ 

1,165 

244 

3,372 

I07U 

3,112 

12,m 

),905 

11,411 

1,206 

6,105 

22,146 

3,910 

12,846 

S46 

2,639 

1,0$3 

81.125 

1,29\1 

7l7 

14,346 

2«,481. 

U0549 

7,213 

18.078 

45.291 

$8,741 

11,744 

2!).022 

s,ODO 

7,716 

103~3 
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IEFRRSON r .UUSB SfiEJUFF'S OmCE 
JIARV£)', LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 05' EXPENDJTIJJlES OFFED£RAL. STATE. AND LOCAL AWARDS 
For Tilt\'- Endod JUM30, 2017 

l'I!NDINC ACENCV/ CFDA GRANT II) CRAI\"11 P.ERIOD CRANf 
CRAJ\T NVllsliER NIIMIIER 1'110~1 TO AWAIID 

SOCLU.6&CIJRITY AllMINIST.RATION 

l.om&tela<allive~Pr<!sm>(PL 1(11).603) 15116 96.006 SOC SEC "116 1·111).15 JI).IW>16 Ulll<loowll 

lomJieiiiCCIIftv•r-Pro.,...(PL100·50l) 16/17 lHi.006 SOCSECIIi/17 •·.M-16 30..l11D·I7 ~n 

TOTAL .SOCIAL SECIJIUTY Alli\ITNSTftA.TION 

U.S: Dl>I'ARTM!;NT O'f ROMli!LAND SECURITY 
'!'SA J(,.9 l!xplosivel>"oaion ~ r..,_ 14/IS ?7.Unlcmwu DTSA2o-Ol-H.OIOG6 l.()a-14 3~'!'"H 22M 07 

'!SA 1(.9 e.,, • .,..., I><rodDo ,._ ,,..,.., 15116 li7.UobloW11 HSTS02·16-H·NCP•S4 1·1-16 311-0...16 202,000 

TSA ~-9 £1(lllnrivo Duocii""Tt<nl ,_ 16111 !17.Ullla>owl> HS1"SII2-17-H<N0'4~ I.Jw-17 31-1>«>17 201,01)0 

TOTAL- US DEtAJITMENT OF 80MUAND SECIIIUTY 

DJ'FICE OF NA'TIQNALDRUG CO.VrROLl'OLICV 

141liDTA-.StatokLocai-LwisianoCJlllf""""HlDTA 9S.001 (M) GI4GCOOOIA l-J ... [4 IJ..Oeo-.16 ),547,079 

15 lllDTA-s~ & Local A«i- t..ow.u... owr c.as~ fllD1"" 95.001 (M) GISGCOOOIA I.Jil>-1 5 31-.0.C.Il ~.109,792 

16 Hli>TA· S""c.!: Local Au;......,_""""'..,. GulfC..Ut lllDTA 95.001 (M) GI6CCOOOIA I·Jea·l6 ll-0...18 '-615.258 

1711JDTA· Slolclt Local Asst.~ Louisl""" Golf COol HII>TA 9S.OOI (M) GI7GCOOOIA J.J ... J7 ll-1>..,.19 3.9'6,49$ 

TOTAl.• OFfiCE OP NATIONAL OIIUCCONTIIOL l'Ol.ICY 

U.S. DEPAAT~ OJ' 1'BE TIUlASURY 
u.s. lmlptioto ODd a-Erdit ........ 

Eqrubl• SlJ.,., offrd<nrly Fcrii~GJ P"''""'Y 16.921 .L"0160000 I ..lul-l' )().J ... 17 llululown 

Sloleaod ~Low EMi=ma>t Ovooi""' (~oo SU71"1 • I Sll• ~l.tMmo ... SLO'T IS/16 1~-ts lt'-~cp-.16 I MOO 

Stolellld l-' ).ow E.;ofQ211001 OY'''"'"' IOp""""o SLOT/- 1611 ? U.UnlolowD SLOT 16/17 1.()!1cl6 JO..S'!'"ll ,,,000 
TOTAL· U.S. DEPARTMe!<TOF THE 'OIJ'-ASVRY 

U.S. POST,o.J, S&I<Vlel' 

EQIIitablo SIW"'' ofFo:IO'IIly.fM<f•<ll Pn>p0"11 16.921 LA0260000 hlaH) ;JI).,J..,.Ifo u.-wn 

TUTAI. - US. DI:J'ARTIIG!l'T OJ1Tll.& TJU:,t.S\IRY 

TOTAL DI.Rf.Cl PROGRAMS 

PASS-TJIJIOUCR AWARDS: 

IJ.S.DEf'ARTMEN'I' OF .11JS'J]CE 
y..,..t 'llut>oab ~ Ocp~~JUDmtofl'u!>bcslfCI)I 

1011Coll"t4lo"' 
Notloool c.imin>J l.llm.y Jmp""""""t '"""'"' (1\'Clll'II..V.FIS!· f'Y 161 J; 16,55~ AFIS 16117 J.llll-!6 )i).JUD·Il l83,.60 

,.,..., T1llcugb LoiriDIUI& Commisoico 
0o La.w ErdOroealeol: 

ForaicScifi)CU lrqproYC':IDG An lOlS 16,741 101S.CO.OI-2795 14 .. · 1G l i-AI:r-1£ 12,436 

c.wml<lt en ... Ub ZQI6 10.742 1016.CP,OI.J50$ 1..) ... 17 JO-N0¥-1? 13,967 

CorabiMlionlovcrtiplioa 2013 16,S88 20J).WT.QI.I7Sl 1-Moy-14 30-Apr-l S 43,7.51 

OabiutioD tnve!l.ipsioa 20 I$ 16,$88 201J-WF.QI-2Y7~ J.J,...I6 31·M.,..I6 5,71~ 

OmlhiMtion lnvmtigJ~I.ioc 2016 16,5&8 2DI 5-WP-lll-ltnO 1·111•16 ll ·Dco-16 39,505 

DomalioViol,....,2014 16,.!88 101.0.WF-01-:1414 1-~0~1 6 )1-~ .... 11 4,76? 

Mlii6.Jwi~l ,...k Fol<lt 16.'131 2015-DJ.OI-~0<1 I.J .. -16 ] I·Dcc>l6 0,00<1 

Mwli·lwildi<liollll T111~ Fo«e 16.138 l016-DI·OI·J50J 1-lata·ll 31·0...17 .,,000 

TOTAL -US. DEPAilTMEI•;r OF J(lSTICf. 
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ACCJIUUI/ II'EI>I.RAL ANO STATI: ACCJWEnl O:I'I:NDITUIWi 

(D&FUWD) ASSIST AHa: UCJ:IVEJ) (DI>mlRED) TOTAL fi:DUAJ. AND STATE 

U.VENIIE DtllliNC YltAR RJ:VE.. '1\1[: IU!VEI'i\IJ: 5nl'IT DIJlECTI..Y PMSt:ll TOTAL 

Jude 1016 GIIAI>IS OTIIDI , .. d!, 2017 ltl:COCN11.ED 8 YJPSO 111t0UCII LOCAL £XP9iDJTilllES 

•.600 4,600 

75.000 11,000 ~000 16.000 16,000 

~ -moo 11000 16.000 16000 1!,000 

23, 695 2J,69J 

IOS,nl 202,000 4,4)2 101 ,141 96.109 .4,.32 101,1•1 

6 1JS7 18,331 19,11!1 IUU BUSS 

128¥86 liiUS2 UJl zsm 191:ol'9 186,.197 HJ2 19~01.9 

24,318 24,388 

171.647 1,517,764 1,3-46,111 l ,ll0. 16l l5,9S5 1,346,1J1 

J&t,()'lj 1,071,536 6S3,1SI 2,)66,662 1,360-69" I,OOS,968 2,)66,661 

3S4,662 237.011 591,610 278,80< 3 12,176 S91.680 

560MO l.t74JSO !90,169 4 30< 4·S9 29.19.660 1,344,299 A,J0<,4.19 

1!,4!6 IS,486 IS,4U IS,4S6 

m 10,274 9,124 9,724 9,124 

.. ,611 2,094 6.712 6,112 6,712 

---no :!!441 !,094 31.992 )1992 31992 

s 4,117,451 71.~11 $ 5,11:!,7., s I) S1,201 

383,460 313,460 3U,4 6() ' 383,46() 

383 460 31ll460 1RJ,460 383460 

1,129 1,229 

13,762 13.761 13,761 13,762 

l,716 1.7 1~ 

9,)11'1 26.132 17.nl 17,32) 17.sl3 

10,001 9,197 19,!911 IUH 19,!911 

4,766 4,766 4.766 4,766 

11,068 34M' ll,S90 2J,S90 U,.s90 

9.966 9,966 19,931 19,932 19,932 

~30-Jll 96168 ----;rru- 99 471 99411 99 471 

.!0,312 47!,621 33.61.5 ·~931 412.931 48!.931 
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Jl!FI'WSON rARJSB SUERJPF'S om a 
BARVEY, LOlJISIANA 

SCHlDUU: OF EXJ'ENDIT'tJR)!S OF nm•1RAL, Sl'ATX, AND LOC.<U.AWAR.DS 
rorn.. Ynr 1:-.t JDD030,%017 

li"ED£IlALIDOIIWAV ADMJNUTV.nO.'I r"""' "'""'cco Looi<O•H•pwq~o.o-.­
LooiJ'-ItqliWJ)W"l"IS/16 

DEPAllt:MDfl' OP IIOMEL~ND SECUIUTY 
,.., .. ~ ~ CicMno(1 OO!<ioo(-s-.., 

Ofliooof"Pob!lc"""-
D•tiOf~Orlou • """~AAifi-(H-ICA'TIUNALA I603) 

Olsut., 0.... . Public""'._"' (llohn,..cl.el!, LA 4()11) 

P....,J <brwab ~ ~cPallco 
0\oufa-Gnas • N>lio,.,._fi.A S.V... FIGoc!lca • BF. U •iaploo 1-A U7'1) 

,.....,.,_,.""""._~ Ollioe~ s-Hy 
rY l)Putls-N,C...,.,_ SWATOcoP<s 

rY 16 PCft S<alruyQat ,_ SWAT 0. 

rvusu.eu..,...s-;~ro..,.,... LPRc-. 

fYUSU...HQed...,s-ii)<O..."- S<rYcY 

T01A.t. · PASS TII.MUUCII AWIUI.DS 

TOTAL FEDS.RAL AWAADll 

gl'f'ttA~ON PASUSU COMMUNITY JUSTICE AGINCV 
WntbulciOnlU TMI< ro"" 15116 

W~Toskfo,..l6.'17 

TOTAL ST" 'U AIID LOCAl. "'W AaDS 

ca.u(D T OTAL 

(Continued) 

10.600 

20..00 

97.036 (M) 

97.036 ·~I) 

1'7.0)~ fill') 

9?.036 fM) 

91.0)6 IM) 

97.036 IM) 

"O.l& IMI 

97.036 

91.0S. 

97.067 

97.067 

97.(167 

~).Of> 

NIA 

.,.,~ 
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CJIAHT PUIOD 
ROlf TO 

loOa-1< )~16 

1017..JQ·50 I.(Ja 16 ~·7 

1603-I>IH.II 
""''"' CG>opl«ioa 

1603·DR·I A p._eo"'~'tdloo 

1786-0R.J..A Plvj<U O><opldloo 

1797·PR·t.A Pnuca. Co(llpJcdon 

•O< I .DR·I.A Pm,iouCoq>le<iOOl 

•Oi~DR·LA ,.,., ... eo..,•.oo. 

•m·DIII.A "">JcaCompiCIIIOG 

EMW~OU-liMIOOn.SOI 1-Sq>oiS ''""*'18 
fMW~I6·PIJ.40061·SOI I·~·· !1~9 

EM~J~J..SOI I.Sep-IS U·F<f>.J8 

EMW-lOI~IWOI I·S.,.-16 1$-f<f>." 

€1oo!W·l016-SS-OOOII·SOI I.Sep-16 1fi.F .... I9 

I!).IW.101f>..S~IWOI I·S.,..I£ 111-.Fc0-19 

Gle• Tolt P-16117 l·lul-16 J0-1111>17 

'UP9SP010 166-ol 3Q.JIIJH6 

$l'HSP070166.ol IJ>il-16 )O,JQ-17 

CJIAf(f 

AWAAll 

1~.0)5 

10,0'11,060 

19-I,IU 

&,ln,nn 

Sli6,JO 

134,016 

1,419,975 

247,197 

6~,)01 

Q;m 

u ,ooo 

lO,COO 

U,ollll 

10,000 

u-.o 



ACC1111tDI f¥D£1tAJ.AND STATE ACCRIIED/ EXPlNDITIJ1lU 

(DEFIIUUlD) ASSIST ANCit JtECEIVIi:ll (DJ;F&UD)) TOTAL RDDIA.L AND STAn: 

IIE''ENUI D\llliNC VEAJI IU:Vl:h"l!E R£V£h'UE 

JaetJO, J016 GRANTS OT1fl!ll JuodQ,10J1 ~ 

.10,7)9 111,177 67,5Ji 67,511 67,511 

51,739 lO,S22 l2,S61 ll,S61 

50159 170 016 )0,112 U0079 _____ ...;1:.::50~0:,:79~ ·---....:.- ___ ....:_ _ _____ ..;1:.::50::.:0::.79:.. 

(I:J.S.46!1 (I:J.S,9S!) (49)) (4,) 

210,91] 234,9&3 

155,511 ISS,Im to49l'j t:j93J 493J 

147,197 241,197 l H ,I97 247, 197' 

2A7 !1!.. 247 197 247197 247 197 

,,740 37.517 22J (l2J) l1J 

61,5)5 :10.512 12,047 6J,$3S 20.511 81.041 

24.510 24,.510 

30.000 30.000 10,000 30,000 

)6,403 36,403 "16,403 36,403 

1,119 1,819 1,119 I,IIJ 

12 )10 210 O:J.S 20135 I !19 1~02611 12t n• 107)5 U0269 

2.17 828 457222 ~0135 l5U44 396.97l l76,lll 2om 396.973 

JU,!O! '•'""" ll.7l5 W,l91 JJWI.!IIJ I 009148 10a1J5 JOZU IJ 

IIIU7l ~tl4 ,'24 tU4J 1229,1J7 U 44.7Jl un.m JJsz,m tt~ ~ ',144.731 

TOTAl.. fl.lliRAI. !o0Ud!l 

9,827 O,?ll 34,104 34,104 JUOA 

95,570 10,778 106,J.4B 106,348 10b.J•3 

2,615 2,615 

9,110 ),120 13,000 1).000 1),1)00 

17442 lii99i 1),398 ----~ ISHSl 153 452 

$ 11~ ISI.H' 13.1!11 l 153.451 15.1~1 153~1 

IJJI 11• UMJlt ".lC) !,;!:2335 o.lt&.IU ·-7)) 1-UUtl "=., 62911 ... 
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JEJ'FERSON PARISO SIIEJUF'F'S OrFlCE 
BARVt!Y, LOUISIANA 

SCIJEDUU: OF [J(PENJIIT\J'R!S Of FEDERAL. STAT'E,AA'D l.ocALAWARDS 
I' or Tht v .. r £..Std J-30,1117 

FtiHIIINC ACEI<CY/ 

GliAHT 

CiliA 
Nl;llm&a 

CIIANT ID 
HINIIIR 

l'iOTES TO SQ!!!Oil\,£, 
II l!&!!!tCP ....... o!IH 

Tk-·~~~~ o(fcdcni-(U..'SdwJ!qld'Jiod-llclftldol ......t.ai ... ,o(oJ..Sbcnlf...JG"-ollkf<ll<nl 
- ilrlk,...aodcol,.,.. )Q, 2017 dle•-,.d>eSdoedoieisP'QC2<11 m ~ ...... .__ o(Toll< 2 U.S. 
CodcofFod<nlll..,.- PWI 200, 1,/fo/)>nft Jt!M<~>tmll\< Jt.~a. Cbn ~''- -'Jodtt Jt.qo~r.._l6/or Falool ll""'rdi 
(U-OooclaaE). 8-lile!cWolc-odyo~~oflb<opcn6oMoll)leSIIon«; his oat io<ada!IOud-oot 
.,.... ... ~~ca-.,~.-.... .. ..,-.,,..-.or~~cS¥U~: 

l) s ...... , e(Sr!.ll\q, '<t'f!'•• .., .. 
~._..,oolb<Sdlalalo .. ..,.,al .. tloe--ot_.;.,. Sod>~-......,.u.d*'- • 
~~ -tloe- pnlqll• of()Mll Cim., A.t?, O>st Pmfdplufo< SloJO./Am/ aNI.,..,.,. T,;&c/ Go.ur,.......,,,. Clio- pnotq~lcl 
m Tille 2 U.S. O>dco(Falmlllqot..X.P"" 200, Uo({Dm!Ad>mnirtrotiw JUq.flfUW/01<; O>nhiJ!dplu. andAwiltft.toimrwot>j.,F-'troi 
.-....nt.,,.,.,.,.-•I)I><Ool"'l)<<Oh-...... .u...obloor ~hl!!l,1a! .... ~ x..,.;v.-u.,..,.,. fho!tdlll!ulc 
._e;~P-.,.mdln-iolileoonul-ofl>.:~.-io_._;..,.e~ili,.,..}Gil. TlleSh<oJTiwool 
dmat toUK\hc.lO pc:lOCDldC.tllliiUD1Sudira:l Cll!l&l..at. 

RJ(t ON\ Il lATION TO C'!jN!lJW..Id!P.!illl 
Twat 1fU11 tWCIIIJ(J per •bovc: 

'"' .. ...,.., (DcfOolol) 
(ifoiO J\.s&&JIID<C ll.ocriYal 
CY-I (I)rfll'nl) 

N" Grin~ H....,uet ll«>opptol p.,.lhe Sch<lulc 

ll.......,cspora-.1 Lcdser. 
l·l.(II..C i llO~f«<cnnGl>m 
I·I.(II..CII~OOOOFalcnla.- - P ... Tllrooip 
I· I.OI ..C151 o.n-oo.ooooo SU<c GmJa< 
l·I·I I A)JI~OOOOOUliPS~I'otfa-

I•I·U ... SIIO.O.OO.OOOOO Dna-"""" 
I l.lG..cJ 120-0.oo-100l9 M~.J.....Uaiooal TW ,-,...a,. 
1 ·1-l0...112~0030~T.Uf.,..Qao 
1·1·23oollll~ll80,412;90.t41300DNABidJo&.tC.,-v 
1·1-lHIIJ().O..OO.u&M TSA GRANTS 
1-l..ll~l I IO~o.IIIDTA 
1·1-l.J_.I II~ 110.'41AHD SECl/1UTY (SHSP)(UASI) .t (<lOSIIEP) . 

4111~1 
41li~'Ul 
411lo-o.G0-462l0 
4111 o.o.<IC).oi6:U0 
4111~ 
4 I II 04<1C).o16160 
41li~..CQ10 

1·1·1l..CIIJOJI~100W..~BiodtGrooat · 101l 
I.I.-1,. III0~800U.E-Blodtlinou·20I4 
I•I.V ... I I IQ.4.00..04j00t...£-81odt0..... · 201~ 
1·14l..CI1J(I.II.OOA4J001Aw E..,_ Bird 0..• · lO" 
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(1, 131,114) 
6.oB6.l2n 
I 243135 
6 19. 941 

27S,42J 
;.~,64$ 

14,221 
l.l,S90 
19,,)1 
14,'lll 

IU,SW 
4,104 .. !1 

(2231 
6J,))S 

170,$34 
1,1t9 

10,000 
16,403 

7,o6S 
144 

J,ln 

6191941 

CRAI<'T Pt:RJOD 

FROM TO 

'I"'MMI C)e!oaQff'W 

T1IOl """"'''""' T'IIOl --TBIJ 

,.. __ 
TBll ---TBlO ,....,......_..T_.,._,_, 
Tll10 ..... ~1--FtotloeFMt 
T11ll ~IGculf\INII 

TBZl 

__ ..... 
nlJ ,. ............ 
TBD fo.blG:Ha'-d 

TIID rtdalo..~ 

TBU ........ a..a.;r...: 
TIIU rllii!QIO..f"~~~t~ 

ran r.taa~c...fwiJ 

n n r..-ao...r• 
'I'Jill ft.fraiGallirn: 
nl1 l.oi:&JU.~~O!Mtf.wlc 

TBII1 l.cait-~81rod;Q,.~ 

Tllll1 l.c~Q~Uw~B»ctc-..f'ollrd 

TBr7 l.Gcal"" ,......,_,_., ew.u.,., tw.t 

RoiiMiac 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA, PARISH OF JEFFERSON 

AFFIDAVIT 

Joseph P. Lopinto lll, Sheriff 
and Ex-Officio Tax Collector of the Parish of Jefferson 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally came and appeared, Joseph P. 
Lopinto ffi, the Sheriff and Ex-Officio Tax Collector of Jefferson Parish, State of Louisiana) who 
after being du1y sworn, deposed and said: 

The following inforiWltion is true and correct: 

$4,913,832 is the amount of cash on hand in the property tax collector bank accounts on 
June 30, 2017; 

He further deposed and said: 

All itemized statements of the amount of taxes collected for fiscal year 2017 (tax 
year 2016), by taxing authority, are true and correct. 

All itemized statements of all taxes assessed and uncollected for the fiscal year 2017 
(tax year 2016), which indicate the reasons for the failure to collect, by taxing authority, are 
true and correct. 

SWORN to and subscrjj> 
my office in Harvey, Louisi~na. 

gnature - Joseph p . Lopinto m 
Sheriff of Jefferson Parish 

me, Notary, this _f!/_ dayorfo-~ ,2017,in 

Joseph J. Lepow (Notary fublic), # 12449 

Frlfl Lr& 
'Commission 
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JEff&R..'ION PAJUSH SHJ!IUf"F'S OFnCE 

TAXllOLLSTATtiS RUORT • ZOI6TAX ROLL l'&Ait 

n AS Of' .JIJNJ> lt, 11117 

0 
:;) C.U"dlllo .... Orltl)oal 1016 Amount Ta-. R.tP 
5' Tu Mills 1016 Adll>dklltcl C.Ut<tll>l• CoUctdbo.t R<f\ao:k Net To Rt NocYn 
c Code '!Wtw-· 
C1) 

L<!!ec,! ____ T•• lA"\ s ............ ltedttedo• s.,~, ..!!.!J!!I! &bok Rclomcls Ta P'rKUt c.u- CoOKtod Collea~ 

~ OIM hnllb. Kana Oldy O.l>W ~l!,SN s zn s (1,'126) ' ns 3l7.UA :Jl).U4. (1.100) s (10) s 123338 ),1!10 ~ 
01111 hri>~ofJcll"moo 1.310 4~4~ &J!) (41.6!10) l,?7l 4,001.049 3,977.6S4 (IJ,83S) (226) l,96l.S90 39.459 0.99% 
OlM Jdl'~t..ibm)oMnl......,. HiO 21.157,647 )),308 (147.602) 15,6)~ ll.9l8.9ill 2UII9,619 (75.611) ( I.U9) 11,742,148 ll6,140 0.98% 
04M Jdl'....,. Halrtl VaiL 2,140 7,685,164 li.S52 (85.1!80) 5,41) 1.61~.2/10 7,S67,9l.l (26.225) (402) 1.541,295 74.965 0.98l<o 
051\.1 1uvenltt Ocrmtion Hmnt 3,.120 11,922,7)5 17.'122 (Ul)J I) 8.41l ll,MU,S40 lt,744,42'J (40.610) t2.446) 11 ,701.373 11 4,467 MN 
06C Conln<r• Fnn:mio Focitity 0.970 1,41! .. !0 S.2Jfi (3 •• '126) ?.,A 58 MSl,liiA J,4JJ.391 (IU80) Cft5) J,4U .. 79S J,,4S2 0.117% 
06M Cof0ft0' · 011lc< OS<O 1.939.251 1,9ls (ll,61U) 1,.)68 1.921,810 1.910.U' (6.614) (lffi 1,!103.247 •e.m O.!rn\ 
07M c..ut II l\ldidoi/Coolluonil1 hi\ 0.9'70 1.4'70.025 S.2J6 (lUSO) l,4SS ).43f,8(,9 J,41&.D49 (11.711) (11S) \40S.S4S 11.m 0.~ 
O'IM ~- $pcdJl s...ia:s tnlbCl 2.ClO 6.120,310 111.'09 (&2,746) 4,101 6,67'2.104 6.6ll.Jll (2V.l0l (1,698) 6,6(17,900 64,804 0.?7% 
11M l dl'awe ...._,....., s,...... I 5100 5.12l.JS<I 10,2S7 (76.2A9) 4,815 6.761.179 6,7lJJ)0 (23.211) (1,401) 6.696.6611 6S.SU 0.97~ 
IJU J~ MllbllMy l"""!rod T!IIISpono!iao 0.9SO J,AII,737 5.128 (ll.llS) 1,41)1! )J81,14& 1.360.12.5 (11.6361 (701 ) 3~8.lK8 32.760 0.9~ 
14M Arnbul""" Scm« o;,.r No.2 10-990 S64.t67 fi.slO (60.1!12) 217 SIO.OSl S06,796 (1.1761 SIU.020 S.OJJ 0.~ 
16M Consolidated Oatba~ Disl No. I 3,860 1().654,066 111.763 (99,319) 6.S41 10,5711,1)41 10Sil,7112 (36.2361 (2.709) •o.474.817 103.11.1 Q.9S% 
21M ldl'a><ltoPitlm- &.230 29,734,99S 44.6911 ())l,nT) 20.983 19,46!1.191 29.291U93 (101,411) (6.106) lUI1,170 21.SJ29 0.97% 
lllof c-ti<IMcdSao<rDiltticl No.I (EIOt .!l W.,IJ 3MO 9.l>ll,t39 IS.OZ6 (89.303) 5.86.1 YJ6S.026 9J(TI;ll• <mJ~) (l,428) 9,472,0SS '12.963 0.97% 
27M ~ CcnoollclolcdFI!<,_o;ro;a 24.010 .a.nsm 1•.923 (283,4&1) 11,)65 40.SIL704 40,}16.647 (lll.ot!-1) (1,562) 40.214.1101 304.103 0.15% 
18M r.., P.-loo Dilalct No. 1 19.100 3.260.788 ),402 (17,671) 1,942 ).2J9,.160 l.l21.71J (16,13.!) (31~) 3.204,116<1 3A.'I94 1.01% 
2'JM F'"" ProC<clion Dislrict No. S 19.090 )J44,A33 236 (l0.J5S) 4,172 lJlU86 3.-198,8-IA (17JI1) (141) 3,481.181 )7,499 1.07% 
JOM rll'c: rn>t ... IOII Oiatrltl No.9 21.100 l.0-3.)61 11,.S37 (116.888) .,, 979.266 97),012 (MIO) 969.602 ·.~ 0.99% 
J IM F'im Pn>t.,.lon Oblricl No. 6 • M 1.!.360 4.628~4 31.455 (/!,U~Y) l,-163 4,590.901 4J5K,K~!l (IO.U4) (13.075) 4JJS,6.ll SS.272 1.211% 
32M Fin:PtOI«tionOisttictNo. 7 • M 23.980 3.802.44.5 (2l.•S3) 4J77 l 17AIJ71 J.7S7.7l6J2 (1~,.164,44) (446.11) J,742.91S.7l l~,6SS 1.0~ 

J2B F'n P-Ion Di>trid No. 7 • 0 !.960 -169JS9 (3.142) 565 066.78} ·~l.8l9 {1.713) (S!) 46U)JI •.nt 1.02% 
33M f'n I'Rl4CICIIoa lliaalct No. & • M 24.010 7,794,.494 2&,241 (IZI.llll ll.l!IO 7.711.807 7,t>l9.221 (-16.131) (118) 1.S91J61 119_446 1~5% 

}4 C...OOSdaood Wal<rD- No. I 10 !..A.lO JIJQ43SJ 16,401 (100,(1411 7.282 11 ,428.'19 II.J60,lll {)9.!00) (2.SI7) 11,.)18,.1~ 110,190 6.96% 
~1M Conoobd.ll<d Rccralioa a Pla)'ITOCIOid O!salct 7.800 11.526.014 )3 .. 73 (200.714) lUll 21J'74391 21,236J()tl (73J6.l) (1,186) 21,162.059 UOJJl 0.~ 
4l8 PlayJrouDd Dlllrict No. 2 ·SUb Di<1 No. I ~710 1:71.567 2.957 113,670) IJ96 8~9.2$0 1161,072 (5,198) (82) &s5.m IJ • ..S8 LI~U 

I 6411 Conoo4idiJ<>d l>niM&e Oillnel No. 2 (SEIA) 4,7)0 16,676.134 22,72) (I~Mm ll,ft~S 16.541.0&5 16.-441,115 (57,193) (888) 16,31.S.OJ4 1&3,051 0.99% 
~ 64M c....,lidakrl l>nim!;<' Ois1ncl No.2 • M u•o 16.358.829 22.291 (159.562) 11,658 l~.lJUJ~ 16,1JO,l44 (56.105) (671) 16,011.263 159~ 0.99% 
-...J 69M Commonlly em. .. aod Ploypvuod l>'lst l<o. 16 10.990 ~.167 6,j3U (60.snl 1)7 510,0Sl S06.1Y6 (t.n6> SOS,020 SJlJl 0.99% 
0 11M ·-~~(llastOril 4.010 9,n:l,466 8.303 (66.'89) 4.2JI 9,719,411 9.670.)79 (.2:9,9461 (4.10) 9,640,182 79.1l'f Ul% 

14M Gt>od Wcr.-o..tna •.660 2}9,221 1.769 (lS,IU) 101 2",275 214M4 (iS)) 11•,141 2.1}4 0.99% 
7SC ~r..,.bSd-'llootd ·C 2.910 14,.164,74) 11,59) (160,)21) 10,07 ••JJS.9S2 14,10.$91 ( 4M2Ul (1Sij 14,095.124 HO,IZI 0.93% 
15M Jdl'cnoo Parish SCI-' Boord .. M 7.1)00 10,450JSO 15,109 (116.779) 7,.)74 IOJS6.M5 10.290,920 (35.662) (546) IO,U..712 101,943 O.m4 
7SM 1-PGisll Scilool Board · 1-4 4.000 15,138.300 J7,7M (280,9ll) 17.739 24.912,916 14.754.791 (85,784) (l.ll5) ?.A,667,692 245J24 0-98% 
m Jdl'moo Paritb Sebool Board· J 9.000 l2,l20,6?1 48,585 (361,171) 22.807 31,030,69) ll,827,5RA (110.2~4) (1.690) J I,7U,604 JIS,lSK 0.9&% 
77M Gnod IJlC Pori Commlaioll S.2JO 280,lJ7 3,108 (29,'194) II) 253.-64 251,91 4 (845) UI,D611 2J9S 0.94% 
19M WCII }cft'crtoo l.a'<COscria , .0)0 !.262.173 n,ru (82.061) 7,140 S.Z01,6ll s.ISK.044 (22.667) ()Sl) 5,1)5,024 66.6~ 1.25% 
110M c.-101 1\Nc! .....-. D•orid 2.5100 a.oos.111 12.460 1'74.609) 4,91$ 7.941,547 1A91.1S\ (17.259) {441) 7,11W,4$) 7'-094 1.~ 
81 ~o-..1 OA80 1,.)2$.079 1,062 (12,].48) 81J I.JIS,606 1.301.101i (4,512) (73) 1.)02J21 U.OI5 O.llm 
91M J-Roo41.ic11Ma Diatna No. 7 s.soo 282JS2 l,2U ()0;169) 119 255.211 25),64(1 (88~) 252.752 ZJIY 0.!19% 
92.\f Pire PTDtec:rWwt Odtrict No. 4 16-650 695,134 10 (27,703\ 6.12 668.114 645.899 (l,9S4) (90) 643JI2S 24.309 3.64% 

Ul'o'XN t..onu" """ """""'"d Lcv« 5.~40 llM90 • 23 _,9Jl!L_ 210 264~_06 __ .. l!1ll0. t 660~1l4!L 2$6,318 8088 __ l.06Ji 
JIUOO $ l6).!!l!!,'73$ s saG,"907'$ 14014-'571 $ 144.6113 360 619774 s )S8,J8010U 11,2418921 s !487211 s )57 089.400 l ..!!OJ74 0.911% 

N- 1\oio-k -ool1dluCilV!l1rdolcdU.Ihe7016 ID nr0 rJ.C.. llle.....,.,.., UDIIOII). A~"'-iJoprior)'QIS' turolls is IIOl,..,.....cd 
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B......,tcics 
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R.cfuodo of Cast 
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--- @bW_ ~ 
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46,734 -4~ ..... 
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JEFFERSON PARlSB SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION AND OTHER PAYMENTS 
TO AGENCY H£AD OR CRIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Agency Head Namelflt1e: Newell D. Normand, Sheriff 

Amount 

SalaJY s 163,836 
Benefits - Retirement - Employer Required Contributions 
Benefits - Retilement - Employee Share Paid by Employer 
Benefits - IJ'Isli.T8Jice (Group liealth) 

23,770 

Benefits - Other 
Car Allowance 
Vehicle Provided by Agency 
Per Diem 
Reimbursements 
Membership Dues 
Tmvel (meal per diems) 
Tuition and Registmtion Fees 

12,558 
9,180 
2,320 

Yes 

2,460 

1,860 
Conference Tmvel (Airfare, Lodging, Conference Expenses) 
Continuing Professional Education Fees 

11,964 

Housing 
Unvoucherc:d Expenses 
Special Meals 

Notes to Schedule: 

(I) The Sherift's salary tS set by state statutes and includes a 10% expense aUowauoe. 
(2) The Sheriff is e membl:r oflhe Louisiana Sheriff's Pension and Relief Fund, as are aU full-lime 

employees of the Sberi1l's Office. The employer contribution rate for 2017 was 13.25% of 
eligible !181ary. This represents that contn'butioo cost to the office. 

(3) The SJ1crilf'a Office pays a po11ion of the employee's share of required pension contribution for 
employees hired prior to JanuaJ)' I, 1999. The Sheriffs Office pays 7.00% of the required employee 
contribution rule (which was 10.25% tor 2017). This was done in lieu of a pay raise several 
ycarR hnck. This repre.qents that contribution cost to the office. 

( 4) The Sheriffs Office is self-insured for group health coverage. All full-time employees n.re covered by the 
health plan upon bite. Under state law, tl:le Sheriffs Office pays 100% of the employciHlllly 
cover.1ge. The Sheri.tfs Office also pays a% offamlly, spousal, or child coverage, This amount 

represents the cost to the office. 
(5) The SberiD's Office provides some supplemental insurance coverage to e-Jcll of its employees, 

includini a term life policy, accidental dealh and dismemberment, short-term disability, and 
professional liability. The Sbcriffpays 100"/ooflhese costs. This amount represents lhe cumulative 
cost of lhese coverages. 

(6) The Sheriff is assigned a depanmenta11llke-home vehicle; however, no amount is considered 
taxable uJ>der the IRS roles for vehicles provided to Law .Enforcement Officers. The use of 
the vehicle is considered 10 be a •worlcing coodition benefit• and it meets the definition of a 
•qualified non-personal use vehicle". While some personal 11/le is aUowed,lhe car is primarily 
-used for public safety/business purposes. Use oftbc vehicle is limited to in-parish travel 

(in general) and pen;onal use is typically IJllldc up of commuting. The Sheriff pays an ' in-parish" 
vehicle ~ge foe of$100/month as per office policy. 

(7) Amount represents membership dues to professional organiz.ations related to the position of Sheriff, 
including the La. Sberiffs Association (LSA), the National Sheriffs Association {NSA), the Major 
Counties Association, and the Louisiana State Bar Associatioo (I.SBA). 

(8) Includes atleodmcc at conferences for lhe Nuts & Bolts Legal Update conference, the NSA's Mid-wwter 
conference, Jefferson Bar Association C<lnference, the ICAP conference, and the LSA's 
annual C<lnference. 
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STATISTICAL SECTION NARRATIVE 

This part of the Shetifrs Comprehensive Annual Financial report represents detailed .information as a contex1: for 
understanding what the information in the fmancial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 

information says about the Sheriffs overall fmancial health. 

Contents Page 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to held the reader understand how 
the Sheriff's financial performance and well-being have changed over time 

Table I - Net Position by Component.......................................................................................... 175 
Table 2 - Changes in Net Position................................................................................................ 176 
Table 3 - Program Revenues by Function/Program...................................................................... 178 
Table 4 - Fund Balances- Governmental Funds.......................................................................... 179 
Table 5 - Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds....................................................... 180 
Table 6 - Tax Revenues by Source- Governmental Funds.......................................................... 181 

Revenue Capacity 
These Schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors 
affecting the Sheriffs ability to generate its property and sales taxes. 

Table 7- Assessed Value to Taxable Property................ ............................................................. 182 
Table 8 -Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments........................................ 183 
Table 9 - Principal Taxpayers.............. ....................................................................................... .. 184 
Table 10- Property Tax Levies and Collections.......................................................................... 185 
Table 11 - Taxable Sales by Category.......... ........................................ ................................ ......... 186 
Table 12 - Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates................................................................ ..... 187 
Table 13 - Sales Tax Revenue Payers by Industry........................................................ ............... 188 

Debt Capacity 
These schedule present information to help the reader assess the affordability of 
the Sheriff's current levels of outstanding debt and i1s ability to issue additional 
debt in the future. 

Table 14 - R,atios of Outstanding Debt by Type.......... ................................................................. 189 
Table 15- Computation of Direct and Overlapping Generql Obligation Debt............................. 190 
Table 16 - Computation of Legal Debt Margin............................................................................ 191 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the Sheriffs financial activities take 
place and to help make comparisons over time with other governments. 

Table 17 - Demographics and Economic Statistics .. ..... ............ ...... .......... ..................... .............. 192 
Table 18 - Principal Employers ..... .......................................... _..... ............................................. .. 193 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain information about the Sheriff's operations and resources to help the 
reader understand how the Sheriff's financial information relates to the services the Sheriff 
provides and the activities it performs. 

Table 19 - Full-Time Equivalent Employees by Function.................. .......................................... 194 
Table 20 -Operating Indicators ...................................................... .............................................. 195 
Table 21 -Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program......................................... .................... 196 
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JEFFERSON PARlSO SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
Harvey, Lools.lana 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
LASr TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITED) 

{1) {I) 
100& 2009 2010 2011 

Govemmental Activities 
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 63,101,126 $ 27,604,981 $ 36,309,560 s 40,824,480 
Reslricted 

911 Em"'l!ertcy Communit11tions 
Debt Service 46,516 918 5!7 
Construction 26,016,578 11,188,111 1,225,622 
Claims and Judgments 5,358,718 1,445.267 4,557,006 4,220,604 

Unrestri<led 68,294.907 65,710,797 62,324,878 66.348,132 

'f olal Govcmmental Activities Net Position s 136.754.751 s 120.824.139 s 114.380.473 s 112.619.425 

NOTES: 
(1) - Amounts have been ~ated to ioc1udo the amouots restricted for conslruction thai w«e previously reported as unrestricted. 

These funds were previdcd by the LEt> Limited 'fax Revenue Bonds, ~es 2008 and are restricted for construction prejects. 
(2)- Amounts have been ~ted to include adjustments reqoircd by (iASB Statements 68 and 71 rolallod to pension liabilities. 

$80,000,000 

$70,000,000 

$60,000,000 

$50,000,000 

$40,000,000 

$30,000,000 

$20,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$· 

2012 1013 

56,942,313 s 57,400,787 

4,599,345 6,199,781 
215 !17 

774,562 
4,484,174 2.132,751 

46,145.349 53.496,116 

s I 12,945.958 $ I I 9,230.252 

Net Investment in Capital Assets .-.Restricted - unrestricted 

TAB.LEl 

(2) 
2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ 59,055,613 57,080,147 $ 59.672.449 s 64,391,627 

6,064,003 6,?.21,370 5,S46,598 5,513,724 
453 71 674 219 

679,918 1,498.965 
l,SS4,367 7.3 14.015 14,675,896 6,999,238 

$ 67~54,354 s 70.615,603 s 80.195,617 $ 78.403,833 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE. 
RQrvey, Lo<tlala118 

CHANGES IN NET !'OSITION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASlS Of' ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITEO) 

""'"""" GtJVanl'denul AotM1ies: 
!'Ubi~ Way 

Executive 
Civil and Support Servi<:co 
finance and Adn>iM!rativo 
Fter:r 
RC\'C\UCaniS TUatton 
Op ... li<>)s 

Sp«lal Op<ntiooa 
Technical Scnl= 
to!Q'IUI Manag-
c.;,n;nallrM:s~tl''iool 
SpooiAllnv<liHptions 
N~ 
Ccrm:tians 
1\'on.«t>"'""""" 
1o<onstcn~~mnlld>tmlf.., 

1·m1 Govemmenu.t- Actfvieiet &patta 

Tao•l l'rirnoty Gov..,.,_ E>pcnsco 

PIOJinl" R .. ..,_ (SM T~lt ~) 

G.,.tn1111mlal Adlvft!Q: 
Chtrga for S<nl= 

~tive 
CW.1 aod Suppoo't S<Nicca 
~ mdAdmin.i!tratlvc 
Fl«< 
1\...,..,andT&n~OII 

O,mticuo 
Spcc;.l Opcnriooo 
·rcdlnical S<Ni<Q 
lnl..-n>lMan~ 

Criminal lnv .. tip.tions 
Spcs:iallnY<Sliprions. 
N&nlOilcs 
Ccm:dlons 
Nonod<:pottmcn'"l 

ToQJ Cll.1:'1"0 !Or Servi= 
Optrlliog G..rus and Conmblltlons 
C.pi~l Onnts >nd Contributions 

Total Ciuycrntn01lal A&:tivilMs Program-~ 

~<I (I\I:Q>t-1 lttvl'fiU< 

GO\Icnunt~~lal ActlvffliS 
Tn1al Primary Go-.·cmmml Net ~paae) .Revmuc 

1008 

1,130.423 
9,975,642 

14,1118,71! 
UJl&,J?S 
J,J71.8l4 

21.561.953 
6,991,711 

10.804,668 
2,4&6.681 

10.2SS,268 
7,.01,999 
2,838.3U 

18.763,39? 
76,5~ 

161.SII 

122 809,1157 

122.809,1157 

J 123,502 
6,866,365 
1,997.725 

3J.l.960 
96,999 
71,006 
9),606 

309.3!4 
so 

955Ji02 
6,311 
6.564 

).010.()63 

14,353,287 
1o.m.z8l 
K~!§;j693 

s B78'1~63 

s 190 021..5941 
I •110,022.594\ 

Z009 1010 2011 

s 1,153.931 I,OOS.AOS l.o35.117 
ll.tn,041 14',720,136 lfi,l.l0.210 
11,4$3,975 18,394,493 14,122,461 
15,706.975 11,737,429 13,907,312 
3.760.'n4 3,l~.kS2 3,535,963 

Z..41S,6S7 20,879,408 21.323.000 
7,787,714 7,li.S6.018 M91.ll9 

12,536,781 12,540,770 11,164,82~ 

3,131,837 2,611;,990 2,100,30S 
10,961,779 10,623,771 10.86&.039 
M8S,906 9,Zl3.796 M.266.31S 
3.«4,:146 1,)loi,ISI 5.026,303 

20,62!,884 20.3.34.590 21.02SS1l 
29,HII 
90S.~20 1,41~,625 I,J!I3,Jfi4 

146,175,124 138 024,434 138.601,069 

s 146,175,124 138.024,434 138.601,069 s 

128,793 s 125,802 s U!2,4U 
7.390,444 A,IS7..S:l0 7,884,tt73 
"2,215,040 1.621,1&1 Z.s74,8ll 

S49,41S 1,191.979 1204,649 
93.109 97,191 95,814 
74.~12 77,766 15,0$7 
91..547 99,642 188,073 

1.37H29 2,023.546 2.026.208 
19S 246 

I,OSO,SS9 1,102.485 1,001,459 
9,284 k,S711 '10'2.474 
6,836 1.,930 t890 

3.212.454 l.l14.m 2.993,485 

16,"96,020 18,634,194 18,635,731 
17,006.462 IU06,193 13,128,709 
2,746~78 5,791.591 2.624,790 

s 36;249J60 s 31,231.978 $ ~..!89,230 s 

s ! 109~,9641 s IJQll792 ,4S6t s 1104,.!.1 1.839) $ 
s r 109,925.964• $ 1100.792.4561 s 1104.2J 1.839! s 

TABL&~ 

201! lOll 2014 lOIS l016 2017 

1,000,118 $ L.C60,9AS 1,017.289 1,104,874 965.6ll $ 1.662.1~2 
11.661.751 12.956,16() u.s~.936 12,"68,149 13,616,751 13,104..\53 
9..585.890 9.729.961 l0,075.299 11.2.8,184 11..539~3 11,367,771 

14.595,410 13.50<\Ml 12,489,132 12.748,714 11,:!92,91JS 11,023.7:!9 
3,459,727 3.21!6,041 3,247,624 3,X72,3S9 3.564,091 3,472,475 

22.202.~79 !3,224,7'14 22..59S,IO! 22.763.~50 11,808,960 2A..599.s44 
4.375,301 6.049,2~9 4.3~UA6 5',149,953 4.881,433 5.601,166 

15,127,681 17,281,779 1!,"3,113o\ 18.397,17) 18,700,179 19.~.65~ 
1,916,85~ 1,483,SS2 I.OIJ,07~ S87,ll6J 613,514 667,075 

11.700,193 11,725,916 ll,84~,57Q 12,349,841 12,591,923 !3,7l4.34l< 
9,825,741 9.SS6,1S1 10,247.417 9,61~5 9,&70.22.1 11.412.317 
4,1169,626 4,221,232 4.240,403 4,3HS,646 4,637,320 S,(lfr4,M79 

21,9?3,991 1J,S15,;ZJS .U.559,1S7 23.841.527 24,01 7,738 25.538,111 

1,036.057 1,145,093 9S4,l+l 1141,100 7S6,)1t 651,184 

135_337,023 138,&62496 137.3S9,09J 139,776,538 139.957.012 l47.l04JS3 

U5,l)7,02J s 13&.862,496 s IJ7,359,093 139,776,53! 139,957,01.2 I47,5():J.5S3 

204,147 s 219,11~ 134,766 $ 100,495 s 79,414 $ m.m 
MS6,991 7,697,723 !.047,278 8.423,644 11,712,;!02 3·,4:.8,\09 
2,74K.26) 2,7».'»7 2,969,211 ~.9!10,964 3.219,371 3,20~,307 

1,0114.0!5 1,108.698 1,100.132 I.IS9.4SS 1.163.138 1,160.790 
119,121 96,S07 102,287 31,822 
61,S?Z 56,6611 S7,61S 48",309 52,735 32.957 
S'U27 31,781 64,360 5~228 13l.l18 109,609 
~49.039 UB~ 12.466 177,770 S,J82 2,019 

196 ~I Sl 
1,)24,205 1,092.419 1, 1SS,4Z6 1,232.172 1.205)1:!9 1,180,122 

420.738 4!6,413 415,989 428,218 417.710 467.0!2 
122 1.6SS 2,872 2.306 2,926 689 

3,170,606 3.085,132 1.033,528 3,439,618 3,890,157 J.80S.I20 

17.903,612 16.599,985 17,096.0GO 18,067.003 18,1!87,QS2 IR.,623,09S 
19,033,090 21,961,748 17,966,921 21.879.035 '22.914.367 23.179,741' 
2_683. 774 1,004.56l 738,021 507.517 459674 472-475 

39,620,476 39,566,295 ll,!00.946 s 4014SJ~SS <12~61,123 :s 42,475,.!11 

o95.71~<47j S ~~~201! IIOU581147! s •99,322,9831 •97,695,!!91 s ! 105,029.242· 
•95.716~71 s 199,296.20 II IIOI,SS8,147j s •99.122,2831 (91,695,3891 $ ' 105,029.242) 



2008 lfJO!I 2010 lOll 1011 lOIJ 1014 2015 2016 :1011 

O<Nc:rnmcolll\ AA:!Mtics: 
r .... 

l'R>patyT .. .., :20,966~21 ZS,OSJ,47S s 16,588,13) $ 26.514,809 16,767,993 s 27,<147.509 s 21,1!10,657 28.506.512 1~.7lMOO 29.51.,255 
Propey Tucs. Paymmts In Lieu of 88.949 
s.r .. r .. cz; n.~·C3.976 70,500,%7 18;96},942 21,0011,97'.1 10,'122,633 2'2.622.549 22.131,936 11,955,740 12,.190,977 .U.37l,663 

fnta:gO\'Q'IlmCO!al 
Sial< Rtl'cnuc Sb~ 1,3l6.124 l.J.2S,749 1.311.187 1,.110,917 1,!05,506 1.)02,140 1,29'7,6~7 t).96.Zilo! 1,243,0<16 1,293,783 
Voiko Pol<.< Alloc:alions 1.2:14,447 1.978,584 1,795,230 1.847360 1.7i6,197 1.798,858 1,66$,316 1,625,919 1,655,037 1,612,587 

Com.miss-i~ 
COII'ol'llissi""' on . ...,. Col!«tion.t 44.340,729 41.Y48,92S 40,979.299 ">,s9S,5.S7 4).090,170 5U.~94.97S ...,os<.1l63 46,693.546 46.!139.225 45,609.)70 

c~w-.... n.-s ... ~t<>~ 
Cour1 Mmdaru>o 130,!!20 231,472 245.786 248.982 225.522 172.~90 428,181 298,215 336,514 337,341 

\Jnn::nrictcd l•:=t 3.3~7,913 J,70R,U8 •71,844 141)01 111.741 2U,712 l63,A15 345.267 352,734 87A.s-17 
Misedla!1COios 

Gain (Lev:) m ~I ofCip'i'tal Assecr (49,739) 156,927 360,398 nJ.~z 33,844 1~3.~1.1 S32.Jil9 J.251 691 ,059 (124,322) 
Sllbroplioor 414,)09 ~.ll6ll S09.S66 513.6'12 1.313.610 35?.122 364.674 534.962 5.391.880 6Y9.11S 
Olhcr I 020691 4~~54 3,122.905 6.5n.m 49S.804 S39.'l19 334.100 324,610 436,221 #1.110 

Total O~erM\enl&l Adlv11ies Cicnenlllcmuu:s. 96.37~ 93~5352 94 348 790 102,450191 96,043,080 105~80.495 '18.1i81..1'18 102~8A.;!:!2 107~7$,903 103,?J;7,4SS 
Total PMwy G""'""""" G"""'"l R..,..._.,. 96~75,1!92 s 93,995.352 94,348,190 s 102.450,791 96.~3.o:ro s 10S~80.49S S' 98~.3'111 ' 102.SSA,232 107.275.903 s IOJ,B7.4S8 

1htnoniJNtry ltttM 
f'~•ofCDLkw>·FEMA l s s i s 7.233.213 $ s 1 
I~S~>R~~«Pro«o:<ls(N<tl 203 S3 

Twl E•mwrduoafY u..,.. 203,45& s ~ s s 7.:!33,273 $ s s 

ChloliR .. ln Ntl Potltlou 
GQ\Iernmcntal Activitict ~6,736 115,930,6tlj j6,443,6661 •1,76!,1).18) 326~33 6,214~94 4,\51 Slo< ! ,26t,2A9 9~0& 1• !1,791,7&4! 
T...J Prinusy QOY- s 6,556.156 s 115,9306121 \M43f66) S , 1.761..0431 s 326533 s 6~14294 s 4,551,574 3261.249 s 9~80.014 $ !U9L78AJ 

...... 
--.) 
--.) 
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JEFFERSON PARISif SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
Harvey, Lo•ot.•laua 

PROGRAM REVENUES BY FUNCTION/J>ROCRAM 
LAST 'fEN FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITED) 

2068 
1/Undlonli'I'G&"m 
<lo\1C:1nrn~tal Acttviti..,: 

Public Safety 
R't:cutlve :s 1$3,926 
Clvillllld Support Sc:rvica< 7.210.035 
r!Jllll!Ce ""d Admin~ 1o.ss1an 
Fleet ~37,648 

Revc:1uellJld TJ~Xatl.ott 136,912 
Opecatioa. 1,60S:,0{8 
Spccial~M 443,536 
Tccllnkol Servi<:a> 1,089,000 

lmemalM~ 908,263 
Crimlruillovc:stigaljons 1,553,500 
Sp~ Jnvestlgatku~:~ 281,612 
l-lor<etim 4,358,100 
Col\'ed~(IO 3,652,480 
No!Mlq>unaiCil.IAI 
lnu:rcsl on Lo"'l"tmn DdJI 

Totool Govcnuncntlli P.<livitU:s Expenses 32.781.263 

Totall'rimluy Go..,.,mt Ptugram Rcvaw.cs s 32.787.263 

NOTES: 

2009 

154.296 s 
7,782.550 
5,664,137 

869,818 
131,101 

7,220,126 
518,603 

2,317,312 
2SU33 

1,703,844 
479,950 

5,183.226 
3,881,564 

36..249,160 

s 36.249 160 $ 

(I). fOr 2013, lhtlllDTA p!Ot8t8IJl ''""' r.,..,..;gocd &omND<oolit:s to the~ Inveotigatiotu Bure:w 

2010 ZOll 

ISS,841 s 212,501 
8,622.501 8,324,862 
8,925,246 S.7SSAS9 
1,2.'12,015 1.,2211,612 

139,254 127,291 
I.S28,7SI 1.832,723 

714,633 1.247,000 
3.510,662 Z.920,883 

454,840 266.986 
1,888,863 [.82"'-053 

796.795 1,120,497 
~.999,238 5.561,709 
3,973,333 3,969,654 

37.231,978 34,389.230 

37,231,97& $ 34,389,230 

TABLE3 

201% 2013 201( 2lll5 2016 2017 
(l) 

s 231.231 $ 243,684 s ISS.OSO 157,454 $ 136,795 241,694 
S,Z20.671 1,959,245 8,188.040 8.711341 9,007,438 8,780,937 
M72.078 3,761,580 3.829,737 4,m,916 4.535,940 4,124,562 
I,I05,3SO 1,132,Z74 1,111,831 1,201,490 1,231,638 1,219.301 

129,125 126,639 136,724 158,326 128,308 118,003 
1.949,081 1,813,033 1,745,735 2,601 ,780 2.42l,047 2,590,932 
1,440.79() 2.892,888 1.020.482 950,241 1.039,206 1,228,069 
9.942,245 9.691A03 8.341.750 8.830,816 8,763,211 8,652.990 

82.896 48.382 21.279 41,717 44.513 %,293 
1,956,680 1.930,511 1,960,856 2,498,055 2.S2M45 2,497,t6i 
1,042,509 4,680.856 4,342,719 S.04'2,694 S,2SI,SOI 5,783,685 
4,880.560 1.228,95) 1,013,886 1,237,272 1,687,382 1,768,235 
4,164,174 4,056.841 3,922,857 4,999,453 5,4&<1,039 5.423,440 

39.620,476 39.566.295 35 800.946 40.453.555 42.261,123 42.-'175.311 

$ 39.62().476 s 39.566,295 s JS1soo1946 $ 40,453,555 $ <12 261.123 $ 42.475.311 



JEFFERSON .l'i\RISH Sl:ll'.Rll'I"S OFFICE TADt..F.4 
Harvey, t..,.blan• 

FUND BALA.~CES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNl}S 
LAST TEN FTSCAL YEARS 
(MOOJIII£D ACCRtJAL BASIS OF ACCOU!•fi1NG) 

(UNAUDITED) 

2008 2009 lOIO lOll lOll lOIJ 1014 1015 2016 l017 

<Jcncntfund 
tloo-sp<Oldible $ $ s s J s 
R<otric:tcd 
CommiHcd 1),325,4()8 26.811.253 22,8116.614 lQ,I7t,872 16.933.975 18,192,138 16,007,540 1),766.580 11,519.657 8,541.186 
A."ij;r>ed 9,749,0?5 6,55,8'77 6,020..}50 9-'72,835 13,1~S.R35 10,123,193 '-011,91 I0.835J09 10,826,1KI 12,837..}60 
u.-igncd 21 186.128 24.171.591 2Z,888,459 37.449.851 17,356,624 31,560,605 35.006,900 36, 195,083 o40,0lt6050 34895.036 

Total Gcn<r•l fWid s 40Ml,lill s ss11441727 s 58,805~8~ s 67,194,58 47,486,434 s 59,&75,936 59,026.031 $ 60.796.972 s 62,4ll:2J!8 s S~>.:rn,ss2 

Majufl'u"'lo 
N~lt s $ $ $ $ s s s s $ 
.l(eslriaed lS,o!()j, I :IS 11 ,188.110 1.225.622 5,373.907 6,199.781 6,01>4,003 t,z21."n S,8<16-'9$ 5,SI3.7ZA 
Commitlcd 
J\ssiJ!Ocd 29,'l!O,Sll 13,676,062 12,0!1,421 10,470,165 .11,6<17,912 K,8131.9SJ 10,307-'0<i 9,448,529 9.165.763 10,593,674 
U.....11;o«l 

Totll M•jiJr ftmda $ 29,210~1 3910KI,I87 23,269,531 11,695,790 17,021.819 s 15,013,764 16,311,509 s 15,6691!99 s 15.012.361 $ 16,107.398 

Otllo'<J""""'""""dFlulds 
Non.5pa\lbbl< s s s 
II<>~ ~6.$16 ~\ij sa1 21S 117 •sJ 71 ~74 279 
CommiUOd 

....... AWgncd 2.679.,5.51 4,044.767 4,063,1166 S,6J9,S21 },)44,115 3,833,977 3,342,961 4,571,027 '5,123.760 5,316,131 

....) U11U11gncd 
\() ToW Olha<lovcmmcohtl ftmds s 2,619,551 s 4,091,Z83 s 4,064,884 s S,540,108 s 3..}44,330 3,834,794 3,343.414 s 4,71,0')8 5,124,434 5,316,SLO 

ToloiAn Ftm<b s 76,1S0,683 s IOI.ll7, 197 $ 86,139,698 l K4,530,451i s 61,11S2.583 78,724,494 s 79.240.'154 J 81 037,969 !2,568.783 s 77,697,;490 

NOTE: JPSO lmplt!llalled GASB SlalCIT\Q\I ~o. S4 in F Y 20 I I and mlalcd !he hmd boW>ocs from die pri<>'-y..,. 
into lheCIJtTI2ll cal~odcs and fon"NL 



J~ONPMUSUSR~FrSOnnCE TABLE5 
lhrvey, Louisiana 

CHANGES lN f'UND BAlANCES- COV£ltNMEN'fAL f'\Jl'iDS 
LAST Tf:N IFISCAI, Yl!.\115 
I~ODIPTED ACCI\UAL OASIS OF ACCOUN'TING) 

(IJNAUlliTI!.I)) 

: _____ 
:!!!!_ 1910 :1011 ,.!!_1_2 __ 1013 1014 :1415 .ill' lltl1 

R£V£NUltS 
'l'uo(li<elltble61 C3.SIG.891 J 15.s5V<S 45,55Ul?5 s 47,stl.'111 s 47,49(1,626 $ !IU,O'l\l,Os. 49.942.393 51,462,m .fl,llOJll $1,476,1167 
ml-1>1 16-"11,115 29,71).1190 29Jlll1.1511 2$.1)94,636 l0-436.146 JQ,9C,9<9 26.!1'JS.JJ2 l1.1l5.~7 ~l.J<I.~J 27,134.112 
Scn'ke:dwao. f«J...a.Mw~ l0.6'1S.17S 17.989,5111 47.37"19 so~u.m 5(l.(lo04,612 $7.442.176 lOMl,"-lll .$4.153.21!1 s-t..l.ll.7JI >1.397..529 
PmcumH~-... Sl~J~ <62,?31 IU.041 1,$?9,100 190.31? 7l4/lS7 :Sll.J).4 m.Jn 917.')% ?1!.1$2 

ltlt- 2.1'/l.m IJ12.764 445,19& 110.);!'1 IIJD91 252.291 239.116 )3().669 311.1!11 10&.214 
M'OS<dlonc>m 193:1.471 3051,4?1 S~l-905 ?J75,061 3,!!32,360 3,135,90¥ .3~1911 296.U61 !!,&71 ,644 H36,4l9 

TtYrAL ~ll\lr,Jo~UI;S 1%5.?4'1,9'6 12S.3S4.391 13?,140.'191 1>-4~1.901 ll2.976l30 142.60?.145 lll.l.t9,01t lJ6.612.!i'Jl 142.m,116 13!,9'71,):0 

lro't."'llmrllt-'1 
C\u=l 

Pullli<S.IIfy - l.ll1..l<Ji t,O?S.OSS !IQJ,616 9$11!,64.1 W.0,7Sil .,._ ... •66.S01 1,0711915 ~4 •• 1106 1,6!'6.6$4 
Civil....tS>i;Jp:or'.~ ?.792.7-10 IUIJ.tl7 1J.601.71l 14,~".6'1:1 u.m.o-t~ 11,&69~10 12,490.'121 I1,91M01 ll,. 6J.?'ll 12.,1.66.340 
~•cdAllnltn'i01livt: J,ll4.l)-4 IOJOs,.l<ll US9J27 ),ll4.6:14 7.+15.1112 I.S~ 10-091.212 10.097.096 lM22.W 9.JU.Q4 
F1 .. 1),146,200 12.111l7,07! 12.3$2,47~ 1~.133.~00 11,W!.~ 12,167.- 12.81'9,015 10,1~3,537 13,-9t4,34$ 11,~.25& 

;jt(•f~.ll"IMIIon }.060.503 l.l<J0-691 .3,2291992 J.J10,69! ),}17.191 1.o~i .m ).041.$$1 1.'107.Sl. JA16.474 ),2%1JI.ll 

OJ-- :Z0JI2,, 4 23,3$5.001 :Z0.106,779 19.%9.5U 10.941~ !1.241.054 1(l,)62J74 ~t.sct,n~ 11.763.~ 12.1!10.149 
Spo:iJIOo=Uons 7,0'),012 d,2;16,304 '.38~J&.1 Mll,7M },302.211(1 5.410.&-12 J.926.56l 4.6IO.n.l •.m.m .l.OJI.Ol< 
Taclw!looiScmxs )0,4"1.S'I7 11,021.).6) 11.94'\.lll 9,1!.1).6111 IJ,M<),$jl 15.721JI6l 16,'i27,.l5J 17.201.221 17.l1Ql.641 IS.OciO.m 
~IMlNCfi'J\'(ftl 2J99.Hl 2.m.f419 2.1d4,\75 1,6XJ_910 1,m,!i75 1.169 .. l<n )4S.fill X'I0,710 596.25? w.su 
Crimlnolln>Uilplk>os 9.436.100 10 .. ,..~ 1='1.1)9 10.2'/9.642 11.162.177 10.3'-'.S-11 11.073,:14? 11~'10.:236 12,l'\l!,U12 12.!105.1<5 
~tluvodc-t• 1.lOQ.Ult MY14156 9.629.2P t,9lt,906 ?.f.!l.l96 Ui7.301 9.'U.UO 9..1J2.37? 10,149~ n .. o?l.600 
l!ln>ll .. 3,6-02.194 4.2l7.ffl ... JJ0344 .... 2.644 4.Gl2.JI7 MSZ-193 J.lil6.69& 4.07S..l60 4.334.?25 ~.Wi 

c....coo~ ll.l61.lll 19.632.664 19.707.7)1 19.9.li).OJ6 !1,961;.610 1\.1144.%1 ll.064.liU ll.OU.473 l.1.29'!,0lS Z3.9Jl.M7 
~~ttmt:f1iUI 76.l53 29111 

..... Tollll Pllblk S.f<ty H6.111ll4 1~6&5.412 Ul641.990 llll.669l?l m ,6l4J!! 12S40J~ 12Z,n6,672 U909tS.641 136,176~11 131~8193? 

00 
0 lna~IQ,mV1 

o.>l S"'l<.t 
f'Tindp.'t ~JOI,!JOO 975,000 1,1120.000 1.070.000 1.1:10.000 >.17s.ooo 1.130.000 1..!90.000 

"'1- r••.231 1,2.$7,.22.< I.UI,964 &74,3«1 471.>1(,j 41<.11) l'/2,506 J-11.413 292,100 

~~'"'"'"l.iy 
l"lt,_ic~fe)· 

fitlriliJ:IieeUIIOI\4Rtlrii'tmiW 15,1~7,913 S.98-l.JI& 4.0U.617 1.496.1?2 4.111AAI • 1?1.4~} 41,$17 96.>81 741,?SQ l.lOOJ79 
CMiood SitppOII so-.lc<s 15.3?9;25¥ 1!.,l.li.ll6 2,414,()6.1 4.))1,311 1.605.479 1.591.639 l91.l1t 671JllG 
Spotitlln•COiiuoil<oo> 999.~60 llil,S<I 3h,7:!4 1.111 ~2JOI Jll,6\l0 
No ....X. 17.000 

TOT.<J..IlXP.bl<llmJR!!S tlf~td:- 1ll.4J4,oil$9 14-I.JJ&.MO 13S.~SI.)CJ 131,16-0,422 131.131.235 131.33USI 13!,36\967 U9,061\,902 14!,19'1,11<0 

ucr.'1.'l (l)T.fiCJI!NC\') OflltV£1'1UES 
OV1!I< r.xreNl>mlliES ~OW:sliiJ ~060.061 ! 11s,rn..2991 !1~2· 1.8!1.i08 10!!21,911 5 16.-460 <t247.0U J,.il0.$14 17.m.&61! 

0'11JER I'I!M.NCINC SOUl\ CIS f\IS£Sl 
Tn~~Lrli:ssin PIOMI .2:1.01~;913 1,161,144 J..33S.I6J b.9<0.456 3.-t?-4.-407 t • .l04.4::S 6.CI'7,8JI 6.1)1.119 ,,.,.,1.0>4 
Tnndnow (5,7oiOM'7l CUJ6S.oll<Zl (7.162,74<) IJ.JJS,I63) (l$,96}.456) (S,27,,407) ~,429) (1,937,1311 (l.ll~18'1t (10,bi,U54) 
Capho.J tQH!f 4JSI-56A 
rnx-df %hm Slfllll ctfBI:lMIU JU.004.604 
9uJdluJC.COSIA (2)2.470\ 
~mc:r.Utoft6.rnlttn;~·~ (18,419.6&1) 

'ICTAL OTHER FINANC'INC 
50UI\CllS (1156.'1) ~226.lli II.~ •:Z.4.lMOOi •2.000.0001 l,JSIJ6A 

~XTkAOROTN4RV rTF:M.~ 

P~s filimcl~S'oU'ta"IIY.nl 

Cltm• and J-..SIJlll"'" 
1Mr.at!k:t:ri"'C''O!d4" ~.4SB 

N<'l' CJW'>ICE ll'l 111JMl BALAiiCllS (4.394.123) lS.J&t.Slt (15,117,2?9) (1,609, •• 2) nMn.m) 10,111.911 Sl6,.1lQ 1.1'11.015 1.530~1· (<,171,193} 

fUM)R,4J.,o\~c&S _.,,or_ ~}~54.5,<406 1~.~~~ 101.317.191 k6,110,ll~ K5)0,4$1i 6),U:l.Sil 711.124,49<1 79.1<4.954 "I,Q)1.~9 ~..561..7&2 

aido()Qr _, __ 
·~ ... s 1011JI7197 IU39.19« 114))(1~ 67J5~)Bl 7!,72.4.49-1 $ 79 ~40.95-1 11.03'2§" s (1,.'\&l'IIJ T169'7,.t9;2_ 

D~Savicc a. a JICR.IO'll.eJC-
ofllOQCbPib!~es ·~ ~-IIllo 1.JI'l'4 I .U% I.$$\ I o.;:m l.l"" 1 .:n~ 1.ll\'l I 1.'\11 
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JEFFERSON PARlSH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
Harvey, Louisiana 

TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITED) 

2003 

TAXREV£NUESBYSOURCR 
taxes 

Ad valorem taxes $ 20,966,922 
Ad valorem taxes- payments in lieu of 

Sales and use taxes 22,543.976 
Total Ta.~ Revmues s 43,510.898 

$31,000,000 -

$29,000,000 -

$27,000,000 

$25,000,000 

$23.000.000 

$21.000,000 

$19,000,000 

$17,000,000 

s 

s 

§ I ~ 

"' ~ 

TABLE6 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 1014 2015 1016 2017 

25,053,478 26,588,133 s 26,514,809 s 26,767,993 27,447,509 $ 27,810,657 28,506,5\2 $ 28,739,300 s 29.514,255 
88,949 

20.500.967 18,963,942 21.008.979 20,922.633 22.622.549 22.131.936 22.955,740 22290.927 22 ,873,663 
45.554,445 $ 4S,SS2.01S $ 47,523?88 47.690.626 s 50,070,058 s 49,942,593 s 51.462,252 s 51.130.!27 $ 52,476.867 

----- -----

----

;:: 
~ 

;: 
~ 

,!!l 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

-e-Ad V3&ortm tixes Silles end use ttlxt..s ---Ad vaSorl'm lues· payments In lfeu of 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SllERIJrF 
Harvey, Louisiana 

ASSESSED VALUJI: OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (I) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(amoa aiS t11,prwtd In thousoods) 

(UJIIAI.Ii>rtBD) 

f\$<01 Tu !Wit Jadld1rlat ami 

~ __!!!!!.._ f.stcue!l! Comme«l&l!l 

2008 2007 (1C) s l,)OCI,865 
2009 2(1(1@ (Rl 3.105.5'/'l 
1010 2009 3,14~.523 
~Oil 2010 3,164,222 
2012 2011 3,164.652 
201) 2012 (Rl 3:m.ss; 
2014 2013 3.26S,SSS 
2015 2014 3,3Q7,7SS 
2016 2015 ),J19.09S 
2011 2.016 (R) 3,450.825 

NOTES: 
(I) Per the <Xlf'«<itullon, alllonchnd rcsida1!!al '-cncnl! are 

usc:ssedal lO% ofits r.ir ""rb:t vJluc lnd 1111 otbcr property 
at l$%otitsf'a.irttW"kctva1uc. 

(1) Homcsladexcal)lion .. tcisSJ.SOOofiSS<S$cdvatoe 

6t),125 
707,26~ 

104,120 
631,302 
677,201 
686.109 
705.590 
723,192 
112.036 
684.425 

l"oblk 
s.rtl .. 

Co!J!!nollont !ll 

152,94() 
IS7.697 
165,048 
IS4.6S4 
16l.C61 
165,63) 
16!,078 
179.631 
U6.918 
196.tn 

(3) lachalcsW.-c....,..._. Esd.,.<cdAc:tualTUJibleVIlucbQ\Qilalcdbydnoidilljliuobte..,.,S<>dval"" 
by Olcpa'"'"'"r,ca""'cdinNolc (2). 1'ax ,.,,,.,.,p<r SI,OOOof.........tvatue. 

(R)-. INiic::ltcu "reosscssrne:N.• yea-r 
(K} Thetaxn~ltswcn:rcas=scdlnU>elllcm•tborHil1Tlcan<sK&lrinaondRitaloellowfil.-$JOr1!>~ 

$4,400,000 

$4,200,000 

s 

TOCJJ Taubf< 
Tohlt Homtrtead AU6sd 

AIS<Om!OIIll E .. !!!e!!Z! Value 

3.340.030 739,2U l.6U0.74S 
3.970,541 172,154 3.198,387 
4,014,691 166,Ul 3,247,364 
4.000,203 16M41 3.1)4,561 
4.004.920 m.Js9 3.241.S61 
4,089,295 751.211 J,JJ8.024 
4.136.223 746.7$6 3.189.467 
4,210,618 742.S07 ).468,111 
4,228.049 741.S93 3,4!6.451 
4,331,422 140,23! 3,S91,184 

PU'ttlltiJIC' T<rtlll 

Chloa• Dlr<rt 
from Prior Year Ta>.llatt 

11.66'11 0.64 
22.98% 0.67 

ISS% 0.61 
-0.41% 0.67 
0.40% 0,68 
2.79% 0.66 
1.54% 0.66 
2.32% 0.67 
0.53% 0.66 
3.00% 0.68 

fromTIIbl<l 

............ 
AduaiTouble 

Volue QI 

s 3.(1!ii,J08 
3,682.220 
3,714,968 
3,711,$46 
3.724.331 
J.305.3AI 
3,84~000 
3.909,670 
3.928.398 
4,037.S90 

TABL£7 

Tamble Assessed 
VII\IC:&JI 

P<tt<Oiall".,r 
TaJ:IblcValot 

84.96% 
S6.36% 
87.19"-' 
86.91% 
&1.19% 
&7.71% 
88.13% 
R8.71% 
88.75% 
88.94% 

~.oo~ooo ·----------- ------==-~~------~--~------------------------~~===--------------------------------------------------------------------

$3.800,000 7 
--/ 

~ 

$3,600,000 

$3.400.000 

53.200.000 -------- -------- ------- - -----··--- -
I 



I -00 
w 

JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF 
Harvey, Louisiana 

PROPERTY TAX RATES- DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 
(PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

Direct 

(1) 

Jefferson 
Fiscal Tax Parish Jeffenon 
Year Roll Sheriff Parish 

2008 2007 0.64 1.33 

2009 200& 0.67 1.35 

2010 2009 0.67 1.43 
2011 2010 0.67 1.43 

2012 201 I 0.68 1.54 

2013 2012 0.66 1.50 

2014 2013 U.66 1.51 
2015 2014 0.67 1.52 
2016 2015 0.66 1.55 
2017 2016 0.68 1.54 

Source: Jefferson Parish Tax Rolls prepared by the Jefferson Parish Assessor. 

Overlapping 

Je(ferson 
Parish 
School 
Board 

1.78 
1.85 
1.85 
1.85 
1.87 
1.83 
1.83 
1.84 
1.83 
1.87 

(1) The Direct Rate for the Sheriff includes only "operating" millage rates (the Sheriff has no millage dedicated to 

debt service or capital programs). 

TABLES 

Other Total 

0.12 3.87 
0.13 4.00 
0.13 4.08 
0.13 4.08 
0.13 4.22 
0.12 4.11 
0.12 4.12 
0.13 4.16 
0.12 4.16 
0.12 4.21 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF 
Barny, Louisl.ana 

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNI!: 30,2017 AND JUNE 30,2008 (NINE YEARS AGO) 
(amounts expressed In thousl\llds) 

(UNAUDITED) 

Taxr•tcr '!)!!"of Susilltss 

Eotcrgy SeMc:es. Inc. Electric Utility 

CaU&eway A$$ociates (Lakeside $bopping ConteT) Retail Shopping M:Ul 

A TMOS Energy Louisiana (!Qmlcrly Louisiana w) Gas Utility 

Whillloy National Bank Banldng 

Bell SooUl Telephone Ulili\Y 

JW Slone Oil OistributO<S, U.C Oil & Gas Brokerag< 

LUI<ewq A&>OC>iatt$, LLC Commerical Propeny Building 

Jllmwood Retail Pmpcrtlcs, t.LC Retllil and Wbol .. ale Shopping 

Capital One Bank (fonner1y Hihemia N•rionlil &nk ) Banking 

E.~rergy Stl(Vicmlno. Ell:dric Utility Service 

Firn NBC Dank. Banking 

1P Murgan Chase Bank N A 83Jlldng 

Noriluup <ii'IIMIM Ship S)'Giems (formerly Avondale) Shipbuilding 

Cq~ Communications Utility/Cable 

TOTAL 

TOI31 Aslles<<d Value (Table 7) 

Suo roo: Jefferson Pmish AsseS!Or's Otlice 

Taxabk> 
AJS ... od 
Valuation 

s 94,178 

30,787 

25,860 

12.94S 

18,S2S 

17,433 

19.353 

13,SO? 

14,180 

13.03K 

$ 259.808 

s " 131.422 

TABLE9 

l016TaxRoD :MI07TuRoO 
P•~entof Toxable P•,..eotor 

Tohll A._•essod A&s ... •«~ TolaiA&.•US«< 
RllniC. VldDatlon VIIIDatinn Rlonk Valuation 

2.17% s S9.912 1.80% 

2 0.71% 16,100 4 0.48% 

.l 0.60% 14,807 6 0,<14% 

4 0.30% 14.447 7 0.43% 

5 0-43% 38.130 l 1.14% 

0.40"-' 0.00~ 

0.4S% 0.00% 

8 O.l l% 0.00% 

? 0.33% 29,035 ) 0.87% 

I() 0.30% 0.00% 

0.00% 15.313 5 0.46% 

0.00% 13,181 0.39% 

0.00% 12.646 9 0.38% 

0.00% 10.154 10 0.30% 

6.00% s 223,785 6.70% 

s 31340~30 
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.JEFFERSON PAJUSB SHERIFF 
Harvey, Louisiana 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLl.ECfiONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

TuuLevied 
Jllsa~l Tu for the 

~ ~ FbcaiVear 

2007 (k ) 2006 $ 18,826,067 
2008 (K) 2007 21.006,581 
20011 (R) 2008 26,028.905 
2010 2009 26,375,370 
2011 ?.1)10 26,480,790 
2012 2011 26,606,800 
2013 (~ 2012 27,363,527 
1014 2013 27,914:/.77 
201S 2014 28,412.,165 
2016 lOU 28,616,671 
2017 IR) 2016 29,468,398 

Sour.:t: Jefferson Parish Sherill't Bu.uu ofTuction 

NOTliS: 
(R) lnclk:a1es o •reassessment" year 

Collfdtd Wltbla Tilt 

f1scal Year or •'"' Lev• 
CurnatTu P<r<entof 
Coll«ttoas Currut Ll!" 

$ 18,511,452 98.33% 
20,591.971 98.05% 
24,822.925 95.37% 
25,732.573 97.56% 
26,034,791 98.32% 
26,281,151 98.78% 
27,017,949 98.74% 
27,400,587 '18,16% 
27.919,756 98.27% 
28,'.l47,0SS 99.06% 
29,246.328 99.25% 

(K) The LIU< roll>: v."eT"C ~~in the aftermath ofHurricaJ!es Katrina and RJ\3 LO aUow forttot:m damage. 
The LIU< collection pmc:css was also delayed 90 days by order of !he Govcmon orrJCC. 

(l) (1) 
Dellaqueat ToiJIJ 

Tax Tax 
Colleciou CoUedlo..., 

652,225 s 19.163,677 
368.9.5 20,?66,922 
230,553 25,053,478 
R55,S60 26,588,133 
480,(118 26,514,809 
486,842 26,767,993 
429,560 27,447,509 
410,070 27,810,657 
586,736 28,06,512 
392,24S 28,739,300 
1.67,927 29,514.255 

11) II should be oottd tlto:t the dc:linqiiCnt tax collection column iDe tudes taxes colledccl during that pen leu lilt' fl5C81 yrAr for !II open tax ron yurs. 
Thll5, the cumnttax collection column and !he dtlinqunu w collection column represent the total amount C!OIIecttd in lhat f15C81 yrar. 
As alC!iUil, the rocal tax collection oolumn •nd the pueeot of total tax collections show the amoutn colleG!Cd for tlurt fbcal year and noc fOr 
lb.: panicular taK ron year. Wean: woricing on revising !his scbedule to represent tl1e total coOections by tax roll year and hope to preset~~ 
it bl Ibis format in the 1\nure. 

(11 At tl1e end ofcaeh tax season, the Sheriff holds a "Ill>< sate• on 1U propcrtics Wlth delinqucnt taxes. lfnn4 pun:hased at the taJt sale, the property adjudicates 
In !he PAriah of Jefferson. The delinquent !axes will not be collected until the property is sold O{ placed bllek into commerce. Thus, there W111 almost always be 
10 ou.L~IJmding 4elt~nt tax amount. 

TABLE 10 

(I) (1) 
Peruat of C•rreat l'tretnt of 
TotalT.u O allltao41og DeliDqu•m 

Coll«ttoliJ to Otllaqoent Tans to 
Total Tu Le•' TaxH TnLc• v 

101.79% $ 314.615 1.67"11. 
99.81% 408,604 1.95% 
96.25% 1,205,980 4.63~. 

100.81% 642,797 2.44% 
100.13% 445,999 1.68% 
100.61% 325,649 1.22% 
100.31% 345,578 l.26% 
99.63% 513,690 1.84% 

100.33% 492,409 1,73% 
100.43% 269.616 0.94% 
100, 16"1o 222,070 0.75% 



JEFFF.ttSON PARISH SHEIUFJo'S OFFICE TABU: II 
thrvty. LouJshua 

TAXABLE SALESBYCATEGORY 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(o,.ounb exprased In lho11J8ndJ) 

(Uli!AIJDn'IUl) 

lOIII 2009 1010 1011 201l lOU lOU lOlS 10" 1011 '4 

CATI.GOltV 
AwituJtun:, Furuo.,., Fltbiog &11d !llmtin( 679,430 1,434,S70 20'1,9'!0 198,02iJ 154.3<1<\ 89.130 ) 11.437 I!J,lJI J 'IS, ISS 11!.191 0.1011. 
MoniDQ. ~lrryiog. 111d O!l llld a .. -;,• 2,$20.5)0 l,!l$1,200 2,J!..l,7SO l,199,?SO <1,1?5,1.W 4..SCYI.&SO l8,W;20.S 4,703,396 l,W,IJI 2.A'l0,119 105"' 
\,llilibc 512.1150 SS0,410 S47,l¥0 S62.1'10 s.•1.msn 6(',1,8)0 48~.173 482,36Z 415,475 4St.s l7 0.111% 
C'.tml!tnicbuu m ,sUI 151,100 767,380 &56,410 1,1))2.700 '111'1,120 I,J16,7)6 1.536,496 t,lt\J,W W,lBl 0-
MAll .......... 24,396,560 11,67~70 16.221,900 18,$.49,010 22.197,740 29,179.930 }A,?lO,I~I 31,412,1~ ll,9U,944 1Moo,on 10.8il% 
'M\oh::~~~~1a Trade: 13,?2&,4\lO 2),72l,9'jlll 16,191,010 26,593,160 45,414,710 42,151,190 66,~5.~Sl 91,(})<1,171 J0,051,04S )l,IJM.S16 14.22'1' 
Jldai1'T~c 79,412,$10 IIO,SOI,llO ~9.402.61}0 '16,658,750 11)3,91\1,940 1<14.S«S,?OO 110,09S,18l ~6U,dO 1Al,7JI?,S6'J 147.96l;614 e~.131" 

1'fefi$011ation•~ War~hl! 21~0 IBIUIIO ISO,SSO Ml.1180 90),790 595,050 US.Slll 105,11')9 1!4,~8\ 124.918 0.06¥. 
1f!f0nu11en !.O.SO,llO 10-41 .. 760 12.&J'2.9'10 12.6<17,550 t l,W)10 U 1Uil,470 lO.W,AIIi a,sn,us 1.Sf4n1 7,608,692 3.2M'o 
flnaccMd IDs~ 226,420 2.10,260 263,720 210,5110 33 .. 700 ).0,410 402,111 373.304 3<.5,163 .. S6,GI2 0.10'11 
Real l!!seJ"Ce OIPd R.lnUI <tl\d t..cuin1 ),059,61<1 2,741,lU:O l,•l!li,?!IU l,91&,9SO 5,367,210 s,99),610 6,121,157 6,039,1?9 ~.S62,2l6 5,1<S,lZI 2..41" 
l'rorOil!k'lr!"'· Sci_.~r~U~ -auc;tT«hoic:J1 ~ 2l3,1SO ll5,310 219.784 ))),810 l.ll5,8AO 1100,010 1•2,)15 1,099.482 1,109.01J 1.101,065 0-46% 
Mlnei!Jp.'tllalt of 0Mnp31lic:a rud Enu:rprim 160 ll6 

·~· 
)JOl •.em O.OQ%. 

Admonla1n!ci\'e Sllppln,WMicM .. •~""'"'I ,.,~ tt...,olitUoo 1,073,100 1,114,720 1,311,'190 &13,410 ¥61,710 971,3~ 1,117!,195 j,II7,<S~ 96.1,1i96 t,t42,rn 0.48'A 

Educati0111IS<ni"" l7o,9oo )60.110 17,160 9,460 11.900 611,1!0 6S.l6J )!,1!7 4?,-'35 01,419 0.~ 

Beo!th C.rc<nd !:o&l """"""' 4lS,220 369..1l0 319.680 S00,420 33,,!'10 21~.·70 21l8.S9J 249,292 l32.6U 141.)0? 0.10% 
:\ru, E'ltaumtrN:r~t, ;"d l«:rtatfOD Sl l,470 491,010 517,030 1~0.260 148,660 119,970 118,591 219,611 210,5!9 214,617 0.00% 
A-Oil<! FoodS..._ l.~J,HO 3,1114.440 l,786,foM . 0,001,,10 l,97l,69Q ),794,210 3,787,971 3,911.653 3,11&1,150 },!67,75~ Ul2% 

00.,. -(-l'ublioAdmi'"'ITalHio) 4.6'/li,IOO .s,sot.l'IO 7.247.7110 7.17~.410 7,109.ll0 5,02.120 5,.119,220 s.zrn.m S,l1?,31l 5.600.355 2.36% 
l'llbll<Mmilwlrnbon \QI.~ llil,l\lO 80<_490 282,480 112,830 l66,2fil) t'J9,-490 169,SS4 131,lSd 86,«3 0.0<1!, 

...... 
00 

TolaiT•<~blel\eyco- s 1"249,210 IS4.47S)l!O 156,0Sl o:zo l18,5At. 200 210 801,7.10 lll ,Jf>6.61ii 250 081 622 ys,461J42 w 866e'P 2l8,lll,!l7 100.~ 

0\ Sala uxn1e~lries b)'tyr~tofllcnt.A.lla:t 
o.:. ... o~s.J .. ~.15m' 4.150'14 <.156'.4 4.150% oJ,lllnl 4.750'14 4,7WI' 4.7lWo ~.7.!0'14 4.750% 
food and IJn'<l' l.'illO% 3.5110% l.S\l0'.4 3.500% 3.500% JSIJO% 3,51)(1)1 1.s~t 3.~00% 3.500% 
flo!d/M«d IW<HIIJ\mtli)J ) ,750'14 3.750'14 3.m% 3,7SOI< Msl'l% 1.75~ J.1SO% 3.15111' 3,750% ) .75011. 

Sho~ff'• 0\<ec:t Sa\t$T .. Flato OJl$'14 O.l7.!% O.l7J'I' O.l7l10 0,)75% OJ lSI' 0.17!% 0.375" .. 0.315'14 0,375'1< 

50\JRC£, Jdllnao P-Sllorii!'J Qlllu.,.! Eo;.Otl;cio'Th<Olll...,. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERJFF'S OFFICE 
Harvey, Louislnnu 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RAtES (1) 
LAST TEN }'ISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

TAXING BODY 

State T ulng Oodles 
Slate of Louisl;~M 

Local T aslnc llodift 
Jelfcnon l'llri~h Council 

Les• laltes dedic•tod lO: 
Jeffenon Parisb Pvblic School S~m 
JcfTcDon Vari.O Sbmff's Office 

Ncl Olreel Ta.-.: Rate for JolfcriOn Parish Council 

Jeffcroon Parisi\ Public Sebool System 
Add wes dedicated fi'om Jefferson Parish Council 

Net t>irect Ta.• Rate for Jefferson Parisb Public School $)'MelD 

Law l!nfortement Olstritl (I.e, Ute Sherifl's Offie<~) 
A&llaxe• dedicated from Jefferson Parish Coun~n 

Net Oirt!Cl T~ Rate fur Jeffo:<Son Parish Sherifl's Office 

LoCal Ta• llate 

Tollll Sales Tax ~tc 

SOURC'R: Jef'l'ctfaTI Pllrish SJ>edtl't Office lllld Ex .Officio T.,. Collec:tor 

NOTES: 

1003 2009 2010 

4.000% 4.000% 4.000% 

J.D()O% 3.000~ 3,000% 

..O.SOO% -0.500% -0.500% 
..(),125% -0.125% ..().125% 
2.375% 2375,6 2.375% 

1.500% 1.500% 1,500% 
0.500% O,SOO% 0,500% 
2.000% 2.000% 2.000% 

0.250% 0.250% 0.250% 
0.125% 0.125% 0.125% 
0.375% 0.375% 0.315% 

4.750% 4.750% 4.750% 

8.150% 8..7.50% 8.750% 

(I) None oflllo muwcipalii!Ct< in J~trt:roon Parish levy a $;1Jes W directly. All collectlonsQfParl•h 0< Law Enfuram0111 salestBXes 
in the municip;itities are remitted back to lhc municipllity ro fund tho respective dedicated operatioiU. Thll!. the Parish Coooeil 
nnd the Sheriffs Ofllce ordy see collections from the uniCOf1)otated areas of lhc pari•h. 

TABLE 12 

lOll 20U 1013 2014 1015 2016 1017 

4.000% 4.000% 4.000% 4.000% 4.000% 4.000% 4.000% 

3.000% 3.000% 3.00~~ 3.000% 3.000% 3.000,~ 3-.000% 

-O.SO~ -0.500".4 -0.500% ·0.500% -O.SOO% -0.500% -ll.SOO% 
-0.125% -0.125% -0.125% -0.125% -0.125% -0.125% -0.125% 
2.375% 2.375% 2.375% 2.315% 2.375% 2375% 2.3?S% 

1.5~ 1.500% l.SOO% 1.500% I.SOO% ).500% 1.500% 
0.500% 0.500% 0.500% 0.500% 0.500% 0.500% 0.500% 
2.000% 2.000% 2.000% 2.000% 2.000% 2.000% 2.ooo% 

0.250% 0.250"A. 0.250% 0.250% 0.250% 0.250% 0.250% 
0.125% 0.125% OJ2S% 0.125% 0.125% 0.125% 0.125% 
0.375% 0375% 0.375% 0.375% 0.375"/o 0.375% 0.375% 

4.750% 4.75()% 4 .• 7SOO,io 4.750% 4.750% 4.750% 4.750% 

8.750% 8.750% 8,750% 8..150% 8.150% 8.750% 8.75.0% 
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JEFFERSON PARlSRSHERJFF'S OFFICE 
Harvey, Louisiana 

SALES TAX REVENUE PAYERS BY INDUSTRY 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENllED JUNE 30,2017 AND JUNE 30,2008 (NINE YEARS AGO) 
(dollar amounts expressed in fhousands) 

(UNAUDITED) 

Fiscal Year June 30,2017 

Number Per«:ntage Tu 

INDUSTRY ofFHI!O or Total Llabtllty 

A~culture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 25 0 .15% s 575 
Mining, Quanying, nnd Oil and Gas Extraction 199 ),20% 887 
Utilities 61 0.37% 1,013 

Constructio•1 576 3.47% 2,843 

Manufac\UI'ing 2,222 13.37% 19,5'47 

W11olesale Trade 1,)45 8.10% 24,495 

Re1ail Trnde 5,217 3l.40"1a 257.747 

Trnri!!J)Ortlltion and Warehousing 154 0.93% 1,188 

IntoJmatioo 563 3.39% 10.372 

Flnance and ln5urnnce 189 1.14% 1,606 

Real Estate. Rental rutd l.easing 908 5.47% 17.426 

l'rofessiooal, Scientific. and Technical Services li84 4.12% 2.338 

Management of Companies lind l::nterprises 9 0.05% 38 
Adminisl1ative, Support, Waste Mgmt and Remediation 417 2.51% 1.520 

Educational ScJVices 63 0.38% 90 

Health Care and Social Assistance 248 1.49% 13,090 

Arts, Entertainment, and Rooreation 229 1.38% 4,263 

Accommodation Md Food Services 1.653 9.95% 52,377 

Other Services (except !'oblic Adiminis1111tion) 1.810 10.89% 16.065 

Public Adminislnllion 42 0.25% 146 

Total 16,614 100..00% s 427,626 

SOURCE: Jefferson Pnrisb Sooritf and Ex-Officio Talt Colle<>tor 

NOTESr 

Percentage 
of Total 

0.13% 
0.21% 
0.24% 
0.66% 
4.57% 
5.73% 

60.27% 
0.28% 
2A3% 

0.38% 
4.08% 

0.55% 
0.01% 
0.36% 
0.02% 
3.06% 
1.00% 

12.25% 
3.76% 
0.03% 

100.00% 

(I) Doe to confidentiality issues, the names oftbe ten largest revenue payem are not available, 1'lu: cate!,'Uries presented are inteded to provide 
alternative in(oJmation regarding the :10un:es of the Sheriff's re;~cooc. 

(2) Several different types of liabililles are not included above as they relate to tax liabilities generated by other than a return. 
Oislributfon of Louisiana State Auto Rental Till< is not included 
lnstallmeot agreements and accrued inten=st payments are not included 

(3) Audit coRections are reported in the fiscal year corresponding to December of the last ye.~r of the audit period. 
(4) Annual returns are reported on a calendar year basis and are included in the fiscal year corresponding to l>el:emb~'l' for the return. 

TABLE 13 

Fiscal Year June 30, 2008 

Numbe~ Percentage Tu Perol\lltage 
ofFUers of Total UabUity of Total 

273 1.76% s 1.480 0.35% 
227 1.46% 1,630 0.38% 

81 0.52% 1,1 40 0.27% 
458 2.95% 7,310 1.71% 

2,409 15.50% 34,080 7.97% 
917 5.90% 20,990 4.91% 

5,533 35.61% 263,120 61.51% 
162 1.04% 1.490 035% 
517 3.33% 7.240 1.69% 

129 0.83% 1,520 0.36% 
745 4.79% 15.920 3.72% 
357 2.30% 3.440 0.80% 

0.00"/o 0.00% 
338 2.18% 2,130 0.50% 
229 1.47% 660 0.15% 
179 US% 8,560 2.00% 
310 1.99% 8,250 1.93% 

1,276 8.21% 34,260 8.01% 
1.357 8.73% 14,270 3.34% 

42 0.27% 290 0.07% 

15,539 100.00% s 427,780 100.00% 
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JEFFERSON P ARISB SHERIFF'S OFF1CE 
Harvey~ Louisiana 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita) 

(UNAUDITED) 

Governmental Activities 
(l) 

Limited Community 
Fiscal Tax Revenue Disaster 
Year Bonds Loan 

2008 $ $ 

2009 30,000 
2010 29,070 
2011 28,095 
2012 ll,680 (4) 
2013 10,610 
2014 9,490 
2015 8,315 
2016 7,085 
2017 5,795 

NOTES: 

(1) 
Total 

Primary 
Government 

6,391 $ 6,391 
6,552 36,552 
6,714 35,784 
6,875 34,970 
7,037 18,717 
7,198 17,808 

(5) 9,490 
8,315 
7,085 
5,795 

(1) 
(2) 

Details regarding the Sheriff's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements 
The Sheriff borrowed $6.0 million in Community Disaster Loans following Hurricane Katrina. The 
amounts shown above include accrued interest. 

(3) See Table 17 for personal income aod population data. 
(4) The Sheriff defeased a large portion ofthe outstanding bonds in FYE 6/30/12. 
(S) The COL loan to the Sheriff wa.'! forgiven by FEMA onder the r"'vised loan forgiveness rules. 

TABLE 14 

(3) (3) 
Percentage 
of Personal Per 

Income Ca,pita 

0.04% $ 14.86 
0.20% 84.32 
0.20% 81.46 
0.18% 80.33 
0.10% 43.38 
0.09% 41.25 
0.05% 21.83 
0.04% 19.08 
0.03% 16.24 
0.03% 13.28 
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! EFl?ERSON PARISH SHERJJ'F 
Harvey, Loui!riana 

COI\fl'l)l'A TlON Of DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL OULlGATION DEB'I 
JUNE 30, 2017 
(•mounts expressed In thousands) 

(Ul"lAUDITED) 

Tning Jurisdiction 

Direct Bonded Bebt 
Jeff= Parish Sheriff 

LED Limited Re\•enue Bonds 

Ovcrlappi ng: 
Parish of Jefferson 

Special Sale5 Tall and Cenerral Obligation Bonds 

Jefferson i>arish Public School Sy.stem 
Oener.~l Obligation (T8ll) Bonds 

Total Overlapping 

Total Direct and Overlapping 

NO'ttS: 

(4) 
Outstllnding 

Debt 

5,195 (1) 
5,795 

193,990 
193,900 

(2) 

218,3 14 (3) 
218,3 14 

412,214 

418,009 

Percent 
0•-erlapvtns 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

2017 Population 

Ptli'Capita 

(I) The Bonds were issued by the law Enforcement District (LED) of Jeffcrsoo Parish (i.e., the Shetif}), 
llle ad valorem tues of the LED/Sheriff are spccifrt:;JJiy dedjcated te> pay these bonds. Amount as of June 30, 2017, 

(2) These nmou.nts area! of December 31,2016. 
(3) These amounts are as ofJune 30, 2016. 
(4) Overlapping governments arc those that coincide, at least in pan, with !be geographic bo1mdalies of the: Parish. 

This schedule ~'limates the portion oft he outstandlng general obligation debt of those overlapping governments 
that is to be borne by the residents and businesses of the Parish. TI1is process recogni7.es thnt, when <:Qnsidering 
the govemmen~s ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the eotite debt burden borne by the residents and businesses 
should be tal< ell into account. Howewr, this docs not imply that every taxpayer is a resident. and therefore responsible 
for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government. On\y those debt issuances tha~are considered to be 
"parisi\•IVi.de" aod funded as "gencral-obligntion bonds" of fue agencies an: reported 

$ 

$ 

s 

TABLE \5 

Overlapping 
Debt 

5 795 
5,795 

193 900 
193,900 

218,314 
218,314 

412,214 

418:009 

436,523 

958 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF 
Harvey, Louisiana 

COMPL'T A l'ION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 
LAST TEN FISCAl, YEARS 
(amounts expressed In thousands) 

(UNAUDITED) 

~value (Table 7) s 

Times 10 pctCI!III 

O.b\Llmil 

Bonded Debt A'jJplitable to I ;imlt (l'ablt>"l 41) 

Leg•1 Dcbl Matyin s 

NOTES: 

2008 2609 

3.34M30 s 3~70.541 

10.()0% 10.00% 

334.003 :397,054 

30,000 

334.003 s 367,054 

2010 lOll 1011 

s 4,014,691 s 4.000,208 s 4,004,920 

10.00% 10.00%. 10.00% 

401,469 400.021 400,492 

19,070 28.095 11 ,680 

s 372..399 s :171,926 s 388,812 

p.,- LRS 39:562. no debt shall be utwrred and Btneral cbtfgatlcn bortdJ issued t~or by any oubdivision hereunder whieb .. sh!lll exceed in the asgregate 
10 percent oflhe assessed valuation of tho w.ablo proJ'ert)l os sueb subdivision, including bot!) homestead examp~ pmpmy und.nClllcx.empt proporty . 

TABLE16 

1013 101. 2015 2016 2017 

s 4,089,295 s 4,136.223 s 4,210,62ll s 4,228.049 4,331,422 

IO.OO"A. 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 

40&,930 41:3,622 421,063 422,805 433,142 

10.610 9,490 8~15 1.085 5,195 

.$ 398,320 s 404,132 411.748 415,120 427 347 



_. 
ID 
N 

JEFFERSON P ARlSB SHERIFF 
.Harvey, Louisiana 

DEMOGRAPIDC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 
LAST TEN YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

Fiscal School 
Year Population (1) Enrollment (2) 

2008 429,994 63,950 
2009 433,483 65,860 
2010 439,261 63,173 
2011 435,334 64,930 
2012 431 ,426 65,082 

2013 431 ,732 46,108 
2014 434,767 45,048 

2015 435,716 47,977 
2016 436,275 48,737 
2017 436,523 49,076 

Source: 

(in Sl,OOO's) 
Per Capita Personal 
Income (3) Income (4) 

$ 35,968 $ 16,282,893 
42,010 18,498,697 
41,088 18,269,996 
43,862 19,445,705 
43 ,315 18,687,270 

(A) 44,821 19,391,284 
(A) 45,932 19,969,663 
(A) 45,954 20,022,745 
(A) 46,922 20,471 ,082 
(A) 47,591 20,774,666 

(1) Bureau of Economic Analysis, lJ.S. Department of Commerce (CAl -Population by Parish/County -December 31 , 20 16) 
(2) Louisiana Department of Education (www.louisianabelieves.com), as of October 2015 
(3) Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce (CAl - Per Capita Income- December 31 , 20 16) 
( 4) Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce (CAl - Personal Income- December 31 , 20 16) 
(5) Louisiana Workforce Commission and/or Bureau of Labor Statistics (as ofJune 30, 2016) 

NOTES: 
(A) For 2013 and on, only the public school enrollment numbers were available. There are a number of private and parochial 

schools in the area that information was not available from. 

TABLE 17 

Unemployment 
Rate (5) 

3.70% 
4.80% 
6.50% 
7.30% 
8.10% 
7.30% 
6.40% 
6.30% 
6.10% 
5.20% 



Jl:FFt:RSON PARJSB SHERIFf 
lhrvey, Loaisiana 

PRINClP AL EMPLOYERS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED J UNE 3011017 AND JUNE 30, 2008 (NlNE YEARS A(;(J) 

(UNAliDITEDl 

111!!-ofBuslnas 

Med.,.VllO<pital 

JcffC!'$on l'lri>h I'Ubllc Sdlool S)o>.tom Pl!blic~n 

East l dJtr!Oil Genml Hospitol 

Lou~Siom OtU4ccn'> Me<lital Center (formerly Wts1 J.m:.- Medicol Center) 

Law Enforoemort 

Audnbon Enginecrlog Comt>""Y U..C 

llle!;sey MArine Semcc Inc 

Superior~ Service& Oil l'leld SI.'I'Vio:cs 

Acme Trude Liot) Trucking 

TOTAL 

SOli~" Jeffm011 Pnrisb Econom;c OcvoloJl'lltnl Corporation (JEOCO). 

NOTES: 
(I) J)ata .. ofDea:mber Jlllt for...:h )'eM(rhbs, 2017 ;, a<:lu>lly osofOo«:mbor Jl, 201&) 

1017tl! 

l!m~l!!):"ft! lbnk 

16,771 

6.S40 

3,1106 

3,1100 

1 ,065 

1,526 6 

1,4&0 7 

9~0 

832 

494 tO 

36,624 

TABLE 18 

l008 I II 
Perc"t or Pertentor 

Total ToW 
Emei!!J-mtnt EmJ!t-heet Rsak EmeWl mm.t. 

8.01% 10,112 5.~7% 

3J211. 7.000 2. 3.!10% 

I.H% 3.671 5 2.05% 

1.43% 3..371 1.88% 

0.00% O.(IMI. 

0.13% 1,3 17 0.00'.4 

0.69% (}.00% 

04S\~ Q.OO% 

o.~ 0.~. 

0,00% 5.400 l 3.01% 

0.00% 4,AOO 2.45% 

O.OO'A l.JSO 1.20% 

O.Oil'4 1,000 LU% 

0.00% 1.750 10 0.91f% 

16.27% 41.131 22.26% 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SliERIFF 
Harvey, Louisiana 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

2008 2009 1010 
(1) 

Public Safety (2) 

Executive 9 9 8 
Clvi13Jid Support 153 115 120 
Finance and Admlnistretiv" 68 60 60 
F.lo:o:l 26 28 28 
Revenue and TI!Xntion 51 50 51 
Operations 311 30'1 307 
Special Opcnilions 78 '80 80 
Technical Sc:rviccs 191 202 191 
Internal Managm~ent 20 45 23 
Criminallnve3tigat)ons 135 146 148 

Special Investigations 59 64 64 
Nnn;otics 47 55 56 
Corrections 330 329 342 

1,478 1,490 1,478 

SOURCE: Sherifl's Pcn;onnel Oeparlulo:nt 

NOTES; 

2011 2012 2013 2014 
(3) 

8 8 8 7 
06 88 86 87 
58 60 66 89 
27 29 28 25 

48 51 49 46 
295 311 295 288 
43 41 41 46 

164 190 183 205 
22 20 8 7 

148 lSI 152 151 

63 72 69 79 
53 51 47 so 

353 382 365 359 

1,418 1,454 Y97 1,439 

(I) Executive Bureau included approximately 80 school crossing guards in some }'eafli (depending on when staffing report was ron). 
The rn~ssing guards work 9J months per year (while school is open) and are off during summer months. 

(2) Civil and Support Services Buresu was split out &om Executive and Finance Bureaus. 

2015 

7 
85 
87 
26 
47 

293 
45 

200 
8 

ISS 
77 
51 

358 

1,439 

(3) 111e Tnming Academy and Firing Range Divisions were reru;signed. from fntemal Management Burea"ll. to the Fihance and Admin BllfC3U for t IJ 1\J, 

TABLE19 

2017 Over 
2016 2017 Authorized jUnder) 

8 13 l3 
81 78 85 (7) 
88 66 78 (12) 
25 23 24 (I) 
47 45 49 (4) 

293 296 287 9 
47 46 48 (2) 

202 197 211 (14) 
8 7 8 (I) 

153 147 159 (12) 
80 82 84 (2) 
50 52 53 (l) 

:367 352 375 (23) 

1.449 1,404 1,474 (70) 



Jl!~"ft'.RSON PA1USil SHEIIl fll 
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OPV.IIATING INDICATORS 
l.artTe:n Fiscal Yean 

(\!NAUDIT&DJ 

Crime 8talla&tu:­
M\a'4'" 
R• pb 
llo.bhr"lu 
Auo.utt. 

...... .,. 
'[\e.ft_ 

Vc""Wdr1'...a 

( I t 

( I) 

(II 

:IS9 Laod 
1n w •. tu 

{3) 
Jmc.JU,llOM 

14l ..SM 

70.766 

!\ll1 

~t.m 

4.26 

51 

" 591 
1.70~ 

[3) 
Ji"tltJO, teat 

A3),A8J 

JlS.\12 

m.sos 

jJ,Jil 

l.9S 

l2.9.lJ) 

ll0.9H 

6!.026 

SS.Ol'l 

47 
71 

4!6 
I..SOS 

2J09 

3 •. 111 
?343 
I,H50 

(Jl 
JOM< JO, 1011 

ll6.llll 

l lUOJ 

143.509 

4J) 

•7.959 

uo 

-~ ---li6i0 

'N()'Tf.$: 
( 0 VV tliOl.lnmc tWrr.e .. • •n .,.._.., "lltm'" Mm.bn ant1 en IKIOII~ 

I• ti!K dllt fot' ..enicn c.•. Th••· C.•ne •tadadn '"""" lft<Ttata.. 

l'lllO 

149 

(Z) Tht •••ahtla rw JWJoe-JO.lfiO' "" ._..due co Rurrtuu K.trbL Tllc h ra.t1 w•• •ntutrll for motl 
"' Sepccmtkr l ttS ad c.rltoc.• •• tt wru. Mf pr.JucN f• Sc:pem~bcr ...-Ckt~ toO$. 

()) llu too ofpaput.tlH rtom U•nir.t kt;trl~r~~ cootlntm. 

l5'7t!9 

7,193.1 $4 $ 

ZS.W7,Jlol7 

5.710.270 

(4) n l0t$,1h,c rupuau Uma caltu.lai:M' rrem lb• CAD (lllqtoa1dllfl.a} ~nn-w_. m..JIO~. 1f'lll• ....- •how• • •·tn:A-r ofl)frttpODM lhnfor C.U1 or 3(tmtf1<0C1) c«<«.t onty, 

1.68 

J1 
75 

477 
1.100' 

1779 

2,721 
9.619 
ass 

1HIJ 

um 

46.3 

<431 ,131 

>ZJ.799 

li),7AO 

}.7£ 

12.241 

u.tn 

10 

.. m .111 

s 

()) 

Jmt-.W.1114 

4l4.167 

lJo,m 

290,!22 

21),)J.ot 

ll!>.l'll 

4JO 

Hill 

2.264 
9.6&1 

110 

ll..7SS 

71 

213 ... 3)9 

330.~ 

l'7t!.l30 

(3) 
4nt 30..10115 

131,414 

l01,449 

61,7l'U 

63~ 

l 1 
90 

-10" 
1,1)2 

----"-'"'690"'- --- ----.:m 
1.1177 1.710 
9.511 9.121 
n• 6n 

------'1'-<l·"''rr" --~ 

IUO'J 13 167 

};69.SOS ).S'?.l41 

39.1 

'Y• 
c ...... 

OJ% 

lli .IIO 

l73.Wl -8.1'14 

11.571 ..)'2,)% 

.. •J.l% 
5I .J9.,n\ 

416 ~.9% 

1.1171 ..s.~ 

15&9 

----"10615 

12.:!0< 

S7 

4 ,0% 

-3.1'4 
4 1% 
3.7'1.. 

·7M4 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF 
flarvey, Louisiana 

CAPITAL t\SSET STATlSTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
LAST TEN YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 
(1) (1) (1) (2) (2) (2) (2) 

2008 1009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Progum/Fuactioo 

Publlc SII!ety 
Number ofBuildin!JS 

General and Support 9 9 9 9 9 10 10 
District Sll!tious 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

E!Jlefgeocy Operations 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 
(4) Other Ulw Enfotcemcnt 5 s 5 s s 4 4 

Radio Tower Sires 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
23 23 2J 23 24 14 15 

Nwnbcro(Vchicles (2) 
EJ<eQ!ti\le 10 10 9 9 9 'I 9 

Civil ond Support Services 94 102 109 79 81 81 76 
Fiuat~ce and Administmrive 47 40 38 36 37 so 48 

(3) l'lcet 136 282 191 195 116 199 l3l 
Rcvcn.ue and 1'-.<Xation 25 24 23 24 2R 28 25 
Opcratiom 404 412 402 390 399 410 402 
Special Operations 249 283 268 251 237 142 238 
TechltJolll Services 75 80 63 77 75 RO 9 1 
Internal Man~gt:ment ~~ 32 34 35 30 16 16 
CriJninal Investigations 1)3 138 146 129 135 141 138 
Spc:eiallnvcstigatiOJ~~ 86 96 101 101 115 ll4 106 
Nan;oti<:$ 65 63 74 67 66 60 66 
Coro:qions 61 59 44 37 35 34 37 

Non-departmerual 
1.416 1.621 1,SO:Z 11430 1.423 1,464 1~83 

(3) 
SOURCE: JI'SO Prot><cy lllvl•l(lll and &•t~ank Motorpool 

(I) nata oot avnilable for vehicles, 
(2) Vehicles include polloi O&Tll, odmini~tnltive c:~rs, pool ears, reserve cars. boa!S, tn>.iiCJS. rescue vehieles. SWAT vthiclcs. mobile CQmmand centers, etc. 
(3) Tbe inOTCaJ<c noted was <.lue to the timing of the aMual car auction being delayed till after year en<L ApproximHtely I 00 vehicles~ sold sub!11!qUeJII to year end. 
(4) Tbe Jdferson Pairsh Col'I"Cti~utl Cenll:r (i.e., the jail) i$ excluded •iru:e the l?arisb of Jefferson QWOS tlte building and the Sheriff 011\y $1Jlffs the jail. 

TABLE21 

(2) (1) (2) 
2015 "1016 2017 

10 IU 10 
4 •I 4 
4 4 ' 4 4 4 

3 3 3 
25 25 25 

8 IU 14 
79 77 74 
60 59 59 

IM 207 262 
24 24 25 

426 413 403 
234 231 22S 

91 94 90 
9 8 6 

141 144 151 
107 106 118 
69 67 (>4 

36 37 33 

1,448 1.477 1.524 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Sheriff Joseph Lopinto 
Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office 
Harvey, Louisiana 

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Audffing Standards 
Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office 
(the Sheriff) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Sheriff's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated December 13, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Sheriff's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sheriffs internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sheriff's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a rnaterial misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Sheriff's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Au lmll'l'l'll<kntlr I )wlll'J M~:mhl·r, R~F\1 US J\JH,u"~· 
ftSM US ~llloli/tt~>'f• •rr .. I.,J' ftr•"~ '"' '"•""''""~'' .,fW 1nd;~,.,..,-.rtt.~t\l lA•.,"I(·,~f'' ~1d No;•, .,,,!•t it'~ 
thrlt IHI1 1\'iiJIOn\lll'V ,Ot lt'l .. h 0\'ln IC'I' _,rl ~""lu.!Oll~ Md ,...rh \\ ~'>.ll•\ft- And ~Ps1d,M 
It urn RS-.c U~&.W.R\MUS Uftt the.• US rt~(lu'!\-.'f f'"''"t A'SM l~l.''llol.ltll•'-ll ,1: gh,lul N'h¥61~ tA 
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Purpose of this Report 

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication Is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Metairie, LA 
December 13, 2017 
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INDPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPUANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Sheriff Joseph Lopinto 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office 
Harvey, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of the Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
The Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the 
tenns and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Jefferson Parish Sheriffs OffiCe's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing standards. 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Tide 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Unifonn Guidance require 
that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Jefferson Parish 
Sheriffs Office's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary In the circumstances. 

We .believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's 
Office's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017 

An ln.lt:pl.'ndvndy l )wm·tl Mmd1ct. l~!i l\1 U.S 1\lli.tnf\' 
ItS~ U\ • ll•"'"t tlftWnti '(;'I IUif'l\ ~ ..-"fi! M"J\111.-fl t• ..nd klrkopi l,d.,•nt ~~ ... "~'-f' M d t~rtJ 'tlt! ltl lr" \ 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Jefferson Parish Sheriff Office's internal control 
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine our auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressjng an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's OffiCe's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency In Internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Metairie, LA 
December 13,2017 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
HARVEY, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Section I. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial 
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness( es) identified? 

Significant deflciency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with section 2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

Unmodified 

No 

None Reported 

No 

No 

None Reported 

Unmodified 

No 

CFDA Numbertsl Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

97.036 
95.001 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B programs 

Auditee qualified as low-risk audttee? 

Section II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

None 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 
High Intensity Dru.g Trafficking Area 

$ 750,000 

Yes 

Section Ill. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS 

None 
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AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT  
Jefferson Parish Sheriff’s Office 

 
Independent Accountant’s Report 

On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 
 

For the Period July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 
 
 

To the Honorable Joseph P. Lopinto, III 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff 
Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 
 
We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Jefferson 
Parish Sheriff’s Office (the Sheriff) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control 
and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA’s Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the fiscal year July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017.  The Sheriff’s management is 
responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 
 
The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this 
report.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures 
described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other 
purpose. 
 
Our procedures and associated results are as follows: 
 
Written Policies and Procedures 
 
1. Obtain the entity’s written policies and procedures and report whether those written policies 

and procedures address each of the following financial/business functions (or report that the 
entity does not have any written policies and procedures), as applicable: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget 
b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 

vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes.  

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

d) Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving 
time and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard 
terms and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process 



2 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how 
cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, 
(4) required approvers, and (5) monitoring card usage 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-
1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor 
possible ethics violations, and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected 
officials, annually attest through signature verification that they have read the entity’s 
ethics policy.  Note: Ethics requirements are not applicable to nonprofits. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) EMMA reporting requirements, 
(3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

 
Results:  The Sheriff’s written policies and procedures address each of the 
financial/business functions listed above in items a) through j). 

 
Board (or Finance Committee, if applicable) 
 
2. Obtain and review the board/committee minutes for the fiscal period, and: 

a) Report whether the managing board met (with a quorum) at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board’s enabling legislation, charter, or other 
equivalent document. 

b) Report whether the minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual 
comparisons on the General Fund and any additional funds identified as major funds in 
the entity’s prior audit (GAAP-basis). 

 If the budget-to-actual comparisons show that management was deficit spending 
during the fiscal period, report whether there is a formal/written plan to eliminate the 
deficit spending for those entities with a fund balance deficit.  If there is a 
formal/written plan, report whether the meeting minutes for at least one board 
meeting during the fiscal period reflect that the board is monitoring the plan. 

c) Report whether the minutes referenced or included non-budgetary financial information 
(e.g., approval of contracts and disbursements) for at least one meeting during the fiscal 
period. 
 
Results:  This section is not applicable to the Sheriff. 

 
Bank Reconciliations 
 
3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts from management and management’s 

representation that the listing is complete. 
 
Results: Obtained a listing of client bank accounts from management and management’s 
representation the listing is complete. 
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4. Using the listing provided by management, select all of the entity’s bank accounts (if five 
accounts or less) or one-third of the bank accounts on a three year rotating basis (if more 
than 5 accounts).  If there is a change in practitioners, the new practitioner is not bound to 
follow the rotation established by the previous practitioner.  Note: School student activity 
fund accounts may be excluded from selection if they are otherwise addressed in a separate 
audit or AUP engagement.  For each of the bank accounts selected, obtain bank statements 
and reconciliations for all months in the fiscal period and report whether: 

a) Bank reconciliations have been prepared; 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management or a board 
member (with no involvement in the transactions associated with the bank account) has 
reviewed each bank reconciliation; and 

c) If applicable, management has documentation reflecting that it has researched 
reconciling items that have been outstanding for more than 6 months as of the end of the 
fiscal period. 

 
Results: Selected one-third of the bank accounts and noted that all bank reconciliations 
have been prepared and all reconciliations include evidence that a member of management 
has reviewed the reconciliation.   
 
We noted that four checks which had been outstanding for more than 6 months did not have 
documentation of research. 
 

Collections 
 
5. Obtain a listing of cash/check/money order (cash) collection locations and management’s 

representation that the listing is complete. 
 
Results:  Obtained a listing of cash/check/money order collection locations from 
management and management’s representation the listing is complete. 

 
6. Using the listing provided by management, select all of the entity’s cash collection locations 

(if five locations or less) or one-third of the collection locations on a three year rotating basis 
(if more than 5 locations).  If there is a change in practitioners, the new practitioner is not 
bound to follow the rotation established by the previous practitioner.  Note: School student 
activity funds may be excluded from selection if they are otherwise addressed in a separate 
audit or AUP engagement.  For each cash collection location selected: 

a) Obtain existing written documentation (e.g., insurance policy, policy manual, job 
description) and report whether each person responsible for collecting cash is (1) 
bonded, (2) not responsible for depositing the cash in the bank, recording the related 
transaction, or reconciling the related bank account (report if there are compensating 
controls performed by an outside party), and (3) not required to share the same cash 
register or drawer with another employee. 

b) Obtain existing written documentation (e.g., sequentially numbered receipts, system 
report, reconciliation worksheets, policy manual) and report whether the entity has a 
formal process to reconcile cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, by a person who is not 
responsible for cash collections in the cash collection location selected. 
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c) Select the highest (dollar) week of cash collections from the general ledger or other 
accounting records during the fiscal period and: 

 Using entity collection documentation, deposit slips, and bank statements, trace 
daily collections to the deposit date on the corresponding bank statement and report 
whether the deposits were made within one day of collection.  If deposits were not 
made within one day of collection, report the number of days from receipt to deposit 
for each day at each collection location. 

 Using sequentially numbered receipts, system reports, or other related collection 
documentation, verify that daily cash collections are completely supported by 
documentation and report any exceptions. 

Results:  Selected one third of the cash collection locations and noted that employees that collect 
cash are bonded.  The employees responsible for collecting cash are not responsible for depositing 
the cash in the bank, recording the related transaction or reconciling the relate bank account and are 
not required to share the same cash register or drawer with another employee. 
 
The Sheriff has a formal process to reconcile cash collections to the general ledger by a person who 
is not responsible for cash collection in the collection locations selected. 
 
For the week of cash collection selected for each location, the deposits were deposited into the bank 
account greater than one day of collection – the range of days was from 1 to 7 days at one location, 
from 1 to 18 days at another location, and 1 to 11 days at the final location. 
 
All daily cash collection were completely supported by documentation. 

 
7. Obtain existing written documentation (e.g., policy manual, written procedure) and report 

whether the entity has a process specifically defined (identified as such by the entity) to 
determine completeness of all collections, including electronic transfers, for each revenue 
source and agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation) by a person who is not responsible 
for collections. 

 
Results:  The Sheriff has a process specifically defined to determine completeness of all 
collections by a person who is not responsible for collections. 

 
Disbursements - General (excluding credit card/debit card/fuel card/P-Card purchases or 
payments) 
 
8. Obtain a listing of entity disbursements from management or, alternately, obtain the general 

ledger and sort/filter for entity disbursements.  Obtain management’s representation that the 
listing or general ledger population is complete. 
 
Results: Obtained a listing of disbursements from management and management’s 
representation that the listing was complete. 
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9. Using the disbursement population from #8 above, randomly select 25 disbursements (or 
randomly select disbursements constituting at least one-third of the dollar disbursement 
population if the entity had less than 25 transactions during the fiscal period), excluding 
credit card/debit card/fuel card/P-card purchases or payments.  Obtain supporting 
documentation (e.g., purchase requisitions, system screens/logs) for each transaction and 
report whether the supporting documentation for each transaction demonstrated that: 

a) Purchases were initiated using a requisition/purchase order system or an equivalent 
electronic system that separates initiation from approval functions in the same manner 
as a requisition/purchase order system. 

b) Purchase orders, or an electronic equivalent, were approved by a person who did not 
initiate the purchase. 

c) Payments for purchases were not processed without (1) an approved requisition and/or 
purchase order, or electronic equivalent; a receiving report showing receipt of goods 
purchased, or electronic equivalent; and an approved invoice. 
 

Results: The supporting documentation for the 25 randomly selected disbursements 
demonstrated each of the required elements in a), b), and c) listed above without exception. 

 
10. Using entity documentation (e.g., electronic system control documentation, policy manual, 

written procedure), report whether the person responsible for processing payments is 
prohibited from adding vendors to the entity’s purchasing/disbursement system. 
 
Results: An employee that serves as a backup for the disbursement process has the ability 
to process payments and also has the ability to add vendors to the Sheriff’s 
purchasing/disbursement system.  All other persons who can process payments are 
prohibited from adding vendors. 

 
11. Using entity documentation (e.g., electronic system control documentation, policy manual, 

written procedure), report whether the persons with signatory authority or who make the final 
authorization for disbursements have no responsibility for initiating or recording purchases. 
 
Results: The persons with signatory authority or who make the final authorization for 
disbursements have no responsibility for initiating or recording purchases. 

 
12. Inquire of management and observe whether the supply of unused checks is maintained in a 

locked location, with access restricted to those persons that do not have signatory authority, 
and report any exceptions.  Alternately, if the checks are electronically printed on blank 
check stock, review entity documentation (electronic system control documentation) and 
report whether the persons with signatory authority have system access to print checks. 
 
Results:  The unused check supply is maintained in a locked location with access restricted 
to someone who does not have signature authority.  In addition, the electronic checks are 
controlled in a manner whereby the persons with signatory authority do not have system 
access. 
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13. If a signature stamp or signature machine is used, inquire of the signer whether his or her 
signature is maintained under his or her control or is used only with the knowledge and 
consent of the signer.  Inquire of the signer whether signed checks are likewise maintained 
under the control of the signer or authorized user until mailed.  Report any exceptions. 

 
Results: No exceptions noted as a result of the procedures performed.  

 
Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 
 
14. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 

P-cards (cards), including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained 
possession of the cards.  Obtain management’s representation that the listing is complete. 
 
Results: Obtained a listing of all active cards from management and management’s 
representation that the listing is complete. 
 

15. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 10 cards (or at least one-third of 
the cards if the entity has less than 10 cards) that were used during the fiscal period, 
rotating cards each year.  If there is a change in practitioners, the new practitioner is not 
bound to follow the rotation established by the previous practitioner. 

Obtain the monthly statements, or combined statements if multiple cards are on one 
statement, for the selected cards.  Select the monthly statement or combined statement with 
the largest dollar activity for each card (for a debit card, select the monthly bank statement 
with the largest dollar amount of debit card purchases) and: 

a) Report whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other 
than the authorized card holder.  [Note:  Requiring such approval may constrain the legal 
authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these 
instances should not be reported.)] 

b) Report whether finance charges and/or late fees were assessed on the selected 
statements. 
 

Results  Selected 10 cards used during the year.  For two of the monthly statements 
selected, there was no evidence that the statement was reviewed or approved, in writing, by 
someone other than the authorized card holder.   
 
There were no finance charges or late fees assessed on the selected statements. 
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16. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #15 above, obtain 
supporting documentation for all transactions for each of the 10 cards selected (i.e. each of 
the 10 cards should have one month of transactions subject to testing). 

a) For each transaction, report whether the transaction is supported by: 

 An original itemized receipt (i.e., identifies precisely what was purchased) 

 Documentation of the business/public purpose.  For meal charges, there should 
also be documentation of the individuals participating. 

 Other documentation that may be required by written policy (e.g., purchase order, 
written authorization.) 

b) For each transaction, compare the transaction’s detail (nature of purchase, dollar 
amount of purchase, supporting documentation) to the entity’s written purchasing/ 
disbursement policies and the Louisiana Public Bid Law (i.e. transaction is a large or 
recurring purchase requiring the solicitation of bids or quotes) and report any exceptions. 

c) For each transaction, compare the entity’s documentation of the business/public purpose 
to the requirements of Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution, which prohibits 
the loan, pledge, or donation of funds, credit, property, or things of value, and report any 
exceptions (e.g., cash advances or non-business purchases, regardless whether they 
are reimbursed).  If the nature of the transaction precludes or obscures a comparison to 
the requirements of Article 7, Section 14, the practitioner should report the transaction as 
an exception. 
 

Results:  Twenty two of the transactions selected did not have documentation of the 
business purpose contained in the supporting documentation for the purchase.   
 
All transactions were supported by an itemized receipt and other documentation required by 
policy.  There were no exceptions to the criteria listed in b) and c) above.   

 
Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

 
17. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and related expense reimbursements, by 

person, during the fiscal period or, alternately, obtain the general ledger and sort/filter for 
travel reimbursements.  Obtain management’s representation that the listing or general 
ledger is complete. 
 
Results: Obtained the general ledger filtered for travel reimbursements during the fiscal year 
from management and management’s representation that the general ledger is complete. 

 
18. Obtain the entity’s written policies related to travel and expense reimbursements.  Compare 

the amounts in the policies to the per diem and mileage rates established by the U.S. 
General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov) and report any amounts that exceed GSA 
rates. 
 
Results:  Obtained the policy and noted no amounts which exceed the GSA rates. 
 

  

http://www.gsa.gov/
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19. Using the listing or general ledger from #17 above, select the three persons who incurred 
the most travel costs during the fiscal period.  Obtain the expense reimbursement reports or 
prepaid expense documentation of each selected person, including the supporting 
documentation, and choose the largest travel expense for each person to review in detail.  
For each of the three travel expenses selected: 

a) Compare expense documentation to written policies and report whether each expense 
was reimbursed or prepaid in accordance with written policy (e.g., rates established for 
meals, mileage, lodging).  If the entity does not have written policies, compare to the 
GSA rates (#18 above) and report each reimbursement that exceeded those rates. 

b) Report whether each expense is supported by: 

 An original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased.  [Note: An 
expense that is reimbursed based on an established per diem amount (e.g., meals) 
does not require a receipt.] 

 Documentation of the business/public purpose (Note: For meal charges, there 
should also be documentation of the individuals participating). 

 Other documentation as may be required by written policy (e.g., authorization for 
travel, conference brochure, certificate of attendance) 

c) Compare the entity’s documentation of the business/public purpose to the requirements 
of Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution, which prohibits the loan, pledge, or 
donation of funds, credit, property, or things of value, and report any exceptions (e.g., 
hotel stays that extend beyond conference periods or payment for the travel expenses of 
a spouse).  If the nature of the transaction precludes or obscures a comparison to the 
requirements of Article 7, Section 14, the practitioner should report the transaction as an 
exception. 

d) Report whether each expense and related documentation was reviewed and approved, 
in writing, by someone other than the person receiving reimbursement. 
 

Results: The largest travel expense selected for each of the three persons selected was 
supported by the documentation listed in criteria a) through d).   

 
Contracts 
 
20. Obtain a listing of all contracts in effect during the fiscal period or, alternately, obtain the 

general ledger and sort/filter for contract payments.  Obtain management’s representation 
that the listing or general ledger is complete. 
 
Results: Obtained the general ledger and filtered for contract payments during the fiscal 
year from management and management’s representation that the general ledger is 
complete. 

 
21. Using the listing above, select the five contract “vendors” that were paid the most money 

during the fiscal period (excluding purchases on state contract and excluding payments to 
the practitioner).  Obtain the related contracts and paid invoices and: 

a) Report whether there is a formal/written contract that supports the services arrangement 
and the amount paid. 
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b) Compare each contract’s detail to the Louisiana Public Bid Law or Procurement Code.  
Report whether each contract is subject to the Louisiana Public Bid Law or Procurement 
Code and: 

 If yes, obtain/compare supporting contract documentation to legal requirements and 
report whether the entity complied with all legal requirements (e.g., solicited quotes 
or bids, advertisement, selected lowest bidder) 

 If no, obtain supporting contract documentation and report whether the entity 
solicited quotes as a best practice. 

c) Report whether the contract was amended.  If so, report the scope and dollar amount of 
the amendment and whether the original contract terms contemplated or provided for 
such an amendment. 

d) Select the largest payment from each of the five contracts, obtain the supporting invoice, 
compare the invoice to the contract terms, and report whether the invoice and related 
payment complied with the terms and conditions of the contract. 

e) Obtain/review contract documentation and board minutes and report whether there is 
documentation of board approval, if required by policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act or 
Home Rule Charter). 

 
Results: Four of the contracts selected were supported by the information listed in criteria a) 
through e).   
 
The Sheriff was unable to provide the contract for one service arrangement therefore, 
procedures b) through e) could not be performed for that selection. 

 
Payroll and Personnel 
 
22. Obtain a listing of employees (and elected officials, if applicable) with their related salaries, 

and obtain management’s representation that the listing is complete.  Randomly select five 
employees/officials, obtain their personnel files, and: 

a) Review compensation paid to each employee during the fiscal period and report whether 
payments were made in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
employment contract or pay rate structure. 

b) Review changes made to hourly pay rates/salaries during the fiscal period and report 
whether those changes were approved in writing and in accordance with written policy. 
 

Results:  Obtained the listing of employees with their related salaries and managements 
representation that the listing is complete.  The compensation paid to the five selected 
employees was in in accordance with the terms and conditions of the employment contract 
or pay rate structure and the changes made to pay rate during the fiscal year was approved 
in writing and in accordance with written policy. 
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23. Obtain attendance and leave records and randomly select one pay period in which leave 
has been taken by at least one employee.  Within that pay period, randomly select 25 
employees/officials (or randomly select one-third of employees/officials if the entity had less 
than 25 employees during the fiscal period), and: 

a) Report whether all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory).  (Note: Generally, an elected official is not 
eligible to earn leave and does not document his/her attendance and leave.  However, if 
the elected official is earning leave according to policy and/or contract, the official should 
document his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

b) Report whether there is written documentation that supervisors approved, electronically 
or in writing, the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

c) Report whether there is written documentation that the entity maintained written leave 
records (e.g., hours earned, hours used, and balance available) on those selected 
employees/officials that earn leave. 
 

Results:  All of the documentation listed in items a), b), and c) above was present for the 25 
employees randomly selected.  

 
24. Obtain from management a list of those employees/officials that terminated during the fiscal 

period and management’s representation that the list is complete.  If applicable, select the 
two largest termination payments (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory time) made during the 
fiscal period and obtain the personnel files for the two employees/officials.  Report whether 
the termination payments were made in strict accordance with policy and/or contract and 
approved by management. 
 
Results:  Obtained the listing of employees terminated during the fiscal year and 
managements representation that the listing is complete.  The two largest termination 
payments selected were made in accordance with policy. 

 
25. Obtain supporting documentation (e.g., cancelled checks, EFT documentation) relating to 

payroll taxes and retirement contributions during the fiscal period.  Report whether the 
employee and employer portions of payroll taxes and retirement contributions, as well as the 
required reporting forms, were submitted to the applicable agencies by the required 
deadlines. 
 
Results:  The employee and employer portions of payroll taxes and retirement contributions, 
as well as the required reporting forms, were submitted to the applicable agencies by the 
required deadlines. 
 

Ethics (excluding nonprofits) 
 
26. Using the five randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #22 under “Payroll and 

Personnel” above, obtain ethics compliance documentation from management and report 
whether the entity maintained documentation to demonstrate that required ethics training 
was completed. 
 
Results: The Sheriff was unable to provide documentation to demonstrate that required 
ethics training was completed for one of the five employees selected. 
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27. Inquire of management whether any alleged ethics violations were reported to the entity 
during the fiscal period.  If applicable, review documentation that demonstrates whether 
management investigated alleged ethics violations, the corrective actions taken, and 
whether management’s actions complied with the entity’s ethics policy.  Report whether 
management received allegations, whether management investigated allegations received, 
and whether the allegations were addressed in accordance with policy. 

 
Results: No alleged ethics violations were reported to the Sheriff during the fiscal year. 

 
Debt Service (excluding nonprofits) 
 
28. If debt was issued during the fiscal period, obtain supporting documentation from the entity, 

and report whether State Bond Commission approval was obtained. 
 
Results: No debt issued during the fiscal year. 

 
29. If the entity had outstanding debt during the fiscal period, obtain supporting documentation 

from the entity and report whether the entity made scheduled debt service payments and 
maintained debt reserves, as required by debt covenants. 
 
Results:  The Sheriff made the required debt service payments.  There are no debt reserve 
requirements. 

 
30. If the entity had tax millages relating to debt service, obtain supporting documentation and 

report whether millage collections exceed debt service payments by more than 10% during 
the fiscal period.  Also, report any millages that continue to be received for debt that has 
been paid off. 
 
Results: The Sheriff has no tax millages relating to debt service. 

 
Other 
 
31. Inquire of management whether the entity had any misappropriations of public funds or 

assets.  If so, obtain/review supporting documentation and report whether the entity reported 
the misappropriation to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which 
the entity is domiciled. 
 
Results: Our inquiry of management regarding misappropriations of public funds or assets 
identified no such instances of misappropriations. 
 

32. Observe and report whether the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice 
required by R.S. 24:523.1. This notice (available for download or print at 
www.lla.la.gov/hotline) concerns the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of 
public funds. 
 
Results: The Sheriff has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 
24:523.1 
 

  

http://www.lla.la.gov/hotline
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33. If the practitioner observes or otherwise identifies any exceptions regarding management’s 
representations in the procedures above, report the nature of each exception. 

 
Results: No exceptions regarding management’s representations noted. 

 
This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in accordance with attestation 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable 
standards of Government Auditing Standards.  We were not engaged to perform, and did not 
perform, an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion 
or conclusion.  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion.  Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would 
have been reported to you. 
 
This report is intended solely for the use of management of Jefferson Parish Sheriff’s Office and 
the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, and should not be used by those who have not 
agreed to the procedures and taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their 
purposes.  Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative 
Auditor as a public document. 
 

 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
 
Metairie, LA 
December 13, 2017 
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December 13, 2017 
 
LaPorte, CPAs and Business Advisors and the  
Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
 
We appreciate this opportunity to provide explanations for any exceptions noted during the 
application of the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Agreed-Upon Procedures (AUPs) for the 
period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.  The Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office is committed to 
providing the best services to the citizens of our Parish and to spending the public money 
provided to us in the most efficient manner possible.   
 
In regards to the exceptions noted during the AUPs, we offer the following: 
 
AUP-4 - Bank Reconciliations: 
Exception:  We noted that four checks which had been outstanding for more than 6 months did 
not have documentation of research. 
 
Response:  Per JPSO policy, reviews of outstanding checks are done annually during the months 
of January and February. The items noted during the AUPs tested were not greater than six 
months at the time of the review and, as such, had not yet been researched.  To strengthen these 
procedures, we will implement an additional review of outstanding items in June, prior to our 
fiscal year end. 
 
AUP-6 - Collections: 
Exception:  For the week of cash collection selected for each location, the deposits were 
deposited into the bank account greater than one day of collection.  
 
Response:  The delays noted were primarily caused by slow timing of the armored car service 
being used.  JPSO has recently changed armored car services primarily due to these delays.  
Additionally, weekend and banking holidays frequently caused deposits to clear the bank longer 
than one day past the deposit slip date. 
 
AUP-10 - Disbursement - General 
Exception:  An employee that serves as a backup for the disbursement process has the ability to 
process payments and also has the ability to add vendors to the Sheriff's purchasing/disbursement 
system. 
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Response:  We believe that there are other sufficient controls in place to prevent any 
unauthorized vendors from being added and paid. These controls include budgeting and coding 
of disbursements, separate check signing authority (including dual signatures on checks over 
$500), limited access to check stocks and to the MICR printers that produce the checks, as well 
as detailed bank reconciliations.  The person in question is the third "back-up" in a line of 
employees with responsibilities in this process. 
 
AUP-15 - Credit Cards 
Exception:  Selected 10 cards used during the year.  For two of the monthly statements selected, 
there was no evidence that the statement was reviewed or approved in writing by someone other 
than the authorized card holder. 
 
Response:  The formal process of review and approval by the Accounting Director began 
midyear. Going forward all statements will be review and approved, to include an initial and date 
indicating such a review.  Previously, the statements were reviewed by an accounting clerk 
during the coding process.  She would typically review the receipts and notes provided by the 
cardholders on the charges so that the charges could be posted to the ledger.  Her work was 
documented on a spreadsheet; however, there was no procedure in place calling for her to initial 
and date her work. 
 
Exception:  Twenty two of the transactions selected did not have documentation of the business 
purpose contained in the supporting documentation. 
 
Response:  We believe that the business purpose was self-evident from the receipt and 
documented on the GL posting sheet by our accounting clerk.  For example, a hotel room used 
by an employee in extraditions was obviously used for an extradition as this would be the only 
reason for that employee to travel.  In order to strengthen this process, JPSO now requires the 
completion of the Credit Card Purchase Expense Form, which includes a space for 
written/documented business purposes and approvals. 
 
AUP-21 - Contracts 
Exception:  The Sheriff was unable to provide the contract for one service arrangement; 
therefore, procedures could not be performed for that selection. 
 
Response:  Professional services contracts are not subject to the bid law and in many cases are 
not supported by a written contract.  In some cases, quotes on hourly rates or proposals are all 
that are obtained.  The JPSO does try to obtain contracts for professional services in some areas.  
In this case, the contract in question had to do with a professional service contract with a 
computer programming firm.  The firm in question has done work for the JPSO for 20 plus 
years, mostly on an hourly or work order basis.  Recently, we placed the firm on an annual 
maintenance contract; however, the contract merely quoted hourly rates and not a fixed amount.  
Our Tax Bureau Chief is currently negotiating a contract with the firm in question to include 
more specific terms. 
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AUP-26 - Ethics 
Exception:  The Sheriff was unable to provide documentation to demonstrate that required ethics 
training was completed for one of the five employees selected. 
 
Response:  Procedures are in place to ensure compliance with the State ethics requirement.  In 
this case, the employee did not follow established procedures and has been reprimanded.   
 
We hope that our answers address any concerns raised from the exceptions noted.  We will work 
towards improving our processes and procedures to minimize or reduce any such exceptions in 
the future. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Paul C. Rivera, CPA, CGFO 
Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
 




